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MESSAGE FROM
THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD

AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

[102-14,102-15,102-1,102-5]

In 2016 we celebrated the first 20 years of IEnova with extraordinary
achievements.

We leveraged the experience and abilities of our great team to strengthen our
presenceinsectors where we are currently leaders. We also successfully participated
for the first time in new businesses.

We invested USDS$1.9 billion: a figure that represents almost one-third of the
USDS7 billion we have invested over our 20-year history.

We secured partial financing of our investments by carrying out a successful equity
follow-on offering for USD$1.6 billion.

In terms of our growth, in 2016 we acquired 50% of Gasoductos de Chihuahua, for
USDS1.1 billion, plus existing debt. With this transaction, we obtained full ownership
of six assets that we formerly operated in a joint venture with Pemex, making us the
largest private natural gas transporter in Mexico.

We also strengthened our commitment to renewable energies by winning the
auction to build and operate two solar parks: Rumorosa Solar, in the state of Baja
California, and Tepezala Il Solar, in Aguascalientes. For the first time, we will be
participants in the generation of solar energy.

Also in the renewable energies segment, we purchased the Ventika wind farm,
located in the state of Nuevo Ledn, for USD$435 million plus existing debt. With a
252 MW capacity, Ventika is currently considered to be one of the largest wind
farms in Mexico and Latin America.
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In addition, in a joint venture with TransCanada, we won a bid to build the Sur de
Texas-Tuxpan marine pipeline, one of the most important energy infrastructure
projects awarded in recent years in our country and the first private marine gas
pipeline in Mexico.

Sustainability is at the heart of our business strategy. It includes efforts that
contribute to improving the quality of life of our employees and the communities to
which we belong. Further, during the construction and operation of our assets, we
implement projects aimed at conserving natural resources and protecting
biodiversity. With such actions, we reiterate our commitment to the UN's Global
Compact and its Sustainable Development Goals.

2016 constituted the first complete cycle of operations for Fundacién IEnova. With
its allocated budget of USD$500 thousand it supported 19 projects related to

education, environment, vulnerable groups, and community services projects.

As a result of our actions focused on sustainability, we improved our position in the
Sustainability Index of the Mexican Stock Exchange. In addition, for the third
consecutive year, we obtained the Socially Responsible Company Award.

Thanks to the efforts of our entire team, we were certified for the third consecutive
year as a Great Place to Work. In addition, we were ranked 50" among the best
companies in terms of Diversity and Inclusion. We are convinced that it is vital for
our employees to be able to work in an environment that is conducive to their
personal and professional growth.

It is with great pride that we share herein our achievements for 2016. They are the result
of our company “s business vision since it was founded. [Enova: A history of success.

Carlos Ruiz Sacristan
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Infraestructura Energética Nova, S.A.B. de C.V.

IENOVA:
A HISTORY
OF SUCCESS
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In 2016, IEnova celebrated its 20™ anniversary. Today we are positioned as a leading
company in the energy sector in Mexico.

This was an extraordinary year during which we acquired Gasoductos de Chihuahua
and the Ventika wind farm. In addition, we were awarded contracts to participate for
the first time ever in two solar energy projects and to build our first marine pipeline.
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+ The natural gas sector’s + Enova de México, now * ECOGAS - ECE + Transportadora de Gas + Gasoducto Rosarito (GR) - Termoeléctrica - LNG storage terminal,
legal framework is IEnova, was established Chihuahua a-Durango Natural de Baja California de Mexicali (TDM) Energia Costa Azul (ECA)
reformed + ECOGAS Mexicali (TGN)
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- Acquisition of the El Paso assets: + Signing of the Ethane Pipeline + USD$408.3
Naco compression station and a 50% contract g USD$‘598.8
stake in Gasoductos de Chihuahua - Award and signing of the Sonora * Inclusion @
pipeline contract Index of
» Begin
Storg

Energia Sierra Judrez

In 2016, we carried out a successful equity follow-on offering for USD$1.6 billion.

Furthermore, we improved our position in the Sustainability Index of the Mexican
Stock Exchange as well as our ranking among the companies assessed by the

Great Place to Work Institute.

The history of IEnova in Mexico is a history of success.

2016

bt placement
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* Inclusion of IEnova in the
Sustanability Index of the Mexican
Stock Exchange

+ 50/50 joint venture with InterGen in
the Energia Sierra Judrez wind farm

» Beginning of operations of Los
Ramones | Pipeline and the
Sdsabe-Puerto Libertad phase of the
first segment of the Sonora Pipeline

» Award and signing of the Ojinaga-El
Encino Pipeline contract

» Great Place to Work Certification

» Socially Responsible Company Award

@ 2015

Beginning of operations of the
Energia Sierra Juarez wind farm
Beginning of operations of the
Ethane Pipeline

Beginning of operations of the Puerto
Libertad-Guaymas phase of the first
segment of the Sonora Pipeline
Award and signing of the San
Isidro-Samalayuca Pipeline contract
Announcement of the agreement to
acquire the Pemex stake in
Gasoductos de Chihuahua

Creation and beginning of operations
of Fundacién IEnova, A.C.

« Beginning of operations of the
Ramones Norte Pipeline

« Award of the Ramal Empalme Pipeline

« Award of the Sur de Texas-Tuxpan
Marine Pipeline (joint venture with
TransCanada)

« Acquisition of the Pemex TRI stake in
Gasoductos de Chihuahua

« Award and signing of the contract for
two renewable energy projects,
Rumorosa Solar and Tepezald Il Solar

« IEnova equity follow-on offering

« Acquisition of the Ventika wind farm
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[102-6, OG3]

In 2016, we acquired the Pemex TRI stake in Gasoductos de Chihuahua,
increasing our ownership interest from 50 to 100%. This transaction includes
six assets: the Los Ramones |, San Fernando, and Samalayuca Pipelines, the
TDF LPG Pipeline, the LPG Terminal in Guadalajara, and the Ethane Pipeline.
We also purchased Ventika, one of the largest wind farms in Mexico.

GAS SEGMENT

LPG TERMINAL

IN GUADALAJARA
80,000 bl
Capacity of LPG

LNG transportation Wharf with the Gas pipelines LPG storage
vessel infrastructure needed domes
to receive gas
H ] | [ (@] [m] (@]
[ ]
- I I )
LLITT |- - 0
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’Jé ) Energia ransportadora ) 0 Gasoducto — =y ‘ Tneportadora Illlll T
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STORAGE AND ECOGAS Commercial Residential Industrial LPG pipeline
REGASIFICATION TERMINAL :.a:ufsltqas
Capacity for 320,000 m3 [EUATERALL. .Q
system \:| =
Of natural qas 3,756 km of - I ﬁ
natural gas EAthane
distribution pipeline
pipelines
[m] [ | 3,391 km* of natural gas, ETHANE PIPELINE
Marine pipeline*** 1T C ITIT LPG, and ethane pipelines — — First private ethane
Joint venture with — ] ] pipeline system in
TransCanada L1 ] ’—__E N 1 Mexico, 224 km long
s TAl ‘ﬁ oo NN -.—_|___,—.|
Combined-cycle power generation Compression Pemex Qas
plants and industries station Processing Center

Customers

ELECTRICITY SEGMENT

TERMOELECTRICA DE MEXICALI Gas pipelines
625 MW Capacity

Power
sub-station
Termoe_lédclt_rica g‘ﬁ
t lexicall Ll
8. et il=——m
v o 1]
T8
2o Steam turbine Power
@g and gas turbines transmission line
&2
ai
w +
& Includes 100% of kilometers of pipelines in operation, under construction, and in joint ventures.
**  Asset belonging to the joint venture with InterGen, in which IEnova holds a 50% stake.
***  Asset belonging to the joint venture with TransCanada, in which IEnova holds a 40% stake.
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Mexicali

3,756 km
of natural gas
distribution
pipelines

119,341

customers La Laguna- Durango
7 cities

3 geographical
area

ENERGIA SIERRA JUAREZ**
155 MW Capacity

Power Power
sub-station sub-station
o RO @ ﬁ @ % @

o

Power Wind turbine Power

transmission transmission

line li
VENTIKA SOLAR ENERGY PARKS ne
252 MW Capacity Tepezala Il Solar 100MW Capacity

Rumorosa Solar 41 MW Capacity
(Under development)
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[102-2,102-4,102-10, 102-46, OG3]

We included in our assets the totality of Gasoductos de Chihuahua—a company in which we previously
had a 50% stake through a joint venture with Pemex TRI-and the Ventika wind farm. With these

acquisitions, we strengthened our presence in the renewable energy segment.

ASSETS IN OPERATION

PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
AND IN DEVELOPMENT o210, 063

GAS GAS
PIPELINES PIPELINES
SONORA PIPELINE (SASABE-GUAYMAS SEGMENT) [505 km SONORA PIPELINE + Natural gas pipeline made up of two inter-connected segments, located
(GUAYMAS-EL ORO SEGMENT) in the Mexican states of Sonora and Sinaloa.
ROSARITO PIPELINE (GR) | 302 km 330 km + Currently 330 km of the Guaymas-EI Oro phase are under construction.
TRANSPORTADORA DE GAS NATURAL DE BAJA CALIFORNIA (TGN) | 45 km 30 mches in diameter « It is estimated that the whole pipeline will be operational by the second
Capacity for 510 mcfd quarter of 2017.
AGUAPRIETA PIPELINE (GAP) |13 km
NACO COMPRESSION STATION {14,340 hp
LOS RAMONES | PIPELINE [116 km OJINAGA-EL ENCINO PIPELINE + Natural gas pipeline that runs from Ojinaga to El Encino, in the state of
220 km Chihuahua.
SAN FERNANDO PIPELINE | 114 km 42 inches in diameter « It is estimated that it will be operational in the second quarter of 2017.
SAMALAYUCA PIPELINE |37 km Capacity for 1,356 mcfd
TDF LPG PIPELINE |190 km
ETHANE PIPELINE |224 k
m SAN ISIDRO-SAMALAYUCA PIPELINE + Natural gas pipeline that runs from San Isidro to Samalayuca, in the state
RAMONES NORTE PIPELINE* [ 452 km 23 km of Chihuahua.
42/36 inches in diameter « It is estimated that it will be operational in the second quarter of 2017.
STORAGE Capacity for 1,135 mcfd
STORAGE IN TERMINAL DE GAS LP DE GUADALAJARA* 80,000 bl
NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND REGASIFICATION TERMINAL, 320,000 m?
ENERGIA COSTA AZUL (ECA)
SUR DE TEXAS-TUXPAN*** » Marine and ground pipeline in the Gulf of Mexico, that runs from Southern
DISTRIBUTION 800km Texas to Tuxpan, in the state of Veracruz.
ECOGAS (NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION PIPELINE) | 119,341 customers 42 inches in diameter - It is estimated that it will be operational in the first quarter of 2018.
Capacity for 2,600 mcfd
3,756 km
RAMAL EMPALME * Pipeline branch that will inter-connect with the Sonora Pipeline.
20 km - It is estimated that it will be operational in the second quarter of 2017.
30 inches in diameter
Capacity for 226 mcfd
ELECTRICITY POWER
GENERATION
TERMOELECTRICA DE MEXICALI (TDM) 625 MW RUMOROSA SOLAR - Solar energy park located near the Energia Sierra Judrez wind farm in
p . x 41 MW the municipality of La Rumorosa.
47-TURBINE ENERGIA SIERRA JUAREZ (ESJ) 155 MW « It is estimated that it will be operational in the second quarter of 2019.
84-TURBINE VENTIKA*** 252 MW

£ . o ) o ' . . o TEPEZALA || SOLAR*#*** » Solar energy park located in the state of Aguascalientes.

E*é * Astsit belonging to the joint venture with Pemex and other institutional investors, in which IEnova holds an indirect 25% 100 MW - It is estimated that it will be operational in the second quarter of 2019.
T3 stake.

:;s: % ** Asset belonging to the joint venture with InterGen, in which IEnova holds a 50% stake.

2 9 *** Asset belonging to the joint venture with TransCanada, in which IEnova holds a 40% stake.

gé **** Asset belonging to the joint venture with Trina Solar, in which IEnova holds a 90% stake.

&+
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OUR
ASSETS
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At IEnova, we are
convinced that
sustainability must

be at the heart of our
strategy. Only then will
we be able to offer our
customers the service
and quality they require,
maintain our growth
rate, adequately protect
the environment,

and contribute to the
development of the
communities to which we

belong.
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ECONOMIC

- Maximizing shareholder value

- Using resources efficiently

- Comprehensive risk management

- Ensuring the integrity of our assets

- Operational availability and
reliability

- Customer satisfaction

SOCIAL

- Comprehensive professional and
personal growth

- Diversity and inclusion

- Economic and community
development

- Health and safety

- Social management

ENVIRONMENTAL

SUS"rAINAB“lLITY POLICY IS FOUNDED ON A CULTURE OF ETHICS AND GOOD "' - R ,.'* : . | - Clean and efficient energy
RATE GOVERNANCE. IT IS BASED ON THREE PILLARS: ECONOMIC; SOCIAL, AND e = ; 2 o~ - Environmental culture
MENTAL. WE INCLUDE IN OUR SUSTAINABLE PRACTICES ACTIONS FOCUSED ON¢ o . L ‘_" i - Comprehensive management of
THE NEEDS OF OUR SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS, AND ’ " . r ’ b waste and emissions

. 'h} b' y COMMUNITIES. WE ALSO STRIVE TO ENSURE AT ALL COSTS THE INTEGRITY OF OUR - _ ] - Biodiversity

" e OPERATIONS AND TO PROTECT THE NATURAL RESOURCES WE USE IN OUR PROCESSES. a u! |
| 1!-_ 1 ] 1 3 - - ; A

N . - -
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SUSTAINABILITY

[102-46,102-19]

In 2016 we implemented several changes aimed at strengthening the way in

et 1 ] i Pt ST :
' !l’]!"ﬁiﬁp. J which we manage our sustainability efforts, including the following:
.= i
S T ol
v AT - |
; -

1. Sustainability Policy: We reviewed our policy in order to redefine its goals,
scope, and responsibilities.

2.Social Management System: We initiated the development of a system that
will allow us to standardize and monitor our efforts to benefit the communities
to which we belong. We expect to begin implementing this system in several of
our assets in 2017.

In addition, we restructured the Sustainability Committee to involve more of our top
management. We are convinced that including sustainability in the strategic planning
process at IEnova and in the way we manage economic, environmental, and social risks
is key to our operation.

The Committee is chaired by our Chief Corporate Affairs & HR Officer and includes the
following IEnova executives:

Chief Development Officer

Chief Engineering & Construction Officer
Chief Operating Officer

Chief Legal Counsel

Senior Vice President Strategic Planning
Vice President Financial

Vice President Controller

Director of Human Capital

Director of Regulation and Compliance
Director of External Affairs and Sustainability
Manager of Auditing

Manager of Sustainability

We also increased the number of commissions in the Sustainability Committee, to
the following:

1. Human Capital: in charge of issues such as the comprehensive professional
and personal development of our employees, as well as all efforts related to
diversity and inclusion.

2. Social Management: addresses economic and community development as
well as our engagement with society.

3. Environment, Health and Safety, and Supply Chain: includes aspects
such as clean and efficient energy, environmental stewardship, comprehensive
management of waste and emissions, protecting biodiversity, the efficient use
of resources, the health and safety of our employees at our operations, as well
as economic and community development.
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4. Operations: deals with the integrity and reliability of our operations, the
efficient use of resources, and customer satisfaction.

5. Engineering and Construction: oversees the integrity of the assets and
ensures construction is done sustainably.

6. Ethics and Corporate Governance: strives to strengthen a culture of ethics
and corporate governance.

The functions of the Sustainability Committee include: approving |Enova's
sustainability strategy and ensuring that it is correctly executed; making sure
that the Sustainability Commissions carry out their duties; monitoring IEnova's
inclusion in the Sustainability Index of the Mexican Stock Exchange; reviewing
and approving the content of the Sustainability Report; and promoting compliance
with the sustainability policy among all IEnova employees.

The Sustainability Committee is a branch of the Corporate Practices Committee,
to which it reports on the results of all sustainability efforts. It meets at least
twice a year.

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT
STRUCTURE

[102-18,102-32,102-33]

HUMAN CAPITAL COMMISSION

SOCIAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY, AND
°ee SUPPLY CHAIN COMMISSION

OPERATING COMMISSION

CORPORATE PRACTICES SUSTAINABILITY

COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION

COMMISSION

ETHICS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMISION

The IEnova Sustainability Policy, in Spanish, is available to view and
download at: http://ienova.com.mx/pdf/Politica-de-Sustentabilidad.pdf

SUSTAINABILITY
MODEL

MISSION,
VISION, AND
VALUES

OUR MAIN STAKEHOLDERS ARE:

[102-40]

* HUMAN CAPITAL

+ COMMUNITY

* SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

. STRATEGICLARTNERS_
*SUPPLIERS' +
- CUSTOMERS
-CQNSUMER§

LPG Terminal at Guadalajara

+ COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA:
0 GﬁVERNMENT AUTHORITIES
A

D REGULATORS

* CIVIL ORGANIZATIONS

AND NGOS




In order to adequately manage our sustainability efforts, we work to establish a

good relationship with our stakeholders and to understand what issues worry
them most and the best way to address them. To this end, we maintain open
communication channels.

STAKEHOLDERS AND COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

1 2 3 4 5 6 vi 8 9
COMMUNICATION HUMAN [SHAREHOLDERS | CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS GOVERNMENT | COMMUNITY |COMMUNICATIONS CIVIL STRATEGIC
CHANNELS CAPITAL |AND INVESTORS CONSUMERS AUTHORITIES AND MEDIA ORGANIZATIONS PARTNERS
REGULATORS AND NGOS
LIVE MEETINGS + + + + + + + + +
WORK ENVIRONMENT SURVEYS +
REPORTING CHANNELS/HELPLINE O @) @) @) @) @) @) @) @)
SHAREHOLDERS MEETING O
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION O
SURVEYS
ADDRESSING INTERNAL AND + + + + + + +
EXTERNAL INQUIRIES
WEBSITE @) @) @) @) @) @) @)
INTRANET @)
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT O O O O O O O
ANNUAL REPORT TO THE O O O O O
MEXICAN STOCK EXCHANGE
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT N N N N N N N
INTERNAL NEWSLETTERS +
ISSUING RELEVANT EVENTS + + + + + + +
REVIEW OF THE COLLECTIVE O O
BARGAINING CONTRACT
SURVEYS + + + -
GUIDED VISITS TO INDUSTRIAL + + + + +
FACILITIES
+ + +

Energia Sierra Judrez
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EXPECTATIONS CURRENT RESPONSE MEASURES

[102-44]

HUMAN CAPITAL TRAINING AND Participate in the Great Place to Work Institute's work
DEVELOPMENT, environment survey.
EDUCATION, Continue with training plans to obtain the “Certification in
REMUNERATION, the IEnova Leadership Standard".
QUALITY OF LIFE AT Continue annual reviews of the benefits package and ensure
THE WORKPLACE it continues to be at competitive levels for the industry.

Continue with employee development programs.

SHAREHOLDERS GROWTH, Continue to be listed in the IPC and Sustainability Indexes
AND INVESTORS PROFITABILITY, of the Mexican Stock Exchange.

DEVELOPMENT, Manage information constantly through our Investor
SUSTAINABILITY Relations division.

CUSTOMERS AND  HIGH-QUALITY Conduct customer satisfaction surveys for the Pipelines and
CONSUMERS SERVICE, SAFETY, Distribution operating units.
PRICES Obtain a score of more than 90% on these surveys.

SUPPLIERS DEVELOPMENT, Apply minimum sustainability criteria requirements

COMMERCIAL surveys with key IEnova suppliers.

CONDITIONS, LONG- Organize the first “IEnova and its suppliers working

TERM RELATIONSHIPS together in favor of sustainability in the supply chain”
event.

Communicate to key suppliers the sustainability
requirements established in the Procurement Policy and
distribute the Sustainability Report.

GOVERNMENT COMPLIANCE WITH Certify or re-certify 100% of our assets under ASEA's or

AUTHORITIES AND THE LAW AND SEMARNAT's Environmental Quality and Clean Industry
REGULATORS REGULATIONS, standards.
DEVELOPMENT, Rigorously comply with all requlations applicable to our
SUSTAINABILITY operating assets and our projects currently under construction.

Participate in business-related associations.

COMMUNITY

SAFETY AND SOCIAL Have programs in place to help the communities in which
DEVELOPMENT we operate.

Strengthen the corporate volunteers program.

Ensure safe operations.

Respect traditions of indigenous populations.

Operate Fundacion IEnova

COMMUNICATIONS TIMELY INFORMATION Offer updated information through different channels.
MEDIA
CIVIL DEVELOPMENT, Respect traditions of indigenous populations.
ORGANIZATIONS SUSTAINABILITY, Maintain efficient operations of the company's Trusts.
AND NGOS REGULATORY Operate Fundacién IEnova
COMPLIANCE Ensure regulatory compliance at all IEnova operations.
STRATEGIC GROWTH, Promote and comply with best corporate governance
PARTNERS SUSTAINABILITY, practices.
OPERATING
i EFFICIENCY = -

1
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L To identify the needs of the communities in which we operate or where we are currently building a new asset, we carried out the following
activities:

- = -« Drafted the Baseline Social Analysis, Stakeholders Plan, and Social Investment Plan for Energia Sierra Juarez. Additionally, we
' implemented the grievance mechanism, (Mecanismo de Atencién a la Comunidad, MAC) which is available at: http://www.energiasj.
com/ comunicacion.html I
A MAC is currently being drafted for Termoeléctrica de Mexicali and Energia Costa Azul, and will be implemented during 2017.
In addition, in 2016 we surveyed 89 key suppliers on their practices related to sustainability, environment, health and safety, human
capital, ethics and corruption, as well as on their understanding of IEnova's sustainability-related practices.
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MATERIALITY

[102-42,102-46,102-47,102-48,102-49, 102-51, 103-1,103-2, 103-3]

As part of the process for updating our materiality assessment, in 2016 we
interviewed twelve top IEnova executives who are involved with our sustainability
strategy and with managing the company. We performed a qualitative and
guantitative analysis of all divisions in the business—corporate, storage, pipelines,
natural gas distribution, and power generation facilities—reviewing internal processes
from the economic, environmental, and social perspective.

In order to include the point of view of our stakeholders in this assessment, for the
third consecutive year we performed surveys to measure satisfaction levels among
our natural gas Distribution and Pipelines customers. We also applied the
qguestionnaire provided by the Great Place to Work Institute (GPTW) in Mexico, which
measures work environment satisfaction. The results for both efforts were positive.

In the customer survey, satisfaction levels were above the prior year, with a score of
9.2 points for Distribution customers and 9.7 in Pipelines. In the GPTW questionnaire,
employee satisfaction levels were also above last year's measurement, allowing us
to maintain our certification and to be included in the list of the top 100 companies
to work for in Mexico, ranking 52",

We also analyzed press coverage of our company, to identify which are the most
relevant topics for the media. During the year there were almost double the number
of stories published as compared to the previous year, with the vast majority being
positive. IEnova's achievements reflected well in the media.

At the end of this process, we confirmed that the material issues identified in our
materiality assessment remain valid, although with some variations in the level of
relevance. These variations are shown in our updated materiality matrix. The
analysis helped us identify the most relevant issues for IEnova and our stakeholders.
These were classified in one of the three levels identified in our Materiality Matrix.

Each of these material aspects has been classified under its corresponding Economic,
Social, Environmental, or Governance pillar. With this we strive to ensure that our
sustainability model is aligned with IEnova's strategy.

MATRIX

[102-47]

RELEVANCE FOR STAKEHOLDERS

1

00%

50% _ _|

0
0% 50%

100%

ECONOMIC

SOCIAL

o Ul WwWN o

POTENTIAL IMPACT FOR IENOVA

Customer experience and satisfaction

Product and service quality

Business diversification

Integration of the operations of new businesses
Developing the value chain

Brand value and recognition

Managing safety at operations
Training and development

Media communications and presence
Grievance mechanisms

Labor standards (Human Capital)
Standardization of the work culture
Society and community

Healthcare

ENVIRONMENTAL

GOVERNANCE

21
22
23
24

Environmental data systems

Climate change strategy

Strategy for natural resources management
Operations and environment

Certifications

Biodiversity (flora and fauna)

Strategy

Laws and regulations

Corporate ethics and corporate governance
Risk management

Topics that are a priority for stakeholders, with = 70% relevance. In the content of the Report we describe the actions we have

im

plemented to address them.




SUSTAINABILITY PROGRESS AND

In 2016 we worked to reach our goals under the three pillars of our
sustainability strategy. Following is a summary of our progress and
new goals for 2017.
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SUSTAINABILITY PROGRESS AND

CHALLENGES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

RISK
MANAGEMENT

Energia Sierra Judrez

i\f Strengthen the risk culture

in IEnova by complying with
the guidelines established
in our Risk Management

and publish the
es for

Strengthen the risk culture in
the company by complying
with the guidelines
established in our Risk
Management policy.

Train suppliers in corporate
ethics issues by participating
in the “IEnova and its

s pPIiers working together

inability in
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arry out
ommemorate the

ay for Safety and

th at the Workplace,

romoted by the

International Labour

Organisation.

Obtain or maintain the Safe
Company certificate
offered by the Mexican
Ministry of Labor and
Social Welfare (STPS) at all
our operating units during
the first 12 months after
they begin to operate.

Reach the established
performance goals related to
our accident rate: Total
Recordable Incident Rate
(TRIR): 2.29; Lost Time
Accident Rate (LTAR):1.73

Maintain the OHSAS 18001
certificate at Energia Costa
Azul.

Obtain comprehensive
certification (1ISO 9001, ISO
14001, and OHSAS 18001) in
Pipelines.

ent a new tool to
sure the incidence of
hicular accidents.

@ Distribute the Manual on

Health and Safety Principles
for Building Pipelines.

Obtain or maintain the Safe
Company certificate
offered by the Mexican
Ministry of Labor and
Social Welfare (STPS) at all
our operating units during
the first 12 months after
they begin to operate.

Reach the established
performance goals in accident
rate: Total Recordable Incident
Rate (TRIR): 2.19; Lost Time
Accident Rate (LTAR) 1.66

Maintain the OHSAS 18001
certificate at Energia Costa
Azul.

Maintain comprehensive
certification (ISO 9001, ISO
14001, and OHSAS 18001) in
Pipelines.

Update Health and Safety
Guidelines to be included in
new or renewed contracts.

EMPLOYEES

COMMUNITY
RELATIONS

2016

ﬁ Continue the “Certification in

the IEnova Leadership
Standard" program. Subjects:
teamwork, feedback, managing
change, and emotional
intelligence.

Improve our score in the
Great Place to Work survey
with respect to 2015.

Develop a social
management system that
complies with the
requirements of the Mexican
legislation currently in force
and international best
practices.

Execute the 2016 budget for
Fundacién IEnova with projects
aligned with the Foundation’s
pillars.

Increase social and volunteer
programs that are consistent
with IEnova’s sustainability
pillars through Fundacién
|IEnova.

2017

® © © o

Maintain the Great Place to
Work certification.

Include new employees in
the High Potential Program.

Optimize benefits program
based on employee needs.

Develop an e-learning platform
that will include development,
diversity, and respect issues.

Begin to gradually
implement the social
management system at the
IEnova assets.

Determine the grievance
mechanism that will be used at
all IEnova's operating and
administrative units and begin
gradual implementation during
the second half of 2017.

Execute the 2017 budget for
Fundacién IEnova with
projects aligned with the
foundation’s pillars.

Maintain social and volunteer
programs that are consistent
with IEnova's sustainability
pillars through Fundacién
IEnova.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

PILLAR

ENVIRONMENT

2016

Analyze how we handle and manage
hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Draft the Operation Efficiency
Program establishing the elements
that need to be developed to define
efficiency goals for water and
energy.

Continue the Sustainable Office
program at all operating units.

Obtain or maintain the Clean
Industry or Environmental Quality
certificate offered by the Mexican
Environmental Protection Agency
(PROFEPA) at all our operating
units during the first 12 months
after they begin to operate.

Obtain the comprehensive
certification (ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
and OHSAS 18001) in the Sonora
Pipeline project currently under
construction.

Define the strategy for the
conservation of natural resources in
the operating units.

Define IEnova's Climate Change
Strategy.

2017

@

Draf
D El

Implement the Strategy for
Managing and Using Waste.

Implement the Sustainable Office
Program at all operating units
recently acquired by [Enova and in
those over which IEnova has
operating control.

Obtain or maintain the Clean
Industry or Environmental Quality
certificate offered by the Mexican
Environmental Protection Agency
(PROFEPA) at all our operating units
during the first 12 months after they
begin to operate.

Maintain the comprehensive
certification (ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
and OHSAS 18001) in the Sonora
Pipeline project currently under
construction.

Draft a short-, medium-, and
long-term implementatior
derived from the
natural reso
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100% 100%

ASSETS IN OPERATION OF EMPLOYEES RECEIVE
WITH THE SAFE COMPANY AN ANNUAL PERFORMANCE
SELF-MANAGING HEALTH EVALUATION

AND SAFETY IN THE

WORKPLACE PROGRAM

23,123 +10%

TRAINING HOURS )
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Los Ramones Compression Station

a1
(@)

* Includes 100% of kilometers of
pipelines in operation, under
construction, and in joint ventures.

** Investments in the community
includes the budget for Fundacién
IEnova and for Trusts: Ensenada,
Sonora, Ojinaga-El Encino, San
Isidro-Samalayuca, as well as Los
Ramones | Pipeline and Ethane
Pipeline.




RISK MANAGEM ENT AND

RPORATE

2GOVER
NANCE

We have a system in

place to identify, assess,
analyze, and mitigate
potential risks, and we
operate based on the best
practices in corporate

governance.
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Our comprehensive risk management system includes an inventory of economic,
social, and environmental risks classified on the basis of their potential impact and
probability of occurrence. Risk management is central to the business strategy. Our
operations are all subject to strict requlations that we rigorously adhere to.

i
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RISK RISK CATEGORIES
MANAG]EMENT AND DESCRIPTIONS

[102-11,102-29, 102-31 [102-11]
Risk Management and the Risk Committee are the two divisions within IEnova in At IEnova we divide the risks we are exposed to into four categories, and we take the
charge of operating the Comprehensive Risk Management System. They are guided necessary measures to mitigate them.
by principles such as independence, risk culture, defining the risk appetite,
transparency, and continuous improvement. STRATEGIC RISKS | Risks derived from decisions and strategy
Risks related with the locations in which we operate and our
Our Risk Manager oversees these issues and makes quarterly reports to the Risk mergers and acquisitions
Committee the goals reached and the most relevant findings. Potential capital risks
Integration risks
The Risk Committee establishes the guidelines for managing the Risk Management Risks derived from our ability to offer adequate products and services to
System and determines the functions, responsibilities, processes, policies, and our customers
procedures needed to carry out this task. This Committee also makes an annual FINANCIAL AND | Risks associated with the financial situation
review of the Risk Management Policy and reports to the Board of Directors, which REPORTING RISKS

. . L. Risks associated with the Treasury
advises top management on the measures that need to be implemented to mitigate

. e . Risks associated with financial flows
identified risks.

Risks associated with internal and external financial reports
OPERATING RISKS | Risk of losses due to operating errors

Risk caused by human error

Risk due to inefficient or badly designed processes
Risk of a system failure

Risk of incorrect behavior (including criminal activities)

COMPLIANCE RISKS | Risks derived from violations or non-compliance with the laws,
norms, regulations, and internal practices that affect the reputation
or value of the company

Risk of having to pay fines
Risk of having to pay damages

Risk from the nullification of contracts

Environmental and social risks

In addition, in compliance with what has been established by the corresponding
authorities, we have insurance policies that protect the totality of our assets and
offer coverage on goods, civil responsibility, interruptions in operations, terrorist
acts and sabotage, and environmental responsibility, among others.




CORPORATE WE OFFER ALL OUR EMPLOYEES

ETH Ics _ THE FOLLOWING REPORTING

[102-25,102-16, 102-17, 205-1, 205-2] CHANNELS 24/7:

Our ethics and values framework establishes the guidelines for the behavior we
expect from our Board members, employees, and suppliers. Additionally, we have a
Corporate Ethics Division in charge of:

IENOVA CONTIGO
HELPLINE

@ % 01800-062-2107
—=

COMMUNICATING CORPORATE OFFERING EMPLOYEES A PLACE TRAINING
ETHICS AND ANTICORRUPTION WHERE THEY CAN MAKE THEIR
ISSUES COMPLAINTS AND BE CERTAIN
THAT THOSE COMPLAINTS WILL
BE ADDRESSED WITH NO
REPRISAL

CONFIDENTIAL E-MAIL

IEnova@lineadedenuncia.com

FOLLOWING-UP ON THE CONTRIBUTING TO MAKING
2015-2017 CORPORATE ETHICS IENOVA A LEADING COMPANY
WORK PLAN ON CORPORATE ETHICS ISSUES

At IEnova we are obliged to comply with all applicable national and foreign anti- g

corruption and anti-bribery laws, including the Mexican Federal Anti-Corruption
Law in Public Hiring (Ley Federal Anticorrupcion en Contrataciones Publicas), the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA), and the OECD Convention on Combating lineadedenuncia.com/IEnova
Bribery of Foreign Public Officials in International Business Transactions.

IENOVA WEBSITE

In 2016, we published our new Code of Ethics that includes 23 integrity standards.
All employees must read, sign, and comply with these standards. The Code is
available to view and download at http://ienova.com.mx/english/pdf/codigo-de-

etica.pdf. llE

Based on our policy of zero tolerance for ethics breaches, we ensure the
confidentiality and impartiality of our helpline, which is managed by a third-party. SEMPRA ETHICS AND

During 2016, there were 20 cases reported on our /[Enova Contigo helpline that were COMPLIANCE HELPLINE
addressed and resolved in a timely manner based on our policies. 01800-241-5689

Furthermore, we require all our suppliers to be familiar with and sign our Guidelines
for Supplier Behavior that address issues such as compliance with laws and
regulations, business gifts and presents, how to use the IEnova assets, protecting
the environment, sustainability, health and safety, the confidentiality and protection
of all information, and conflicts of interest.

SEMPRA WEBSITE

Sustainability Report
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CORPORATE

[102-17]

Our Corporate Governance practices comply with laws applicable to public
companies listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange, with the regulations of the

National Banking and Securities Commission (Comisién Nacional Bancaria y

de Valores, CNBV), and with the recommendations of the Code for Best
Corporate Practices established by the Entrepreneurial Coordinating Council
(Consejo Coordinador Empresarial, CCE) in Mexico.

We are the only energy infrastructure company to be listed on the Mexican
Stock Exchange, as well as the only one included in its Sustainability Index,
ranking ninth among the 80 companies assessed for inclusion and with
scores above the national average in every category.

BOARD OF
D | R Q)

[102-18,102-22,102-23,102-24,102-25, 102-28, 102-32, 405-1]

The IEnova Board of Directors includes eleven permanent members, four of
whom are independent, in accordance with the terms of the Mexican Securities
Law (Ley del Mercado de Valores). Carlos Ruiz Sacristan serves as Chairman of
the Board of Directors and CEO of IEnova.

Every one of the Directors have proven experience and an excellent reputation
in different areas of expertise, including the energy sector, finances, foreign
relations, public policy, and infrastructure. With their global view of the industry,
Board members review the business’ plans and performance, evaluate
comprehensive risk management, approve succession plans, establish corporate
governance guidelines, and analyze progress in sustainability.

As of this date, the Board of Directors includes the following members:

Carlos Ruiz Sacristdn | Chairman

Jeffrey S. Davidow | Independent Director
Aarén Dychter Poltolarek | Independent Director
Alberto Mulds Alonso | Independent Director
José Julidn Sidaoui Dib | Independent Director

Joseph A. Householder | Director

Jeffrey W. Martin | Director

Martha B. Wyrsch | Director

Dennis V. Arriola | Director

Kevin C. Sagara | Director

Trevor I. Mihalik | Director

+ Financial REPORE

Radl Farias Reyes

René Buentello Carbonell
Rodrigo Cortina Cortina

Secretary, not a member of the Board
Pro-Tem Secretary, not a member of the Board
Pro-Tem Secretary, not a member of the Board

As established by the General Shareholders Meeting held on April 28, 2017.

‘. < o

L os Ramones Compression Station




Energia Costa Azul

CORPORATE PRACTICES AUDIT
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE

[102-23,102-24,102-28] [102-23,102-24,102-28]

The Corporate Practices Committee assists the Board in preparing the reports on
the financial and accounting guidelines and the reports for the annual shareholders
meeting; advises the Board of Directors on the appointment of the Chief Executive
Officer and other senior management and in defining their responsibilities and
remunerations; requests the opinions and recommendations of independent
experts; provides its opinions regarding transactions with related parties; and
convenes meetings of the shareholders.

Jeffrey S. Davidow | Chairman*
Aardn Dychter Poltolarek | Director*
Joseph A. Householder | Director

Alberto Mulds Alonso | Director*
José Julian Sidaoui Dib | Director*

*Independent Director in accordance with the terms of the Mexican Securities Law.

Among other functions, the Corporate Practices Committee is responsible for
conducting an annual review of the performance of the Board of Directors and for
making the necessary decisions to ensure that IEnova continues to be listed on the
Sustainability Index of the Mexican Stock Exchange. To this end, the Sustainability
Committee reports quarterly to the Corporate Practices Committee, which subsequently
informs the Board of Directors about the activities and results on sustainability issues.

80%

OF THE MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE PRACTICES

The Audit Committee reports on internal controls and recommendations; informs on
irregularities; oversees the work of the external auditors and analyzes their reports and
the financial statements of the company; assists the Board in preparing the reports on
operations; receives and analyzes proposals and comments made by shareholders,
Board members, key executives, external auditors, or third parties; convenes
shareholders meetings; and supervises transactions with related parties to ensure they
comply with the law.

The Committee includes all the independent members of the Board.

Aardn Dychter Poltolarek | Chairman*
Jeffrey S. Davidow | Director*
Alberto Mulds Alonso | Director*
José Julian Sidaoui Dib | Director*

*Independent Director in accordance with the terms of the Mexican Securities Law.

Sustainability Report
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ETHICS

COMMITTEE

[102-16,102-571]

We also have an Ethics Committee in which senior executives of the company
participate. The Committee reports to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
and reviews complaints of alleged violations of the Code of Ethics, conducts the
necessary investigations, and determines a plan of action based on the findings, all
within @ maximum 30-day period.

Pursuant to our goal of being recognized as a leading company in both national and
international discussions on anti-corruption and corporate ethics issues, we, among
other activities, coordinated postgraduate courses of study in Government and
Corporate Ethics, Anti-Corruption, and Prevention of Conflicts of Interest for the
Escuela Libre de Derecho; organized the Forum on Corporate Ethics for the Energy
Sector, also done in collaboration with the Escuela Libre de Derecho, which involved
public officials and the private sector.

In the international arena, we participated in organizing the First Seminar to Fight
Corruptioninthe Business Sector, in which the Secretary General of the Organization
of American States and other top government and business representatives from
all over the world took part. We also collaborated in coordinating the UN's
International Anti-Corruption Day, in which many Mexican authorities participated.

We also chair the Corporate Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission of the American
Chamber of Commerce, Mexico Chapter (AmCham) and the National Anti-Corruption
Commission of Coparmex, the Mexican employer's confederation.
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GOVERNMENT

[102-13

ELATIONS

IEnova is subject to the regulation and supervision of several Mexican governmental
agencies, including the following: Ministry of Energy (SE); Ministry of the Environment
and Natural Resources (SEMARNAT); Ministry of Labor (STPS); Energy Regulatory
Commission (CRE); National Safety, Energy and and Environmental Agency (ASEA);
and the National Center for the Control of Energy (CENACE). We strictly adhere to
all norms, laws, and regulations applicable to our operation and we maintain a good,
open, and transparent relationship with governmental bodies.

As members of the energy sector, we participate in the following Associations and
Chambers:

American Chamber of Commerce, Mexico Chapter (AMCHAM)

Asociacion Chihuahuense de Administracidn de Personal (ACAP)

Asociacién Mexicana de Energfa (AME)

Asociacién Mexicana de Energia Edlica (AMDEE)

Asociacién Mexicana de Energia Solar Fotovoltaica (ASOLMEX)

Asociacién Mexicana de Gas Natural (AMGN)

Asociacién Mexicana en Direccion de Recursos Humanos (AMEDIRH)

Barra Mexicana Colegio de Abogados (BMA)

Camara Nacional de la Industria de la Transformacion de Chihuahua, Gémez Palacio, Torreén,
Ensenada y Mexicali (Canacintra)

Colegio de Contadores Publicos de México

Colegio de Ingenieros Civiles de Chihuahua (CICCH)

Comision de Promocidn Econémica de Ensenada (COPREEN)

Comision de Promocion Econdémica de Tecate (COPRETEC)

Confederacion Patronal de la Repdblica Mexicana of Ensenada, Hermosillo, Mexicali and
Mexico City (Coparmex)

Consejo de Desarrollo Econdmico, Mexicali

Instituto Mexicano de Auditores Internos (IMAI)

Instituto Mexicano de Ejecutivos de Finanzas (IMEF)

World Energy Council, Mexico Chapter (WECMEX)

Throughout the year, we either obtained or maintained important certifications
and awards:

Certifications and Awards

Sustainability Index IEnova
Great Place to Work (GPTW) IEnova
Socially Responsible Company (ESR) IEnova
1S0 9001 ECOGAS

1S0 9001, IS0 14001 and OHSAS 18001 Pipelines
1S0 9001, 1SO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 Pipelines (Project Sonora Pipeline)
IS0 9001, IS0 14001 and OHSAS 18001 Energia Costa Azul (ECA)

IEnova's Mexi@® City Corporate Headquasters
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DIRECTORS

CARLOS RUIZ JEFFREY S.

SACRISTAN DAVIDOW

CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

AARON DYCHTER
POLTOLAREK

INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

JEFFREY W. MARTHA B.
MARTIN WYRSCH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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DENNIS V.
ARRIOLA
DIRECTOR

ALBERTO MULAS
ALONSO
INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

KEVIN C.
SAGARA
DIRECTOR

JOSE JULIAN JOSEPH A.
SIDAOUI DIB HOUSEHOLDER
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
DIRECTOR

TREVOR I.
MIHALIK
DIRECTOR
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SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

T

RENE BUENTELLO

ARTURO INFANZON

FAVELA CARBONELL
CHIEF FINANCIAL CHIEF LEGAL
OFFICER COUNSEL

4 _
‘...h 1
TANIA ORTIZ MENA
LOPEZ NEGRETE
CHIEF

DEVELOPMENT
OFFICER

CARLOS BARAJAS

JESUS CORDOBA

SANDOVAL DOMINGUEZ

CHIEF OPERATING CHIEF ENGINEERING

OFFICER & CONSTRUCTION
OFFICER

JUAN RODRIGUEZ
CASTANEDA

CHIEF CORPORATE
AFFAIRS & HR
OFFICER

GERARDO
DE SANTIAGO TONA
SENIOR VICE

PRESIDENT STRATEGIC

PLANNING

JORGE MOLINA
CASELLAS

VICE PRESIDENT
COMMERCIAL

1?. .
r B
4

JUANCHO
EEKHOUT

VICE PRESIDENT
DEVELOPMENT

MANUELA MOLINA ROBERTO RUBIO
PERALTA MACIAS
VICE PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER

To read the biographies of the IEnova Senior Management, please visit our 2016 Annual Report:
https://www.bmv.com.mx/docspub/infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.pdf
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We spark progress

in Mexico through
investments that
contribute to different
production sectors and
to national and regional

development.
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We operate in two key segments of the energy sector: Gas and Power.

In the Gas segment we have companies engaged in pipeline-transportation and
storage services for natural gas, LPG, and ethane as well as others engaged in
storage of liquefied natural gas, LPG, and the distribution of natural gas.

In the Power segment, we generate electric power through a combined-cycle plant

fueled with natural-gas and through two wind farms. In addition, we will soon begin
construction on two solar energy parks that will start operating in 2019.

CORPORATE

STRUCTURE

[102-7,102-45]

INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA NOVA, S.A.B. DE C.V. (IENOVA)

! !

GAS SEGMENT POWER SEGMENT

! ! l l
= 2 & 7

PIPELINES STORAGE DISTRIBUTION GENERATION




INVESTMENT IN 2016 ECONOMIC

USD$1.9* BiLLION BENEFIT

BN SUSTAINABILITY S

Our trajectory and expertise allow us to grow our business in those segments
where we already have a presence and, at the same time, to leverage the new

opportunities that arise from the continued opening of the energy sector.

[102-6,102-9, 203-2, 204-1

DEMAND FOR GOODS
AND SERVICES
In 2016 we made investments in excess of USD$1.9 billion. With these investments,

we not only contribute to the fast-growing energy industry, but we also benefit

U B other sectors of the economy, including the construction and steel industries and
engineering services. Likewise, we create new direct and indirect jobs, offer
VALUE CHAIN specialized training to our employees, purchase goods and services, and pay taxes.

+ Materials
During the year our workforce grew 37%, from 639 employees in 2015 to 877 at end

» Technology

* Services of 2016. The increase was mainly due to our purchase of Gasoductos de Chihuahua.

We also generated 8,800 indirect jobs in projects we had under construction.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE INDUSTRY DISTRIBUT|ON OF THE
IENOVA SUPPLIERS

+ Construction industry

+ Steel industry [204-1]
» Engineering services
At IEnova we prefer to source and buy needed goods from local suppliers and do so

whenever circumstances allow. In 2016, 56% of our products were sourced in Mexico.

=1~

ol

JOB CREATION

Il LOCAL SUPPLIER*
M OTHER

*Local refers to sourced in Mexico.

PUBLIC INVESTMENT

O

SOCIAL WELLBEING

— PROFITABILITY —

*Includes capital expenditures for USD$316 million, investments in joint
ventures for USD$100 million, the acquisition of the remaining 50% of
Gasoductos de Chihuahua and the Ventika acquisition for USDS$1.5 billion.
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WE VALUE OUR

CUSTOMERS

[102-6]
At IEnova we consider it vitally important to offer excellent service to our
customers. We assess customer satisfaction with our natural gas distribution
companies and pipelines through annual surveys as well as in-person meetings.
We also have a team specialized in customer service.
In the Gas segment we operate pipelines and offer storage, and distribution
services, and, in the Power segment, we offer electric power generation services.
BUSINESS SEGMENTS
GAS SEGMENT POWER SEGMENT
PIPELINES STORAGE DISTRIBUTION GENERATION
COMPANIES
SONORA PIPELINE NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND ECOGAS TERMOELECTRICA DE MEXICALI
REGASIFICATION TERMINAL, ) )
ROSARITO PIPELINE (GR) ENERGIA COSTA AZUL (ECA) ENERGIA SIERRA JUAREZ**
TRANSPORTADORA DE GAS LPG TERMINAL AT VENTIKA
NATURAL DE BAJA GUADALAJARA
CALIFORNIA (TGN)
AGUAPRIETA PIPELINE (GAP)
NACO COMPRESSION STATION
LOS RAMONES | PIPELINE
SAN FERNANDO PIPELINE
SAMALAYUCA PIPELINE
TDF LPG PIPELINE
ETHANE PIPELINE
RAMONES NORTE PIPELINE*
CUSTOMERS
PEMEX INDUSTRIES AND ELECTRIC RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS ~ EXPORTS TO THE CALIFORNIA
POWER GENERATION FACILITIES 116,421 MARKET IN THE U.S.
CFE IN BAJA CALIFORNIA
SMALL BUSINESSES CEMEX
GAS DISTRIBUTORS PEMEX 2,691
FEMSA
PRIVATE SECTOR THERMAL LARGE AND INDUSTRIAL
POWER PLANTS BUSINESSES DEACERO
229
INDUSTRY FIAT-CHRYSLER
ITESM
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*Asset belonging to the joint venture with Pemex and other institutional investors, in which [Enova holds an indirect 25% stake.
** Asset belonging to the joint venture with InterGen, in which IEnova holds a 50% stake.




ECOGAS Q QUALITY MANAGEMENT
CUSTOMERS Residential customers SYSTEM

[416-2]
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We operate based on a steadfast commitment to offer our customers the highest
qguality products, offering them excellent service.

For seven years we have used the IEnova Quality-Control System in the seven
cities where we offer natural gas distribution services through ECOGAS, and we
comply with the ISO 9001:2008 standards, ensuring the quality of the service
we offer our customers.

CALL CENTER

We operate a call centerin the city of Chihuahua that serves all our ECOGAS customers.
In 2016, we handled an average of 10,435 calls a month. The main reasons for the calls
were to verify an appointment, request reinstatement of a suspended service or an
extension on a payment past due, to inform the company when a payment was made,
or to make a complaint. All were handled in a timely manner.

One of the tasks of our Customer Service division is to respond immediately to
emergency calls to ensure the safety of the community. After resolving an
emergency, we always test our facilities to determine the integrity of the pipeline. In
addition, we operate with the commitment to respond to routine calls within a
maximum of ten days, and we follow-up on all requests from our customers.

J i3

Calls received Calls solved Average time per call
(in minutes)
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We have personalized-service counters at the Mexicali, La Laguna-Durango,
and Chihuahua locations. In 2016, we helped 47,943 customers at these
counters, resulting in 53,906 procedures.

IN 2016 WE HELPED, AT THE SERVICE COUNTER

47,943 cUsTOMERS

Additionally, at some supermarkets we offer our customers the possibility of
making their payments at ATMs with either credit or debit cards. This year
we installed eight new payment centers and we started to offer automatic
payments and an online chat through our website.

We use our customer service system to monitor different important aspects
of the service we offer, including waiting times, type of service, and number
of customers served per day. We analyze the statistics in order to continually
improve the service we offer.
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CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION

[102-43,102-44]

An external specialty consulting firm conducts satisfaction surveys with our natural
gas Distribution and Pipelines customers.

At ECOGAS we conducted the survey for the fifth consecutive year with our
residential customers in the cities of Mexicali, Torreén, Gémez Palacio, and
Chihuahua. Satisfaction levels in aspects such as quality of the service, the
characteristics of the information we share with them, and the training our
employees receive, among many others, show that our efforts have rendered good
results, with an average score of 9.2 points out of 10, and above both our score for
the prior year and our proposed goal.

For the third year we surveyed our natural gas Pipelines customers. Results were
also above the established goal, with a satisfaction level with the service we offer
of 9.7 points out of a possible 10.

LPG Terminal at Guadalajara

ADVERTISING AND
FIDELITY PROGRAMS

At ECOGAS we offer advertising and fidelity programs with the dual objective of
keeping our current customers and of inviting others to hire us.

Our iPaga a tiempo y gana!, (Pay on Time and Win) program, for example, rewards
prompt payments. We also have seasonal campaigns, such as Verano Gratis
(Free Summer), that offers a month of free-of-charge service to customers who
recommend us to new housing developments, and the Programa Invernal (Winter
Program) that offers our customers incentives and rewards late in the year. We
also offer our support to customers who require a line of credit in order to split
payments in two installments.
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Because IEnova's work ethic is centered on the safety and integrity of our
assets and operations, we start managing both aspects at the design stage of

a project, and continue to do so throughout the entire operating cycle, which
includes construction, maintenance, operating the infrastructure, the work
methodology, and offering the service to the end customer.

INTEGRITY MANAGEMENT

Our Integrity Management Program (IMP) employs a specially-designed
software that constantly analyzes our operation, allowing us to control every
aspect needed to ensure normal operations.

In Pipelines and Distribution, in the Gas Segment, 100% of our pipelines
operate the Integrity Management Program and the following steps are taken

to ensure that our infrastructure and operations are performing adequately:

Inspecting natural gas pipeline systems.

Assessing the indicators obtained from the inspections.
Cataloguing the indicators.

Evaluating results of the cataloging.

Classifying them by defect and severity.

Determining the integrity of the pipeline.

Monitoring operating parameters in real time and permanently.
Monitoring alarms constantly.

Addressing detected problems in a timely manner.

Our IMP complies with all norms and regulations in force in Mexico and the
US, and includes five plans that apply to different aspects of the operation:

PERFORMANCE | COMMUNICATIONS | MANAGING CHANGE | QUALITY
CONTROL PLAN

INTEGRITY
MANAGEMENT PLAN | PLAN PLAN PLAN

Given the success of this program, our goal is to apply it at all our assets over
the course of the following years.
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SCADA SYSTEM

With our Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system we can
supervise, control, and collect the necessary data to monitor field devices, in
real time and remotely, and it makes it easier for us to provide feedback and
manage our operating units.

We use SCADA or similar systems in different aspects of our operations, in both
the Gas and Power segments:

Natural gas pipelines

Receiving and discharging liquefied natural gas (LNG)
Storing liquefied natural gas (LNG)

Regasifying natural gas

Distributing natural gas

Generating electric power

GENERATED AND DISTRIBUTED

ECONOMIC VALUFE'

[201-1, 30741

AtlEnova we strive to generate value sustainably, contributing to the development
of our own industry and that of other sectors with which we interact.

FIGURES IN THOUSANDS OF USD$
2014 2015 2016
ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED
A) REVENUES 822,796 671,703 717,894
B) INTEREST INCOME 3,299 6,743 6,269
C) INCOME FROM ASSET SALES 25,900 0 0
D) DIRECT ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED 851,995 678,446 724,163
(A+B+C)
ECONOMIC VALUE DISTRIBUTED
E) OPERATING COSTS? 541,682 390,810 342,543
F) SHAREHOLDERS? 164,000 170,000 140,000
G) TAXES AND DUTIES PAID 137,886 62,557 95,025
H) INVESTMENTS IN THE COMMUNITY#, 4,606 5,434 5,086
ENVIRONMENT SAFETY, HEALTH, AND
COMPLIANCE
1) ECONOMIC VALUE DISTRIBUTED (E+F+G+H) 848,174 628,801 582,654
ECONOMIC VALUE RETAINED (D-I) 3,821 49,645 141,509

1 This table was drafted based on the Global Reporting Initiative guidelines.

2 Operating Costs excluding depreciation includes employee salaries and benefits.

3 Only includes dividends paid.

4 Investments in the community includes the budget for Fundacién IEnova and for Trusts:
Ensenada, Sonora, Ojinaga-El Encino, San Isidro-Samalayuca and the Los Ramones | Pipeline
and Ethane Pipeline.
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We create value for the
communities where

we operate; we design
programs that contribute
to their wellbeing, and we
foster the growth of our
employees with training,
health and safety, and
diversity and inclusion

efforts, among others.
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During this extraordinary year for IEnova, we are particularly proud of having
created 37% more direct jobs, up from the 639 jobs of 2015 to 877 at year-end
2016. We were able to incorporate the Gasoductos de Chihuahua employees into
the IEnova workforce efficiently, granting them working conditions that are
similar or better than what they had prior to integration.

Our employees span several generations, including people with vast experience in
the energy industry and young graduates who appreciate the opportunity of
belonging to a company such as IEnova. Because we value diversity and consider
that it fosters creativity and innovation, we make no distinctions for age, gender,
sexual orientation, political affiliation or religious beliefs. 26% of our employees
are women, and many of them occupy middle- and top-management positions.

IEnova employees enjoy the opportunity for personal and professional growth in
a pleasant work environment where they have the tools and training they need to
fulfill their duties. In 2016 our total voluntary turnover rate was only 6%.

DISTRIBUTION OF EMPLOYEES
BY CATEGORY

2014 2015 2016
PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENTS 8 8 12
DIRECTORS 13 16 19
MANAGERS 66 66 95
STAFF AND ADMINISTRATIVE 494 549 751
TOTAL 581 639 877
DISTRIBUTION
OF EXECUTIVES
2014 2015 2016
M F M F M F
PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENTS 6 2 6 2] 10 2
DIRECTORS 9 4| 12 4 13 6
MANAGERS 52 14| st 15| es8 27
TOTAL 67 20| 69 21| 91 35

DISTRIBUTION OF
EMPLOYEES BY
GENDER AND AGE

TOTAL
EMPLOYEES

877

VS. 639 IN 2015

20-29 years old

30-39 years old

40-49 years old

50-59 years old

+ than 60 years old
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DISTRIBUTION
OF NEW JOBS

TOTAL NEW
EMPLOYEES

238

VS. 58 IN 2015
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Of the total number of employees, 97% are Mexican. We favor hiring people who live

in the same geographic region where our operating unit is located.

LOCAL JOBS
CREATED*

VICE PRESIDENTS
DIRECTORS
MANAGERS

STAFF AND
ADMINISTRATIVE

TOTAL

LOCAL
8

n

61

491

571

*Local refers to sourced in Mexico.

2014
TOTAL

66
494

581

LOCAL

62
546

630

2015
TOTAL

66
549

639

LOCAL
1

90
740

855

877
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COMPREHENSIVE TRAINING
AND DEVELOPMENT

[102-8,103-2, 404-1, 404-2, 404-3]

The training includes six modules:
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Because we view talent as a strategic asset that generates competitive advantages,
we offer a variety of training programs.

©

SETTING GOALS UNDER RELATIONSHIP COMMUNICATION
THE SMART WITH EMPLOYEES
Our IEnova Operating Training Program provides paid energy-sector-specific METHODOLOGY

training for three months for young technicians who have recently graduated from
technical schools and universities. The program has been very successful both for

IEnova—which hires a high percentage of the graduates—and for the students. KB C>
In 2016 the third generation of 30 technical operators graduated, including five <)D
women who are now part of the IEnova operating team. As a result of the success TEAMWORK FEEDBACK MANAGING CHANGE AND

of this program and the growing need for specialized technicians, in 2017 we plan
to begin offering the course twice a year.

We also developed the program known as the “Certification in the IEnova Leadership
Standard"”, a specialized two-year training that is part of our Development Model.
The program is obligatory for those employees who manage teams. Certification is
also a pre-requisite for anyone aspiring to a promotion within the company.

EMOTIONAL INTELLIGENCE

The last three modules were taught during 2016, and the first generation of almost
150 employees graduated this year. We are currently developing a plan that will
allow us to extend the range of subjects included in the program in the near future
and we also plan to offer it online.

To prepare the future leaders of the organization, we offer a two-year training
program to 16 high-potential employees selected through a rigorous evaluation
process. The program includes executive training (finance, communication skills,
project assessment), the development of a project, the support of company Vice
President as mentor, as well as a specific incentives plan. All participants are
evaluated at the end of the first year and a determination is made as to whether
they should remain in the program.
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We offer our Vice Presidents and Directors an executive training program that
includes seminars given by institutions such as the Instituto Mexicano de
Ejecutivos de Finanzas, the Great Place to Work Institute, and the Instituto
Tecnoldgico Auténomo de México (ITAM), as well as specialists within IEnova. The
program addresses several topics, including:

Finances for non-financial executives

Effective communication skills

Project assessment and evaluation
Energy-sector requlation (to be offered in 2017)
The art of public speaking (to be offered in 2017)

In addition, we do a 360° evaluation of 100% of our employees who supervise staff.
With this confidential assessment, we can analyze from the point of view of superiors,
peers, other employees, and one’'s self, the abilities and competencies demonstrated
in daily work activities, such as communication skills, teamwork, planning, and
organization, among others.

This year we offered 23,123 hours of live or online training, including the programs

described above and other specific courses depending on the area and function, for
an average of a little over 31 hours of training per employee.

HOURS OF TRAINING

[404-1]
2014 2015 2016
M F M F M F
EXECUTIVES AND MANAGERS 986 341 1181 484 2,046 607
SPECIALISTS 9,991 2194 | 13,407 3,869 1172 443
OTHER EMPLOYEES 1,822 1,057 1,302 696 | 16,230 2,625
TOTAL 12,859 | 3,592 | 15,890 | 5,048 | 19,448 3,675

<

+10% TRAINING
HOURS

VS. 2015

USD$760.6

THOUSAND INVESTED
IN TRAINING

Energia Costa Azul




In 2016 we registered an unprecedented growth in the number of employees. This
growth, in addition to the opening of the energy sector, makes it imperative for us to
offer our employees an ever-wider range of options for professional development,
including the opportunity to participate in interesting projects.

In collaboration with the Human Capital team, IEnova leaders are firmly committed
to motivating their team members to follow through on their career plans. As part
of this commitment, we determine specific growth plans for each employee and
we promote cross-training (employees who receive training for other positions in
their division to acquire new knowledge and continue to grow professionally).

We also have succession plans in place for Vice President and Director positions,
based on a methodology that analyzes the ideal competencies and leadership
styles needed to ensure that both the IEnova culture and values endure, and
even strengthen.

On the other hand, for upcoming generations we offer a Professionals in
Development plan that seeks to create a pool of young employees eager to
develop a deeper understanding of the energy industry and to gain from the
experience of a management team with an exemplary track record.

These students participate in a standard recruiting process. At the end of the training
period, participants in the program are evaluated as potential IEnova employees.

In order to contribute to the professional growth of our employees, we designed
a corporate communications plan known as IEnova Somos Todos (We Are All
IEnova) to foster a sense of unity among all our subsidiaries. The campaign
includes periodic meetings during which area leaders share with their
collaborators the status of projects they are working on, operating results, and
assignment of responsibilities.

In 2016, the IEnova Somos Todos program was also in charge of drafting the
IEnova al Dia (IEnova Up To Date) newsletter on the most relevant company
information. We also developed a campaign to celebrate IEnova’s 20" Anniversary
and highlighted the history and accomplishments of our company.

In addition, we implemented the Fueling Our Future (FOF) program aimed at
optimizing processes and gain efficiencies throughout the organization.

ustainability Report
Financial Report
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BENEFITS

For the past four years, we have hired an independent consulting firm to do
compensation research and assess our competitive position. Results consistently
show that the compensation package and benefits we offer our employees are
above the national average.

In late 2016, we began using a robust platform known as Mi Espacio (My Space) that
includes information pertaining to each employee’'s compensation, as well as other
issues such as training programs, benefits, and evaluation results. Through this
platform, using any device connected to the internet, employees can access their
own information at any time.

At the beginning of each year, we perform a salary-planning process to determine
raises and bonuses for each employee, taking into consideration their annual
performance evaluation, as well as the company’s financial and operational results.

This year we strengthened the employee benefits package with two main measures:
1.Vacation pay was increased from 25 to 55% of the vacation days allocated to each employee,

which for all levels is more than what is established by law.
2.Christmas bonus was increased from the prior 25 to 30 days' pay.

The benefits we offer our employees, beyond what is established by law, are proof of
our commitment to their wellbeing. The following are among the most relevant:

Major health insurance for employees and their family members.
Minor health insurance

Life insurance

Sefore retirement plan for pension, death, and total and permanent disability
Savings fund

Performance bonus

Short-term bonus

Long-term bonus

Vacation pay

Electronic food coupons

Company car for Vice Presidents and Directors

Medical check-ups for Vice Presidents and Directors

School and professional growth scholarships

Retention and attraction bonuses

High-potential recognition program

Additional vacation days to those established by law

30-day Christmas bonus

Complementary disability compensation, additional to Social Security
Flexible medical benefits

103
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In flexible medical benefits, we now offer the following options: dental coverage,
life insurance, life insurance for spouses, medical insurance for pets, medical
appointments plan, funeral expenses insurance, and cancer diagnosis. We also
offer the option of purchasing car insurance at preferential rates.

In 2016, we implemented a project to measure the "emotional salary”: those
benefits we offer our employees that do not necessarily have a monetary value.

This task will be carried out in three stages:

Y~
ANALYSIS OF THE EFFICIENCY ANALYSIS OF THE VALUE DEVELOPING A TOTAL
OF RETRIBUTION PLACED ON THE BENEFIT AND COMPENSATION WEBSITE
RETURN ON INVESTMENT AND THE EMOTIONAL

SALARY BRAND

In late 2016, we concluded the first stage with a detailed analysis of all the measures
included in the emotional salary, determining which apply to each group of employees.

In 2016, we implemented an email campaign detailing the benefits we offer our
employees. The purpose of this campaign is for employees to take advantage of all
that IEnova offers them.

Staff hired for specific projects have the same benefits as permanent employees,
except a retirement plan, since this is a long-term benefit.

We are convinced that our work culture helps our employees to carry out their
duties in an environment where they can grow to their full potential. They also have
the tools they need to do their jobs and to find a good life and work balance with the
company's support.
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Respect is a key value of our culture that seeks to achieve an environment of equality
in which diversity is promoted with equal opportunities for all, without distinction
based on gender, race, age, religious beliefs, political doctrine, social or physical
conditions, or sexual orientation. We strictly adhere to all applicable regulations in
terms of legality and the respect for human rights, and we operate based on our
Code of Ethics.

Additionally, we have policies in place that promote inclusion and diversity, including
the following:

Health care coverage for same-sex partners
Coverage for illnesses such as HIV, with no waiting period
Coverage for pregnancy, with no waiting period

As proof of our commitment to these good practices, in 2016 IEnova was ranked
50" on the top 100 companies in Mexico with the best gender equality and
diversity policies.

We also have a Development, Equality, and Diversity Committee in which several top
executives in the company participate, and whose main responsibilities are to:

Promote measures to encourage a culture of equality and diversity among all members of
the organization.

Verify that we carry out programs to promote strengthening competencies for personal
growth, favoring the comprehensive development of employees.

Ensure that there are policies and procedures in the company that take into consideration the
issues of diversity, equality, and inclusion.

Validate that internal promotions are carried out ina framework of equality and transparency.
Promote causes related to diversity, equality, and inclusion in the community.

Validate that we have the annual budget required to carry out the projects specified by the Committee.
Generate the quidelines and approve the general strategy for equality, diversity, and
development at IEnova, aligned with the strateqgy and IEnova's sustainability pillars.

IEnova's Mexico City Corporate Headquarters
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HEALTH AND

SAFETY

[103-2, 403-1]

The goal of our Health and Safety management system is to make sure that our
employees are able to carry out their duties under safe working conditions.

At IEnova we comply with the strictest safety requlations, such as the Official
Mexican Standards, the Federal Labor Law, the Social Security Law, and all
regulations applicable to our company. In addition, we also adhere at all times to
our Manual for Managing the Health and Safety System, our Internal Labor Bylaws,
our Code of Ethics, and all policies and procedures developed specifically to achieve
a zero-accidents operation, in a work environment in which health and safety play a
key role. To maintain or even improve our health and safety standards, we implement
a series of world-class preventive measures.

As a result of the fast pace at which we are building the Sonora, Ojinaga-El Encino,
and San Isidro-Samalayuca pipelines, in addition to the inclusion of Gasoductos de
Chihuahua into our operation in September 2016, the number of hours worked
reached record highs for the company, up from 4.09 million in 2015 to 7.8 million
hours worked in 2016. In terms of Health and Safety, this increase entailed additional
responsibility, since each hour worked is, by definition, a moment of exposure
during which we need to be vigilant and to apply controls.

All companies that require certification because of the characteristics of their
operation are either already certified or in the process of being certified under
Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series (OHSAS 18001).

ECOGAS

Two years ago we designed a unigue proactive indicator in which we describe 24
elements that need to be evaluated at all our operating units as part of our Health
and Safety Management System.

In 2016, we included two new elements in the system: Wellness, based on our
conviction that personal wellbeing results in better job performance, and Dangerous
Fauna, aimed at making sure our employees know what to do if they come into
contact with an animal or insect that could endanger their lives.

We also continued applying the cross-verification process through which an
employee—who may or may not belong to the Health and Safety division—verifies
compliance at a business unit other than his own.
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We also employ our Health and Safety Principles to Save Your Life Manual that
includes measures to prevent incidents in twelve areas, such as using personal
protection gear, the incident reporting procedure, and the correct way to work
with electricity, machinery, vehicles, and at high altitudes, among others. In
2016, 519 employees participated in the Health and Safety committees and work
teams. To oversee the implementation of the Health and Safety Management
System, we doubled the number of audits carried out during the year, compared
to the previous year.

AUDITS
o § @ ol 9 5
‘14 ‘15 16 ‘14 ‘15 16
INTERNAL EXTERNAL

To strengthen our culture of prevention, in 2016 we offered 19,469 hours of training
in Health and Safety through 259 courses on different issues, including safety when
dealing with fire and when working with electricity, storing and handling hazardous
materials, and emergency response, among others.

As part of our efforts in Health and Safety, the IEnova Operations Committee includes
these issues in its agenda. In addition, each of our operating units has the following:

A Safety and Hygiene Commission

A Champions team to monitor the activities of the Health and Safety Management System
Preventive and emergency brigades

Specialists in health and safety

We implement different initiatives such as the Health and Safety Employee of the
Month award, the Family Day aimed at getting our employees to replicate the
company's good practices at home, the drawing contest Safety and My Family,
among others.

To strengthen our occupational health culture, at all our business units we give
lectures on issues such as prevention and health care, and hold vaccine campaigns
against illnesses such as tetanus and influenza. We also perform medical tests on
personnel who require them due to the risks implied in performing their duties. At
some of our operating units we have an onsite doctor's office, a morning exercise
program called Pausa por la Salud (Take a Break for Health), and sports activities.

m
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[403-2,403-3]

All our operating units comply with the requirements of the comprehensive
evaluations done by the Mexican Department of Labor and Social Welfare (STPS) in
order to be certified under its Self-Management Safe Company Program in Health
and Safety at the Workplace (PASST).

We have voluntarily opted to continue to be part of this program and our goal is to
include all our assets before they have been operating for 12 months. For those
assets already operational, our goal is to maintain or surpass their current level, with
level 3 being the highest achievable level.

In 2016, three of our facilities were evaluated under the comprehensive PASST self-
management program. We also included a new asset into the program, Energia Sierra
Judrez (ESJ). Currently, two of our facilities are at level 1 (TDM, GR), three have a
level 2 score (ECA, IGM, ECOGAS Chihuahua), and another 3 have obtained the level
3 grade (TGN, ECOGAS Mexicali and ECOGAS La Laguna-Durango).

Our Total Recordable Incidents Rate (TRIR) was 0.77, our Lost Time Accidents Rated
(LTAR) reached 0.28, both at levels below the prior year and surpassing the goals we
had set for 2016. For next year, our goals will be a stricter 219 in TRIR and 1.66 LTAR.

ACCIDENT RATE
2014 | 2015| 2016

WORK-RELATED FATALITIES' 0 0 0
TOTAL RECORDABLE INCIDENT RATE (TRIR)? 1.40 1.27 077
LOST TIME ACCIDENT RATE (LTAR)? 0.87 0.59 0.28

1The accident rate does not consider first aid or events with no injuries; at-risk staff includes IEnova
employees as well as personnel from contractor companies at our facilities or rights of way:
Accident Rate = (Number of accidents x 200,000 ) / hours worked.

2 TRIR = Total Recordable Incident Rate. We include injuries and work-related illnesses beyond first aid (i.e.
recordable incidents) whether they resulted in lost days or not, based on the definition of the US
government's Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

3 LTAR = Lost Time Accident Rate. Includes recordable accidents that resulted in lost work days.

When we start to build a new project, we apply a rigorous criteria to select our partnering
contractors, all of whom must sign a contract committing to meet our Health and Safety
requirements, which include the following, to name a few:

Complete our safety induction course.
Have procedures and permits in place to perform high-risk tasks.
Conduct periodic field inspections and random breathalyzer and drug testing.

Finally, since we operate in compliance with the General Civil Protection Law and we
promote a culture of prevention in case of risks or hazards resulting from natural or
human-induced disasters, in 2016 we carried out 58 drills at our operating units, for a
305% increase with respect to the previous year.

T —

2.19

TOTAL RECORDABLE INCIDENT RATE

(TRIR)

1.66

LOST TIME ACCIDENT RATE (LTAR)

i

.1}




sl

At IEnova we are driven by our strong commitment to contribute to the wellbeing of the
communities where we operate. We manage the economic and human resources we allocate to
our social efforts through Fundacién IEnova, a series of Trusts linked to our main projects already
in operation or under construction, as well as through the social work we do at the projects we
are building as part of our joint ventures:

Fundacion < $ L —
IEnova
Enzrg(ﬂ. ﬂh,b tmns{urmu

TRUSTS PROJECTS UNDER SOCIAL
CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENT

[413-1]
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Created in 2015, Fundacion IEnova operates with the goal of strengthening the
impact of the economic and human resources we invest in the communities in
which we operate and to which we belong.

Fundacion IEnova is a second-tier foundation duly authorized by the Mexican
Internal Revenue Service (Servicio de Administraciéon Tributaria, SAT) to make
donations and economic contributions.

Sustainability'R&port
+ Financial II?e_port

PILLARS FOR ACTION

We focus on supporting those projects that most require our collaboration,
that bring the greatest benefits to the community in the mid- and long-term,
and that are also congruent with the four pillars on which the activities of the
Foundation are based:

EDUCATION ENVIRONMENT VULNERABLE COMMUNITY
GROUPS SERVICES

Through the Foundation we support non-profit organizations that are SAT-
approved and whose activities align with the social goals described in its bylaws.

Fundacién IEnova designed an assessment methodology to structure the
way in which we evaluate projects and organizations. Our management team
adheres to this methodology when selecting the organizations that will
receive donations from us. In addition to transparency in the donation
process, this enables us to maximize the impact of the allocated resources.

Fundacién IEnova is supervised by an Advisory Committee and a Managing
Board. The Advisory Committee includes company Vice Presidents and is
chaired by IEnova's Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board. The
Managing Board is made up of employees and is chaired by the Chief
Corporate Affairs & HR Officer. In addition, IEnova's internal auditor reviews
the way in which Fundacién IEnova is operated.

Ny




MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
FOR FUNDACION IENOVA

[103-2]

ADVISORY COMMITTEE
CHAIR: CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FOR IENOVA

% _ 2016 DONATIONS BY

E ACTION PILLAR
A ol USDS500 THOUSAND

The Fundacién IEnova management team submits a list of pre-selected projects to the
Managing Board for final approval. Projects approved by the Managing Board are then
submitted to the Advisory Committee which, in turn, meets to assess and approve the
projects and organizations chosen to receive the donations. It also evaluates the
results of the projects, supervises the performance of the Managing Board, and
evaluates how Fundacién IEnovais being managed.Prior to handing over the resources,
we carry out an anti-corruption practices authorization process in accordance to the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA), the Corporate Ethics Policy, and the Anti-
Corruption Procedure for Donations, Memberships, and Improvements at IEnova,

implemented by the Corporate Ethics area.
EDUCATION ENVIRONMENT VULNERABLE COMMUNITY
GROUPS SERVICES

/

The selected charities must submit quarterly reports as well as the supporting
documentation needed to verify compliance with the established timetable and
conditions. In 2016, Fundacion IEnova was allocated a budget of USD$500 thousand.
With these resources, it supported 12 organizations with 19 projects in ten cities in six
Mexican states.

DONATIONS
BY STATE IN 2016

Il CHIHUAHUA (CHIHUAHUA) 38% 28% ]3% 40% 19%

Il BAJA CALIFORNIA (ENSENADA, MEXICALI, TIJUANA) 31%
[l MEXICO CITY 12%

Promesa Educativa Fundacion para los nifios Fundacidén del Empresariado Fundacién del Empresariado
[ SONORA (HERMOSILLO) 1% para México, A.C. de las Californias/Hospital Chihuahuense, A.C. (FECHAC) Chihuahuense, A.C. (FECHAC)
[ COAHUILA (TORREON) 7% Infantil las Californias, I.B.P.
) Fundacién UABC, A.C. Fundacién Merced Coahuila, A.C. ~ Cruz Roja Mexicana, I.A.P.
B ESTADO DE MEXICO 1% Reforestamos México, A.C.
Asociacidn Mexicana pro Fundacidon del Empresariado Fundacién del Empresariado
Colegios del Mundo Unido, A.C. Sonorense, A.C. (FESAC) Sonorense, A.C. (FESAC)
Since 2015, as part of our partnership with the Fundacién para la Proteccién de la Nifiez, Instituto Educativo del Casa Hogar del Anciano de
I.LA.P., an organization dedicated to helping vulnerable groups all over Mexico, we have Noroeste, A.C. (CETYS) Ensenada, A.C.

adopted six foster homes for children living in vulnerable conditions in localities where
IEnova has operations, such as Hermosillo, Mexicali, Ensenada, Torreén, Chihuahua, and
Mexico City. Through the development of infrastructure-improvement projects we seek
to contribute to changing the conditions in which these children live and increase their
opportunities for a better life.

Fundacidn para la Proteccion de
la Nifiez, I.A.P.

Sustainability Report
+ Financial Report

19




Our corporate volunteers are an integral part of Fundacién IEnova. We encourage
our employees to participate in social commitment events.

In 2016, we held 14 volunteer events through which we supported the following
projects:

Escuela + Sonrisas (school + smiles): a drive to collect school supplies for donation to
foster homes, benefiting approximately 190 children in six cities.

Arbol de Ia Sonrisa (tree of smiles): a drive to collect toys, clothes, and shoes for
donation to foster homes, benefiting approximately 230 children in seven cities.
Reforestation Program in the foothills of the Nevado de Toluca volcano: we adopted
a half-hectare to plant 500 trees, 65 employees and their families participated.

Q
+1,000 PEOPLE

BENEFITED BY OUR CORPORATE
VOLUNTEERS PROGRAM IN 2015 AND 2016

The 2015-2016 Results for Fundacion IEnova are available to view and download at: http://ienova.com.mx/ sustentabilidad- |
informes-politicas.html

- Corporate Volunteers
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TRUSTS

[203-1]

ENSENADA
In 2004, we constituted the Ensenada Trust during the Energia Costa Azul (ECA)
construction process. This trust is made up of a Technical Committee and an
Advisory Board and of distinguished citizens of the health, private, academic,
economic development, and conservation sectors from the city of Ensenada.
The city's Mayor and IEnova representatives also participate.

For the constitution of the Trust, IEnova contributed USD$7 million to be
allocatedtoacademic, equipment,infrastructure, public safety,and environmental
projects in Ensenada.

In 2016, we invested USD$133.2 thousand to build a food warehouse for the
municipal DIF (Family Protection Agency), and to draft the executive plan to
rehabilitate the electric installation of the Riviera Civic and Cultural Center.

From the date it was constituted and as of December 31t 2016, we have supported
22 projects and invested USDS$3.3 million in medical equipment, infrastructure
works, and in education and municipal services, sports, and public safety,
benefiting the approximately 486,000 people who live in Ensenada.

SONORA
We constituted the Sonora Trust in 2012. Representatives from the Federal
Electricity Commission (CFE), the state government of Sonora, and IEnova
participate in a Technical Committee that reviews all applications for public works.

In 2016, we invested USD$630.5 thousand in rehabilitation works at sports
and community facilities, in materials and equipment donations to the Naco
Red Cross and Fire Departments, and in the Yaqui community known as Vicam.
Additionally, in the municipality of Puerto Libertad, in Sonora, we finished the
Plaza Los Pinos social and tourist center.

From the date it was constituted and as of December 315t 2016, the Trust has
granted its support to 42 projects and invested USDS$1.67 million in nine

municipalities in the state of Sonora, benefiting an estimated 817,485 people.

OJINAGA-EL ENCINO

i
W 5
';'?: rﬁ:ﬁ{‘iﬁ We constituted the Ojinaja-El Encino Trust in 2015. Representatives from the

] y Federal Electricity Commission (CFE), the state government of Chihuahua, and
IEnova participate in it.

In 2016, which was the first year during which this trust made any investments,
we invested USD$1.03 million in six projects that included installing lighting,
paving with asphalt, donating cement for building roads, supplying solar
pumping equipment and blankets for the family protection agency, DIF, in the
municipality of Chihuahua.

Corporate Volunteers
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SAN ISIDRO-SAMALAYUCA ETHANE PIPELINE

We constituted the San Isidro-Samalayuca Trust in 2015. Representatives from At our Ethane Pipeline project, we made two types of investments in social works.
the Federal Electricity Commission (CFE), the state government of Chihuahua, Onthe one hand, we collaborated with the municipal governments through which
and IEnova participate in it. the project passes and, on the other, we helped the communities directly.

In 2016, which was the first year during which this trust made any investments, In 2016, we invested USDS749 thousand in works to restore the asphalt pavement
we invested USD$229.3 thousand in four projects that included installing lighting, and to remodel a multi-use hall, which we did in collaboration with several
donating an ambulance, and works at sports facilities in the San Isidro ejido (or counties in the state of Tabasco. Further, as part of the work we do in direct
common land). collaboration with the communities themselves, we contributed to road works in

different locations in the state of Chiapas. With these works we benefited 6,990
people through nine donations.

PROJ ECTS UN DER CONSTRUCT'ON OF ASS ETS Since 2013, when construction began, to December 31t 2016, we had invested

USDS$6.3 million benefiting 89,848 people in several municipalities in the states

BELONG'NG TO JO'NT VENTU RES of Veracruz, Chiapas, and Tabasco.

To make good on the social commitment we have established with the communities
neighboring our operations, we also make social investments through the projects
we build as part of our joint ventures with other companies.

LOS RAMONES |
The Los Ramones | Pipeline crosses five counties in the states of Tamaulipas and
Nuevo Ledn.

During 2016, we made some adjustments to the rehabilitation work we had done Us D 2 8*

to the Praxedis hall, in the municipality of Camargo, in the state of Tamaulipas. [ MILLION
IN DONATIONS TO SOCIAL

From the date we began construction and as of December 31t 2016, we have WORKS IN 2016

invested USDS$1 million in social works.

* Includes investments in social works made by the Trusts: Ensenada, Sonora, Ojinaga-El Encino, San
Isidro-Samalayuca, as well as Los Ramones | Pipeline and the Ethane Pipeline.
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MANAGING SUSTAINABLE RESOURCES AND

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

[103-2b, 103-2c]

At IEnova we are convinced that we must respect and protect the environment.
Consequently, we operate our business in a socially responsible manner, strictly
adhere to all environmental regulations, and we base our work on the actions we
have defined in the environmental pillar of our sustainability strategy:

LICI0
N
HiEn

PRODUCE CLEAN AND DEVELOP AN MANAGE OUR WASTE AND PROTECT
EFFICIENT ENERGY ENVIRONMENTAL CULTURE EMISSIONS IN A BIODIVERSITY
COMPREHENSIVE WAY

OUR ENVIRONMENTAL

POLICY

We operate on the basis of a series of environmental management systems that
set the guidelines we need to follow during the development, construction, and
operation stages of our assets. These systems comply with the parameters
established by the ISO 14001:2004 environmental management standard. To
this end, we have designed formats and procedures to identify and control
environmental aspects, hazardous and non-hazardous waste, compliance with
the law, and the protection of flora and fauna, among others.

We follow best practicesintheindustry and adhereto all applicable environmental
laws, regulations, and norms. We respect the terms and conditions established
by the Mexican Ministry of the Environment and Natural Resources (SEMARNAT)
and by the National Safety, Energy, and Environmental Agency (ASEA) for our
environmental permits and authorizations.

To improve our management practices, in 2016 we designed an Environmental
Information System to collect and process data on waste, emissions, the use and
discharge of water, and energy consumption of all our assets. With this new system,
we will be able to establish the baseline we require to set our future efficiency
goals, standardize methodologies for calculating and recording data at all our
subsidiaries, and to generate, verify, and update information throughout the year. It
will also allow us to comply more expeditiously with all applicable corporate and
legal requirements. We will implement the system gradually starting in 2017.




IENOVA'’S

ENVIRONMENTAL
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ADVANTAGE
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Additionally, we currently have a first draft of our proposed Climate Change
Strategy that will allow us to contribute to reaching the country's goals for
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and generating energy from clean and
renewable sources. If approved by the Sustainability Committee, we will
gradually implement this Strategy starting in 2017.

On the other hand, we are committed to obtain either the Clean Industry or
Environmental Quality certifications issued by SEMARNAT or ASEA. We have adopted
the practice of obtaining these certifications within 12 months after an asset begins
to operate. The Energia Sierra Judrez wind farm, for example, has already been
certified as a Clean Industry. The Aguaprieta Pipeline and ECOGAS, our natural gas
distribution company, were both recertified as Clean Industry in 2016.

In addition, we have taken the necessary measures to have the authorized
organisms certify our operating units in ISO 14001:2004. Energia Sierra Juarez and
Termoeléctrica de Mexicaliare bothin the process of implementing a comprehensive
ISO 9001, ISO 14001, and OHSAS 18001 system. The Rosarito and Aguaprieta
pipelines, and the Guaymas-El Oro segment of the Sonora project—which is currently
under construction—have already been ISO 14001:2004 certified for environmental
management.

We employ procedures in our operations that are aimed at protecting the
environment. In the Gas segment, we mostly store, transport, and distribute
natural gas, an environmentally-friendly hydrocarbon, which is neither toxic nor
corrosive, is 40% lighter than air, and whose combustion generates low
emissions of NO , SO, _y CO. By developing the natural gas infrastructure, which
grants access to this low-carbon fuel to more users, we help Mexico comply with
its global mitigation commitments.

We generate electricity at Termoeléctrica de Mexicali, a combined-cycle natural-
gas-fired plant that surpasses emissions standards applicable in both Mexico
and the US. We also generate clean energy at our joint venture with InterGen,
Energia Sierra Judrez, the first cross-border wind farm between Mexico and the
US that started operating in 2015 and, during this first phase, has a capacity to
produce 155 MW.

Furthermore, at year-end 2016, we increased our renewable energy portfolio.
First, when we were awarded two solar energy projects: Rumorosa Solar, in the
state of Baja California, and Tepezald Il Solar, in Aguascalientes. We expect
these two projects to start operating in 2019. And, secondly, by purchasing the
Ventika wind farm, located in the state of Nuevo Ledn. Because of its 252 MW-
capacity, this is currently considered to be one of the largest wind farms in
Mexico and Latin America.




Energia Sierra Judrez

EMISSIONS S

[305-1, 305-2, 305-5, 305-7] [305-1, 305-2]

AMOUNT IN METRIC TONS OF CO.e

At IEnova we employ state-of-the-art technology to continually monitor and TYPE OF EMISSIONS 2014 2015 2016
record emissions produced at our operating units. In 2016, we revised our

methodology to calculate direct and indirect emissions in order to ensure that DIRECT EMISSIONS 1,588,486 | 1796,662** 1,383,174
all our subsidiaries are complying with the guidelines of the General Climate INDIRECT EMISSIONS 2,434 3,827 5,430
Change Law and its Bylaws, in the terms of the National Emissions Registry and TOTAL EMISSIONS 1,590,920 1,800,489 | 1,388,604

its corresponding Agreements. This meant we had to review the emission factors
* The majority of emissions are generated by ECA and TDM.

hat were previ ly in , and the way in which w Icul H, and N
that were previously use, and the Y ¢ e calculate C 2@ d 20 **This figure differs from what we published in our 2015 Sustainability Report because, in order to comply

emissions from mobile sources, among other emissions. with the guidelines of the National Emissions Registry, we used different emissions factors than we had
in prior years. We calculated CH, and N,O emissions that had not been estimated for mobile sources, as

. . . . . well as other types of emissions. We ratified CO.e conversions, as specified in the Agreements issued by
Energia Costa Azul (ECA) and Termoeléctrica de Mexicali (TDM), both of which the authority. As a result, we calculated the datg for both 2015 and 2016 using the new methodology.

use natural gas turbines to generate electric power, require the most stringent
monitoring. We employ a system to control and monitor emissions, a catalytic
reduction module to decrease the discharge of carbon monoxide (CO), and a EMISSIONS OF DISTRIBUTION CUSTOMERS FROM
Selective Catalytic System (SCR) to control nitrogen oxides (NOx). With this, we

yHE System st gen . THE USE OF OUR PRODUCTS
are able to ensure that air emissions at these facilities are continually at levels

. [305-3]
below what the norm establishes
Because of the nature of their processes, we do not generate significant air TYPE OF EMISSIONS | GAS EMISSIONS AMOUNT IN METRIC TONS OF CO,e
em!ss!ons in our Distribution and P|p§I|nes businesses. At ECOGAS most 2014 2015 2016
emissions are generated by the automobiles our salesforce and operations and
maintenance staff use to do their jobs. It is worth mentioning that all our vehicles OTHER* NATURAL GAS SOLD TO 1,421,083 1,518,265 1,748,349
comply with the requirements of the Mexican verification program. CUSTOMERS
The majority of emissions are generated by our customers when they use the
- natural gas we distribute to them.
Q -
£
& *This figure differs from what we published in our 2015 Sustainability Report because, in order to comply
%E with the guidelines of the Bylaws of the General Climate Change Law with regards to the National
£ § Emissions Registry, we used different emissions factors than we had in prior years and we ratified CO_e
B E conversions, as specified in the Agreements issued by the authority. As a result, we calculated the data
o+ for 2014, 2015, and 2016 using the new methodology.
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WASTE GENERATION AND

[301-2, 306-2, 306-3]

ECA and TDM employ the strictest waste management programs because
they are the sites that generate the largest amount of waste. Since our goal
is to employ resources and manage waste in a responsible manner, we work
with authorized companies to adequately dispose of waste. When the physical
and chemical nature of the waste allows, we collaborate with suppliers that
either recycle or reuse waste instead of disposing of it in land fields. Both
ECA and TDM are registered as generators of waste that requires special
handling in Baja California.

We measure and record the way in which we manage waste. At both
companies, we have preventive and correction programs in place to minimize
risks and operation failures and to ensure the integrity and reliability of our
operations.

Resulting from our waste management practices, in 2016 we had no reports
of accidental leaks. This year we recycled 18 tons of hazardous waste and 36
tons of non-hazardous waste.

b1 -
T—
" ¥

ones Compression Station

REPORT ON IENOVA'S TOTAL WASTE
GENERATION AND MANAGEMENT*

[306-2]

TYPE OF WASTE | DISPOSAL AMOUNT (METRIC TONS)

2014 2015 | 2016

HAZARDOUS WASTE CONFINED IN CONTROLLED 1|l 9
WASTE DEPOSITS

INCINERATED WASTE

WASTE RECYCLED BY ANOTHER
COMPANY (RECOVERY OF WASTE OIL
AND TRANSFORMED ENERGY)

TOTAL HAZARDOUS WASTE 27HF*x

NON-HAZARDOUS | NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE AND 7,447
WASTE BYPRODUCTS

WASTE CONFINED IN CONTROLLED 7412
DEPOSITS

WASTE RECYCLED BY ANOTHER 36
COMPANY

The majority of waste is generated by ECA and TDM.
21.70, rounded up to 22
19.36 rounded down to 19

ok 26.88 rounded up to 27

Since we registered an increase in our waste in 2016, we designed a strategy to
reduce waste and identify the techniques we need to employ. In addition, we will
reinforce supervision of preventive maintenance procedures and ensure that
reduction techniques are being executed correctly.

2016 was the first whole year of operations of our Energia Sierra Judrez wind
farm, which started operating in 2015. Of the total waste generated at this facility,
59% isreused in the process to generate electric power, 37% is recycled (recovery
of waste oil), and 4% is disposed of in confined deposits.

A
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WATER

[303-1,303-2, 303-3, 306-1]

Due to the nature of our processes, IEnova's efforts to reuse, save, and recycle
the water we use are primordially focused on ECA and TDM, our most water-
intensive operating units.

At ECA we use water exclusively for the heating process required to produce a
phase change in natural gas, which means the liquid never comes in contact
with any materials. Additionally, 99% of the water used at this company—-the
IEnova facility that uses the most water—is extracted from the ocean and
returned to the original source, always strictly complying with the specifications
described in this operation’s environmental permits. The other 1% is wastewater
that we treat in a plant that cleans it before it is discharged into the ocean.

An accredited laboratory analyzes the ocean water surrounding our ECA facility,
ensuring that the physical and chemical characteristics of our discharge water
are maintained and that we fully comply with the conditions established in our
discharge permits and with the authorized contaminant limits established by
the regulations.

Onthe other hand, at TDM we use demineralized water to produce the steam needed
to move the turbine and for the cooling system. All the water used for TDM's
processes is municipal wastewater from the Zaragoza oxidation lagoon, in Mexicali.

Wastewater is treated to eliminate organic contaminants and mineral salts by
employing different processes. TDM's wastewater treatment plant can process a
volume of 920m3/h. The majority of the treated water is used in the cooling
systems, and the rest for producing steam, among other uses. The water that is
treated at TDM is used several times by purging it in the heat recovery process
and in the cooling towers, before being discharged. Purged water is discharged
into a branch of the Rio Nuevo, in compliance with our discharge permit and the
NOM-001-SEMARNAT-1996 norm.

TDM uses state-of-the-art environmental technologies that comply with or even
surpass all applicable norms in Mexico and in the state of California, making it
one of the cleanest natural-gas-fired power plants among those supervised by
the Western Electricity Coordinating Council, WECC.

b

REPORT ON IENOVA'S TOTAL

WATER DISCHARGE*

[306-1]

TYPE OF DISCHARGE

WATER DISCHARGED INTO MUNICIPAL
TREATMENT PLANTS

WATER DISCHARGED TO OTHER SOURCES
WATER DISCHARGED TO THE OCEAN
TOTAL WATER DISCHARGED

WATER RETURNED TO ITS ORIGINAL
EXTRACTION SOURCE IN THE SAME OR
BETTER CONDITIONS

2014
6,722

1,320,301
2,081
1,324,942
101,977,222

* The majority of water is used by ECA and TDM.
**Total water discharged 74,545,852 m?>. Water returned to the source from which it was
extracted in the same or better conditions: 74,543,748 m3 (water discharged minus the

amount of water treated by the wastewater treatment plant).

AMOUNT (M?)
2015
4,803

1,622,572
2,088
1,629,463
93,746,404

REPORT ON IENOVA'S TOTAL WATER
BY TYPE OF EXTRACTION SOURCE

[303-1]
TOTAL WATER WITHDRAWAL BY SOURCE

2014
GROUND WATER 4,016
MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER 5,660,211
MUNICIPAL WATER 4,696
WATER OBTAINED FROM OTHER SOURCES 101,979,303
(OCEAN WATER)
TOTAL WATER EXTRACTED 107,648,226

AMOUNT (M?)
2015

2,320
5,846,377
4,669
93,804,173

99,657,539

2016
4,952

1,892,004

2,104

1,899,060
T4,543,748%**

2016

3,010
4,973,429
5954
74,672,817

79,655,210

Energia Costa Azul




[304-1,304-2, 304-3]

At IEnova, we have developed several programs aimed at conserving
biodiversity. With some variations dependent on the applicable environmental
regulation, the characteristics of the project, and the affected ecosystem,
these programs prioritize those issues to which each business unit can make
the largest contribution, and are divided into two types of efforts:

FLORA RESTORATION, CONSERVATION PROTECTION AND RESCUE
AND COMPENSATION OF WILDLIFE

We use those programs centered on conserving biodiversity to strictly
comply with the guidelines of the authorizations issued in favor of IEnova.
As a good practice within our company, we have voluntarily continued to
implement some of the programs with which we contribute to preserving
natural resources.

In 2016 we designed our Strategy for the Conservation of Natural Resources.
It describes the general principles needed to foster a culture of environmental
stewardship and the correct way to handle natural resources so that, when
carrying out our activities, the allocated investments contribute to
maximizing the expected results.
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FLORA RESTORATION
AND COMPENSATION

The nurseries we have installed in areas neighboring our construction sites and
that we have maintained, on occasions for more than 10 years, are among the
flagship IEnova programs to protect and compensate flora. They are used to
protect and produce, in a controlled environment, and, then, replant, on the
affected strip of land, specimens of different species of the native plants we find
when we first arrive at a specific site.

Due to considerable investments we make in these efforts and to our close
collaboration with our suppliers, we have gained considerable experience in
handling endemic species of flora.

We have rescue, restoration, compensation, and conservation programs in place
that include, to a greater or lesser degree depending on the program, the
following activities:

Installing nurseries to produce, in a controlled environment, specimens of different species of
plants native to the region in which a given project is built.

Rescuing endemic and at-risk species.

Acquiring and germinating seeds through collectors certified by the National Forest
Commission (CONAFOR).

Reforesting affected areas with endemic species.

Installing drip irrigation systems.

Monitoring the results of habitat restoration results periodically.

The ECA Rescue, Protection, and Conservation Program is a good example of
our best practices. Although our environmental permits and authorizations
stipulated that we only had to maintain it during five years, we have continued
to operate this program for ten years now.

We are currently still producing native plants at the nursery, particularly those
requiring more maintenance, care, propagation, and production efforts. These
include the ferocatus viridescens, deemed to be an at-risk species by the NOM-059
SEMARNAT-2010 norm, and other endemic plants such as the coastal bush (agave
shawii) and the malosma laurina and euphorbia misera bushes, among others.

In addition, we carried out habitat maintenance, propagation, and landscaping
efforts, consisting basically of weed control. As it has over the past three years, in
2016 the program focused basically on maintaining the plants produced in the
nursery, with total 49,049 seedlings of 19 species of coastal bushes. Additionally,
the survival rate for the ferocatus viridescens in the restoration area was 88%,
above both the 2015 rate and the goal of the program, which was estimated at 70%.

All evidence indicates that the program has been very positive, since diversity
values for the species are similar, and in some cases even slightly higher, than
the measurement we took at the beginning of the program, and the species
balance is better.
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RESCUE AND RESTORATION PROGRAMS
IN FORCE AT YEAR-END 2016

INITIAL DATE PROGRAM

2016 SAN ISIDRO - SAMALAYUCA PIPELINE; FLORA RESCUE AND RELOCATION
PROGRAM

2016 OJINAGA - EL ENCINO PIPELINE: FLORA PROTECTION AND CONSERVATION
PROGRAM

2013 SONORA PIPELINE: FLORA RESCUE AND RELOCATION, ENVIRONMENTAL
AWARENESS, SOIL CONSERVATION, AND REVEGETATION

2008 RESTORATION OF THE ECOSYSTEMS AFFECTED BY THE CONSTRUCTION OF
THE EXPANSION OF THE ROSARITO PIPELINE PROJECT

2006 RESCUE, REPLANTING, AND PROTECTION OF ENDEMIC AND AT-RISK PLANTS
FROM THE EXPANSION OF THE ROSARITO PIPELINE

2003 PROTECTION OF THE DESERT IRONWOOD DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS
OF TDM

COMPENSATION AND CONSERVATION PROGRAMS
IN FORCE AT YEAR-END 2016

INITIAL DATE PROGRAM

201 PROGRAM TO REFOREST THE pinus jeffreyi AT SIERRA JUAREZ, BAJA
CALIFORNIA DURING CONSTRUCTION OF THE ROSARITO PIPELINE
2009 PROGRAM TO REFOREST THE prosopis juliflora shrub IN THE AREAS

IMPACTED BY THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE COMPRESSION STATION OF THE
ROSARITO PIPELINE

2009 PROGRAM TO REFOREST THE prosopis juliflora AND prosopis chilensis IN AREAS
IMPACTED BY THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE ROSARITO PIPELINE PROJECT
2006 PLAN TO RESCUE AND PRESERVE THE FLORA AT ENERGIA COSTA AZUL (ECA)

In 2016, we faced the need to integrate the environmental programs of the
assets belonging to Gasoductos de Chihuahua into our own rescue and
conservation programs. We expect that by 2017 we will be able to adapt the
programs to the best practices we implement at all our IEnova assets.

—

¢

Energi@Costa Azul
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Before we start developing any project, we perform the necessary
assessments to measure its potential impact on the ecosystem during the
construction, operation, and maintenance phases. Prior to beginning to
build a project, we determine and suggest to the authorities the measures
we need to implement to protect the habitat and species of wildlife found in
the area. We do this in order to fulfill our commitment to conserving the
environment based on our practices, which are often stricter than what the
environmental legislation stipulates.

Among these efforts, our Marine Mammals Monitoring Program (MMMP) is
particularly relevant. We established this program in 2003, before we started
building our liquefied natural gas terminal, Energia Costa Azul, in
collaboration with the Ensenada Center for Scientific Investigation and

University Studies (CICESE), the Autonomous University of Baja California
(UABC), and other experts.

ECA is located in an area adjacent to the migratory route of the gray whale,
where there is also an important presence of other species of marine mammals.
We continue to operate the Marine Mammals Monitoring Program, which
renders the data required to protect species in the region, particularly the gray
whale, and to study their migration patterns, and ensure their free path.

The MMMP's activities include taking periodic measurements of several
environmental indicators to confirm that we have not affected the behavior
of marine mammals in the area. In 2016, we registered the presence of ten
species, with the majority of sightings reporting gray whales, sea lions, and
humpback whales. We have historic records for 15 species of mammals, and
sightings vary from year to year.

In addition, surrounding our natural gas pipelines we implement fauna rescue
and relocation programs to identify the species living along the right of way. We
also establish programs to protect and relocate the identified fauna to a safe
place. We train the staff who will be in charge of caring for the rescued wildlife.
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AND PRESERVE BENTHON'C FAUNA PF\)OTECT, AND Speciesofmqrine
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Before construction on our ECA facility began, we started implementing a AND FAUNA ™ ©o
program to rescue, transplant, sow, and monitor organisms of high commercial
and ecological value. We carry out this program in collaboration with local
fishermen and scientists of the Autonomous University of Baja California. With
this program, the organisms have continued to register the same sequence of
changes to their population structure that they would have had if ECA had not
been built on that location. Further, by introducing new young specimens, we
contribute to conserving the species and to offsetting natural mortality rates.

When construction of this plant began, we rescued more than 900,000 relevant I I
marine organisms, including different species of sea urchins, and sea cucumbers ‘14 ‘15 ‘16
and snails. Since then, twice a year we monitor the protected organisms. We
have found that survival rates for the transplanted populations, in particular the
red sea urchin (S. franciscanus) and the purple sea urchin (S. purpuratus), are
higher than 99%. The training on sustainable harvesting techniques that we
offered local fishermen is a strong driver behind this program'’s success.

PROJECTS UNDER @
CONSTRUCTION 28,203

SPECIMENS OF SPECIES

As has already been explained, we have programs in place aimed at protecting USED FOR PROPAGATING
and conserving the environment and the species of flora and fauna that we find FLORA SINCE 2012

at our construction sites. Before starting to build, we perform several activities,

including the following:

Capture the wildlife we find in the area, to relocate all specimens to nearby places where they can

live under conditions that are similar to those of their original habitat, but under safe conditions.

Identify and rescue species of flora to collect and keep them in a nursery built by us in the

affected strip of land.

Reintroduce the species of fauna and flora into their place of origin, when construction work

is done.

Carry out a reinforced re-vegetation process that consists of sowing seeds of the species of

flora found along the whole affected strip of land.

Perform maintenance tasks, which include irrigation, applying fertilizers, and monitoring the

area to determine survival rates.

Inventory of nursery-produced
We have reintroduced 78,464 species of flora along the right of way of the Sonora plants
Pipeline: 25,260 along the first 220 km of the Sdsabe-Puerto Libertad segment, and

another 53,204 along the 331 km of the Guaymas-EI Oro segment; in both cases g B %
survival rates are approximately 91%. Additionally, in our nurseries we are holding ~ 'o\\‘ oo\'
another 19,138 specimens corresponding to the 294 km of the Puerto Libertad- By N <
Guaymas segment, with a 98% survival rate.

‘14 “15 16
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Furthermore, on the right of way of the pipeline we rescued and relocated 83
specimens of 27 species of wildlife. Because we use species-specific techniques
to capture them, we were able to set the specimens free on the same day that
they were captured in forest areas that are very similar to the area they were
rescued from.

At the San Isidro-Samalayuca Pipeline, we implemented a program to rescue
and relocate flora to forest lands during the site preparation, clearing, and
cutting phases. As part of this process, we identified the specimens that could
be rescued as established in the guidelines of the NOM-059-SEMARNAT-2010 as
well as other ecologically relevant species. On the right of way, we rescued 849
specimens corresponding to 5 species of flora, and in the agricultural plot where
the Samalayuca monitoring, regulation, and control station will be located, we
rescued and relocated a yucca elata specimen. The rescued specimens were
relocated to adjacent forest lands offering the same natural conditions of the
areas from where they were extracted.

Also on the right of way of the pipeline, we rescued and relocated 68 specimens
of 23 species of wildlife, and 134 specimens of 15 in the Samalayuca station. All
the specimens were set free on the same day that they were captured, in forest
areas that are very similar to the area they were rescued from.

In the Ojinaga-El Encino Pipeline we rescued more than 16,000 specimens of 37
species of flora, with a survival rate of 97% at year-end. The rescued plants
were relocated in two Wild Flora Confinement Areas that we periodically service
and where they will remain until they are relocated to restored areas to be
determined when construction is done.

Los Ramones Compression Station

As part of the fauna rescue and relocation program, and as a result of the studies
we have performed, we counted 1,124 specimens of fauna including those that were
identified, dispelled, captured, or relocated. On the right of way, we rescued and
relocated 202 specimens of 51 species of wildlife. All specimens were set free in
forest areas that are very similar to the area they were rescued from.

ASSETS BELONGING TO
JOINT VENTURES

[304-1,304-2, 304-3]

We make good on our word of preserving biodiversity at the site of our assets by
extending our commitment to those assets we develop in collaboration with
other companies, such as: Energia Sierra Judrez, the Los Ramones | and
Ramones Norte pipelines, and the Ethane Pipeline.

Prior to beginning construction of these pipelines, we determined that their
paths have no impact on natural protected areas or areas considered to have a
high biodiversity.

Energia Sierra Judrez is a wind farm located on the Sierra de Judrez mountain
range, in the municipality of Tecate, in Baja California. It is the first cross-border
wind energy project between Mexico and the US, and it connects with the San
Diego Gas and Electric (SDG&E) system, in California.

Before we started to build the facility, we performed an assessment of the local

flora and fauna to list the species under certain degrees of protection, in

accordance to the NOM-059 SEMARNAT-2010 norm.

149




Sustainability Report
+ Financial Report

Q1
o

Given its magnitude, this project required an investment of approximately
USDS$318 million. Currently it can produce 155 MW of energy by means of 47
wind turbines, and it already has the necessary permits to expand its capacity
in the future to up to 1,200 MW. The local environmental and flora and fauna
protection programs are particularly important, and over the next five years we
expect to perform the following activities:

Maintain a permanent revegetation program.

Produce or acquire reforestation plants and maintain the nursery (collecting seeds, producing
long-life-cycle plants).

Reforest more than 400 hectares.

Install soil rehabilitation and protection systems, including terraces and trenches to avoid erosion.
Maintain and protect reforested areas.

Perform periodic environmental monitoring.

In addition, we implement an important program in collaboration with the San
Diego Zoo, through which we study, among other things, the flight patterns and
territories of the California Condors and the Golden Eagles that inhabit the
border between Mexico and the US, and we identify a diversity of birds and bats.
Among other data, we estimate the risk of collision with the wind turbines and
power lines, and the measures we can implement to minimize them.

Since 2013, the Ecological Institute of Jalapa (INECOL) in Veracruz, studies the
birds and bats in the area. In 2016, we recorded the presence of 83 bird species,
identifying 2,153 specimens. According to the guidelines of the Mexican norm,
only two of the species we identified are catalogued as at-risk: the sharp-shinned
hawk (accipiter striatus), that is subject to special protection, and the Mexican
falcon (falco mexicanus), an at-risk species.

We also implement a Plan for Environmental Management and Monitoring to
follow-up on the mitigation measures implemented in the project. Prior to and
during construction, we complied with the conditions established by the
Environmental Impact Authorization the authority gave us for this project. Now
that we areinthe operating phase, this program has migrated toan Environmental
Management System, aligned with ISO 14001 that is currently in the process of
implementation.

At the Los Ramones | Pipeline, as part of the flora and fauna samplings that we
performed before starting construction, we found 23 species of flora and 43
species of fauna, of which four of flora and five of fauna are under some degree
of protection, in accordance to the NOM-059 SEMARNAT-2010 norm.

Energia Sierra Juarez
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The rescued flora specimens are being kept in two storage centers that were set
up by the project where they are being maintained and conserved. At year-end
2016, we started monitoring the survival rates, health, and strength of the
rescued flora in an effort to corroborate that survival rates continue to be
around 80%.

In the Ethane Pipeline, whose three segments cross the states of Veracruz,
Chiapas, and Tabasco, we identified 71 species of fauna and rescued 517
specimens, particularly during the weeding phase. 23 of the species identified
are under some degree of protection, in accordance to the NOM-059-
SEMARNAT-2010 norm.

In 2016, we maintained and relocated 375 specimens of flora belonging to the 12
species we rescued during 2015, of which four are under some degree of
protection. The relocation areas were selected based on the conditions and
specifications they offer for their growth and survival. Orchids, for example,
were relocated to trees that home species akin to the flora that grows in the mid
semi-evergreen forests.

At the Ramones Norte Pipeline, in 2016 we operated a program in collaboration
with the School of Forest Sciences of the Autonomous University of Nuevo Ledn
(UANL). Flora rescued during the construction phase, is currently being kept at
seven storage facilities set up for the project in the states of Nuevo Ledn,
Tamaulipas, and San Luis Potosi through which the pipeline runs. We are holding
180,709 specimens of 43 species of flora, out of which 17 are under some degree
of protection, and we have maintained survival rates at the 80% mark established
by the General Law for Sustainable Forest Development.

At the Los Ramones | and Ramones Norte pipelines, and in the Ethane Pipeline,
we started a work program to adapt their flora and fauna rescue, relocation,
protection, and conservation programs to IEnova's best practices. We expect
that this process will be finished in 2017.




AT IENOVA WE SEE THE FUTURE
FOUNDATION WE NEED TO FACE ANY

WITH OPTIMISM. WE HAVE THE STRONG
CHALLENGE AND CONTINUE OUR STORY
OF SUCCESS. WE ARE COMMITTED TO:

M

ECONOMIC
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+ Be increasingly-efficient.

+ Maximize value for our
shareholders.

+ Leverage new investment
opportunities.

+ Maintain our leadership while
facing growing competition in
the industry.

SOCIAL

+ Comply with our commitments with

the communities neighboring our
operations.

« Attract, develop, and retain

specialized employees at all levels.

» Maintain the exemplary record we

are known for in health and safety.

» Work constantly to achieve our

@ ENVIRONMENTAL

* Improve efficiencies in water.and

energy consumption.

+ Strengthen our waste and

emissions management
programs.

» Maintain our programs to

protect flora and faunain
locations where we operate.

kS zero-accidents goal. + Create awareness among our
a$ i

x 3 employees and communities
> 9 .

=3 about the importance of

% g preserving natural resources.
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25 LaRumorosa, Baja California
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Independent assurance report on the 2016 Sustainabla Raport to Infraestructura
Energética Nova, 5.A.B. de C.V., to the Managament of IEnova

Rasponsibilities of IEnova and Independent reviewsr

The Mansgement of 1Entva i retponsible for the slaboration of tha 2006 Sustainable Report (SR) for the period
from Jaruary 1% to December 31%, 2016, a5 well as it5 content ensuring to define, adapt snd maintain the
mansgement systems and intarnal control from which the nformation Iz obtained, and which ane aso free of
material misstabement due o fred or emor, Our responsibllity B o [$5ws an Independent report based on the
procecures applied during our review.

This report has mmmmmwﬂﬁmnlnmﬂmmhmﬂmm

letter dated January 207, 2017, therefore we don't assume any resporsibility to parties and 5 ot intended
by b o should & b used by someone other than the Hanagement of 1Enava.

Scopa of our work

The scope of our assurance vas Bmited, and is substantially lower than & reasenable assurance work, therefor: the
security provided B also lower, This repeet in no cxs2 can be understood a5 an audit report.

We conducted the 2016 SA review under the following conditions and)or criteria:

&) The sdsptation of the 2016 SR contents b the Sustainabifty Reparting Stancargs Guldednes of the Gicbal
Reparting Indtislive (GRI), b0 the Disclosure Sectors [GRI) wersion G4 of O and Gas and Boconding o the
materialiy study provided by 1Enova,

B} The review af the GRI Standards contents in accordance with the Core option and spedified in the GRI
Content Indes of the 2016 SE and the perfonmance indicators of the Disclosune Secior,

£} The datn consistency between the information contained in the 2016 SR with supporting evidenos provided
Dy management.
WWha have complied with the independence and ethics requirements of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
igswed by the Internaticnal Ethics Standands Board for Accountants (JESBA Code) based on integrily, abjectivity,
professional competence and due care, confidentiality and profestionsl behavior principles,
Assurance standards and procedures
W have perfarmed our wark b scoardance with the Internathonal Auditing Standard [SAE 3000 Revised Adsisrants

Engagements ather than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Inflormation lssusd by the International Auditing
and Assurance Standards Boards (LAASE) of International Federation of Accountants {[FAC).

Char rewiew work included the farmulstion of questions o the managemant as well as different areas of IEnova that
have participated in the elaboration of the H16 SR and the applcation of cortain analytical and sample s<reening
gty procedures thak ame described below.

@) Meetings with staff of IBnova ba bearm the prindples, systems and applisd management approaches.

b} Analysis of the process bo collect, validate and censalidate the data prosented n the 2016 SAL

wnderstanding of IEnova and of the requinements that stakebolders have identified &s malerial aspects.
d) Selected sample review from the evidence that supports the infarmation included on the 3046 SR,

e) Quality assurance by an independent partner of the project that verifies consistency’ bebween this repart
and the proposal, as well 35 work process guality and delverables.

]
_,_Il. ’J £} Analysie of scope, relevance and integrity of the information incleded in the 2016 SR in terms of the

Cuiin rofders ko oom o maoee of Didort Toucks Tofmatiu Lirmetsd, @ UK privis compasy e by quanieies, and @5 nefwors of memiber S,
#ach of which s m STarEn Brd ndepandor oty Plamme pes wwe dololin comimusteniin S u delalioe Oaedrpdon of e dgar
struchum of Okt Touchs Tohriiti Limisd Snd i Mo .

DEndwa | Independent atturancs repat on the 2016 Scetainabls Pepart

The following mble defals the revidsd contents According with the Sasfainabiity Reporiing Standands Givdedime
and the performance indicators of the version G4 of OF and Gas Discioswne Seqhor:

ERS-102-42 | SRS-108-1 | SRS-302-1 | SRS-305-2 | SRS-403-2 |
SRS-102-43 | SAS5-103-2 | SRS-303-1 | SAS-304-2 | SAS-404-1
| SRG-102-24 | SRS-201-1 | SRE-204-1 | SRS~306-3 | SRS-d0E-1
| SRS-102-46 | SA5-203-1 | SRS-304-2 | SRS-307-1 | SRS-4]3~] |

| SRS-102-47 | SRS-205-2 | SRE-305-1 | SRS-401-2 OGLY
These Indicators were selected for the independent review In accordance with the following criteria:
s Maberiality of 1Erova refemed in the 2016 S8,

= [nformation included n the 2016 SR.
»  Information provided during the meetings with the interviewed staff,
& Feview of the evidente provided By [Enova siall of this project.

Conclugion
Baged on owr work déscribed in this repart, the pedformed procédures snd the evidends obiained, Rothing Comes
to owr attention that could make us beleve that the indicators and contents reviewed in the 2016 SR contains

gignificant errors oF has not Been prepaned it i acoordance with the Core cpbion established in the GRI 101:
FOUNDATION 2016 of the Sustanahility Reparting Standards, For those GAT STandards contents and Indicators of
the Disclesure Sector whene [Enova didn’t report In quantitathee terms (numeric) the independent reviewer
wmwlwglmm,mlmmmMMﬂmmm,
armong cthers.

MAiction alternathres

Additianally we present the most significant action alternathves for future denetopment of SR, which do not alker
the conchusions expressed in this report:

=  Strenghten the internal management system to complie, analyze and review the SR informatian
through the cammunication with the date cwners and the development ol internal teols that allew (o
apply methodologies and procedures to manage the information for the material indicators,

&  Enhsncs the conbents of Hhe Elﬂlﬁnﬂmrﬁmm e GRI Standards Guidelnegs in order (3
promote the information trarspanency,

Galaz, Yamazakl, Rulz Urguiza, 5.C.
Member of Deloitte Touchs ToRmatsu Limited

Roio (ared

Rocio Canal Gamido
Partrer
Hay 30%, 2017

157




Sustainability Report
+ Financial Report

158

GRI CONTENT

INDEX

STANDARD
NUMBER DISCLOSURE

GRI 102 GENERAL DISCLOSURES

102-1 Name of the organization

102-2 Activities, brands, products, and services

102-3 Location of headquarters

102-4 Location of operations

102-5 Ownership and legal form

102-6 Markets served

102-7 Scale of the organization

102-8 Information on employees and other
workers

102-9 Supply chain

102-10 Significant changes to the organization
and its supply chain

102-11 Precautionary principle or approach

102-12 External initiatives

102-13 Membership of associations

102-14 Statement from senior decision-maker

102-15 Key impacts, risks, and opportunities

102-16 Values, principles, standards and norms
of behavior

102-17 Mechanisms for advice and concerns

about ethics

102-18 Governance structure

102-19 Delegating authority

NDEPENDENT

PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE OMISSIONS  ASSURANCE

Infraestructura Energética Nova S.A.B.
de C.V. (IEnova)

24

Mexico City

22,26

IEnova is a public stock corporation
with variable capital (S.A.B. de C.V.)
established under the laws of Mexico.
22-26,77,78

74

92-99 Yes, page 156

76-78

24

56, 57

Inside front cover page, 324
66, 67

15,16

15,16, 56-57

58, 65, Inside front cover page Yes, page 156

58, 59, 65 Yes, page 156

60-63
https://www.bmv.com.m/docs-pub/
infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.pdf
page 204-212

33-34

STANDARD
NUMBER

102-20

102-22

102-23

102-24

102-25

102-26

102-28

102-29

102-30

102-31

102-32

102-33

102-35

102-36

102-40
102-41

DISCLOSURE

Executive-level responsibility for
economic, environmental and social
topics

Composition of the highest governance
body and its committees

Chair of the highest governance body

Nominating and selecting the highest
governance body

Conflicts of interest

Role of the highest governance body in
setting purpose, values, and strategy

Evaluating the highest governance body's
performance

Identifying and managing economic,
environmental, and social impacts

Effectiveness of risk management
processes

Review of economic, environmental, and
social topics

Highest governance body's role in
sustainability reporting

Communicating critical concerns

Remuneration policies

Process for determining remuneration

List of stakeholder groups

Collective bargaining agreements

NDEPENDENT

PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE OMISSIONS  ASSURANCE

33-34

The Chief Corporate Affairs & HR
Officer chairs the Sustainability
Committee, which in turn reports to
the highest governance body, as per
its bylaws.

60, 61
https://www.bmv.com.m/docs-pub/
infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.pdf

page 204-212

60, 61

Carlos Ruiz Sacristan serves as
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and CEO of IEnova.

61
https://www.bmv.com.m/docs-pub/
infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.pdf

page 204-212

58, 59, 61
https://www.bmv.com.m/docs-pub/
infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.
pdf

page 204-212

IEnova Bylaws
http://media.corporateir.net/media_files/
IROL/25/251830/cg/ESTATUTOS%20
IENOVA%20FINAL%202016.pdf

60-64
The members of the Board of Directors
annually evaluate their performance.

56, 57
https://www.bmv.com.m/docs-pub/
infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.pdf
page 204-212

IEnova Bylaws
http://media.corporateir.net/media_
files/IROL/25/251830/cqg/
ESTATUTOS%20IENOVA%20FINAL%20
2016.pdf

33,34,56,62

33,34,62

34

https://www.bmv.com.m/docs-pub/
infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.pdf
page 213

https://www.bmv.com.m/docs-pub/
infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.pdf
page 213

35, 36, 37 Yes, page 156

3.4% of our employees are unionized Yes, page 156
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STANDARD
NUMBER

102-42

102-43
102-44
102-45

102-46

102-47
102-48

102-49

102-50

102-51

102-52

102-53

DISCLOSURE

Identifying and selecting stakeholders

Approach to stakeholder engagement
Key topics and concerns raised

Entities included in the consolidated
financial statements

Defining report content and topic
Boundaries

List of material topics

Restatements of information

Changes in reporting

Reporting period

Date of most recent report

Reporting cycle

Contact point for questions regarding the
report

PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE

36,37, 40

The IEnova Model to Manage
Stakeholders is a process in which the
members of the Sustainability
Committee participate. The model is
reviewed annually to ensure that the
most relevant stakeholders are
included in the company'’s
sustainability strategy. The members
also monitor compliance with the
annual goals of the Sustainability
Commissions, including addressing
those expectations that have been
deemed a priority. For more
information, please view our
Sustainability Policy at: http:// ienova.
com.mx/sustentabilidadinformes-
politicas.html

36,37
38

74, inside front cover page

The data published refers to the Gas and
Power business segments in which I[Enova
participates through companies that offer
natural gas, LPG, and ethane transportation
and storage services, as well as storage for
liquefied natural gas; companies that
distribute natural gas; and companies that
produce electricity. Within the Gas segment,
unless otherwise specified, the consolidated
performance data for IEnova does not
include information on the assets belonging
to Gasoductos de Chihuahua, a company in
which, in September 2016, we purchased
the 50% share we didn't previously own
from Pemex Transformacién Industrial
(TRI). In the Power segment, the Report
does include data on Energia Sierra Judrez,
a cross-border wind farm that we built and
now operate as part of our joint venture with
InterGen, in which we have a 50% stake.
The Report does not include data on our
Ventika wind farm, which we acquired in
December 2016.

24,33,40

4

40
A footnote has been used in cases where
there were restatement exists.

324,
About this Report.

324,
About this Report

The last report was published on May 31
2016, and it covered the period between
January 1% and December 31t 2015

The report has been published
annually for the past four years.
324, About this Report

Corporate Headquarters

Paseo de la Reforma 342, Piso 24
Colonia Judrez

Delegacién Cuauhtémoc

Ciudad de México, 06600

Phone (5255) 91380100

NDEPENDENT
OMISSIONS  ASSURANCE

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156
Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

STANDARD
NUMBER

102-54

102-56

DISCLOSURE

Claims of reporting in accordance with
the GRI Standards

External assurance

GRI 103 MANAGEMENT APPROACH

103-1

103-2

TOPIC-SPECIFIC STANDARDS

Explanation of the material topic and its
Boundary

The management approach and its
components

GRI 200 ECONOMIC

201-1

201-3

201-4

203-1

203-2
204-1
205-1

205-2

205-3

206-1

Direct economic value generated and
distributed

Defined benefit plan obligations and
other retirement plans

Financial assistance received from
government

Infrastructure investments and services
supported

Significant indirect economic impacts
Proportion of spending on local suppliers.

Operations assessed for risks related to
corruption

Communication and training about
anti-corruption policies and procedures

Confirmed incidents of corruption and
actions taken

Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior,
anti-trust, and monopoly practices

PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the GRI Standards:
essential option.

324, About this Report

156, 324, About this Report

33,36, 40, 41,324

40-49, 96,108, 118,128

88

102-105

The company received no financial
assistance from government.

123-125

We currently monitor the results from
social projects. We will work on defining
the mechanisms that will allow us to
measure the impact of our social
programs in the mid-term. Today, charities
benefited by Fundacién IEnova submit
quarterly reports as well as the
supporting documentation needed to
verify how the resources granted are
being managed.

76,77
7
58

58,59, 65

IEnova's Corporate Ethics Policy
establishes that only those employees
who have direct or indirect contact
with authorities need to be certified in
anti-corruption. In 2016, 100% of the
employees who were identified as
having this kind of contact received
the corresponding training.

CATEGORY NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES
Vice Presidents 10
Directors 18
Managers 79
Staff and 315
administrative
Total 422

There were no corruption incidents
during the year.

There were no claims regarding
anticompetitive behavior.

NDEPENDENT

ASSURANCE

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156
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STANDARD
NUMBER

DISCLOSURE

GRI 300 ENVIRONMENTAL

302-1

303-1
303-2

303-3
304-1

304-2

304-3
305-1

305-2
305-3
305-5
305-7

306-1

306-2
306-3

307-1

Energy consumption within the
organization

Water withdrawal by source

Water sources significantly affected by
withdrawal of water

Water recycled and reused
Operational sites owned, leased,
managed in, or adjacent to, protected

areas and areas of high biodiversity value
outside protected areas

Significant impacts of activities,
products, and services on biodiversity

Habitats protected or restored

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions
Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions
Reduction of GHG emissions

Nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides
(SOx), and other significant air emissions

Water discharge by quality and
destination

Waste by type and disposal method

Significant spills

Non-compliance with environmental laws
and regulations

PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE

21,093,521.95 MMBTU (22,254.84
Terajoules) (99.05% from gas natural,
0.09% from gasoline and diesel,
0.87% from electric power, 0.0002%
from LPG).

136,137
136

136

138,139

None of our operations are located on
protected areas. However, as a good
practice, we develop programs to protect,
compensate, and reforest flora, and to
protect and rescue wildlife.

138,139, 149-152

None of our operations are located in
protected areas. However, we develop
programs to protect, compensate, and
reforest flora, and to protect and
rescue wildlife.

138-146
132,133
132,133
132,133
132

132,133

136,137

134,135

134

There were no significant spills. Based
on the criteria established by
PROFEPA (Criteria for classifying
environmental emergencies in
member organizations of the National
Environmental Audit Program), an
event can be classified as minor if the
volume spilled is less than 1m?

There were no significant fines or
sanctions for non-compliance with
laws and regulations.

OMISSIONS

NDEPENDENT
ASSURANCE

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156
Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156
Yes, page 156

Yes, page 156

STANDARD
NUMBER

DISCLOSURE

GRI 400 SOCIAL

401-1

401-2

403-1

403-2

403-3

404-1

404-2

404-3

405-1

406-1

408-1

409-1

410-1

411-1

412-2

New employee hires and employee
turnover

Benefits provided for full-time employees
that are not provided to temporary or
part-time employees

Workers representation in formal joint
management-worker health and safety
committees

Types of injury and rates of injury,
occupational diseases, lost days, and
absenteeism, and number of work-related
fatalities

Workers with high incidence or high risk
of diseases related to their occupation

Average hours of training per year per
employee

Programs for upgrading employee skills
and transition assistance programs

Percentage of employees receiving
regular performance and career
development reviews

Diversity of governance bodies and
employees

Incidents of discrimination and corrective
actions taken

Operations and suppliers at significant
risk for incidents of child labor

Operations and suppliers at significant
risk for incidents of forced or
compulsory labor

Security personnel trained in human
rights policies or procedures

Incidents of violations involving rights of
indigenous peoples

Employee training on human rights
policies and procedures

NDEPENDENT

PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE OMISSIONS  ASSURANCE

92

We do not
report a
break-down by
region.
Reason for the
omission: All
information is
consolidated
for IEnova not

by operating

unit.
102-105 Yes, page 156
m
12, 113 Because of its Yes, page 156

relevance to
our business,
we report
indicators
based on the
definition of
the US
government's
Occupational

Safety and
Health
Administration.
12
98,99 Yes, page 156
96,97,100
98

61-63, 68-71,92-95

During 2016 there were no
discrimination cases reported on the
IEnova helpline.

Yes, page 156

There were no potential risks of
incidents of child labor identified by
the operation.

There were no potential risks of
incidents of forced labor identified by
the operation

All corporate safety agents that offer
their services to the IEnova companies
are trained in human rights as part of
their general training.

There were no incidents of violations
involving rights of indigenous peoples.

106,107
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STANDARD
NUMBER

413-1

415-1

416-2

417-2

419-1

SECTOR SUPPLEMENT INDICATORS

0G2

0G3

0G4

0G13

DISCLOSURE

Operations with local community
engagement, impact assessments, and
development programs

Political contributions

Incidents of non-compliance concerning
the health and safety impacts of products
and services

Incidents of non-compliance concerning
product and service information and
labeling

Non-compliance with laws and regulations
in the social and economic area

Total amount invested in renewable
energy

Total amount of renewable energy
generated by source.

Number and percentage of significant
operating sites in which biodiversity risk
has been assessed and monitored.

Number of process safety events, by
business activity.

NDEPENDENT

PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE OMISSIONS  ASSURANCE

14,118,123,124

We currently monitor the results from
social projects. We will work on defining
the mechanisms that will allow us to
measure the impact of our social
programs in the mid-term. Today,
charities benefited by Fundacién IEnova
submit quarterly reports as well as the
supporting documentation needed to
verify how the resources granted are
being managed.

Yes, page 156

There were no financial or in-kind
contributions made to any political parties.

81

There were no incidents of non-
compliance concerning product and
service information and labeling in 2016.

There were no significant fines or
sanctions for non-compliance with laws
and requlations.

https://www.bmv.com.m/docspub/infoanua/
infoanua_747948_2016_1.pdf

pageT7?

Energia Sierra Judrez (ESJ)is awind farm
located in Baja California, whose initial phase
implied a total investment of approximately
USDS318 million.

Ventika, one of the largest wind farms in Mexico,
located in the state of Nuevo Ledn. We paid
USD$434.7 million for this asset.

|IEnova will develop, build and operate the solar
parks Tepezala Il Solar and Rumorosa Solar, with
a100 MW and 41MW capacity, respectively. Total
investment in these parks is estimated at
USDS$150 million.

24,25
https://www.bmv.com.m/docspub/
infoanua/infoanua_747948_2016_1.
pdf page 17

138,139

85, 86 Yes, page 156

GLOBAL

COMPACT

Tl oy ammmsnds o . e Pragrrss
= ey th e i P
-

;

oy el 1N pam

TOPIC

HUMAN RIGHTS

LABOR
STANDARDS

ENVIRONMENT

ANTI-CORRUPTION

PRINCIPLES OF THE GLOBAL COMPACT

1. Businesses should support and respect the
protection of internationally proclaimed
human rights; and

2. Businesses should make sure that they are
not complicit in human rights abuses.

3. Businesses should uphold the freedom of
association and the effective recognition of
the right to collective bargaining.

4. Businesses should uphold the elimination of
all forms of forced and compulsory labor.

5. Businesses should uphold the effective
abolition of child labor.

6. Businesses should uphold the elimination of
discrimination in respect of employment and
occupation.

7. Businesses should support a precautionary
approach to environmental challenges.

8. Businesses should undertake initiatives to
promote greater environmental responsibility.

9. Businesses should encourage the
development and diffusion of environmentally
friendly technologies.

10.Businesses should work against corruption
in allits forms, including extortion and
bribery.

GRI STANDARD NUMBER

412-2, 410-1, 411-1,103-2, 413-1

412-2, 406-1, 407-1, 408-1, 4091,
410-1, 41111, 4121, 414-1, 414-2,103-2

102-41

409-1

408-1

102-8, 401-1, 401-2, 404-1, 404-3,
406-1

302-1,303-1,305-1, 305-2, 305-3,
3057

301-2,302-1,303-1a 303-3,
304-1a304-3, 305-1a305-5,
305-7, 306-1a306-3, 3071

302-1,305-5

102-16,102-17, 205-1 a2 205-3, 415-1

RELATED
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT
GOALS

4

79

16
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ADJUSTED EBITDA CAPITAL INVESTMENT

S
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745
676
1,928
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NET INCOME PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

137
140
178

“14 “15 “16* 81% GAS

*Excludes the one-time non-cash effects of the USD$673.1
of our previously held 50 percent interest in Gasoductos
USD$95.8 million related to Termoeléctrica de Mexicali

EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

We present “EBITDA" and “Adjusted EBITDA"
Adjusted EBITDA, however, are not me >
alternatives to profit or operating inco
activities as a measure of liquidity.

Our definition of EBITDA is profi
and amortization, (2) financi
from joint ventures, net of i
and (7) loss for the period f

We define the JV EBIT
as the case may be, o
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS FOR 2016 RESULTS

Mexico City, February 21, 2017. Infraestructura Energética Nova, S.A.B. de C.V. (BMV:
IENOVA) is reporting unaudited fourth quarter 2016 results. IEnova focuses on the
development, construction and operation of large energy infrastructure projects in
Mexico. Our operations in Mexico range across several business lines including natural
gas, liquefied natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas transportation and storage,
ethane transportation, natural gas distribution and electricity generation.

Amounts are presented in U.S. dollars, the functional currency of the company, unless
otherwise noted, and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY, FULL YEAR 2016 COMPARED TO FULL YEAR 2015

+ In 2016, Adjusted EBITDA increased 29 percent to USD$504.0 million, compared
with USD$391.8 million in 2015. The increase was mainly due to the acquisition of
the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de Chihuahua, income related to the
Sonora pipeline Guaymas - EI Oro segment and the start of operations of the Los
Ramones Norte pipeline in February 2016.

Excluding one-time non-cash effects of the USD$673.1 million impact related to
the remeasurement to fair value of our previously held 50 percent interest in
Gasoductos de Chihuahua and the after-tax impairment charge of USD$95.8
million related to Termoeléctrica de Mexicali power plant, in 2016 profit was
USDS177.6 million, compared with USD$140.2 million in 2015. The increase is
mainly due to the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de
Chihuahua, income related to Sonora pipeline Guaymas - EI Oro segment and
mark-to-market losses on an interest rate swap in 2015, partially offset by higher
income tax expense, losses from discontinued operations, higher depreciation
and finance cost due to the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos
de Chihuahua and the acquisition of Ventika.

« In 2016, revenues were USD$717.9 million, compared with USD$613.0 million in
2015. For both periods, the increase was mainly due to revenues related to the
acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de Chihuahua and income
related to Sonora pipeline Guaymas - EI Oro segment.

+ IEnova executed the following transactions in 2016 for a total value of
USDS$5.5 billion:

Two natural gas transportation services agreements with the Comisidn Federal de
Electricidad: (i) Empalme Lateral, a 20-kilometer pipeline, for a 21-year term and
transportation capacity of 226 million cubic feet per day of natural gas, and (ii) South
Texas - Tuxpan, an 800-kilometer pipeline of natural gas, for a 25-year term and
transportation capacity of 2.6 billion cubic feet per day of natural gas; this project
was awarded to Infraestructura Marina del Golfo (“IMG"), our joint venture formed with
TransCanada Corporation (“TransCanada”), in which IEnova has 40-percent interest and
TransCanada owns the remaining 60-percent interest. These projects have an estimated
cost of USDS2.1 billion, from which USD$860.0 million is related to IEnova participation.

Two solar energy projects were awarded to IEnova in an auction conducted by Centro
Nacional de Control de Energia. The projects, LaRumorosa Solar Complex and the Tepezala
Il Solar Complex, have long-term contracts with Comisién Federal de Electricidad for 15-
year renewable energy and 20-year clean energy certificate agreements. La Rumorosa
Solar complex is a 41-MW photovoltaic project located in Baja California. The Tepezald
Il Solar complex is a 100-MW photovoltaic project located in Aguascalientes and will be
developed in a partnership with Trina Solar, who will have a 10 percent stake in this
project. The projects have an estimated cost of USD$150.0 million and operations are
expected to begin in the first half of 2019.

The acquisition of Gasoductos de Chihuahua on September 26, 2016 from Pemex
Transformacion Industrial. We paid USDS1.14 billion in cash plus the assumption
of outstanding debt. As a result of the acquisition, we increased our ownership in
Gasoductos de Chihuahua from 50 percent to 100 percent.

OnOctober 13,2016, IEnova priced a follow-on offering of its common stock at Pesos $80.00
per share. The initial purchasers in the International Offering and the underwriters in the
Mexican Offering were granted a 30-day option to purchase additional common shares at
the global offering price, less the underwriting discount, to cover overallotments. These
options were exercised on October 17, 2016. After the offerings, including the issuance
of shares pursuant to the exercise of the overallotment options, the aggregate shares
of common stock sold in the offerings totaled 380,000,000. After the follow-on equity
offering and over-allotment options exercised, the free float represented approximately
33 percent of IENOVA's outstanding ownership interest. Total proceeds from the common
stock follow-on offering, net of expenses, were USD$1.57 billion.

Our five-year revolving credit facility was increased from USD$600.0 million to USDS$1.17
billion in November 2016, and the syndicate of banks increased from five to eight lenders.

The acquisition of the Ventika wind farm closed on December 14, 2016. Ventika, located
in Nuevo Leon, is the largest wind generation complex in Mexico, with a capacity of
252 MW. The project's commercial operations started in April 2016. We paid USD$434.7
million including shareholders’ debt purchase by USDS$125.0 million plus the assumption
of outstanding bank debt, and we used funds from our common stock follow-on offering
and our revolving credit facility.
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The following tables set forth our results as of and for the three months ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the full year of 2016 and 2015.

1) RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USD$) 2016 2015
REVENUES S 717,894 | $ 613,041
COST OF REVENUES (237,789) (257,226)
OPERATING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES (104,754) (81,857)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION (64,384) (52,470)
FINANCING COST, NET (14,567) (3158)
OTHER GAINS (LOSSES), NET 2,168 M,426)
REMEASUREMENT OF EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENT 673,071
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX AND SHARE OF 971,639 206,904

PROFITS FROM JOINT VENTURES

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (147158) (94,237)
SHARE OF PROFITS FROM JOINT VENTURES, NET OF

INCOME TAX 42,841 42,319
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING 867,322 154,986
OPERATIONS

LOSS FOR THE PERIOD FROM DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS, NET OF INCOME TAX' (112,332) (14,797)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD $ 754,990 $ 140,189

" The Board of Directors approved a plan to market and sell the Termoeléctrica de Mexicali power plant.
Accordingly, its financial results for the fourth quarter of 2016 and 2015 and the full year of 2016 and
2015 are presented in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Profit as discontinued operations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information is presented after eliminating inter-company transactions.

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX AND SHARE YEAR ENDED
OF PROFITS FROM JOINT VENTURES DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF US$) 2016 2015
GAS SEGMENT $ 1009953 | $ 245,151

POWER SEGMENT (1,120)
CORPORATE $ 971,639 $ 206,904

GAS SEGMENT

In 2016, Gas segment profit before income tax and share of profits from joint venture
was USDS$1,010.0 million, compared to USD$245.2 million in 2015. The increase of
USDS$764.8 million is mainly due to the one-time non-cash impact of USD$6731
million related to the remeasurement to fair value of our previously held 50 percent
interest in Gasoductos de Chihuahua, profit before income tax and share of profits
from joint venture of USD$54.4 million in Gasoductos de Chihuahua, and USDS$32.1
million of income related to the Sonora pipeline Guaymas - EI Oro segment.

POWER SEGMENT

In 2016, Power segment loss before income tax and share of profits from joint
venture, was USDS1.1 million. The loss was mainly due to wind seasonality from the
inclusion of 17 days of operation. Ventika was acquired on December 14, 2016.

Wind generation facilities produce energy depending on the local wind climate.
According to the wind assessment study, the wind seasonality for the Nuevo Leon
region, where Ventika is located, is estimated to have high wind from March to
August and low wind from September to February.

CORPORATE
In 2016, corporate loss before income tax was USD$37.2 million compared to
USD$38.2 million in 2015.

YEAR ENDED

REVENUES DECEMBER 31,

(THOUSANDS OF USD$, EXCEPT PRICE PER MMBTU?) 2016 2015

GAS SEGMENT $ 712,327 | $ 61,275

POWER SEGMENT 2,930

CORPORATE $ 717,894 | $ 613,041

NATURAL GAS WEIGHTED AVERAGE

PRICE USD PER MMBTU 273 2.86

2 MMBtu: Million British thermal units (of natural gas)

GAS SEGMENT
In 2016, Gas segment revenues were USD$712.3 million, compared with USD$611.3
million in 2015. The increase of USD$101.0 million is mainly due to:

USDS79.4 million in revenues related to the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of
Gasoductos de Chihuahua starting September 26, 2016, and

USDS$32.1 million in income related to the Sonora pipeline Guaymas - El Oro segment, partially
offset by:

USDS7.9 million from lower weighted average price of natural gas.

POWER SEGMENT
In 2016, Power segment revenues were USD$2.9 million. These revenues are related
to 17 days of operation of Ventika, which was acquired on December 14, 2016.

YEAR ENDED
COST OF REVENUES DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USD$, EXCEPT COST PER MMBTU) 2016 2015
GAS SEGMENT $ 237621 S 257,226

POWER SEGMENT 168

$ 237,789 $ 257,226
NATURAL GAS WEIGHTED AVERAGE
COST USD PER MMBTU 2.60 2.77

In 2016, Gas segment cost of revenues was USD$237.6 million, compared with USD$257.2 million for
2015. The decrease of USD$19.6 million is mainly due to the lower weighted average price of natural gas.
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OPERATING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

In 2016, operating, administrative, and other expenses were USD$104.8 million,
compared with USD$81.9 million for 2015. The increase of USD$22.9 million was
mainly due to the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de
Chihuahua.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

In 2016, depreciation and amortization was USD$64.4 million, compared with
USDS52.5 million for 2015. The increase of USDS$11.9 million was mainly due to the
acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de Chihuahua and Ventika
acquisition in December 2016.

FINANCING COST, NET

In 2016, net financing cost was USD$14.6 million, compared with USD$3.2 million for
2015. The change of USDS$11.4 million is mainly due to increased interest expense
related to the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de Chihuahua
and the acquisition of Ventika.

OTHER GAINS (LOSSES), NET

In 2016, other gains, net, were USD$2.2 million, compared with other losses, net, of
USDS$11.4 million in 2015. The change of USD$13.6 million is mainly due to foreign
exchange impacts and mark-to-market losses on an interest rate swap in 2015. This
derivative instrument was terminated in September 2015.

REMEASUREMENT OF EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENT
The non-cash impact of USD$673.1 million is related to the remeasurement to fair
value of our previously held 50-percent interest in Gasoductos de Chihuahua.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

In 2016, income tax expense was USD$147.2 million compared with USD$94.2 million
in 2015. The variance of USD$53.0 million is primarily due to higher earnings before
taxes and the effect of the deferred income tax balance from the fluctuation in the
tax basis of property, plant, and equipment at our U.S. dollar functional currency,
which we are required to remeasure in each reporting period based on changes in
the Mexican peso exchange rate, and the effect of inflation on monetary assets and
liabilities, partially offset by currency exchange rate movements at period end on
monetary assets and liabilities.

SHARE OF PROFITS FROM JOINT VENTURES, NET OF INCOME TAX

In 2016, our share of profits from joint ventures, net of income tax, was USD$42.8
million, compared with USD$42.3 million in 2015. The increase of USDS$0.5 million is
mainly due to Los Ramones Norte pipeline start of operations, partially offset by the
acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de Chihuahua.

LOSS FOR THE PERIOD FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS,

NET OF INCOME TAX

In February 2016, the Board of Directors approved a plan to market and sell the
Termoeléctrica de Mexicali power plant. Accordingly, its financial results for the
three-month period ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the full year 2016 and
2015, are presented in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Profit as
discontinued operations, net of tax.

In 2016, the loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax, was USDS$112.3
million, compared with a loss of USD$14.8 million in the 2015. The increase of
USDS$97.5 million is due to the adjustment to the carrying value of Termoeléctrica de
Mexicali power plant, a non-cash impairment charge.

EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

We present “EBITDA" and "Adjusted EBITDA" in this earnings report for the
convenience of investors. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, however, are not measures
of financial performance under IFRS and should not be considered as alternatives to
profit or operating income as a measure of operating performance or to cash flows
from operating activities as a measure of liquidity.

Our definition of EBITDA is profit for the period after adding back or subtracting, as
the case may be, (1) depreciation and amortization, (2) financing cost, net, (3) other
gains or losses, net, (4) income tax expense, (5) share of profits from joint ventures,
net of income tax, and for the periods presented, (6) remeasurement of equity
method investment, and (7) loss for the period from discontinued operations, net of
income tax.

We define the JV EBITDA adjustment as our share of the profit from joint ventures,
after adding back or subtracting, as the case may be, our share of: (1) depreciation and
amortization, (2) financing cost, net, (3) other gains or losses, net, (4) income tax
expense, and (5) share of profits of equity method investments, net of income tax.

We define the Discontinued operation EBITDA adjustment as the loss for the period
from discontinued operations, net of income tax after adding back or subtracting,
as the case may be, (1) depreciation and amortization, (2) financing cost, net, (3)
other gains or losses, net, (4) income tax expense, and for the periods presented,
(5) impairment.

YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USD$) 2016 2015
GAS SEGMENT § 373881 S 274,343
POWER SEGMENT 2,169
CORPORATE (699) (385)
EBITDA $ 375351 $ 273,958
JV EBITDA ADJUSTMENT 130,084 110,921
DISCONTINUED OPERATION EBITDA ADJUSTMENT 1,414) 6,935
ADJUSTED EBITDA 504,021 391,814
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RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

TO EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

(THOUSANDS OF USD$)

EBITDA RECONCILIATION
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
FINANCING COST, NET

OTHER (GAINS) LOSSES, NET
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

SHARE OF PROFITS FROM JOINT VENTURES,
NET OF INCOME TAX

LOSS FOR THE PERIOD FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS, NET OF INCOME TAX

REMEASUREMENT OF EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENT
(1) EBITDA

JV EBITDA ADJUSTMENT RECONCILIATION
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
FINANCING COST, NET

OTHER LOSSES (GAINS), NET

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(2) JV EBITDA ADJUSTMENT

DISCONTINUED OPERATION EBITDA ADJUSTMENT
RECONCILIATION

LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

FINANCING COST, NET

OTHER LOSSES (GAINS), NET

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)

IMPAIRMENT CHARGE

(3) DISCONTINUED OPERATION EBITDA
ADJUSTMENT

(1+2+3) ADJUSTED EBITDA

YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31,

2016 2015

§ 754990 | % 140,189

64,384 52,470

14,567 3158

(2,168) 11,426

147,158 94,237

(42,481) (42,319)

112,332 14,797
(673,071)

$ 375,351 $ 273,958

$ 42,841 $ 42,319

13,907 13,952

32,194 20,480

4,433 (859)

36,709 35,029

130,084 110,921

§ (112,332) | $ (14,797)

2,222 15,210

229 202

1,396 151

(29,809) 6,169
136,880

$ (1,414) $ 6,935

$ 504,021 $ 391,814

1) FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USS$) 2016 2015
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 24,918 | $ 40,377
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 80 20,068
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, NET 100,886 53,728
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 191,287 -
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS® 127,769 mis6
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 444,940 $ 225,329
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
DUE FROM UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES 104,352 m,766
FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 950,311 14,510
DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 75,999 78,965
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 125,355 440,105
GOODWILL 1,651,780 25,654
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET 3,614,085 2,595,840
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS® 160,126 14,913
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 6,682,008 3,281,753
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7126948 § 3,507,082
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
SHORT-TERM DEBT S 493,571 88,507
DUE TO UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES 260,914 352,650
LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE 35,451
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES® 181,738 102,184
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 971,674 543,341
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM DEBT 1,039,804 299,925
DUE TO UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES 3,080 38,460
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 489,607 261,294
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES® 272,472 184,198
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,804,963 783,877
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,776,637 1,327,218
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
COMMON STOCK 963,272 762,949
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 2,351,801 973,953
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (126,658) (103,944)
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,161,896 546,906
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 4,350,311 2,179,864
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 7126948 $ 3,507,082

(1) Other current assets include restricted cash, value added tax receivable, amounts due from
unconsolidated affiliates, derivative financial instruments, finance lease receivable (current), income
taxes receivable, natural gas inventories, carbon allowances (2015), and other current assets.

(2) Other non-current assets include intangible assets, restricted cash, derivative financial instruments,
carbon allowances (2015), and other non-current assets.

(3) Other current liabilities include trade and other payables, other taxes payable, income tax liabilities,
derivative financial instruments, other financial liabilities, provisions, carbon allowances (2015), and
other current liabilities.

(4) Other non-current liabilities include derivative financial instruments, provisions, employee benefits,
and carbon allowances (2015).
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We are a holding company. As a result, our ability to meet our obligations and to fund
our capital needs depends on our ongoing ability to generate cash from operations,
the terms of our financing arrangements, and our access to capital markets.

YEAR ENDED

SOURCES AND USES OF CASH DECEMBER 31,

(THOUSANDS OF USDS$) 2016 2015

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT PERIOD $ 40,377 | $ 83,637

BEGINNING

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 240,732 168,179

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,848,876) (248,796)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,605,461 41,892

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,342) (4,535)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,352 40,377

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FROM ASSETS HELD (434) -

FOR SALE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT PERIODEND  § 24,918 | $§ 40,377

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

In 2016, net cash provided by operating activities increased to USD$240.7 million,
compared to USD$168.2 million in 2015, mainly due to working capital changes,
partially offset by higher paid income taxes.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

In 2016, net cash used in investing activities was USD$1,848.9 million, due to the
acquisition of Gasoductos de Chihuahua by USD$1,077.6 million, net of cash available
at the date of acquisition; and Ventika acquisition using USD$434.7 million, net of
cash available at closing date, including shareholders’ debt purchase by USD$125.0
million; capital expenditures of USD$315.8 million for our Ojinaga, Sonora and San
Isidro pipeline projects, and the investment of USDS$100.5 million in IMG; partially
offset by restricted cash of USD$46.8 million, related to bank debt of Ventika and
Gasoductos de Chihuahua; decrease in short-term investments of USD$20.0 million,
and repayment of loans from unconsolidated affiliates of USD$8.3 million.

In 2015, net cash used in investing activities was USD$248.8 million, due to
capital expenditures of USD$300.1 million for our Sonora, Ojinaga, and San Isidro
pipeline projects, partially funded by proceeds from repayment of loans from
unconsolidated affiliates of USD$41.6 million and a USD$10.0 million decrease in
short-term investments.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

In 2016, net cash provided by financing activities was USD$1,605.5 million, mainly
due to USDS$1,567.7 million proceeds from the common stock follow-on offering, net
of expenses, USD$1,240.0 million in loans from unconsolidated affiliates and
USDS$805.0 million from borrowings against credit facilities, partially offset by
USDS$1,369.6 million repayment of unconsolidated affiliate loans, USD$459.5 million
repayment of bank loans, a dividend payment of USD$140.0 million, and interest paid
of USD$35.8 million.

In 2015, net cash provided by financing activities was USD$41.9 million, due to loans
from banks and unconsolidated affiliates of USD$834.7 million, partially offset by
USDS$600.1 million repayment of bank loans, a dividend payment of USD$170.0
million, and interest paid of USD$20.2 million.

111) INTERNAL CONTROLS

Our management is responsible for maintaining a system of internal control over
financial reporting. This system gives our shareholders reasonable assurance that
our transactions are executed and maintained in accordance with the guidelines set
forth by our management and that our financial records are reliable as a basis for
preparing our financial statements.

The system of internal control over financial reporting is supported by ongoing
audits, the results of which are reported to management throughout the year. In
addition, we maintain reliable databases and have modern and efficient systems
designed to generate key financial information.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Infraestructura Energética Nova,
S. A. B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries

Opinfon

We have audited the accompanying consolidated finandal staternents of Infraestructura Energética Nova,

5. & B, de C. V, and Subskdiaries (the *Company” or “IEnova”), which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial posithon as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, and the congsolidated statements of profit,
profit and other comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then
ended, and & summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarrmation.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stabements present falry, In all materlal respects, the finandal
position of Infracstructura Energética Nova, S. A. B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries as of Decernber 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014, and its financial performance and ks cash fiows for the years then ended, in atcordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, a8 sued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board.,

Basis for Opinion

W conduched our audit in sccordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (15As). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awuditors Responsibiities for the Audlt of the Consolidated
Financia! Staterments section of our repart. We are independent of the Company In accordance with the codes
of ethics ssued by the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants and the Mexican [nsttute of
Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled cwr other ethical responsibllities. We belleve that the audit evidenoe
we have obtaingd ks sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinéon.

Key Audit Matbers

Kiey audit matbers are those matters that, in gur professional judgment, were of most Significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters wene addressed In the
context of our audit of the consolidated financlal statements ag & whole, and in forming our opinéon thereon,
and we do not provide & separate opinion on these matters,

Business acquisitions

A5 described in Note 11.1 to the consolidated financial statements, on September 26, 2016, [Enova acquired
the remaining equity in Gaseductos de Chihuahua, Transaction price was $1.143.8 milllon, resulting in the
recognition of goodwill of $1,497.0 million and a re-measurement gain of $673.1 million as of December 31,
2016, Alsa, a5 described i Note 11.2 to the consolidated financlal statements, on December 14, 20016,
IEnova acguired 100% of the equity interests in the Ventika. Transaction price was $434.7 million resuiting
in the recognition of goodwill of $129.1 million.

e Dipito Todeears | eraed woastial proats de g bl i me 6 Seve Ui v 6 e fod de iy Sl 4 el ok 0 #0 CT% ) P eTeetad e
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Deloitte.

We performed risk assessment procedures that included the understanding of the business rationale of the

acquisition, the design and implementation of controls established by management over the acquisitions and
the evalustion of risk of fraud. The mest relevant risks identified were as follows:

" Risks that the Company incomectly determined the falr values of property, plant and equipment or
intangibde assets, reswting in an inappropriate determination of gaodwill which 2 nat armorized bt
subject to irpairment bests,

. We tested the operating effectiveness of controls established by management addressing these risks
and performaed substantive testing Incheding, among other: the review of docsmentation of
judgements made by management as assisted by its external advisors; review of relevant contracts,
permits and regulations and supplemenbed with Inquiries with operating personnel of the Company to
gain a better understanding of the regulatory environment; performed procedures to best the

" determination of fair values; and performed intemal consultations with valuation and industry
spacialist a5 nasded.

- Risk that current or deferred @xes resulting from the acquisition, it any, were not properly reflected in
the financial statements.

. We tested the eperating sMectivensss of controls established by management sdoressing this risk and
reviewed management *5 determination of current and deferred taxes. In our besting we Involved our
tax spacialists A5 NECESSATY.

Risks that the accounting model used for contracts acquired 5 incormect, for example as it relates to
the determination of contracts containing leases or derivatives,

We tested the operating effectiveness of controls establiched by management sddressing this risk and
reviewed management 5 documentation, challenging critical judgements.

Valuation of Assets hald for sala

As described in Mote 12 to the consolidabed finenclal statements, In February 2006, the management of the
Company approved & plan to market and soll its subshkdiary Termoeléctrica de Medeall, 5. de R L. da C. W,
The assets and Habilithes, were presented B asasts held for sals and Eabilities held for sale and its results
wire presented within discontinued operations. Under International Financial Reporting Standards, an entity
shall measure non-current assets classified as held for sale at the lower of s camrying amoant and fair value
less costs to sell. During the third quarter the Company determined that fair value less costs to sell was less
than the carrying amount recognizing an Impalment kss of $136.8 millon with a deferred tax benefit of
$47.8 million.

We addressed the raks that impalrment was reconded in the appropriate pericd and for the cormect amount,
We tested the operating effectivensss of contrels established by management. We also challenged
management s jsdgements and the estimate of fair value; recalculsted the Enpairment amownts snd tax
cffects; and, reviewed the approgriate presentation and disclesure in the financlal statements,

Other Information
Management ls responsible for the other Information. The other information comprises Infarmation Included

in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's repart thereon. The
annual report |s expected to be made available to us after the date of this suditor's report.

Deloitte.

Our apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conduslon thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibdity Is to read the other
informaticn identified above when it becomes availlable and, In doing so, consider whether the other
infarmation is materally inconsistent with the consalidated finandial staterments or our knowledge sbtained in
the awdit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude
that thers is @ maberial misstaternent thersin, we ane required to communicate the matter to these charged
with governance. We do not repart anything related to the other information.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Finandal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated financial staterments
In accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards as issued by the International Accourting
Standards Board, and for swch internal control as management determines is necessary (o enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or emor.,

In preparing the consolidated financlal statements, management is responsible for asseasing the Company™s
ability to contnue a5 @ going concesm, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or Lo
cease gperations, of has no realistic altemative but to do 50,

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the Companys financlal reparting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whither the consolidated financial statements as a
whale are free from materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Juditor's report
that includes our epinion, Ressenable assurance is a high leved of assurance, but is nat @ guarantee that an
audit conductad in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatemant whaen R exiss,
Misstatements can srise from fraud or emoe and are considered material if, indbvidually or in the aggregate,
mmﬂumwhtrpmdmlmMWMM#MHMmﬂEmmﬂHm
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

" Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemnent of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that i sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basks for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstaterment resulting from frawd is higher than for one resulting from ermor,
a5 fraud may involve coflusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or e avertide of
Intemrmal contral.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are approgriate in the drosmstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s intermal controd,



Deloitte.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disdesures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence abtained, whether 3 material uncertainty exists related bo svents or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concerm. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In cwr suditors
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financlal statements or, iF such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opénlon. Our condusions are besed on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue &5 & Goifd CONCEMT.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated finandial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consclidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in & manner that achieves falr prosentation.

. Obtain sufficlent appropriste audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Cornpany to expréss an opinkon on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group awdit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inchuding any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we dentify during our awdit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 2 statement that we have complied with relovant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Deloitte.

Froen the matters communicated with thoese chamged with governance, we determing thase makters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the curment period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe thess matters in cur auditors repert unless law or regulation
preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determinge that &
matter should not be commanicated In our report because the sdverse consequences of doing so would
wmﬂmmmmmﬂcmmmwmmm.

Oitfher matier

The accompanying cansolidated financial statements hawe been transiated into English for the eonvenience of

February 21, 2017



Iafracstruciura Energitica Nova, 5. A. B, de O, V. and Sabssiliaries

Consalidabed Statensenis of Finamsoal Position

Assgts

Cusrent assets:

Cash and cash eqeivalents
Shore-perm investments

Trade nnd caher receivables, met
Dhse from smconschdated affihates
Fimamce kease neceivablies
Imcome taes receivable
Matural gas invenbonies
Devivative (Enancial insirumsenes
Wahse pdded x receivable
Carbon alloaanses

(mher asseis

Resiriceed cash

Assets beld for sale

Total curfent adsets

FON=CUETent Ao

[hue from snconsalidated affiliales
Dierivative fnancial insirumsenes
Fumance lease receivables
Diefermed income ax assets
levestments in going vesiures
Carbon albowanses

(nher assets

Property, plasi and equipment, net
Imtangible assets

Goodwill

Total Bon-Cument s

Toinl Assets

(In thousands of U, 5, Dollass)

Ntes

i, 2
2%
53
b, 2d
8. 4
L]

rl

See accompamang modes 1o the consohdaied fimncal Aalements.

Digecmber 31, December 31, Degember 30,
2ie bl 1 E] Ioi4

24918 5 40477 s BI 63T

B0 20 D68 0,020

100, 226 £3.728 i, 401

12,976 27 608 26,601
755 - -

o, 3500 16226 34 357

6 OE3 4 628 QATS

6913 1926 4,704

27 600 46 807 0,797

= 5185 20 Be4

B89 LE 0518
51343 = -
191287 - =

A44.0H 225 329 .’I-ISIE-I'E'

o< 352 111,766 146,775
127 - -

a5p 11 14,510 14,621

75,990 18,905 B, 758

123,335 440,105 H01,53%

- 12975 a0

4 855 1938 2285

Lald oES 2 505 Eal 237171
154, 144 - =

1451780 25654 25,654

G620k 3.281.753 3054
70265948 5 3507 082 5 1

Linbélithes and Stockiolders” Equity

Current Habilinies:
Shortaerm deln
Trade and other pavables
Dae 1o umgomsolidsied afilimes
Incoane tax liabalibies
Detivative financial instruments
Cxther finencial linbslities
Provisi
Oeher taxes payable
Carbon allowances
Oxher lishehies
Linbikities beld for sale

Toead current Habibities

Mon=cumment linbilises:
Lang-tenm dicbt
D 10 umcoesolidwied
affikates
Defemed meome 1ax Babilithes
Carbon allowances
Proaasioms
[erivarive financial isvruments

Employee benefits
Total non-current liahilities
Toeal liabikises
Ssockholders’ equity:

Common sock
Additional paid-in capiial

Accunmlated otber conprehensave loss

Reinimed earnings

Totad equity anribusable wo oaners

of the Company
Commitments asd conlingencics
Events afler the reporting period
Toeal lishilities and equity

2,24

14, 24
6,24
15

i, 24

[ b
I2

gg

35 30

Deember 31, December 31, December 31,
& il 204

5 493 571 .1 B8 507 £ | %5 0EG
94 566 43 540 59575
0,14 350650 14,405

13,322 14,095 IE022
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5577 t 444 1223
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lafraestructura Energetica Nova, 5. A B, de C. V. and Sabsidiaries

Comsolidated Statements of Profi

{1 thousamds of U, 5. Dwdlars, except per share pnmounis)

MNotes
Revenues 24, I8
Cost of revenues
Operating, adminisrative and other expenses 30
Depreciation ond amomizstion 14,28, 33
Inderest income 28,9
Finamce (costs) income 28 32
(Hber pains and {kosses), net L |
Remeasurement of equity method myvestment [}
Profit before income tax and share
af profits of joinl venhdnes
Income tax expense 23, 28
Share of profits of joist ventures, mel of
ICome tax o, 28
Profit for the period from
CONEIMEING OpeTRiNNE
Discontinoed operation:
(Loss) gain for the perind from
discominwed operations, nel of
imeOaTee 18X 12
Profit for the vear 28
Eamings per share:
From comtinning and discentinued operations:
Basic and diluled camings per share 12,34
Froan coufinsung opemtions;
Basic amd dilted camings per share 34

See scommpanying notes 10 the consolklated financial statements.

Year ended December 31,
Ai6 05 2004
(Mote 1, 12) (™ote 1, 12) {™ate 1, 11}

5 TIT R0 5 a1 50410 5 TRE R0
(237,780) {257,226) (409,635)
(104,784) {81,257) (78,658)

(64 584) 152,470 {46,728}
0,260 6,701 3,187
(BB (98593 i.379
2. 168 {11, 42) 4 59
673,071 -
9T 630 b, Sl 21x43
(147,158} {94,237) { X B56)
42841 42,319 23 36

¥ HG7. 322 3 154,986 3 132924
[102.332) {14,797} 4 00

b 154 950 & 140, 189 5 136,034

s 0,61 5 012 5 01z

5 0. Tl 5 0nl3 5 iz

Infracsiruciura Energética Nova, 5, A, B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Profit and Other Comprehensive Income

{In thousands of LI 5. Dollars)

Notes
Profit for the year 34
Oiher comprebensive mcome (loss)c
hems that will not be reclassified w profit or (loss):

Actuanial gains {loss) on defined benefits plans 17
Deferred income tax related 1o components
of other comprehensive income
Total items that will not be reclassified
w0 profit

Items thiat may be subsequently reclasafied
b profil o {oss):

Loss on valuation of financial dervative
instruments hebd for hedging purposes

Deferred income tax on the loss on valuation
of financial derivitive instruments
held for hedging purposes

Ciain {loss ) on valuation of denvative financial
instruments held for hedging purposes
of joint ventures

Deferred income tax on the gain (loss) on valuation
for hedging purposes 31 joint venbures
of financial derivae instruments beld

Exchange differences on iranskation of foreign operations
Total isems that may be subsequently

reclassified to profin or loss
Oither comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

See accompanying nobes io the consolidsted financial sajemends,

Year ended December 31,

20 6 pd I 04
5 T54.900 5 140,185 5 136934
1,765 (1,7 357
(53] 338 [LLRN
1,235 (1.255) 2500
(17.112) (6,004 ) (1.822)
5133 1581 547
35,308 i(5.362) i 19.035)
(10,592) R 5981
(36,686) (29.981) (25.078)
(23 940) (38,338} (40,308)
[22.714) (3613 (4058}
5 TI22Th 5 100ATS 5 i ATH




Infraestructura Energética Nova, 5. A. B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders™ Equity

{In thousands of U, 5. Dollars)

Additional Other
Common paid-in comprehensive Retained
Notes shares capital loss earnings Total
Balance as of December 31, 2014 5 762,949 ] 073,953 5 (64,331) § 576717 § 2249288
Profit for the year - - - 140,189 140,189
Loss on valuation of financial derivatives held for hedging
purposes, net of income lax . . (8,377) - (8,377)
Actuarial loss on defined benefits plans, net of income tax (1,255) (1,255)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - (29.981) - (29.981)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {39.613) 140,189 100,576
Dividends paid 27 - - - (170,000} {170, 000)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 5 762,949 5 073,953 s ! 1 03,944) 5 546906 £ 2.179.864
Profit for the year - - - 754,990 754,990
Loss on valuation of financial derivatives held for hedging
purposes, net of income tax - - (11,979) - (11,979
Actuarial gain on defined benefits plans, net income tax 1,235 1,235
Gain on valuation of financial derivatives held for hedging
purposes of joint venture, net of income tax - - 24,716 - 24,716
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - (36,686) - (36,686)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (22.714) 754,990 732,276
Issuance of share, net 26 200,323 1,.377.848 - - 1.578,171
Dividends paid 27 - - - { 140,000} { 140,000}
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 963272 $ 2351801 §__ (126.658) § 1161896 $_ 4350311

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Infracstrmctura Encrgética Mova, 5, A, B, de C, V. amd Subsidiaries

Conzolulated Statements of Cash Flows

{In thowsands of U, 5. Dollars)

Cash Mows from operaling activities:
Mrodit For the year
Adjustrments for:
Incomie tAx expense
Share of profit of pant ventures,
el of incams tax
Finance costs (income)
Imterest inconse
(Logs) gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss [gain} recognized on
irade receivables
Impairment properiy plant and equipment
Remeasurement of equily metbod investment
Ciain on sale of equity interest in
sabsidiary
Deprecision and amonization
Mzt Foreign exchange (gain) loss
{Craim} loss on vahation of derivative
financinl mstruments

Meovements in working capital;
Decrease (imcreasc) in trade and other
receivables, net
{Increase) decrease in natural gas inventories
Decrease in other assets
{ Decresse) increase m irmde and
olher pavables
Increase (decrease) i provisions
Increase (decrense) in olber liabilities
Cash generated from operations

Income tnxes paid

Met cash provided by
OpCratng aclivitics

Year Ended december 3.

Mo 20lG 2015 2014
28, 34 5 754090 % D189 £ 136934
25, 28 117349 100 406 111,283
10, 28 (42841} {42.319) (23.346)
28, 32 210452 i, 103 (1,043)
28,20 {6,294) (6,743) (3,204
{4,233) 1,601 64
46 30 (8)

136,880 - -

(673,071} - g
- - (18,524)
14, 2% 33 i (5 67T 682 61,943
{4,652) (8,548) 9,057
(21,0000 4] 4045
344,871 263081 277 2oy
6,173 1776 (4,020
{1, 455) 4,747 {3,539
18,398 1615 14,308
(45,302) {17,081} 49,193
16,249 {3,740 (19,873)
30,348 {33.638) 17,805
350 184 23,719 129430
118,552 62,540 {166,213}
240,732 168,179 163217
9

Iafraestruciura Encrgética Nova, 5 A, B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries

Conmsolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{Im thowsands of U. 5. Dollars)

Moles

Cash flows from investing sctivities:
Acquisition of subisidiary, net of cash soquired L}
Investment in jeint venbures L1
Interest received
Acquisitions of property, plant
amd equipment 14
Loans to unconsclidated affiliates
Receips of loans 10 unconsolidated affiliates
Bestricied cash
Short-term investments

Met cash wied in investing activities

Cash flows from finencing activities:
Issuance shares in follow-0n
Sharcs BsEANoe Cosl
Interest paud
Proceeds from boans from unconsalsdated
affikiases [
Repaymsent of lsans from unconselidested
afliliates L
Payments on bank credat limes
Proceeds from bank eredit Hees
Db issuance cost
Dividends pasd 27

Met cash provided by financing

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents af the

beginnang of 1he vear
Cash and cash equivalent from

asseis held for sale iz
Effects of exchange mte changes

on cash and cash equivalents

Cash amd cash equivalents at the
end of the year

Seg necompamying nades to the consolidatéd financial statemenis,

Year Ended december 31,
HilG 2015 204
{1.512,248) 24411
{ 100477 = £
3875 1,047 4
(315,810) 1 300,0040) (323,484)
aRE (1301 (162.823)
.22 41,506 18921
46 %49 - x
19,988 9053 177,007
{1.848,876) (248,706} (26T 964)
| 602 586 %
{34,877) . 3
(33, 785) (20,17 2) (18.872)
1,240,000 339,600 146
{1,369, 600 = (383}
{459,463} o G CHeg L
RS iy 495 004 X8 432
(24000} (2.536) (11, 184y
{ 140,00y o 0 g {164 D0}
1 605 461 41,892 83,939
(2.683) (38,725) (20, 808)
40377 83,637 103 880
{4343 -
i12,342) {4,535) 65
£ 24918 5 40,377 &  BlAI7
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Infracstructura Energética Mova, 5. A, B, de C. V. and Subsidiaries
Motes 1o the Consoludated Fmancial Sotements
For the vears endexd December 31, 2006, 20015 and 2004

(In thousands of U, 5. Dollars, except where otherwise stated)

Creneral information and relevant evenis
LI teneral informaiion

Infracstruciura Energética Mova, 5, A, B, de C. V. and Subsidanes (collectively, the “Company”™ or
“IEncwa”) are located and incorporated in México, Their parent and ultimate holding companmy 15 Sempra
Encrgy (the “Parent™) located and incorporsted in the United States of America ("L 5.7), The address
of their registered offices ansd principal places of business are disclosed in Mote 40

1.2 Relevant evenis
120, Credit agrecments

On Awgust 21, 2013, [Enova as a debior, entered indo a revolving credit line of up to S400.0 million
with a syndicate group of four banks inclading, Banco Santander, {México), 5.A., [nstitucion de
Banca Miltiple, Grupo Financiero Santander México, Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi, The Bank of
Nova Scotia and Sumiomso Mitsul Bankmg Corporation (“SMBC™). The revalving credit has the
following charactenstics:

* LS. Dollar-denominated.

*  Twelve month berm, with an opiion io extend up to five years,

*  Financing 1o repay and concel the previous loans contracted in 2004 with Banco
Santander (México), 5. A, Instituciin de Banca Mltiple and SMBC, as well as to finance

working capital and for general corporate purposes.
Restracnring of credil agreement oo oew credin agrecment

O Decernber 22, 2015 the Company entered into an amended agreement, in connection with the
existing undecured revolving credin agreement with Banco Nacional de México, SMBC, as
Admanistrative Agent, and the financial institutbons party thereto, as Lenders, (the “Credit
Agreement™) whereby it agreed 10 increase the amount of the lme of credit under the Credit
Agreement fo @ maximum aggregate in the amount of $600.0 million from the previoushy
authorized maximum in the amount of S400.0 million, Please refier i Mote 21,

Cn Movember 3, 2006, the Company entered into a second amend ment sprecment, i Connection
fo the revolving credit mentioned above, in which Bank of Amernica, N. A. ("BafA™), BEVA
Bancomer 5. A.. Imstitucion de Banca Mialtiple, Grupo Financiero BEVA Bancomer ("BBVA”)
and Mizuho Bank, LTDN("Mizubo™), joined as new benders and with the existing lenders wherehy
ppreed 1o increase the amount of the credi line under the Credit Agreement o a maximum
apgregaie in the amount of 5107000 million approximately from the previowsly auihorized
maxinium of $600.0 mallon,

On Decembser 340, 2006 a porton of this revolving credit was paid in the amount of § 200,0 mallion.

f22

f.2.3.

Plan to aarker and el THA

In Febraary 20146, the Company s management approved a plan o market and sell Temmsoelbcinica
de Mexicali, 5. de R. L. de C. V. and suhsidianies {“TDM™), a 625-mepawatis {“MMW™) natural
gas-fired power plant kocated in Mexicali, Baja Califormia, México.

As a result of the foregoing events, the assets and labilitics of TDM were presented as assets held
for sabe and liabilitics held for sabe, in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2016; the results of these companies ane abo presented within discontinued
operations in the Consohidated Statements of Profit, which were retrospectively sdjusted. Fleass
refer 1o Note 12,

Purchase agreenent of remaining interend in ClC from Peiralgos Mesicanos

O July 31, 2005, the Company announced an agreement with Petroleos Mexicanos (“Pemex™) 1o
purchase Pemex’s 50 percent equily interest in Gasoducios de Chilwahia, 5, de R L, de C, V.
GECT) i the amount of $1.325 billion. The assels involved in the acquisition include three
natural gas pipelines; one cthane pipeline;, one liguid petroleum gas 'LPG™) pipeline; and omne
LPG storage terminal. Under the terms of the agreement, Pemex and IEnova will maintain their
existing pannership in the Los Ramoacs Il More pipeline project through the progect hobding
company, Ductos Energéticos del Nore, 5. de¢ R L. de C. V. ("DEN").

O September 14, 2015 the Ordinary and Extraordimary Shareholders” Mecting approved the
purchase of Pemex’s 30 pereent equity interest hobd in GadC.

Rexaditton from COFECE in comaeetion with purchase agreement of remaining inferest in Gell”
Mo Pemex

In December 2015, Comision Federal de Competencia Econdmica (“"COFECE™) objected 1o the
transaction bo purchase Pemex's interest in GdC as proposed, The parties restruciured the
transaction so that Pemex could proceed in accordance with the COFECE ruling,

ool anepaniitian

In July 2016, [Enova announced it had reached an agreement with Pemex Transformacion
Industrinl (“Pemex TRI™) to restructure the transaction to purchase Pemex's interest in GdC that
was objected by the COFECE in December 2013, This agreement allowed i) Pemex TRIio satisfy
the conditions imposad by the foemer COFECE in connection with its indinect participation in the
assets known as Gasoducto San Fernando and LG Duecto TDF and i) IEnova to acquire Pemsex
TRI participation in GAC once such conditions were satisfied,

On September 21, 20016, COFECE authorized IEmowva’s acquisition of 50 percent of the equity of
GdC (" GAC scquisiten™), owmed by Pemex TRIL

On September 26, 2006, GdC's acquisition was completed through IEpova Gasoductos Holding,
5 de B. L. de C. V., ("IGH™) a subsidiary of IEnova; therefore, the Company now hobds 100
percent of (ebC"s shares. The final price of the tramsaction was 51,0776 mallion, net of cash
soquired. GAC's joint venture with Pemex TRI remains after the acquisition, as origimally
contracted, each holdimg 30 percent of the shares in DEM. Through DEM, [Enova and Pemex TRI
will preserve their energy infrastructure joint venture of the construction of the Los Ramones Morte
pipehine amd potentially develop new progects. Please refer to Mote 1.2.4 for fimancing transaction.

G has been included in the Company®s Consolidated Financial Statements sinee the aoquisition
date [September 26, 2016). Please refer to Node 11.1.
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124, Bridge foan for G acquisition

g On Seplember 26, 2016, [Enova entered mio an unconsobidated affilete loan credit m the
amound of $5000 million with Sempra Global (“SEG™). The loan has the following
chamcteristics:

« |15 Dollar-denominabed.
*  Two-month lerm.
*  Lise to finance the acquisition of GAC'.

In October 2016, the Company repaid this Bridge Loan.

b.  Om September 26, 3006, [Enova eniered imio an unconsolidated affiliate loam credit in the
amoent $35000 million with Semco Holdeo, 5. de R, L. de C. V. ("Semco”™). The loan has the
fellowang characteristics:

= LS. Dollar-denominated.
*  Two-manth term.
& Use to finance the acquisition of GAC.

In October 2016, Semco bought [Enova's shares from the commeon stock follow-on equity
odfering (“Gilobal offering”). Semco acquired E3,125,000 shares, at a value per share of S80.0
Mexican Pesos, the total amount of this iransaction amounted o approximately S350.0 million,
equivalent #o the amount of this loan, thevefore Semeo relieved 1Enova from the payment
obligation of the loan as settlement for shares.

1.2.5. Follow-on equity affertag

On October 13, 2016, the Company camied out o Global Offering. The Company issued
350,000,000 shares of common stock at $80.0 Mexican Pesos per share. After the Global offering,
the additional and over-allotment opison was exercibad, the free Moat represented approximately
33.57 percend of 1Enova's outstanding ownership interess,

Total capital raised, net of expenses and the corresponding taxes, was 529,941 0 million Mexican
Pesos (approximately 51.57 billion of US Dollars), the proceeds were used 1o repay the bridge
loan o its affiliate Sempra Global, used 1 purchase the remaining 50 percent of GAC from Pemex
TRI, to fund a portion of the acquisition of the Yentika wind-farm and 1o fund capital expendinsmes
and general corporate purposes. Please refer io Mobe 26,

As a resuli of the Global Offering, ihe Company raised 330,400 million Mexican Pesos, and the
issuanee costs amounted to 5459 3133 Mexican Pesos. Please refer to Noge 26.

The Company in order to complete the ransaction mentsoned 10 Note 1.2.3., entered into four
forward exchange rate contracts with a maturity date in Ovtober 2006, The effect of these forwards
wis 53.4 million, and was recognized i the Consolidated Staterment of Profit within other guins
and losses.

126, Purchase agreement of wind farm Vertika

On September 2, 2016, IEnova agreed to acquire Fisterra Energy Netherlands 111, B, V., Fisterra
Energy Netherlands, IV B, V.. Fisterra Energy Mexico IIL, 5. de R. L. de C. V., Fisterra Energy
Mexico IV, 5. de R LodeC. V., Veniika, 5. A P | d2C. WV, and Vemika I[LS. A P, 1. de C. V.
{collectively “Ventika™}), a 252 MW wind generation facility, located in the state of Muevo Leon,
Mexico. Ventika was jointly developed by Fisterra Energy and Cementos Mexicanos, 5. A, de
C, V. The construction was completed in December 2015 and commercial operations staned in
April 2006,
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This transaction was approved in an Extroordinary Sharchobders” Mecting on October 7, 20016,

In December 2006, the COFECE suthorized the soquisition of 100 percent of the equity inerests
in Ventika. The wransaction was completed on December 14, 2016 through Comrodadora Sierma
Juirez, 5, de R, L, de C. ¥V, (CC307) a subsidiary of 1Enova, The final price of the ransaction was
S4H.T million, plus the assumption of outstanding debt of $485.3 million,

The loans fully mature in March 2032, and bear interest equal o a fixed base raie or London
Interhbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR"™) plus a spread of 3,03 percent to 3,93 percent, which varsies over
the term of the kans. To moderate exposure to interest rate and associated cash flow vanability,
Wentika entered into floating-to-fixed mierest rate swaps o have almost 92 percent of the full
amowunt of the loans fived.

Ventika has been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date
{December 14, 20163 Please refer to Mote 112

127, Fimancing with mcornsilictoiesd affiliares

e.  In March 2015, I[Enova entered inte two related party revolving crediat facilinies for SS90
million with Inversiones Sempra Latin Amernica Limitsda (*1SLA”) and 5300 million with
Inversiones Semgwa Limitada (CISL™L The revolving credit facilities have the following
chamctenistics:

e U5 Dollar-denominated.

¢ Mine month term, with the option to be extended up 10 four vears, Al the year-énd
2016 the term was renegotizted until December 2017,

*  Financing to cover working capital needs and general corporale purposes.

b Om December 22, 2005, [Enova entered imo a related party revolving credit facility in the
amount of S2 1906 million with Sempra Energy Holding X1 BV, ("SEH"L The revolving
credin Bacility has the following charactenstics;

« L5 Dollar-denominated.
Twelve-month term,
¢ Financing 1o cover working capital nesds and general corporate pusposes.

On August 1%, 2016 the Company repaid $120,5 million of this credit facility, including
corresponding interest. In October 2006, with the procesds from the Global Offening, the
outstanding balance of 5925 million was paid in full by the Company.

e On December 27, 2016, IEnova entered into two related panties revolving credit facilities for
520.0 million with Peruvian Opportunity Company 5. A, C. (“POC™) and $70.0 million with
ISLA, The credit facilities have the following characternstics;

« U5 Dollar-denominated.

¢ Twebae-month term, with an opiion o be exiended up fo four years,
*  Finamcing io cover working capital needs and general corporate purposes.
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128, Projects umfer oevelopmen

o, faww Nermoangs

'8

1.

Loz Rostene: |

In Jamsary 2013, Pemex announced that the first phase of the Los Ramones pipeline
project was assigned to and would be developed by [Enova’s joint veniure with Pemex
{Please refer o Mote 100 The project is a 114 Kilometers (Km) natural gas pipeline
{Los Ramones 1} with two compression stations, from the noribern portion of the state of
Tamaulipas bordering the United States 1o Los Ramones in the Mexican state of Nuevo
Letn. The copacity i5 fully contracted under a 25-vear transportation Services agreement
with Pemex denomanated in Mexican Pesos, with a contract rate based on the U5, Dollar
investmentd, sdjusted anmually for inflation and Muciuation of the exchange rae. The
pipeline portion of the project began operations ot the end of 2004, The

sations sarted operation af the end of 2005, The pipeline capacity is 2.1 billion of cubic
feet per day ("CFPD").

Las Ramoares Narre

On March 12, 2014, GAC, entered inio & partnership agreement with TAG Pipelines, 5.
de B L. de C. V. ("TAG Pipelines™, an affiliate of Mex Gas Intermnational, Pemex Gas y
Petroguimica Bésica (“PGPB's™) subsidiary, establishing the temis and conditions to
Jomily operate TAG Mone, 8, de R, L. de C. V., ("TAG None™).

TAG Norte will develop the Los Ramones None project, which consists of a 440 Km
pipehine system and two compression siatsons between the nmunicipality of Los Ramones,
MNuevo Ledn and San Luis Polosi, with an investment of approximately 51.3 10 515
billion.

TAG Mone concarrently entered inbe an inegrated iransportation service of natural gas
apreciment with PGPE for alll the capacity of the Los Ramones Norte system, with a 25-
year tevm from the date of commercial operation. The pipeline capacity is 1.4 billion of
CFPL.

In Febroary 2006, Los Ramones More project began commercial operations.
Frgorparation of sew Partiers in TACG Norwe Holding, X e R L de ©. V. jdoini Veatare)

On March 26, 2015, Pemex, through its affiliaie PMI. Holdings, B. V. {(“FPMI™),
announced the execution of an agreement with BlackRock and First Beserve in which
BlsckRock and First Reserve acquired a combined interest of 45-percent of TAG MNorte
Holding, 5. de B, L, de C. V. ("TAG Nore Holding™), GAC, a subsidiary of [Enova, bolds
a 50 percent interest in TAG Nome Holding which constrscted the project known as Los
Ramones Norte,

b, Enerpia Sierro Jweres

Sale of 50 percent of the EXJ project

On April 18, 2004, the Company, through its subsidiary CSJ, entered into a purchase and
sale agreement with InterGen International N, V., (“InterGen') with respect to the 30
percent of the membership nteresis of Energla Siema Juirez, 5. de R L. de C. V.'s
(“ESI") equity (Company responsible for the ES) project). This transaction was
completed on July 16, 2014, The Company recognizes ES) as an mvestment i joint
veniune and acepunts for ils ownership share by the equity meihod. Please refer to Nobe
1.2 For more details of this transaction.
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i Project Flearciag Agreement for the ER) profect

On Jane 12, 2004, ES) entered indo a project financing agreement for 5239 8 million with
aterm of 18 years after the date of commenoeimsen of commercial operation in June 2015,
The financing inclodes the granting of certain guaraniees in favor of lenders and providers
of coverage. Mease refer to Mote 1028 for more details of the project financing,

fit, Finameing of pregect s walve aoded

On Juns 12, 2004, ES) entered o a current account simple 1oan contract with Samtander
For an amount of up to 34550 million Pesos (approximately 5350 millson U5, Dollars
hastorical} o finange the valus added tax (“VAT™) of the ESJ project. Please refer to Note
102 for more details.

i Bepinning of commerciol aperaiion of the 257 projecr

In April 2015, Phase | of the Enengia Siema Judrez wind project, operated by ESJ, began
commercial operations in Tecate, Baja California, México, Phase 1 of the project is the
Comparny s 30 percent joint venture with InterGen B, % and has a 155 MW capacity,

Sonora pipeline

In October 2012, Gassductos de Aguapricia, 5. de B. L. de C. V. ("GAP™) was awarded wo
contrngts by the Comisidn Federal de Eleciricidad (“CFE™) with two contragts o build and
operate an approximately 835 Km aatural gas pipeling network connecting the Nonbwestemn
Mexican states of Sonora and Sinaloa (“MNonbwest gas pipeline”, alio known as the “Sonors
Pipeeline™} 1o the 1.5, interstate pipeline, The Sonora pipeling is comprised of two segments;
the first one (Sasabe — Guaymas), has an approximate length of 305 Km, 36-inch diameter
pipeling with 770 million cubic feet per day ("Mmcfd”) of transportation capacity; and the
second one (Guayemas — EI Ono), has an approximate length of 330 Km, and 30-inch pipelime
with 310 Mmcfd of transportation capacity.

On Augusi 18, 2014, CFE granted a compliance certification for the Sdsabe ~ Puerto Libertad
sepment construction. The first 220 Km, of the first sepment were pul inio operation in the
founth quarter of 2014, The second 285 Km of the first segment (Pueno Libenad - Guaymas),
were put inbo operation in the third quarter of 2005, The second segment (Guaymas - El Oro)
is estimated o be put o operation in the second quarter of 2007, The Company estimates
ik wotal cost of the Senora pipeline will be approximately $1.0 billion, The capacity of the
Sanora pipeling i1s contracted by CFE under two 25-yvear firm contracts denominasted in L5,
Dollars,

(Wimaga - F1 Enciro profect

In December 2004, GAP, entered mio the Ojinaga pipeline natural gns tansportalion servioes
agreement with the CFE, which has a tema of 25 years. The CFE contracted 100 percent of
the transportation capacity of the Ojinaga pipeline, equal to 1.4 billioa CFPD. GAP will be
responsible for the development, construction and operation of the 42-inch pipeline, with a
length of approximately 205 Km and estmated cost of 330000 million, which is expected w
begin operations in the first half of 2017,
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Sar Fsidre = Ramdayuca project

During 2015, the Company, through ies subsidary GAP, was declared winner of the CFE
tender for o natural gas transporiation controct through a pipeline from San Isidro o
Samalayuca in the State of Chihuabua, Such project consists of a header facility with a
capacity of 3 billwon CFPD and a 23 Km pipeline with a capacity of 1,135 Mmcfd of nafural
gas. The system will supply natural gas to the Norte [ Combined Cycle Power Plant and will
interconnect with the following systerms: Gasoductos de Chiluahua, Tarmbumara Pipeline and
the Samalayuca-Sisabe pipeline. The estimated investment i $108.0 million and the project
is expected w begin operations in the first quaner of 2017, The contrsct maturity with CFE
will be for 25 vears.

Ligreefercrion prajec

Crunng March 2015, the Company, together with its affiliate [Enova Marketing, 5. de R. L.
de C.V. ("IEncva Marketing™ formerly, [Enova LNG, 5. de B. L. de C. V., announced the
execution of a “Memorandum of Understanding™ (“Memorandum™) with a subsidiary of
Pemex, for collaboration in the development of a natural gas liquefaction project at Energla
Costa Azul, 5. de B, L, de C. V. ("ECA”), ECA is a subsidiary of 1Enova and is a liquefied
nataral gas ("LMG™) receipt, storage and regasification facility, boecated in Ensemada, Baja
California, Mexico, The Memorandum defines partner participation in the liquefaction
progect, mcluding the developmend, structunmg and the sermes under which Pemex may becomss
& cliem and‘or investor,

Ramal Empalme pipeline profect

In May 2016, IEnova entered into a natural gas transportation service agreement with CFE for
& 21 wear term, denominated in LS. Dollars, for 100 percent of the ransportation capacity of
the Ramal Empalme pipeline, equal to 226 mmeBdy of natural gas, The Company will be
respomsible for the development, construction and operation of the 20 Km pipeline which is
expected 1o begin operations in the first half of 2017,

Murine pipeline

I Jume 200 6, Infracstroctura Marina del Golfo, 5. de B L. de C. V. ("IMG™), the joint venturne
formed between IEnova and TransConada Corporapon (“TransCanada™),  whereby
TransCanada has &) percent interest m the partnership and [Enova owns the nemaining 440
percent imlenesl, resulted the winner of a bidding process and emered into a 25-vear natural
s transporiation service agreement with the CFE, m connection with the bid issued by CFE
for the Souwih Texas — Tuxpan pipeline. IMG shall be responsible for the development,
construction, and operation of the 42-inch pipeline, with a capacity of 2.6 hillion CFPD and
a length of approximmtely 200 Km. The project will require an investment of approximatehy
52.1 hillion and is expected 1o begin operations in the tast quarter of 20018, Please refer Note
1003,

Lt Rimorasa Solare Project and Tepezalid T Solar Project

O Sepiember 28, 2006, the Company was declaned winmer of two solar progects, bided by
Centro Maciomal de Control de Energia (“CENACET), La Rumorosa Solar Complex (~La
Rumoresa™) and Tepezald 11 Solar Complex (*Tepezald 117) with an approximate capacity of
41 MW, located in Baja California, Mexico and 100 MW capacity, located in Apuascalientes,
Mexico, respectively. The Teperali 11 project will be developad and constructed
callaboration with Trina Solar who will have a 10 percem stake in this project,
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Thie Company, through its subsidiaries will be responsible for the development, construction,
operation and maintenance of these projects, including the permits, rghts, Anancing and land
acquisiion. The estimated mvestment for these projects s $150.0 mallion and the beginning
of commercial operations is expected w0 occur in the second quaner of 2019,

2% Ohher Financing

I3

In June 2014, IEnova entered inte an agreement for a 52000 million, U5 Dollas-
denominated, three-year corporate revolving credit facility to Anance working capital and for
general comporate purposes, The lender is Santander, As of December 31, 2004, IEnova had
51450 million of puistanding bormmowings supported by the facility, and available unused
balance credit fine was 5330 million.

In August 2004, [Enova entered inte an agreement for a S100.0 mallion, LS. Dollas-
denormanated, three-year corporate revolving coadit facility o finance working capital and for
peneral conporate purposes. The lender is SMBC. As of Diecember 31, 2014, [Enova had 551.0
million of outstanding bormowings supported by the facility, and nvailabde unused balance on
the credit line was 549.0 million.

L2 Chhers maiters

i

Ly Activitles

Faywremt of finarcial derivenives el for hedging parposes

In September 2005, the Company entered mio denvative transactions o hedge future interest
payments associabed with forecasted borrowings, In 2007, the onginal hedged ifems became
probable of not occurring due to a change in the Company s external borrowing needs. As of
December 31, 2004, there wis one remmaining inleres! mle swap agreement under which
[Enowa receved a vanable eterest rate (three=month LIBOR) and pand o fixed imerest rate of
5 percent. The oniginal terms of the swap expire on December 15, 2027, On September 16,
2005, the Company, through an early wermination clause, made a payment in the amount of
529,85 million and as a result, such derivative was cancelled,

Energy Reforss

O December 20, 2013, México's president enacted constitutional reform with respect to laws
governing the énergy sector which was approved by the national congress and the majority of
state conpgresses. The Reform modifies Aricles 25, 27 and 28 of the Mexican Constitution,
allowing for privale investment in the following aress: explorston and production of
hydrocarbons, petrochemicals, refining, transponiation, storage and distribution of petroleum
products and power transmission and disiribution. On August 11, 2004, the secondary
legislation derived from the reform was enacted and on October 31, 2014, its most relevant
regulations were published in the Federal Oificial Gazette. 20015 and 2016 witpessad the
implementation of the Reform since particular regulation (Gemeral  Administrative
Procedures} regarding natural gas, electricity, rencwables and liquids were isswed by the
Energy Repulatory Commission. Centro Macional de Control del Gas Mataral ("CENAGAS™)
and Centro Macional de Control de Energla ("CEMACE™) started functioning as the
Independent System Operators of the natural gas and national electricity systems (Sistrangas
and Matbonal Electrical System), and Pemex and Comisidn Federnl de Electricidad ("CFE™)

had imiponant corpasmate restruclunes,

The Company operates in the encrgy sector. The Company is onganized in two separsicly manapgoed
reportable segments, Gas and Power, Amounts labeled as Corporate consist of parent company activities
at |Enowa {Please refer o Mote 28).



The Gas segment develops, owns and operates, of holds intereus in, naral gas, liquefied petrolesm gas
(“LPG™) and ethane pipelines, storage facilities for LNG and LPG, transportation, destnbuteon and sale
of matural gas in the states of Baja Califormia, Sonora, Simaloa, Coahuila, Chibuahua, Durango,
Tamaulipas, Chiapas, San Luis Polosi, Tabasco, Veracruz, Nuevo Ladn and Jalisco, Mexico, It also owns
and operates a LMG termamal in Baja Califiomia, Mexico for imporiing, stonng and regasifving LNG,

The Power sepment owns and operaies a natural gas fired power plant that includes two gas furbines and
ong steam wrbine, and bolds an inerest in a renewable energy project in o joint vemure in Baja
Califomia, Mexico, using wind resources 1o serve & costumer im the UL 5. (Please refer o Nole 1.2.8.)

According to the relevant event mentioned in Note 1.2.3, and 1.2.6.. the Company has the following new
activitkes;

i} Operation of five natural gas compression stations, one propans system in the states of
Chihoahisa, Muevo Ledn and Tamaulipas; and one storage station im the state of Jalisco,
Mexico,

i) A plant in Zapotlanee, Jalisco, Mexico where the Company remders transponation and
sornge of LPG services.

i} Transportation of cthane gas, in the states of Tabasco, Chiapas and Yeraomz, Mexico.

iv} Orperation of a wind farm with a capacity of 252 MW, located in the state of Nuevo Ledn,
Mexico,

The Company obmned the comesponding suborization from the Comissén Reguladora de Energia
(“CRE™) i oader to perform these activities.

Seasowality of operations. Customer demand in both Gas and Power segmends expenience seasonal
Nuctuations. For the Gas segment, the demand for natural gas service i higher in colder months, In the
case of the Power segment, the demand for power disinbution service i hagher during months with hot
weather.

131 s segarent
The Company's subsidiaries included in this reportable sepment are:

a. Ecogns México, 8. de R L. deC. V. ("BDD7) is engaged in the distribation and sale of nafural
gas for industrial, residential and commeercial use in three local distnbution zones: Mexicali
(serving the cty of Mexicali), Chibughoa {serving the citics of Chibuahua, Delicias,
Cuauhiémos and Andhuach and La Laguno-Durango (serving the cities of Tormedn, Gomez
Palacio, Lerdo and Durango).

During 19946, 1997 and 1999, the CRE, gramted ECO the first natural gas distribation penmits
for the bocal distribution zones of Mexicali, Baja California, Chibuahaa, Chihoahea and La
Laguna-Durango, under which ECCr receives, transports, delivers and sells natural gas
throwgh a pipeline system.

In May 200, the CRE approved the third five-year plan to ECOY for the bocal distribution
zones of Chiheahua, Chibwahua and Mexscali, Bajas Californie, and i June 2000 for the kecal
distribution zone of La Laguna-Durange. Additionally, in 2000, the CRE authorized an
adjustment to authorized wrifTs 10 be applied in the five-vear plan for the local distribution
zones of Chihwahua, Chihuabus and La Laguna-Durango, The five-vear plans do oot incleds
commitments regarding the minimum number of customers, As of December 31, 2006, 2015
and 2004, ECO had over 119000, 113,000 and 106,000 customers, respectively.
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PE Interational Canada, 5. de R. L. de C. V. (“PEI") is a subbolding company of the group.

Servicios DGM de Chihonahua, 5. A de C. V. ("SDGN™) provides adminisirative, and
operational services o other subsidiaries of the group,

Gasoducto Rosarito, 5. de B L. de C. V. ("GRO7) render senvices of trnsponation of natural
s, serving the energy requirements of Baja Califomis, México. GRO operates the Gasoducin
sysiem comprised of three natural gas papelines (Rosarie Moiniine, LANG Smoe and Yama
Lateral) and one 30,000 horse power (“HP™) compression station located in Baga California,
México, The wotal length of GRO system is approximately 302 Km, The system begins ai the
interconnection with the El Paso Nawral Gas Co. pipeline near Ehrenberg., Arizona, U 5.
(“MNorth Baja Pipeline”), and ends in southem Tijuana Baja California at the interconnection
with the Transportadora de Gas Natural de Baja California, 8. de B. L. de C, ¥V, ("TGN", a
subsidiary company) pipeline, The Mexican portion of the pipeline begins st the
interconnection in Algodones with the North Baja Pipeline and travels throwgh Mexicali and
Tecate, ending at the interconnection with TGN, These three pipelines operate under one
transporision permit isswed by the CRE.

Kozarite Mainfine, This system was originally placed in service in August 2002 1o supply
natural gas from the LS, o several power planis and industrial customers in the Baja
California, México markel. This system is a 30-inch diameter pipeline with a length of
approximately 225 Km and a designed ransportation capacity of 534 Mmcid,

LN Spaw: This system was completed in May 2008 and transports natural gas o the Bosariio
Moainline for delivery to power plants (o the Baja Califomia market. This system is a 42-inch
diameter pipeline with a length of approximately 72 Km and a designed transporiation
capacity of 2,600 Mmcfd,

¥ Lateral; This system was the latest addition to the GRO transportation sysiem and was
placed in service in March 2010 io transport natural gas 1o the Arizona border, This system is
a 12-inch diameter papeline with a length of approximately 5 Km and a designed transportation
copacity of 190 Mmefd,

TGN is engaged in the iransponation of natural gas in accordance with a permil issued by the
CRE, through a 45 Km, 3-inch pipeline with a designed transponation capacity of 940
Mmefd as permitted by the CRE. TGN interconnects with the GRO pipeline system in the
Tijuana, Baja California, México, area and extends north io interconnect with the San Diego
Gias & Electric Company (“SDG&EE", an unconsolidsted affiliate in ihe U, 5.) svsiem af the
Cay Mesa Invfemnadional border and southweest 1o the CFE"s 600 MW Presidente Juirer Power
Plant in Rosarite, Baja Califormia, México. The TGM pipeline system was placed in service
in June 2000, A 19 Km expansion 1o the TGN system began operations in May 2008,

IEmva Crasoductes México, 5. de B. L. de C. V. ("|Enova Gasoductos México™) is engaged
im the acquisition and subscription of any kind of participation in the capital stock of a vancty
of companies; its subsidianes are engaged in the compression, storage and transponation of
natural and propane gas a5 well a5 in rendering all kind of services related to such activitics,
mluding the coordimation, consulting and supervision af construction and development of
energy mirastmiciure projecs,

Sempra Compresidn México, 5, de B L de C. V. ("8CM") was incorporated on August 8,
2003, as a result of a spin-off of E| Paso Energy Marketing de México, Sde R. L. de C. V.
CEPEMM”) It is primanly engaged in the compression of natiral gas using coTmpression
equipment kcated in Naco, Sonora {also referred 1o as the Maco Compression Station),

In 2001, SCM entered into an agreement with PGPB to provide naturnl gas compression

services for a 20-vear peniod. The temm of the agreement may be extendsd up to five additional
years by mutual agreement between CM and PGPB.
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In 2004, SCM was merged with 1Enova Gasoductos México subsisting this last company.

GAP (formerly El Paso Gas Transmesson de México, 5. de B L. de C. V.}, o subsidiary of
[Enova Gasoductos México, was incorporated on July 4, 2000 and commenced operations on
November 20, 2002, GAP 15 prmarily engaged in the imnsponation of namral gas.

O July 19, 2003, GAP oldained its naturel gas iransportation permil from the CRE, The term
of the permit is for 30 vears and is renewable every 15 years,

O Jume 28, 2002, GAP entered into 8 25-year gas iranspomalion agreement with EPEMM, a
related party until April 2000, The pipeline starts at the border of Anzona, U 5., and exiends
o the power plant called "Maco-Mogales”, which is owned by Power and Energy Naco
Mogales, 5. A_de C. V., located in Apgua Pricta, Sonora, México

Currently, GAP 15 also in charge of the construction and operation of the Sonoma Pipeline,
Cyjinaga ~ El Encino pipeline and the San Isidro - Spmalayuca. (Mease refer to Note 1.2.8.
subsaction ¢, d, and ).

IGH iz engaged in the acquisition and subscription of any paricipation in the share capital of
VIRFOUS COMpanies,

Om Apral 30, 2010, KGH acquired a 50 percent equity interest in GaIC, a jointly controlbed
Company with PGPB,

O Seplemiber 26, 2006, IGH scquired ihe remaining 30 percent of nterest in GdC, therefore,
it pow holds | 00-percent of GadC s shares,

[Enowa, 5. de B L. de C. V. is engaged in providing administrative and operating services o
other subsidianies in the growp.

Druring 2015, this entity has been hiquidated.

ECA, owns and operates a LNG regasification and storage facility (“LNG Tenminal™) in
Ensenada, Baja California, México,

Dumng 2007, ECA obtuned all necessary operating permits from Mexican regulatory
agencies and operations commenced in May 2008,

In December 2009, ECA completed the construction of a nitrogen injection facility o allow
customers 1o deliver LMNG with a greater range of gross heating valee, The nitrogen injectbon
facility produces nitrogen that can be mixed with natural gas when it is necessary 1o bower the
heating conient o meet pipeline gas quality standards in México and the U, 5.

ECA entered imto a 20-year firm storage service agreement with Sempra LMG Intemational,
LLC ("SLNGI™, a related party in the U.5.) through IEnova Marketing for which SLNGI is
commitied 10 lease 50 percent of the total storge capacity of the LNG Terminal. The
apreement commensed in May 2008 after the LNG Terminal was placed in service, In April
2009, the shipper assigned the remainmg contracted storage capacity 0 other mdependent
third parties.

[Enova Marketing provides LNG services related 1o the purchase and sale of LNG and nagural

gas. In May 2008, IEnova Marketing began operating poantly with ECA. Up to that date, the
activities of [Enova Marketing were primarily focused on obtaining necessary permits,

21

In November 2009, [Enova Marketing emered into an agreement with SLNGI, whereby
SLMNGI agreed (o deliver and sell LNG cargoes to [Enova Marketing from startup date of the
LNG Termimal, Accordingly, [Enova Markeling entered into iranspomation and storape
CApacIly SeTVICE agréements 1o commercialize the LNG,

Theveafter, on January 1, 2013, SENGI and IEnova Marketing entered into a LNG sale and
purchase, transporiation and supply apreement expining on August 20, 2029, The minimum
anmual quantity comemitied for delivery is 188 million Brilish Thermal Units (“MmBus"™)
Under the temas of the agreement, SLNGI will be responsible for the transponation o the
receiving terminal of all quantities of I NG sold and delivered from the delivery point to the
receiving terminal and, in the other hand; IEnova Marketing will take LMNG in onder o mect
its purchase commitments,

As of September 30, 2014, the agreement between [Enova Marketing and JP Morpan Venfunes
Energy Corp (“JFM"} concluded and o new agreement for gas renderad. Please refer 1o Mole
24114,

GdC is engaged in providing natural gxs and LG transpotation services through Gasodectos
de Tamaulipas, S de R. L. de C. ¥, ("GdT"), Gasoducto del Noroeste, 5. de B. L. de C.V.
CGDN and TDF, 8. de B. L. de C.V. ("TDEF), respectively, it also stores jas for the supply
of LPG, though Transportadora del Mone SH, 5. de R. L. de C. V. ("TDN", TDF"s holding
company). These activities are regulated by the CRE, GdC is also engaped os well in the
ethane gas transporiation service throupgh Gasodwctos del Sureste, 8. de B L. de C. V.
GDE")

GadC has to follow the rulings authorized by the CRE, Those contain among other things,
general service provision condiions for the service supply, il limas, the approved
maximum revenues and the route followed by the gas pipeline proposed by the companies.
The construction program and established ivestments in each permil must have been
developed by GdC. In addition, the nalings requine that a review of the maomam revenuee be
performed every five years 1o make any adjustments required regarding revenue and the
rebated tariffs,

Om July 15, 1997, the CRE 1ssued a ruling granting GdC permil to transport aatusal gas for a
period of 30 years. The permit may be renewed for additional periods of 15 years; also the
ruling authorized GAC to construct the Samalayuca Pipeling, which has been operating since
1997, In addition, on October 15, 2001, the CRE issued a ruling authoremg GAC 1o constroct
the compeession siation Gboria a Dios, which was completed and commenced operations
during 2001,

On Seprember 12, 2002, the CRE issued a ruling granting GdT permin to transport natural gas
for a 30 yvears period. The permit may be renewed for sdditional periods of 15 years; also the
ruling authorzed GAT to construct the San Femando Pipeline, which commenced operations
during 2003,

Om Cctober 3, 2006, the CRE isswed a ruling granting TDF, the operating subsidiary of TDN
permit o tmnspor LPG (or a 30 vear penod. The permil may be renewed for addibional
periods of 15 years.

O February 13, 2002, the CRE issued a nuling granting TDF, permit to stone LG throwgh a
LPG supply plant permit for a 30 year period, The permal may be renewed For additional
penods of 13 vears.

On April 18 2013, the CRE issued a ruling granting TAG Pipelines, permit to transport natural

gas, on May 23, 2003, ransferred from TAG 1o GDM, the ruling for a 30 years period
beginning on the commencial operation date,
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132 Power segmend

The Company*s subsidiories mehuded in this reporable segment are:

a.  TDM are engaged in the peneration and sale of electnety. In Augusy 2001, TDM received a
favarable resalution by the CRE o genemie and expon glecimicity.

On January 1, 2013 (with an effective date of Jansary 1, 2001 2), Sempra Generation (“SGEN")
and TDM entered into a new commercial agreement, for which TDM delivers all of its power
output directly 1o the California’s Independent System Operator power grid (“CAISO™) in the
L. 5. at the México border, and SGEMN provides marketing, scheduling and dispaich services
for TDM.

b, In Cciwober 2003, ES) began the consiruction on the 135-MW first phase of the wind
gencration propect, which is fully contracted by SDG&E and starnted operatsons in June 200 5.
The ESJ project is designed to provide up to 1,200 MW of capacity if fully developed. In June
20104, the ESJ wind project entered imbe an B8-year, $240.0 million koan to finance the
constnaction project and withdrew 3820 mallion under the loan agreement. The loan
agreensent also provides for a 5317 million ketter of credin fecility. ES) also entered o a
separate Mexican Peso-denominated credit facility for up 1o 3350 million US. Daellar
equivabent 1o fund the VAT of the project. {Please refer o Note 10.2.)

€. Wenuka's operation of a wind farm with a capacity of 252 MW,

133, Carparale segmen

The Corporate Segment holds interests in pipeline, transportation, distribution, regasification,
natural gos sale, and power generalion operations in México,

a. Sempra Servicios Energéticos, S, de R. L, de C. V. ("55E") is a holding company that
invests in affiliated companies in the electricity and natural gas indusiries.

b.  Fundacidn [Enova, A C., was esiablished as a non-profil organization,

2, Signifieant sceounting palicies

Simtement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in sccordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Beard (“IASB"),

Baiis af preparation

The Consolidaied Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for cerain
financial instruments, related o business combinaion that are measured al revalued amounis of fair
values at the end of reporting period, as cxplained in the accounting policies below, (Please refer to Mote

LI

2

i

Histerriead cosi

Historical cost is generally based on the fair valoe of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services,

Furir walie

Fair vabus (“FV™) i3 the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hiability
in an orderly transaction between market participants ol the messurement date, regardbess of
whether that price ks directly observable or estimated using anmber valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset of a labilay, the Company takes into account the

charactenistics of the asset or lability if market participams would take those charactensiics into
account when pricing the asset or labaliny at the measurement date.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements sre categorized inte Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs t© the far value measurements are observahle
andd the significance of the mputs 1o the fair value measurement in its entirety, which ane
described s follows:

#  Level | mputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for sdentical assets o
linbilities that the entity can access ot the measuremeent date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inpuls, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
ohservable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabiliy,

L3 Conselidation of Firancial Statements
250 Cosvsolickerion beix

The Consolidated Financial Statements of IEnova incorporate the Financial Statements of all
entities where il maintains controd (its subsidianes), An mvestor controls an investee ifand only il
the investor has all of the following elemenis:

e Power over the invesiees;
Exposure, of rights, v variable returns from its involvement with ihe invesiee, and
#  The abality touse its power over the myvestee to alflect the amount of the Invesior's refurms.

The Company reassesses wheiher of nol controls an endity if the facts and circumstances indicaie
that there are changes to one or more of the three control chements that were listed above.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries o bring their
accounting palickes i line with the sccounting policies.

All micreompany tinsactions, balonces, equity, income and expenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

[Enova’s equity ownership in subsidianes for the years ended December 31, 2006 s as follows,

Crnmpany Cramrrihip peacrmsage
1l
oy Noporeml;

Ecopas México, 5. de B L. de C. V. 106000
PE International Canadd, 5, de B, L. de C. V. G800
Servicis OGN de Chihuahua, 5. A, de C. W, 104, CH
Ceasoducts Rosarite, 5. de L L. de C. V. 10600
Transportadora de Gas Natural de Baja California,

SdeRB L &C. V. 10000
IEmova Crasaductos México, 5. de B L de T, V. 1040, CH0
Sempra Compresion Méxice, S de B L. de C. V. (Merged im 20014 with

IEnova Gasodwcios México) 100,00
Gasoducto de Aguaprietn, 5. de B, L. de C. V. 104, CHD
IEnova Gasoductos Holding, 5. de B L. de C. W, 10000
IEmova, S.de R, L. de C. V., 100,00
Energia Cosia Azul, 5. de B. L_de C. V. ond Subsideary 10400
IEmova Marketing, 5. de R. L. de C. V.

(Formerly [Enova LNG, 5. de B. L. de T, V) 1000, 04
Ductos e Infraestrectura bMarina, 5. de B, L. de C. V. 1 CH0Y CH
IEnova (ras, 5. de B, L. de C. Y. 103,00
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Company Crwnership perormtage

113

Gasoducios de Chibuahua, 5. de R, Lo de C. V.

Gasoductos de Tamaulipas, 5. de B. L. de C. V. [0
Gasoductos del Moroeste, 5. de R L. de C, V. 1030 (eh
Transposiadorn del Nore SH, 5. de B L. de C. V. L LEE
TOF. S.deR. L. de C. WV, [ELEET
Ductos v Energéticos del Sureste, 5. de B. L. de C. V., 10,0
Ciasoductos del Sureste, 5. de R L. de C. W, L
Giasoductos Servicios Subbolding, 5. de R, L. de C. V. 1 00y
Gasoducios Ingenieria, 5. de R. L. de C. V. [0
Gasoducios Servicies Corporatives, 5. de R L. e C. W, (L
Gasoductos Servicios Corporativos v de Administracidn, 5. de B L. de C. V. 10000

Fower segment;
Termocléctnea de Mexacali, 5. de B L. de C. V. and Subssdinry [E L]
Controladora Siera Judrez, 5, de B L. de C. ¥, [ LELT]
Fisterra Encrgy Netherlands 111 BV, 1001,
Fisterra Emnergy Metherlands IV BV, ([LIEE
Fisterra Energy Méxbeo [IL 8. de R. L. de C. V. iR
Fisterra Energy México IV. 5. de . L_de C. V. [ELEE
Ventika, SAPLde C. ¥, ikl
Ventika I, S.APL de C. Y. [ELEL]
Corperraly segmend:

Semipra Servicios Enerpéticos, 8. de R_ L. de C. V. o987
Fundacion [Enova, A C. 100,00

As further described in Mote 1002, on July 16, 2004 C8J sold 50 percent of the social pants in its
imdirect subsidiary ESJ); accordingly, the assets and lishilities of ES) were derecognized and
heginning on that date the imvestment is reconded using the equity method.

As descnbeed in Mote 104, On September 26, 2016, a joinl venture partner coninbuted cash
represeniing 50 percent of the oquity interest in DEM, therefore, beginmang on that date the
imvestment is reconded using the eguity method.

ClassifTomtton of costs amd expenses

The costs and expenses are presented sccording 1o their function because this 15 the practice of the
industry in which the Company operates,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist mainly of bank deposits in checking accounts and shoni-term
investmienis that are highly liquid and easily conveniible into cash, mature within three months as of their
acquisiiion date, and are subject 1o bow risk of material changes in valoe. Cash is siated s nominal value
and cash equivalents are valued at fair value, any fluctuations in value are recognized in the Consolidated
Statements of Profit.

Restricted cash
Restricted cash comprises the amounts of cash of escrows used by the Company io make payments of

cenain operating costs, which are guaranteed until the completion of the projects, It also comprises the
restricied cash under the project financing structure.
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29,

Shrort=rermn fnvesimenty

Short-term investments consist mainly in money market fiands, highly liquid and casily convertible inio
cash, maturing within three months as of their acquisition date, which are subject o immatenial value
change msks and are maimdaimed for purpeses other than operation.

MNartarral pas lventories

Ligquefied natural gas invendory 15 recondsd at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs of
imventosies are determined on a first-in-first-out basis. Met realizable value represenis the estimated
selling price For inveniories bess all estimated costs necessary (o sell,

Lensing

281, Lexses are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the kease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the benefits, All other leases are classified as operating leases.

282, The Comperny as lessor

Amounts payvablbe by lessees under flinamce beases are recognized & receivables at the amound of
the Company's net imvestment in the leases. Finance lexse income is distributed in the accounting
periods o reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the met invesiment of the Company with
respect to leases.

The rental income under operating leases is recopnized using the straight-line method over the
lease term. Initial direct costs iscwrmed in negotiating and armanging an operating bease are added
1o the carrving amount of the leased asset and is recognized using the straight-line method over
the lease term.

293 Company o fmsved

The assets held under finance beases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair vaboe at
ihe inception of the bease, or il lower, the present valee of the mimimum bease paymems, The
corresponding liabality o the lessor is included in the Comsolidated Siatements of Financial
Position as & finamee lease obligation.

Lease pavments are apportioned bepaeen finance changes and reduction of the lease obligation so
%5 bo achieve a constant rate of interest on fhe remaining balance of the hability. Finance charges
are charged dinsctly against income, unbess they can be dimectly anmbutable wo qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Companys sccounting policy for
borrowing costs (Please refer 1o Mote 2,18), Contingent rends ang recognized as expenses in the
periods in which they are ncurrad,

Rent payments under operating leases are expensed wsing the siraighi-ling method during the
period cormesponding to bease more representative unless another systematic basis of asessment
io reflect the pattern of the benefits of beasing for the user mone accursely. Contingent rents ane
recognized as cxpenses in the periods in which they are incurmed.

In the event thal income incentives réceived for hobding operatimg beases, such incentives are
recognized as a labiliny, The aggregate benefit of incentives 15 recognized s a reduction of rental
expense on 3 straight ling basis unbess another systematic basis is more representative of the time
paitern in which economic benefis from the leased asset are consumed onling,
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208 Twvestmenis in folmt vemiures

A joint venlure i 3 joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights 1o the net azsels of the jomt arrangement. Joint contral is 1he comractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the panses sharing control,

The Company repars is interesis in point venture using the ogquiny method.

The results, assets and liabiliies of the pont venture are incorporated in these Consodidated Financial
Statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portson thereof, i
classafved as held for sale, in which case i s accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5, New-curren! axsels
Freldd fow seale end diveomiimued aperarions. Under the equity method, an investrem in o joim venlure s
initially recognired in the Consolidated Sunement of Financial Position at cost amd adjusted thereafter 1o
recognize the Company's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income (“OCT”) of the joint
wendure, When the Company's share of losses of a joind venture exceeds the Company”s interest in that
joimt veniure (which inchsdies amy long-term nfenests that, in substance, form part of the Company "s net
investment in the print venture), the Company discontinses recognizing its share of funber losses.
Additional bosses ane recognized only 1o the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constnuctive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joind veniure,

An investment I a joint ventune is acoounted for using the equity method from the date on which the
investes becomes a joint venture, On acquisiteon of the mvestment in & joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the mvestment over the Company's share of the net Fur valoe of the wentifinble assets and
linbilites of the investee is recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrving amount of the
invesimient. Any excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifinble assets and
labilines over the cost of the investment, afler reassessment, is recognized immedmtely in profit in the
wear in which the investment is sequingd.

The requirements of TAS 389, Finmnciof nstravsenis: recogiriifon and meauresiend, are applied io
determine whether it is necessary to recognize any impaiment loss with respect to the Companys
investment in a joint venfure, When nécessary, the entine carmying amount of the mvestment (including
goodwill) i tested for mmipairment in accordance with 1AS 36, as a single asset, by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value i use and Hair value bess costs 10 sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment [0 recognized fornis part of the carrying amount of the invesiment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss 15 recognized m accordance with IAS 36 1o the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investmient subsequently increases,

The Company discontinues the use of the equity methad from the date when ihe invesiment ceases (o be
a poant verture, of when the imvestment is classified as held for sabe. When the Company retains an inberest
in the former podnt vemtuge and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Company measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the carmying amouni of the joint venture ot the date the
equity method was discontmued, and the far value of any retaimed iverest and any procesds from
disposing of a part inferest in the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Company accounts for all amounts previously recognized
in OCT in relatson b thal jomt venture on the same basis as would be regquimed if that point venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or labilities. Therefore, if a gam or loss previoushy recognized in
OCT by that joint venture would be reclassified to profit o the disposal of the refated assets or labilities,
the Company reclassifies the gain or boss from equity 1o profil (25 a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.

The Company continues to use the equity method when an iwesiment in an associaie becomes an
investment ina joint venture or an investmsent in 8 joing veniure beoomes an investment in an associabe.
There is mo remeasurement bo fair valoe upon such charges in ownsership interests,
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When the Company reduces its ownership interest in a joint venture bul the Company continues o use
the equaty method, the Company reclassafies 1o profil the proportion of the gain or ks that had previowsly
been recognized in OC1 regarding that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would e
reclassified w profit on the dispesal of the refated assets or habalitics.

When the Company conducts transactions with joint ventures, non- realized profit and losses ane
eliminated ai the Company”s ownership percemage in the joint venture,

Busimess coubimation

Acquisitions of busimesses are acoounted for using the acquisinon method. The consideration ransfemad
in a business combination ks measured an e value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
Fair valwes of the assets iransferred by the Company, liabilities meusred by the Company to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests 1ssued by the Company i exchange for controd of the
acquires. Acquisition-=related cosis are generally recognized in profil oF loss as incurmed,

At the acquisition date, the idemtifiable assets soquired and the leabilities assumed are recognized af their
fair value, except for:

o [Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assels or liabilities related to employes benefi
amangements ane recopnized and measured in accordance with LAS 12 feoome Taves ol L45
19 Emplavee Bencfits, respectively:

#  Lighilines or equity instruments related o share-based payment arrangements of the scquines
of share-based payment arrangements of the Company endered into to replace share-hased
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with [FRS 2 Share baved
pervments, At the scquisition dste the Company does ool have share-based pavments
associated with acquired businesses; and

»  Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as beld for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
crrremt Assets Held for Sale and Disconimeed Cperations are messured in accondance with
that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any pon-
contrelling intenrests in the acquiree, and the fair valee of the acguirer's previously held equity mienest in
the scquiree (if any) over the net of the scquisition-dale amounts of the identifiable assets scquired and
the liabilities sssumed. If, after reassessment, the nel of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transfemred, the amount of
any non=controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acgquerer’s previously held interest
in the acquirce {if any), the excess is recognized immediately in profit as o bargain parchase gain.

Mon-controlling mieresis that ane present ownershap imteress and entitle their holders 1o a proporiionats
share of the Company”s net asseis in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or o1 the non-controlling mierests” proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquires’s
identifiable ned assets. The choice of messurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Orther twpes of non-controlling interesis are measured ot fir value or, when applicable, on the basis
specifiod in another IFRS,

When the consideration transferred by the Company in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the confingent conskleration is
measured ot its acquisition-date fair value and included as pan of the considerstion transferred in a
business combinatsen. Changes m the [ir value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement perind adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with comesponding adjustments against
goodwill, Measurement period adjustmients ane adjusimens that anse from addinonal informabon
obtained during the *measurement period” (which cannot exceed one vear from the acquisition date) about
fiwcts and circumsiances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Thee subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
a5 messurement period adjstments depends on how the contingenl consideration 15 classified,
Contimgent consideration that is classified as equity &5 pot remseasured ot subssquent neporiing dates ansd
its subsequent setibement is accounted for within equity, Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset of a libility s remeaswred ai subsequent reporting dales in sccordance with [AS 3% or [AS 37
Provizions, Comitngent Liohilines and Contingenl Asseis, a8 appropriate, with the corresponding gain o
loss being recognized in profit.

When a business combination s achieved in stages, the Compamy”s previously held equity mierest in the
acquires is remeasured §o its soquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, 15 recognized
in profit, Amounts anising from interesis in the acquiree prios 1o the acquisition date, that have previously
been recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit where such treatment would be
appropriate if that inberest were disposed of.

If the initial sccounting for & business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination oocurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
pceounting s mosmplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusied during the measurement perisd (see
abowe), or additional assets or libilitses are recognized, to reflect new information obtained aboul facts
and circumstances that existed at the ocquisition date that, if known, would have alffected the amounts
recognized at that date.

Croodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company”s cash-generating
units that are expectad to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-gencrating unit to which poodwill has been allocated & tested for impairment annually, on
Dictober 1, or morne freguently when there is indication that the umit may be impaired. 17 ihe recoverable
armpotint of the cash-generating wnat is fess than its camying ameant, the impainment loss is albocated first
b redwce the camying amount of any goodwill allecated to the unit and then o the pdher assets of the unit
pro rats based on the carrving amount of each asset in the unit, Any impatrment loss for goodwill s
recognized direcily in profit or loss m the Consolidated Sintement of Profit.  An impaimment loss

recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent persods,

On disposal of the rebevam cash-generating unit, the atributable amount of goodwill is mcluded in the
determanation of the prodit on disposal.

213 Carbon alfowances

The Company has elected o occount for carbon allowances, or emission allowances, {(“CAs”) under the
invemory model, wherely CAs are measured al a weighted-average cost. CAs allocated by a regulatory
body will have a zero cost basis, CAs purchased at suction or fiom other market participanis are recondad
at their purchase price, and CAs pequired when the Company elects 1o physically settle carbon futures
are recorded based on ihe setilement price, The weighied-average cost of CAs consumed (i.e.. carbon
emitied while power is penerated) is charped to cost of revenue of cach reporting period. The CAs”
carmying vahee 15 evalusted under the “lower of cost or net realizable value™ approach. The CAS mventory
is classified as other cument assets or other non-cumment asseds i il is expected io sumrender the inveniory
within the term greater than one year beginning at the Consolidated Statements of Financial Positson
dme. The CAs’ cash mflows and outflows are classified as an operatimg activity in the Consoladated
Statements of Cash Flows, (Please refer Mote 20),

214,
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216,

Property, plant and equipment

Froperty, plant and equipment are presented in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and
recorded ot acquisition cosl, less any subseque accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumailated
impairment bsses, Acquisition costs include kabor, material costs and construction service agreements.

The Company recognizes decommizsioning liabalities for the present value of Labilines of future costs
expected to be incurmed when assets ane retired from service, if the retirement process is begally required
and if o reasonable estimate of fnir value can be made.

Property, plant and equipment include major expenditures for improvemenis and replacements parts,
which extend useful lives or incréxse capacity. Routing maintenance costs are expensed s incurmed.

Froperties in the course of construction fior production, supply or adminisirative purposes are camied at
cost, [ess any recognized impaiment loss, Cost includes professional fees and, for qualilving assets,
borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Company s accounting palicy, Such properties ane
classified o the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use, Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as ofhér property asséls, comnenoes when
the assets are ready for their intended use,

Land 15 not deprecialed. The buildings, equipment and other assels are stated at cost less accumalated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

Depreciation B recognized o write-off the cost of assets (other than tand and properties umder
construction] less their residual values over their usefuol lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated usefial lives, ressdual values and depreciation method ane reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounied lor on a prospective basis,

Amn item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no fubure cconomic
benefits ane expectad 1o arise from the contimeed use of the asset, Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and s recognized i profit.

Inravrgible assers

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognized separately from poodwill ane
initially recognized of their fair value o the acquisiton dme (whech s regarded 22 thetr cost). Subsequent
o initial recognition, intangible asses acquired in a business combination are reported &t cost less
accurmalated amonization and sccumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as imangible asers
that are acquired separately,

FTmpairmiens of tengible and infangible assers fother ran goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrving amounts of 1is tangible and
intangible asels 10 determing whether there 15 any indication that those assets have sulffered an
impairment bss. 15 any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in onder
to-determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any ). When it is nol possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimales the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
umit b which the asset belongs, When a ressonable and consistent basis of albocation can be identifiad,
corporate assets are also ollocated to individual cash-penerabing units, or otherwise they are allocated o
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasenable and consistemt allocation bhasis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite usefal lives and inlangible assets not vet available for use ans tested for
imipairment at beast anmuslly, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impained.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of Bir value less couts 1o sell and value in use, In assessing value in
wuse, (e estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value wsing a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset for
which the estimates of fulure cash flows have nod been adjusted.

If the recoverable amouant of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amound of the asset (or cash-generaiing unit) & reduced o ils recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit,

When an impairment boss subsequently reverses, the carmying amount of the asset {or & cash-generating
unith is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but such that the increased carrying
amounit should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no imparment loss
been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immedintely in profit.

When noa-current assets and disposal groups are classafied as held for sale, they are required 10 be
measwred at the lower of their carrymg amount and fair value bess costs o sell. The comparson of
carrying amount and fair value bess costs 1o sell is carried out a1 cach reporting date while it continues 1o
meeet the held for sale critena, As described in MNote 12, an mpairment loss related has been recognized
related to TDM in the Consolidated Statements of Profit,

Fair valee is an estimate of the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer o liabality
in an orderly iransaction between market participants al the measurement date. Accordingly, & gain o
Iogs could anise once an acthual sale ks completed.

L7, Now-current assers classified ns held for sole and discontinned operations

Mon-current assets and disposal groups are classified as beld For sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through o sale sransaction rather than through continuing wse. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in s presenst
condition subject only to terms thal are wual and cusiomany for wales of such azset (or dizposal group)
and its sale 1s highly probable. Management must be commitied fo the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one vear from the date of classification.

When the Company is commitied 1o a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiany, all of the assets
and leabilitbes of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the critenia described above are met,
regardless of whether the Company will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiany afler
the aale,

When the Company is committed to a sale plan mvolving disposal of an imvestment, of a postion of an
investment, in an assocEbe or joimt venture, the investment or the porson of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, and the Company
discontinues the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified a held for sale. Any
retmined poriion of an investmen moan associsie or a joant venture that hos vod been classified o held
Tor sale contimess #o be accounted for using the equity method. The Company discontinees the use of
the equity method a1 the time of disposal when the disposal results in the Company losing significant
influence over the associate or joiaL

Afier the disposal takes place, the Company accounts for any retained inerest in the associte o joint
veniure in accordance with IAS 39 unless the retained interest cominues 10 be an associale of a ponl
venture, in which case the Company wies the equity methad.

Mon-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carmying
amount and fair value less costs 1o sell,
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218 Borrowing costs

)

Bomowing costs directly attmbutable to the scgquisition, constroction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assels thal necessarily 1ake a substantial period of time 1o get ready for their intended use o
sabe, are added 1o the cost of those assets, until swch time as the assets are substantially ready for their
imendied use or sale,

T the extent that the Conipany gencrally bomows funds and uses them for the purposs of obtaining o
qualifving asset, the Company shall determane the amount of bormowing cosis eligible for capilalization
by npplying a capitalization mibe to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalization mte sholl be the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable o the borrowings of the Company that are
outstanding during the period, other than bomowings made specifically for the purpose of oblaining a
qualifying asset. The amount of bomowing costs that ihe Company capializes during a period shall not
exceed the amount of bormewing costs it meurred duning that pertod. Fora relationship designated as cash
flow hedging, none of the effects of the derivative are included in capitalized interest.

Investment income eamed on the temaporary investment of specilic bormowings pending their expenditure
on gualifying assets is deducted from the bomowing costs eligible for capitalization,

All oiher bormowing cosis ane recognized in profit in the penod m which they ane incurmed,
Employee beweflts

Paymenis 1o defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contribudions,

In sccordance with Mexican Laber Law, the Company provides seniority premium benefits (o i
emiployecs under cerlain circwmstances. These benefits consist of a one-time paymenl equivalent w 12
days wages fior each year of service {at the employee’s most recent salary, bal not 1o excesd wice the
kegal minimam wage), payable to all cogdoyees with 13 or more years of service, as well as (o comain
employees terminated involuntanly prio o the vesting of thetr senbority premium benefin,

For defined benefit retirement plans, which include pension plans as well a5 i senionty premium
benefits, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carmied out &t the end of cach reporting year. The remeasurements company
inclade the actuarial gams and losses and the effect of the changes on the floor of the asset (iIfapphicable),
are immediately recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position charged to the cradit
that is recopnized in the Consolidated Simements of Profit and OCT in the period in which they ane
incurred. The remeasureméents recopmized i O] Hems are notl reclassified 1o profit and loss. The
Company presemts service oosts within administrative and ofber expenses in ihe Consolidated Statements
of Profit, The Company presents iel interest cosl within finance costs in the Consolidated Statements of
Profit. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as of the end of each reporting year,

Short-term and other lopg-term enplovee benefies and srnwtory canplovee profit shaeleg ("FT1")

A liahility is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salanies, annual leave
and aick leave in the period the related senvice is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expoctod tv be paid in exchange for that service.

Linhilities recognized in respect of shon-term employes benefits are measured al the undiscounted
amount of the bemefits expected o be paid in exchange for the related service.
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Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term emplovee bemefis are measured ot the present value
of the estimated fature cash outflows expectad 10 be made by the Company m respect of services
providied by employees up to the reporting date,

Strmtory vomployee profil sharimg

PTU & recorded in the results of the vear in which i 5 ncurred and i presented in operating expenses
and eost of sales line dem in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Other Comprehensive Income.

As result of the 2014 Income Tax Law, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, PTU is determined based on
taxable income, according 1o Section 1 of Article @ of the that Law,

228 Provisions

LIL.

Provissons are recognized when the Company has a present obligation, legal or constnsctive, as a result
of a pas event, il i probable that the Company will be required to s=tle the obligation, and a relable
cstimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

The amount recognized as a proviston i the best estimate of the consideration required to sertle the
present obligation al the end of the reporting period, king into acoount the risks and sneertaintbes
surrounding the obligation. When o provision is messured wsing the cosh Nows estimated 1o seule the
present obligation, its camying amownt 15 fhe present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
tirme value of money is material),

When some or all of the economic benefits required o settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, & receivable 15 recognized as an asset if it 1s virtually cenain that reimbursement will
be resceived and the amount of the receivable can be messured reliably.

Financiol instraments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party 1o the
contrachual provisions of the instrumend.

Financial sssets and fimancial labilities are inibolly measured o1 fair value. Transaction costs that ane
directly sttributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assels and finamcial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial habilities at for valee through profity are sdded to or deducied Trom the: fair
walue of the financial assets or financial liahilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transsction costs
directly attributable 1o the acquisition of linancial assets or financial liabilises an fair value through profit
or boss are recognized immediately in profit.

2211 Amariized cost

The amortized cost of a financial asset or lability is the amount at which the flinancial asset or
leability &5 measared ot matial recognibion, manus prncipal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the inifial
amount recognized and the maturity amount, manus any reduction for impairment.

Thee effective meerest method 15 o method of calculatimg the amortized cost of a debt mstrument o
financial liability and of albecating inberest income of expense over the relevant perssd. The
effective inerest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts o payments
{including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral pant of the effective interest
rale, wansaction costs and other premiums of discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, of, where appropriate, a shorter period, 1o the pet camrying amount on initial
recognition,
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2212 Firdr viealine
Fair value is defined in subparagraph b of Mote 2.2,
Finamelal assers

Financial assets are classified into the following categeries: financinl assets "m fair value thoough profit
of loss' “FVTPL", investments prescrved & maturity financial assets ‘available for salbe’ (“AFS™) and
Toans and receivables’. The classification depends om the nature and purpose of the linancial assets and
is determined at initial recognition, All purchases or sales of financial assets made rowtinely identified
and removed based on the trade date, Purchases or sales regularly are those purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or custom i that
rarket.

L2LL Effective inferest rote arethod

The effective interest method s a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt mstrument
and of allocating the interest income or inMerest cost during the relevant period, The effective
interest rate i the rate that discounts estimated futere cash receipts (inchsding all fees and basis
podnts pasd of received that form an imegral pan of the effective imenest rale, ranssction ¢osts and
other premiums or discounts) during the expacted life of the debt instrument or, when appropriae,
A shorter peniod bo the net carmying amount on inisal recognition.

Lddd Fimgarcianl asseds of FVTTPL

Financial assets are classified as st FVTPL when the financial asset i enher bebd for trading or it
is designated as at FWVTPL.

A finmncial asset 15 classified as held for frading it

¢ [t has been acquired principally for the puspose of selling it in the near term, or

o  On mitial recognition it 1s part of & pofolio of idenfified financial instrumenis that the
Company manages together and has 2 recent actual pattern of shont-term profil-taking; or

*  Iuws adenvative that is nol designated and effective as a hedgmg instrurment.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for irading may be designated as &t FYTPL upon
initial recognition if, cenain conditions are met. The Company has mod designated any financial
asses a5 at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVYTPFL are siated at fair walue, with amy gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in profil of loss, The nei gain or loss recognized in profit or loss
incorparates any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset and is incleded in the cost of
revenses and in other gains and losses line items in the Consolidated Statements of Profit. Fair
value is determimed in the manner descnibed m Mote 2.2h.

2223 Held bo-inerinrily i

Held-to-maturity invesiments are pon-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinsble
payments and fixed matunty dates that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold o
maturity. Subsequent §o initinl recogmition, held-to-matarity  investments are measured at
amortized cost using the effective imferest method less any impaiment. The Company does not
hold any held-to-maturity financial assets,



2224, Foins avidl receivabiles

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are wpd quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables (including rade and other receivables
and ampunts due from unconsolidated affiliates) are measured at amortized cost using the effective
imterest method, bess any impaiment.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for shon-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

222 Freipvirmeeny of frenciol aety

Financinl asseis are subject to impairment tests at the end of cach reponing period. It is considered
that fimancial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that a5 a result of one or mone
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have boen affected.

For all other fimancial assets, objective evidence of impairment could inchide:

Signilican financial difficulty of the issuer or counderpany;

Mon-payment of interest or principal;

It is probable that the borrower willl enter bankrupicy of fmancial reorganization; or
The disappearance of an aclive market for that financial assed because of financial
difficuliics,

The carrying amount of the financial asset s neduced by the impairment loss direcily for all
financial assets, except for accounts receivable where the carmyng amoundt is redwced throwgh an
secound of allowance for doubtfull accounts. When o receivable is ungollectible, it s removed from
the edimate. Subsequent recoveries of amounds previously writien ofT become claims apainst the
estimate. Changes m the carmying amount of the allowance account are récognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Prafin.

When non-current assets and disposal groups ane classified as held for sale, they are required o be
measured af the lower of their carrying amount and fair value bess costs o sell. The comparison of
carrying amount and fair valee less costs to sell is carried out at each reponting date while it
continues 1o meet the beld for sale criveria, As described in Mote 12, an impairment boss has been
recopnized relaied io TOM in the Consolidated Stalemenis of Profii,

Fair value is an estimate of the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
leability in an orderly transaction between marketl participants st the measurement date.
Accordingly, a gam or boss could arse once an actual sale 5 completed.

2I1E Plervcogmition of faarenn asvels

The Company derecognizes a Minancial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expare, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continses to control the transferred ase,
the Company recognizes 115 retained iierest in the asset and an associated lizbality for amounts it
may have to pay. IT the Company retains substaniially all the nisks and rewands of ownership of a
wransferred financial asset, the Company contingés o recognire the financial assel and also
recognizes a collateralized bomowing for the proceeds received.

If a financial asset is derecognized, the difference between the book value of the asset and the
compensation recerved is recognizad in the Consolidated Siatements of Profil,
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223, Finanelal Habiliies and eqiily fsrimients

228N Clesaiflcaion ax debr ar eqininy

Dbt and equity instruments issued by the Company ane classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual amangemenis and the definitions of
a finamcial Lisbahity and an equily instrument.

2232 Eguity instrumenis

An equity instrument i any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at
the procesds received, net of direct issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or kss is recognized in profil on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company s own equity instnamenis,

2233 Financia! labilites

Financial habalities are classified ns either Mnancial lakalitses an FVTPL or other financial
liahalities.

N Fiaremcied Nabilithes of FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as a1 FVTPL when the linancial liability is either held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A fmancial liability 15 classified as held for rading i

# |t has been poquired mainly for the purpose of repurchasing i in the near term;
of

# i is pari of a portfolie of ientilied financial instruments that are manapged
together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of making profits
in the short term; or

# [t isa derivative that is pot designated and effective a5 a hedging insinament,

A Minancial lighility other than a financial liability held for rading may be designated
as at FVTPL upon infual recognition if, cenain conditions are met. The Company has
not designated any fimanceal liabilities as at FYTPL

Financial labilities at FVTPL are stated af fair valee, with any gams or losses arsing
on Fremeasurcment recognized in profitor koss, The net gain or loss recognized in profit
or [oss incorporates amy interest paid on the financial lability and s incledad in the
‘other gains and losses® line item in the Consolidsted Statements of Profit. Fair value
is determined as described in Note 24,

22332 (hher financial labilinie
Cather financial habilities (incleding bomowings, due o unconsolidated affilintes, trude

paywhles and customers deposits) are subsequently measured af amomtized cost using
the effective ivlerest method.
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22335 Derecogrition of fraacin’ Mebilfires

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company”s
obligations are discharped, camcelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable is recognzed in profic

L. Derivative financial insiriarenrs

The Company enters into denvative financial imstruments o reduce #s exposure 0 risks, These
instrumenis are negotiated with instiutions of recognized financial strength and when trading limits have
basen established for each institution. The Company's policy is o canmy ot ransactions with denvative
financial mstruments. for the parpose of offsetting its exposure o such risks through risk management.
Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 24.

The Company recognizes all assets or labilities that arse from ransactions with derivative fnancial
instruments a1 fair value on the Consolidated S1memens of Financial Position, regardless of its intent For
halding them.

Derivatives arg inifially recognized af fair value at the date the derivative condracts are ¢ntered inlo and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value a1 the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain o
loss is recognized in profit or boss in the same line a3 the hedged item affects profit or loss for derivatives
that are economic hedges.

2241, Embedided dernveatives

Derivatives embedded in non-dermvative host contracts are reated as separate dervatives when
their risks and characteristics are not closely related 1o those of the host contracts and the host
contracts ane ot measured a1 FYTPL.

2L e pwe exemypiion

Contracts that are entered into and continue 1o be held foe the purpose of the receipt or delivery of
a non-financial ilem in accordance with the Company's expected purchase, sale or usage
requirements fall within the “own wie”™ (or “normal purchase or sale™) exemption. Uinder this scope
exemplion, ondinary physical supply armangements are excluded from denvative acoounting
incalnsent.

225 Hedge acoounting

The Company designates cemain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded denvatives
and non-derivative with respect 1o foreign currency risk, either as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or
hedges of a net investment in a transaction foreign. The hedge of the foreign curmency risk of a firm
commitment is accounted for as a cash Mlow hedpe,

For ns hedging instruments, the Company documenis the relaticnship between the hedging mstrument
and the hedged riem at the mcepiion of the hedge relationship, along with its nsk managemeni objectives
amd its sirnfegy for underiaking vanous hedge transactions. Furthemmorne, ot the inception of the bedge
ared on an ongoing basis, the Company decuments whether the hadging instrument is haghly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash fbows of the hadged item atimbutable &0 the hedged nsk.
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2.25.0. Cash flow hedges

The effective portson of changes m the fair valoe of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognized i OCT and accumubated under the heading of cash low hedging
reserve, The gain or boss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit.

Amounts previeushy recognized in OCT and accumulated in equity are reclassified 1o prodit in the
wears when the edpad ibem is recopnized in profit, in the same line of the Consolidated Statements
of Profit as the recognized hedged item, However, when the hedged forecast transaction resalis in
the recognition of a non-financial assel or a non-financial lizkility, the gains and losses previously
recognized in OCI and acoummlated in equity are transfierred from equity and included in the initzal
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability,

Hedge acoounting is discomtimesd when the Company revokes the hedging relationship, when the
hedging instrument expires of is sold, lermimated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge sccounting. Any gain or loss recognized in OCT and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognized in profil
When o forecast transaction i no longer expected to occur, the gain or lass sccumalated i equity
is recognived immediately in profit,

2252, Fatr virloe edge

Changes in the fair value of denvaiinees that are designated and qualify as far value hedges ane
recognized in profit immediately, wgether with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
or liability that are aunbutable 1o the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging
instrument and the change in the bedged tem attributable to the hedped nsk are recopnized in the
line of the profit or loss consolidated statements of related 1o the hedged item.

Hedge acoounting is discontimeed when the Company revokes the bedging relationship, when the
hedging mstrument expires o i sold, terminated, or exercised, or when 1t no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. The fair value adjusiment to the carrying amouni of the hedped item ansing
from the hedged risk iz amomized 10 profit o loss from that date.

22 Tavatow

Ingome Tax (1T or “1SE by the inimals in Spanish*) expense represents the sum of the cerrent and defemed
tax.

2261, Currens fax
Current income 1y is recognized in the resulis of the vear in which is incurred,
2262 Deferred faxes

Diefemred tax s recogmized on temporary differences between the camying amounis of asscts and
liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the
compuiation of taxable profit. Deferred o habilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences, Deferred tax assels are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profis will be available againsg which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such defemed tax assets and liabilities ane
nod recognized if the lemporary difference anises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and lmbilites in a tramsaction that affects neither the toable profit
nof the accounting profit, In addition, defermed tax liabilities are not recognized i the lemporary
difTerence anses from the initial recognison of goodwill,

38



Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associotes, amnd interests i poanl ventures, excepl where the
Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will ot reverse in the foresecable fvture. Deferred tax assets ansing from
deductible temporary differcnces associated with swch investments and interests are only
recopnired io ihe exient that it is probabbe that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which 1o wtilize the benelits of the temporary differences and they are expacted 1o reverse m the
foresecable futune,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at the end of exch reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable thay sulficient laxable profits will be available
1o albow all or part of he assel 0 be recovered.

Deferred tax labilites and assets are measured at the tax rages that are expected 1o apply in the
period in which the liability is setibed or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enscled by the end of the reponting period,

The measurement of deferrad tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax, consequences ihat would
folkow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting peraod, to
recover of seithe the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax hiabilities and deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption i rebatted. The
presumgdion is rebutted when the mvestment properiy is depreciable and is held within a business
miede] whose objective i to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied m the
investmenl property over teme, rather than through sale. The mamagement of the Company
reviewad the Company’s imvestment propenty portfolios and conchuded that nome of the
Company s investment propertics are held under o business model whose objeciive 15 w0 consume
substantially all of the econormic benefits embodicd in the invesiment propenics over time, rather
than through sale, Therefore, nanagement has determaned that the “sale” presumpiion s¢1 oul n
the amendmenis to IAS 12 is nod rebutted. As & result, the Company has not recognized amy
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the investment properties as the Company is not subject
1o any income taxes on the famr valee changes of the investiment properises on disposal.

Current and deferred tax for the yvear

Current and deferred 1ax are recognized in prodil or bess, except when they relate to itlems that ane
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred gax are also recognized in cther comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,
Where current tax of deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination,
the tax effect is inchuded in the accounting for the business combination,

Tax on assels

The tax on zssets (TMPACT for its name in Spanishy expected o be recoverable is recorded as a
tax credit and is predented in the halance sheet in the defermed taxes line item,

227 Revenue recognitlon

Revenue s recognized to the exient that 18 15 probable that the economic benefits aall ow to the Company
and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenee includes amounts receivable for poods and services
provided in the noemal course of business, net of discounts, rebates; WAT.
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22T

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and titles have passed,
at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

. ﬂ;mcmm has transferred o the buyer the significant risks and rights of ownership of
i 5

o  The Company refains neither continuing managerial involvement to the depree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the poods sald;

»  The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

# It is probable that the economic benefits asociated with the transaction will flow w the
Company; and,

o The costs meurmed o fo be incurmed in respect of the transaction can be relably measursd.

The following revenue streams related 1o the sale of goods are recognized in accordamce with the
previous accounting pelicy as disclosed in more detail below:

e  Sales of natwral gas and the related costs are recognized wupon the transfer of ttle, which
coincides with the physical delivery of natural gas o customers; and,
»  Power generalion revenuds are recopgnized when generated power is deliversd.

Rendering of services

Revenues from service contracts are recognized by reference 1o the stage of completion of the
coniract, The stage of completion of the contract is determined as folbows:

¢ Service fees included in the price of the products sold are recognized by reference to the
proporisen of the wdal cost of the service provided Tor the product sobd; and,

& Revenue from contracts is recognized based on the rates provided o the extent nounmed
in working bours and direct costs,

The following revenue streams relited 1o the rendering of services are recogniced in acoordance
with thi previous accounting policy as disclosed in more detail below:

e Siomge and regasificabion capacity ane recognized based on reservation and usage fees
under terminal capacity agreements and nitrogen injeclion service agresments;

o  Revenues and related costs from natural gas distmbution are recognized when the
distribution services are rendered.

s Revenues also mclude net realized gains and losses and the net change im the fair value
of unrealized gains and losses on dervative contracts for natural gas; and,

o [Revenues and costs related 1o admanistrative and other services are recognized when such
services are rendered according 1o the relaled service contracts,

Frterest income

Imterest income from a financial asset i recognized when it is probable that the econommic benefits
will Now to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably, Inlerest incone is
acerued on a timely basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exacily discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to thit assel’s pet carrying amoaunt an mitial recognition.
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2274, Kemnl fncome

The Company s policy For recognition of revenue from finance leases is described m Note 29,2,

228 Foreign currencics

The Company's fanctional cumency is the 115, Dollar, except for ECO, PEI and SDGN in iis Gas
sepmenl, ond Fundacin IEnova in the corporate segment. which 15 the Mexican Peso,

In preparing the Financial Statements of each individual subsidiary of the Company, transactions in
currencies other than the subsidiaries functional currency (LS. Dollar or Mexican Peso) are recognized
at the rates of exchange prevailing ai the dates of the iransactions, At ihe end of each reporting period,
maonetary ilems denominated in foreign currencies aré translated at the rates prevailing of that date. Mon-
monetary items camied at fair valoe that are denominated in foreign cummencies are translated at the rates
prevailing ol the date when the fair valuse was determined. Nop-monetary iterms that are measured in lems
of historical cost in o foreign currency wne pot translated.

Exchange differences on monetary ilems are recognized in profit or boss in the period in which they arise
except for:

. Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating 1o assets under
construction for future productive use, which are included m the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment o interest costs on those foreign curmency bomowings;

. Exchange differences on monetary stems receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which senlement is neither planned nor likely w occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foregn operation ), which are recognized mitially in OC]
and reclassified from equity to profit on repayment of the monetary iems,

For the purpeses of presenting Consolidated Financial Stxements, the assets and liabilities of the
Company”s subsidiaries with Mexican peso Functional currency are iranslated info U5, Dollars (the
Company s reporting curmency b using exchange rates prevailing ai the end of each reporiing period.

Profit amounts are translated @ the mic of the ransaction date, unbess there are significant cumency
fluctuations during the period, in which case the exchange mtes at the dates of the ransactions are wsed.
Exchange differences ansing., if any, aré recogneed in other fems of comprehbensive income and
accumulated in equity.

O the disposal of an operation with a Mexican Peso functional currency all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity related 1o the disposed operation that are airibuiable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit

&0,

Critical judgments in applying acconnting polfcies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those invelving estimations (see Note 3,2 below),
that Company”s management has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amousts recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Siaremmenis,

311, Finanee lease of ratural gas compression st

Management has determined that cemain armangements should be accoumed for as a finance lease
a5 the present value of the minimum lease payments a1 inception date of the arangement amounted
Lo substantzally all of the fair value of the compression station as of such date. Details of the finance
lease asset are included in Node &,

1.2 Regularery acommiing

Rate regulation is the seiting, by regulatory bodies or governments of poices that can be charped
1 customers for services or products through regulations, oflen where an entity has a monopoly
ior domimant market position thal gives it significam market power,

As of Decembser 31, 2006, 2015 and 2004, where is no explicit guidance under [FRS regarding
whether entitics operating in rate-regulated emdronments should recognice assets and liabilites
arising from the efficts of rate regulation, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the U5,
(LS, GAAP) provide specific guidance on this matier,

The IFES Interpretations Committes (“IFRIC™) has previously commented that the U5, GAAP
recognition critern pertaming 1o mie-regulated acoounting are not consistent with IFRS. The
IASH, issued IFRS 14, Regpnlatwry defernal aoconunss on January 30 20014, as n part of its project
iom this matter, however, such standard 15 ot applicable o the Company as it 15 nol a first-time
adopier of IFRS. As a result, the Company does not recognize ie-regulazed assets or labiliies in
its Consolidated Financial Statements. Management will continue to monitor the tatus of futune
deliberations by the LASH and [FRIC as it relstes 1o this matter and its potential impact on the
Company s Consolidated Financial Ststements,

&4 Confimgencies

The Company acerues bosses for the estimated impacts of varous mantlers, situations or
cIcumstances invalving uncenman oulcomes. For loss contingencies, the Company aocrses for the
loss if an event has occurred on or before the date of the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position, The Company does not acoree comtingencies that might result in gains. The Company
cominuously assesses contingencies for litigation ¢laims, environmental remediation and other
evenis.

L L4 Cham e excmprion

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation anecriminty IAS 19 contsins a exemplion from derivative accounting tres for physical delivery
In the application of the accounting policies of the Company, managenent must make judgments, estimates and coniracts of a non-financial item for an enfity’s own use. The scope exemption is meant (o apply
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements. The estimates and to ondinary physical supply amangements. However, the standard also seeks 1o identify contracts

assumptions are hased on historical experience and other factors considered relevant. Actual results coald differ which are nol used for operational purposes a5 derivative mstruments. 1 a non-financeal Hem can
firoms these estimates, . e setled et enber im cosh or another financial instrament, o by exchange of fmancial

instruments, i must be accounted For as @ iinancial instrument.
The estimates and underlying assumpiions ane reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to sccounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the cstimate is revised and futare periods if the change affects both the
currerd period and o subsequent periods.

There are variows ways in which a contract can be settled net, Management applies judgmen in
asssising whether, among ofhers, past practices of net settling simalar contracts o of =king
delivery and selling the item within a short period; or, the commadity is readily convertible o
cash, would lead 1o net serdement. Management analyzes each of its physical delivery contracts
of nonfinancial ibems for determining if they ane within the own use exemption from derivative
accounting teatment.
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3.4

1.5

Determiming whether an arrangement confains o lease

The Company ¢valuates if an arrangement that does not take the legal form of a kease bul conveys
@ right 0 use an asset in return for a seres of payments should be pccounted For as o lease. The
Company’s mansgement wses s judpment w0 determine, whether, based on facts and
circumsiances existing atl the inception of the contract, it is remote that partics oiber than the
purchaser will 1ake more than an msignafecant amount of the output of the related asset.

36 Classiffearbon of it fodind arramgoemcens

Inferests in associates and the joint veatunes are accounted for uwsing the equity method, They ane
imitally recopnized at cost, which includes iransaction costs, Subsequent 1o imitial recognition, the
Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group®s share of the profits and OC1 of equity-
accounted investees, unkil the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

Key sowrces of estloratlon sncertalnir

The Following are the key sssumptions concemning the future, and other key sources of estimation
unceriainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a sigmificant sk of causang a matenal adjustment
1o the camying amaunts of assets and habilities presented in the Company s Consolidated Suements of
Financial Position,
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Exrmmoted nvefud fives of properiy, plant aod equipanent

As described in Mote 214, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of propenty, plant and
equipment i the end of each reporting period. Please refer o MNote 141, for useful lives of
property, plant and equipment,

Sypatemeni of fowg-lived aseels (goohacill)

Dretermining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the valee 1m ose of the cash-
generating unis 1o which poodwill has been albocated. The value i use colculation requares the
directors 1o estimate the future cash flows expected o anse from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate m order o calculate present value, Where the actual future cash flows are
less ghan expected, o material impairment loss may anse. Impairmient iesting is performed on an
annual basis.

A23 Asver decommissioning ohligation

324

The estimated cost of decommissioning at the end of the useful lives of the Company s lomg-lived
assels is reviewed periodically and is based on estimates at the date of the Consolidated Statements
of Financial Position of the present valoe of future costs expected to be incurred when assels ane
retired from service as requined by baw or per its contracheal obligations. The payment dates of
fotal expected future decommissioning costs are uncertain and dependent on the lives of the long-
Tived assets, but ane curnently anticipated o be between 25 (o 30 years. The Company uses its long-
term “homowing cost” mle 0% the discount rate for calculating its provision related o its
decommussioning labilinses, which s the 30-year bormowing cost for companies in 1s industry with
simlar credit ratings, as measured by Bloomberg.

Faluetton of ffasmcial inaramenis (foir valie meavirement)

As deseribed in Mote 24, the Company uses valuation technsques that inchede inputs that are hased
on observable marked data to estimaie the fair valee of certaim types of financial instruments. Plesse
refier to Mote 24 for detailed mformation about the key assumpiions used in the defermination of
the fair value of inancial instrumems.

The Company believes that the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions used are appropriate
in determining ibe fair value of linancial instruments,
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Alfovanee for doshiful aecommis

The methodobogy for determining the allowance for doubtful accounts on trade and other
receivables is st out in Note 5. The estimales and asumptions used 10 determine the allowanecs
are reviewed periodically. Althaugh the provisions recognased are considered appropraate, changes
in economic conditions could lead 1w changes in the allowance and, therefone, impact profin.

Recovernhiline of deferred kax assels

As mentioned in Note 25, the Company has sccumulated tax loss camryforeand benefits, for which
an evaluation of recoverability 15 perfiemed on an annual basis.

The use of estimates and asumptions ane pamscularly important in the recognition of deferred
INCONTIE AN ASSeLS.

Measurement of defined henefiy obiigorions: by acimrial assrmpriom

As described in Note 17, the Company uses actuarial vahestions: thot include inputs that ane based
on published statistic and morality tables. The Company believes that the chosen valuation
bechniques and assumpiions used are appropriste in determiming the benefit ohlipations.

Koy sowrrces of estimation uneertainty for G
Selected Valuation Methodology.

GAC s a regulated business that will eam a retum of its costs and a reasonable returm on its
invested capital, withoul other consideration; the value of the assets of a regulated business 13
the value of its imvested capital. Under this premise, the FV of the fixed aisets of regulated

businesses is equivalent 1o carrying value for financial reporting purposes, as valug
reflects the h:s?:ﬁ:ur which invested capatal is derived, and for whach o uwhmim is
allowed 10 earn a reasonable retum.

The Company concluded that the carrying valoe of the fixed assets is deemed (o be
representative of FY for IFRS purposes.

Key sowrces of esitmation uncerialnny for Vemitka
Selected Valuation Methodology,

Basexd on the mature of the power facility and gencrally midustry practice, we relied on
the Income Approach, specifically the Discounted Cash Flow (“ICF7) method.

Assoctated ininngrbles such as mghts of way | eascments ane embedded m the value of the
property plant and equipment.

While the Cost Appml:h was not relied upon 1o derve oar fair vilue estimate, provided the
Income .tpmw m approach o valuing an cperational wind mﬁfmln;:.r
it was considered r-mrrn tory purposes in relation to our fair value estimate derived
utilizing the Income Approach. It is noted that our derived fair value estimate embeds o
developer margin (1., margin above the cost 10 develop’ construct the power project) that is
within the reasonable range of developer nmxns expected for this type of power facility and
ab the stage of development associated Wentika (ie., recently entering commercial

operation),

In addition 1o what is described above, the Company used different estimanes relating o
operaling stalistics, revenues, operaling expenses and cash llow items,



Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents inchisle cash and banks
and ivestments in instruments in the money market funds, net of bank overdrafts, Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year as shown in the cash flow sistemem can be recopciled o the related items in the Censolidaved
Siaternent of Fnancial Posinon as follows:

123 LITR 123115 11314
Cash and bank balances 5 24918 4 ke b B 42,844
Shont term mmvestments classified os
cash equivalents = 8200 40,793
- I— ] 5 40377 & _E3637

Agof December 31, 2006, the Company mainmaimed 551 363 restricted cash as a cument assel o make paymenis
of certain operating cosis for the execution of projects.

Trade and other receivables, net
12030716 (12 TH E 12314
Trade receivables 5 o 523 5 32 895 5 47 340
Allowance for doubiful socounts (a) [ALIN] (147} [ 19:4)
o422 12748 47,146
Oither receivahles 1 4l SILGE |

§  IO0ERE 0§ 378 5. 66400

(@) Forthe Gas segment, EC0, has recognized an allowance for doubtful accounts of S0-percent against all
receivables outstanding between 180 and 269 days and 100-percent against all receivables outstanding
over 270 days, based on historical experience. Allowances for doubiful accounts are recognized against
trade recervables for customers whose outslanding balances are outstanding between 30 and 179 days
when such receivahles ane estimated not to be recoverable based om an analysis of the customers’
financal positian,

For all the other companies within the Gas segment and for the Power segment, the average credit period on
trode receivables is 30 days,

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for aging analysis) that are past due af the end of
the reporting year for which the Company has ned recognized an albowance for doubtful debis because the
amounts are s1ill considened recoverable,

S1 Age of receivables that are past due bat not impaived

1331016 1231015 1:3i0r4
31-120 days 5 5 8 12 § 12
121-180 days 7 5 7
181-270 days 3 2 4
Toaal 5 45 % 19 3 a3
Average age (days) 0 22 k1)

i1 Movement in the allowance for doubtful accouns

1230/06 123115 12130514
Balance as of beginning of the year 5 (147 3 (194) 3 (202)
Impairment bosses recognized on

receivables (46) (309 (78)
Amounts wrilten off during the yvear

as uncollectible &5 45 63
Foreign exchange wranslation gains i 29 23
Balanocs a5 of end of the vear 5 (o 5 L1471 § {194

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Company considers any change in the credit
quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was mitially grantad up to the end of the reponting
period. See Mote 24.9. for more details of the Company’s credit nsk management and concentrabion of
credil risk assessment.

53, Age of impaired trade receivables

IECILIIE [FIL R R} B 123004
181-270 days 5 (1o s 9 s (15)
Over 270 days (91 (13R) {179}
Total 5 (el 5 (47 § {194}

Transaction and balances with unconsolidated afilintes

Balances and transactions between |Enova and s subsidiaries have been eliminated upon consolidateon and are
ok disclosed in this note, excepl for those fransactions bebween comlinued and discontinued operations,

Transactions between continwed and discontinued operations are eliminated in consolidation. Any profit made
from sales to extemnal partics by the discontinued operations ane presended owtside confinuing operations,
Accordingly, the Consolidated Statements of Profit present revenses from contimeing operations as fiollows:

Hevemmes | Caal ol Fevenine
Yiear coded
12E 1328 12304
Effects of continaing operation with GRO and [Enova
Marketing £ 61382 5  BAEIR 5 140697
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6.f.  Trading transocions

During the years ended December 31, 2016, 20015 and 2014, the Company emered mio the following
transactions with unconsolidated alfiliates as part of ongoing operations:

Sempra LMNG Intemnational Holdimgs,
LLC ("SLMNGIH™)

Discontinued operation ~SGEMN

Sempra LNG ECA Ligquefaction, LLC
(“SLNGEL™}

Sempra Intemational, LLC (“Sempra
International ™)

Servicios ESJ, 5. de R. L. de C. V.
(“SESI™)

Discontinued operation — SESJ

ES)

Discoatinued operation — Sempra Cas
& Power Marketing, LLC
CEGEPMT)

Southem Califoman Gas Compamy
{"SolalGas™)

Sempra LNG International, LLC
(“SLNGI™)

SLMGI

Discontinued operntions - SGEM

Sempra Imemational

Sempra LS, Gas & Power, LLC
MUSGE)

SGEN

SG&EPM

SoCal Gas

Discontinued operation - SGEPM

Sempra Midstreans, Ing, (“Sempra
Midsireant™)

Sempra Services Company, 5. de K. L.
de C. WV, ("Sempra Services
Company™}*

Sempra Servicios México, 5. de R, L.
de C. V. (“Bempra Servicios
Méxbea™) *

Hevenues
Viear emibeid
123016 1231015 1220
5 1] 998 Al,683 -
1,130 143,073 2247
2026 1,676 -
1,746 1,711 1,730
&0 ag -
353 438 -
0 - =
w2 ! s
12 - o
49 138 90871
Cast of revenve, adesdnlstrative and agher expeses
Viear ended
1X30106 [ERET T 1X304
5 178,145 5 1518 5 135025
23,152 27034 21315
8301 5822 73N
6,930 6,700 7.106
3183 4,380 10387
J.] m - -
1.450 1031 1.074
1.022 - -
BGER Tah 44%
- 128 GRS
Z 517

* On December 13, 20015, these companies were Lliquidated.
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DEM

E5)

Discontinued operations - SGEN
Sempra Seracios Mdéxioo ®
Sempra Services Company *

ISLA

Sempra Oil Trading Suisse (“30T
Suisse™)

SEH

SEG

I5L

Semeo

DEN

PO

SGEN

* (On December 2015, these companies were liquidated.

The lfollowing balances were outstandmg at the end of the repornting period

SLMNGIH

DEM

ES)

SES)

SLNGEL

SGEN *

Sempra Intermational

* As of December 31, 2016, the amount was reclassified 1o xssets held for sale.
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—SCES e b waceaselii

s all
(RN 138 (FAIRE

ISLA (i) 5 160,091 5 b UL LU -
B0OT Suisse (iv) 38 460 - -
ISL{i) 30,025 ELLLLL] -
PO {hip 20,004 - A
BLNGI 11135 12.220 14,228
Sempra IMematsonal 582 470 -
BO&EPM 491 - -
SoCal(as 120 - T
Sempro Midstream & . -
SEH {iii) - 219 600 -
SGEN . 360 9
Sempra Services Company - - &5
Sempra Servicios México - - [

8260914 § 352630 0§ 14408

il

(i)

(i)

iOm March 2, 2015, IEnova entered imio a 59000 million and 3 530.0 million of U5, Dollar-
denominated credit facilitses with 1SLA and [SL, respectively, io finance working capital and for
peneral coqpornte purpases. The gprecments are & nine month tems, with an opbion © be extendad
fior up to fowr vears. [nterest is payable on a quarterly basis at 198 percent of outstanding balances.
In December 2016 and 2015, the Company signed an addendum modifving the initial contracts
and the new charactenistics are: the note term is extended and 15 due and payable in full on
December 15, 2017, The interest rate applicable shall be computed cach calendar quarter of the
rale of 1,75 percem per anmism,

On December 27, 2016, [Enova entered into a $70.0 million U5, Dollar-denominated affiliate
revolving credit facility with ISLA, 1o finance working capital and for general corporate purposes.
The credit is a twelve month term, with an option 1o extend for up to four years, Interest of the
outsianding batance is pavable on a quanerly basis at rate of 1,75 percent per annum.

On December 27, 2006, [Enova entered into a SHU0 mallion U5, Dollar-denominsied affiliate
revolving credil facility wath POOC, to inanece working capital and general corporate purposes. The
credit is for twelve month term, with an option to extend up o four years. Inferest of the
outstanding balamce 15 pavable ona quanerly basis ot a rate of 1.75 percent per anmm.

O December 22, 2015, IEnova enfered mio a 32196 million of U.S. Dollar-denominated credit
facility with SEH, o finance warking capital and for general comporate purposes. The term of the
agreement 15 for twelve months. Interest is payable on a quarerly basis ol three=month LIBOR
phus 0,17 percent of outstanding balances, On Augus 1, 2016, the Company paid 5120.5 million,
which mcludes the corresponding interest {Please refer 1 Note 18). In October 2016, with the
proceeds from the Global Offering, the outstanding balance of $99.5 million was paid in full by
the Company.

O September 26, 2016, [Enova entered into a S800.0 million of U5, Dollar-denominated loan
with SEG, 1o finanee GAC's acquisiion. The agreemsnt is for two months term. Interest is payable
on & monthly basis at LIBOR plus 110 basis point of outstanding balances. In October 2016, with
the procesds from the Global Offening, the Company repaid this koan including the cormesponding
InlETesls.

Om September 26, X016, [Enova entered inw a 53500 million of loan with Semco, (o fmance

GdC's scquisition, The aprecment was for two month terme Imterest was payable on a monthly
hasis ar LIBOR plus 1 1 basis paint of ouistanding balances, (Please refer 1o Mote 18),
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(iv]  During 2016, the Company paid inserest i the amount of $1.3 mallion, 51.4 million and 51.4
millon respectively. The loan mature in March 2017 and bear vamable imerest based on UL 5.
Treasury mad-term applicable federal rate plus 200 basis points (“bps™) (an average annual rte of
3,58 percent, 364 percent and 3,66 percent in 2016, 2015 and 2004, respectively).

Transactions with unconsolidated affiliates during 2006, 20015 and 2004 have been carmied out in
accordance with applicable ransfer pricing requirements, a5 of December 31, 2006, and as of the date of
this report, the nature and amount of transsctions are consistent with previous years. The amounis
oulstanding are unsscured and will be setibed in cash. Mo guarntées have been given or receved. Mo
expenses have boen recognized in the cumment or prior periods Tor bad or doubtfol debis regarding the
amounts owed by unconsolidaied affiliases,

Inclueded in the operational transactions are administrative services from affiliates of $8.3 million, 5.9
million and 580 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which
were collected and paid, and have been properly distmbuted to the segments incuming those costs,

6.2, Leans fo pnconsolidated affilimtes

As ol
L3116 TN 1203 0/14
DEN £ 90045 5 Bi%e: % 123,867
ESJ 14,307 25,142 22693
SGEN * - Gal 15
Sempra Servicios México - - | G

5 dg4358 5 1766 & 146775
* As of December 31, 2006, the amount was réclassiied to assets hebd for sale.

&3, Loans from gnconsolidated affiffares

A of
TEEE 1xms 127304
DEN 5 1080 0§ 5 5 .
SOT Suisse * - 38460 —_— IR0
5 3,080 1 38460 5 IEA460

* This amount was reclassified in 2006 to current lHabilities.

&4, Compensoiion of bey mranagenent persomned

Total compensation paid o key management personal was 350 million, S8.8 million and 36,5 millken,
for the vears ended December 31, 2016, 2005 and 2014, respectvely,

There are no loans granted to the Company”s key management personnel,
Matural gas inventories

Aa all
12/311& 12308 127501/14
Liguefied narral gas s BOR3 & 4628 b 8273

The cost of inventonies recognized within cost of revenwes was 5164403, S190, 172 and 5327110 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2015 and 3014, respectively,
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The cost of revenuss recopnized as expense was 50.0 million, 0.0 million and $1.0 million for years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2004, respectivily, dué o write-downs of inventory et realizable value, Wnie-
downs have been reversed as o result of increased sales prices in cemam markets in all periods presented in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Finnnce leases
&1, Finance lease receivable = Notweal Gas Compression Plamt

A of

12030016 (12TH T 1230014
Currenl Nnance leaie raceivables 5 e 1 I 156 % 1
Mon-curment fmance bease receivahles 14,135 14,354 14,510

§ 14354 5 14510 § 14821

leustng arrangemenis,

The Company entered inio a finance lease arrangement for one of its compression stations. The lease is
denominated in U5, Dollars. The term of the finance lease is 25 years.

&A1, Amormis receivable mder fimance leases
— Miunimiwm lrase paymieats _Preseed valoe of sinlmem biase pan st

As ol s ol
[RET T [RLLNR B [ RALT L (IR T RIS 12314

Mot later thas one yesr § R £ Ay o5 11 % e % [ 1 111
LLaser than one year snd not laier

than (v vears I A58 I3 ASE I A58 3403 1422 111&

Mare than five vears A Pl ] 1esT B0 733 133 13, ¥od

5] 550 L i 3l 14.3% (FEI0 ] 14,621

Liss: mneamed finance moom: _AETEISY  _ AL6lEy (478400 e ] i)
Presem value of munimum ke

payments recenable ERE ] 14.510 l483 1 14,554 LRI 14,631

§laits f pas)0 5 l4E3l 5 Baa% N0 5 14sn
Mo residual values of assels leased under finance lexse of the end of the year are estimated,
The interest rake inherent in the finance lease 15 fined at the contract date for the emire lease term.
The average effective interest rate contracted is approximeately 34,48 percent per annum for 2016,
2005 and 2004, The receivable under Mnance lease balance as of December 31, 2006, 2015 and
2004, is meither past due nor impaired.

&2 Firance fease recefvalble - Loz Romones F

As ol
(R I T
Current finance bease recenvahles 5 3383
Mon-current linance lease receivables 571,074
§__374453

51

Laazwiimg enrrongiements.,

The Company entered into & finance lease amngement for one of its natuml gas papelines and
compression stations, The lease i denomimated in U135, Dollars. The term of the finance bease 15 25 vears.

&2, Amounts recetvable under finance leaves
Mininvum lease  Presest of minimsm

Favmenis lease payvmenis
As of As of
1231716 1231716
Mot later than one vear 5 3334 5 334
Laber tham one yvear and nol later than five
VEArs 430,496 23,997
Muore than five years g4 650 547,072
I 418,530 574,453
Less: uncamed finance income (B44.07 7} e
Present value of minimum lease payments
receivable 274,433 14433
5 574,453 5 574453

o residunl values of nssets leased under finance bease at the end of the reparting vear arne estimated
The interest rate inherent in the fnance lease is fixed ol the contract date for the entine lease term,

The average effective interest rate contracted is approximastely 15,17 percent per annum for 2016, The
receivable umnder finance bease balance as of December 11, 2016 is neither past de por impained,

&3, Finamee lease receivable = Etfne Pipeline

s ol
1230ne

Current Ninance lease receivibles 5 3,553
Mon-cumend finance kease receivables J65 106
5 68639

Leawing arammgemeis.

The Company entered inte a finance lease armangement for one of iis cthane pipeline. The lease is
denominaied in LS. Dwillars,

The transportation system refers fo;

Sepment 1. Transpons ethane from Ethylene Complex XX1 {Braskem-1DESA) 10 Cangrejera, through a
20 inches pipeling of 4 Km. The term of the finance lease s 20.5 vears. The averge effective interest
e contracted is approximately 1620 percent in 2006,

Segment 11 Transpors ethane from Noevo Pemes to Cactus (Chiapas) through a 16 inches pipeling of
15 Km and Cactus to the Ethylene XX1 Complex (Braskem-IDESA) through a 24 inch pipeline of 1335
Km. The term of the finance bease is 205 vears. The average effective inferest rate contracted i
approximately 14,0 percent in 2016,
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Segment [[1. Transports ethane liquid from Ciudsd Pemex to Nuevo Pemex, {Tabasco) through a 20 inch
pipeline of 73.5 Km. The term of the finance lease is 21 years. The average effective interest rate
comtracted is approximately 14 percent in 2016,

Beginning on September 27, 2016, the Company fully consplidated GAC. As of Seplember 26, 2016,
there have been no other chamges in the Company s ownership or voting rights in thes joint venture.

The breakdown of this finance bease 15 a3 folbows. GedC"s Comdensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the Company™s equity method invesiment are

sumimanized as follows.
Segmen | 5 31,951
wﬁ gment E:I ]I 3!?5.33-&12 1230118 12014
Todal 5368659 Cash and cash equivalents 7 2080 % 74,931
Shot-term investments 10,780 58,233
&31. Amonms recelvable mrder finance leases Dihver assels 55383 0 0BG
Current nssets _RR.243 — il L
Alinimmm lease Preeont of mimimam
Paxmscniz Finance lease recervables 952,201 246,314
As ol As ol Property, plant and equipment, net 320079 673714
12731706 12306 Investments in jomt venture 131,338 140, 160
Chher assets 1,127 413
Mot later than one year 5 55,978 5 3553 Deferred income tax asset 12314 159
Later than one year and not Eater than five Mon-cument asscis 1,417 659 [MEZ IR
years 268,951 k)
More than five years 430651 236,327 Total nssets 51505902 % L3EE.IID
764578 68 659
Current habihities § 133730 % 31,50
Less: unearmed finance income (395.019) n'a Moo-current liabilitses B62307 724810
Total labilities o TeR0AT Ts4010
Present value of minimum lease payments oo e
receivahle $  36R.659 $ 368659 Total members” equity S T9g6F 3632199
Share of members” equity 5 F4933 3 316,100
Mo residual volues of assets beased under finance lease at the end of the reporting year ane estimaied. Gioodwill (S RCE] 64 043
Camying amoant investment in GdC S A12818 R iBLO43
The receivabie under finance lease balance as of December 31, 2016, is neither past due nor impained.
9. Other assets aded N i
Av el e ENTHT 1200714
IEnaE A 1214 Rvenes 5 99996  § 9424 % 496,
Operating, administrative and
ofhser expenses (60,174) (66,535 {368 K0T}
‘f'r‘."#"fi;":f““ S it 3 oyl . ;ﬂg Finance cost (20.989) (28.673) (26.973)
IMPAC ble | 698 2450 3479 [ncome tx expense (53 409) (64,307) {42.456)
E E E Share of profil (loss) of joint
rewrbirrmah i ol 34 venture, net of income L 15417 16,936) {9.019)
Matural gos imbalonce 3N 243 R6
- S— LT S 10514 § 12203 Profitforthe period /years 5 S0841 & 82969 5 49539
Current g 389 % R576 5 G018 Share of Fﬂ"l:lrls ol GdC Qﬂ.ﬂl i_ﬂdﬁi i_H..Eﬂ'
Non — cusrent — 4RSS —_— 1938 S i -
5 14,044 5 1314 i 12,203

18,  Investment in joint veniures
Tr GadC

Until Seplember 26, 2006, the Company owned a 5000 percent interest in GAC, a joint venture with Pemex
TRI {Please refer o Note 11). GdC operates three natural gas pipelines, five natural gas compression
stations, one propane system in Mexico and one ethane pipeline, in the states of Chispas, Chihuahua,
Mueve Ledn, Tabasco, Tamaulipas and Veracruz and one propans gas storage facility in the siale of
Jalisco, Mexico.
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a)

b

)
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0.2 ESS

reelit mprecmens. On December 5, 2003, GAC entered into @ credit agreement for $4%000 mallson
with BBV A Bancomer, Institucitn de Banca Miluple, Grupo Financiers BBV A Bancomer, Bank
of Tokyo Mitsubishi UF), Lud, Mizubo and Norddeutsche Landesbank ("MORD / LB™), for the
purpese of funding the Los Ramones | pipeling project. The funding i= contracted for a term of
13.5 vears, with quanerly principal payments, besring interest at the 90 day LIBOR plus 200 1o
275 basas pomts, This fanding 15 guaramteed by collection mights of certam GAC projects.
Bormowings under the fucility began i 2014, As of December 31, 2006, GIC has $370.0 million
of putstanding borrowings,

O Janoary 22, 2004, GdC entered inte an interest rate swap for hedging the inberest rate msk on
the total of the credin agreement mentioned above, exchanging the LIBOR for a fix rate of 2,63
pencent.

Regnlar investment contribaniion fo TAG, TAG is owned by GAC through ns subsidiary, DEM, and
partners, TETL JV Mexico None, 5. de R, L. de C. V. and TAG Pipeline Norte. As of December
31, 2016, the contributions are as follows:

Asaf
12316
Permex TR * 5 045
IEnowva * ks LIS
& 180080

* Includes inenests,

Unedber thee terms of the contract, the contributkons made im 2004, are presented as boans o DEM. As
of Decermber 31, 2006 and 200 5, amounts outstanding have penernted interest of $4.0 million and
54,6 million respectively (Plense refer to Mote 6.2}

On December 19, 2004, TAG Nore Holding entered into a loan as a debior, signing a promissory
note in favor of Santander, the amount of such loan is of $1.3 million approximately (including a
LC facility for Debt Servioe Reserve), In addition TAG Nore Holding entered inlo a derivative
imstrument in order to hedge the interest rase risk,

In December 2015, TAG Pipelines, Morte contracted dermvative instmuments in onder to hedge the
risk of exchange e changes. TAG Pipeline Norie entered into forwand contracts with five banks
1o exchange pesos for dollars of a portion of the projects revenwes for 2016, maturing through 2006
andd in the first quarter of 2017, Additionally, in Sepiember 2016, TAG Pipeline Morie entered into
forward contracts o exchange pesos for dollars of a portion of the propects’ revenues For 3017;
maturing theough 2017 and in the first quarter of 2018,

On July 16, 2014, C8), a subsidiary of IEnova, completed the sabe of a 50-percent inferest in the first
phase of ES) (o a wholly owned subsidiary of InterCeen ™. V. (“InterGen™ ) The net cash received by this
transaction was 525.9 million, The retained interest in ES) was recorded at its fair valoe of 525.9 million
a5 a nen-cash tmnsaction. The net gain for the sale of ESJ shares was 518.8 million afier income tax,
included within the other gains (losses) line item in the Consolidated Statements of Profit

ESJ started operations in June 2015,
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Asof December 21, 2016, the Company"s remaining 50-pecent interest in ES) 15 aocounted for amder the
equity method. ES) Condensed Consolidsted Financial Statemenis and the Company™s equity method

investmient arg summarzed as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Uliher asseds
Curmeni assels

Property, plant and equipment, ned
Ciher assets

Deferrad income tax
Mon=current assets

Total assets
Curreni Habilities
Mom-carrent liabilities

Total Habilities

Total memibers” equity

Share of members” equity
Gaadwill

Carrying amounit of
investment in ESJ

ES)'s Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit is os folbows:

Revenues

Operating, sdministrative and
other expenses

Chiher gain, net

Finanee (cost) incodame, met

Ircome 1ax expenses

Profit (koss) for the year / period

Share of profits (loss) of ES)

Yiear raded Year eaded Veear ended
(RILFR LY 1231018 (R TE
5 9601 S 12930 % 4,784
15,201 21.937 6,339
. 5. |\ S ... ¥ S W
264 465 276,352 258 885
2650 12,347 10,1840
54 53 T.914
TS 2953 276,988
b 1% 5 R T— N L T—
5 17,777 £ T8 £ 11215
— ) 306637 23934
- T A | | ..t 1 P}
3 24486 & 16217 & 16,748
5 12,243 5 & 108 5 8374
12,121 X121 12031
5 24,364 & e 5 20,495
W ear einibed Wear entdid Far thor peviod af
1130 12/3001E DTS04 1o
1230/04
5 442381 % Q227 8 u
(20,773) (13,491 (571)
221 - e
(16731} (9.426) 67
— ey (464l (13
- ¥ | [ - SR V- S S ST
5 2557 § 84 & {1,424




a)

)
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Project finaacing for the EXS profect, On June 12, 2014, ESJ entered inko a 5239.8 million project
finance loan for the construction of the wind project with five banks: Mizuho as coordinating lead
arranger, the North Américan Development Bank [("MADB") as technical and modeling bank,
Nacional Financeera, 5. M. C. Ingtitucitn de Banca de Desarrollo ("NAFINSA™), NORIVLE and
SMBC as lenders,

On June 30, 2015, ES) converied the construction boans inlo |8-vear term loans, The credil
facilities mature on June 30, 2033, with payments due on a semi-annoal basis (each June 30 and
Drecember 30 uniil the final marity daie), starting on December 30, 2005, The credit facilities
bear interest ai LIBOR plus the applicable margin.

LIBOR
spplicsblc
Years margis
Jume 3004 — Jume 2015 2.175%
Jume 3015 - June 201% 2.375%
June 2019 — June 2023 2.625%
June 2023 — June 2027 2.875%
Jumne 2027 — June 2031 3.125%
Jumiz 2031 - June 2033 3.375%

As per the financing agrecment, the abiliy o make withdrawals ended on the term conversion date
June 30, 2005, ESF made 1otal acoumulated withdrawals from the credit facility in the amount of
5239 & million. The debt owstanding is 32275 million and the breakdown is as follows:

Dkebe balsmce
MIZUHO 5 51,069
MAFINSA a7 141
MORIVLB 51,069
MAaDB EY ALY
SMBC - 1 1 .
5 117489

dierest ree swaps, To partially mitligate its exposure 0 interest rate changes associated with the
term boan, ESJ entered inte floating-1o-fixed interest rate swaps for S0-percent of the ESJ project
finamcing bpan amwpunt, There are three outsianding interest rabe swaps with Mimubo, SMBC and
NORDVLE, each one wiih a trade daic of June 12, 2014 and an elfective daie of June 30, 2005, the
date of conversion 1o a term loan. The terms of the mienest rate swaps were constructed 1o match
the critical terms of the interest payments, The swaps are acoounted for as cash flow hedges.

Fimancing of the profect s FA T with Somdancler, On June 12, 2014, ES) entered inbo a line of credit
with Santander and on February 23, 2005 there was an amendment 10 incréase the linge for up to
$501.0 million Mexican Pesos {approximately $35.0 million historical U8, Doltar equivalent).
Intenest on each withdrawal will be acorusd at the Mexican Interbank Interest Rate ("TIIE™) plus
145 basis points payable on a semi-annual basis, The credil line wnder ths contract will be used w
finance the VAT on the ESJ project. As of December 23, 2015, EST had withdrawn 54726 million
Mexican Pesos of this credit line, On December 23, 2015 ESJ repaid and canceled the total cradat
facility,

ey disclosirees. The member's agreement provides certain restrictions and benefits to the sabe
of the membership inerest in ESJ, The agreement establishes that capital calls that are to be
contributed on a pro rata hasis by the members. C5) and §is joint venture panner hove provided
guarantees of payment of amounts due by EX) and its subsidianies under the wind turbine supply
agrecment with Vestas WTG México, 5. A, de C. V. The guarantess are immaterial as of
December 31, 2016, 2005 and 2014,
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1o,

WG

In June 2016, IMG, the joint venture formed between IEnova and TransCanada, whereby TransCanacda
hits &0 percent interest in the partnership and 1Enova owns the remammng 40 percent inlerest.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company™s imerest an IMG 15 accounted for under the equity method, IMG
Condensad Consolidated Financial Staemens and the Company's equity method investment &
summarized as fodlows:

(LI T
Cash and cash equivalents 5 128,100
Cheher aasets — 12547
Total curreni nssets 141,057
Todal non-current asscis 135454
Todnl assecis - S ¥ |- 71 |
Current habilities ] 27,916
Mom-current liabilities 2678
Todal liabalitses 5 30,554
Todal members” equaty 245957

Share of members” equity and carryving amount of

invesiment in IMG ] 95,383

1831/1&
Operating, administrative and other expenses £ [1,648)
Finance income, met (467)
Income tax expense (3,122
LLoss for the period (5235
Share of losses of NG 5 {2,054 )

i) Profect fnancing for e (HG

Az of now, the propect resources for the design and construction of the manne pipeling have been
funded with capital contributions of its members.

DEN

DEM is a joind venture formed between IEnova and Pemex, TR in which the Company owns S0-percent
equity imlerest. {Please refer 1o Note 1.2.3.)

Az of December 31, 2016, the Company’s remaining 30 percent interest in DEN is accounted for under

the equity method. IEN"s Condensed Consoludated Financial Statements and the Company's equity
method invesiment is summarized as follows:
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TAG Holding, together with TAG Pipeline Nonte a joint venture between DEN and an affiliate of Pemex,
and a consonium comprised of BlackRock and First Reserve, own Los Ramones Norte pipeline, which

Asal
125018
Cash and cash equivalents 5 EEl%
Due from unconsolidated affiliates 4012
Cither assets — A
Total current assels A L
Investments in join veniung 135327
Deferred mcome lax 17,364
Oither assets 1441
Propenty, plant and equipment, net R -
Total mon-curment assets 174,380
Total assels 3 191,489
Current liabilivies L3 2
Mom-current Habilities 85,627
Total linhilities 5186273
Total members” equity 5 5216
Share of members” equity and carrying amount of
investment in [DEN 5 2008
Fer ihe peviesd fram
ONTE 16 o 12730016
Revenues 5 5,623
Operating, adminstrative and other expenses (5.300)
Diher losses (341)
Finance cost, net (2.126)
Income tax benefin 3464
Share of profit of joint ventures, net of income tax 2,604
Profit for the peniod - 3914
Share of profits of DEMN 5 1,257

began operations in February 2016,

a)

TAG Prafect financtag

Om Decernber 19, 2004, TAG Morte Holding, (subsidiary of DEN), ¢ntered into a credit conlract
with Sanander (a5 lender, sdministrative agent and collateral agent), with the purpose of financing
the engineering, procufement, constroction and commissioning of the gas pipelme, During 20016
and 201 3, there were amendments o the credit in order o include additional banks as pary of the
credit, The wotal amount of the credit is $1,.276.2 million, divided in tranches: i) long tranche, up
1o ST00. 9 million, if) shon tranche up 1o 551 1.8 million and ii§) the bepler of credit tranche for debit
seTvice reserve up fo 5625 million.
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The credit facilities mature in December 2026 and December 2034 for the short and long tranche
Toan respectively, with payments due on a semi-annual basis. Th credit facilitses bear inténest af

LIBOR phus the spresd.
Applicable margin
Viears {basis poinis)
1 dishursemeni— System

{Comemercial Operation Daie) 250

0-4 265

5-9 3

10— 14 315

15=18.5 350

As of December 31, 2016, the toda] outstanding loan is 51,2144 million, with its respective
maturities. TAG Nore Holding hedged a portion of the loans tied 1o the interest rate risk through
an nierest rate swap, by changing the vannble mie for a fiked mte,

The loans mentioned above comtain resarictive covienants, which reguire the Company (o maimain
certain financial ratios and limdts dividend payments, loans and obtaining of additional financing.
TAG More Holding met such covenants as of December 31, 2006,

Lomge-barm b due dates are as fodbows:

Year Nmawnl

il ) 5 REA4

2018 ig9

2009 iR9

2020 589
Thereafter G493

Toital % 12044

Db for finamoime vadvesaedded sar, On December 19, 2004, TAG Pipeline Nore signed a credit
agreement for financing VAT with Santander. The amount of the cradit line is 53,6809 million
Mexican Pesos, As of December 3, 2016, dispositions of $3,660.0 million Mexican Pesos were
taken from the credin line and advance payments were made for $3,390.0 million Mexican Pesos.

Business comlsinalions
1.1 GdC

On September 26, 2016, 1Enova acquired the remaming 50 percent of the shares of GAC ot a value of
$1.143.8 million as mentioned in note 1.2.3., which was recorded using the acquisition method as it
obained control over GAC as of such date. The result of this acquisition has been included in the
accompanying Consolidoted Financial Statements as of the scquisition date,

Substdiaries aequired
Propartion of
Diate of Consideration
Entity Principad actininy s :m:;;n:d
Gasoductos de Chihuahua  Operation of natural gas ~ September 26, % §1,143834
S.deR L.deC.V.iand  compression station 206
subsidurnes

GAC was sequired 1o continue the éxpansion of the Company.



Consideration transferred

The costs associated with the sequisition have been excluded from the conswderation transferred and have
been recognized as an expense in the period within “Operating, administrative and other expenses” in the
Consolidated Staterments of Profit and Other Comprehensive [noome,

Assers aoquired and Dabilides recogwized af the acquisidon dote and goodwill on acgquisiidons

Gl
As ol WINTE

Fair value of business combmatson:

Cash consideration [fair value of total consideration) 5 1.143,834

Taotal fair walue of business combination 5 2287 668
Cash and cash equivalents 66,230
Trade and other recevables 66, 7140
Finance lease receivables D45, 104
Property, plant and equipment, net 309,186
Chiber assels LEE
Cuarrent liabilithes (1129800
Mon-current liabilities (1)  (484.572)
Total idemifiable, net assets e Te0.AE0
Goadwill § 1497008

(1) Inchades 53640 million related to bonk boans.

The mitkal accounting for the acquisition of GAC has only been provisionally determined at the end of
the reporting period.

Mone of the goodwill 15 expected to be deductible for lax purposes.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Selected Fafuation Methoodology,

GAC is & regulated business, that will earn a return of its cos1s and a reasenable return on s invested
capital, withouwt other consideration; the value of the assets of a regulajed business is the valoe of its
invested capital, Under this premise, the FY ol the fixed assets of regulated businesses is equivalent to
carrying value for financial reponiing purposes, as carmying value reflects the hasis for which imvested
capital is derived, and for which a regulated business is allowed to cam a reasorable returmn.

The Company concluded that the carmving value of the fived assets is deemed (o be representative of FY
for IFRS purposes.

Nt casly flow from acguisition of subsidlaries

evaiaong
Consideration paid in cash s 1,143 834
Less: balances of cash and cash equivalents acquined (B 250)
Consideration paid in cash, net & 1077584
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1.2

Impact of acquisitions on the resnlis of the period

The results at the acquisivon date, includes a gain of $673.1 million for the exeess of the acquisition-date
fair value of [Enova’s previously held equity interest in GAC over the earrying value of that inerest,
ncluded a5 Remeasurement of Equity Method [nvestment on the Consolidated Statements of Profil
Please refer o Exhibit A “Proforma additional information™

Ventika

Om December 14, 2016, IEnova acquired the 100 percent of the shares of Vientika st a value of 54347
million a5 mentioned in Note 1,26, which was recorded using the acquisition methaod as it obtained
control over Vientika as of such date, The result of this soquisition has been included in the sccompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements as of the acquisition date,

Subsidiaries aoqoired
Propasiion ol
Eatiay Praseipal sctivity e T i ler el i iiied tranaferned
Ventika Wind Farm e 100 $434,688

Ventika was acquired to continue the expansson of the Company,

Considerarion ransferred

The costs associated with the soquisition have been excludead from the consideration transferned and have
been recognized as an expense in the period within “Operating, adminisirative and other expenses” in
the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Other Comprehensive Incoeme,

Aszets aequired awd Nellfides recogrized af the aoguistilon date and goodwill on eoquisitions

Ventiks
As oll L2116
Fair value of business combimation:
Cash consuberation {fair value of wial consideration) g 309724
Total fair valee of business combination 5 304,724
Cash and cash equivalents 24
Restricted cash HE 200
Trade aml other receivables 14,939
Property, plant and equipment, net 673,410
Intangible assets 154,144
Oither assels v
Current liabilities (145912
Mon-current liahilitics — (621835
Total identifiable, net assels 1 80,6
Goodwill 5 128,118

The initial sceouning for the acquisition of Ventika has only been provisionally determined at the end
of the reporting period.

None of the goodwill is expected 10 be deductible for tax purposes,
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Selectedd Valuation Methodology.,

*  Based on the nature of the power facility and generally sccepted industry practice, we relied on the
Income Approach, specifically the DCF method.

= Associaed intangibles such as rights of way / easemenits are embedded in the value of the Propeny
Pland and Equipmend,

¢ While the Cost Approach was ned relied upon 10 derive our fair value estimate, provided the income
approach being the preferred approach to valuing an operational wind power facility, it was
considercd for comoboratory purposes in melation to our fair valee estimate derived utilizing the
Income Approach. It is nobed that our derived fair value estimate embeds a developer margin {i.e.,
margin abowve the cost to develop! construct the power project) that is within the reasenable range of
developer margins cxpected for this type of power facility and at the stage of development associated
with Ventika (ie., recemtly entenng commercial operation),

In addition to what is described above, the Company used different estimates relating to operating
SEALishics, revenuss, opermting expenses ond cash flow items,

Nt sl fTow firom acguisitior of subsidimries

As ol

LES Eo
Consideration paid in cash £ 434 68K
Less: balances of cash and cash equavalents acquired {243
Consideration paid in cash, net £ 434 664

Please to refier Exhibit A “Proforma additional information™

12, Assets chassified as held for sale and discontinued operations

As mentioned in Mote 1.2.2., the Company's manapement approved a plan to market and sell TDM, a
625 MW natural gas-fired power plant located in Mexicali, Bagn California, Mexico. As of March 31,
2006, the asscts and liabilites were classified ander curment assels and liabilities as held for sale. The
results of TDM are presented within discontinued operations,

Details of the discontinued operations ane provided as follows:
TDM is a pant of the Power Segment; its Consolidated Financial Statements are summariced as follows;

1230116 1230115 1230114

Revenues 5 101547 § 143500 5 224663
Cost of revenuoes (85, 440) {114,209} { 174,360
Operating, adminisirative and other

CXENEES (17.515) (22 .354) {19, 726)
Depreciation and amortization (2.222) (15.212) (15.215)
Impairment (136, 880) - -
Interest income, net 25 42 12
Finance costs (254) (244) (236)
Other losses, net (1.396) (151) (2.801)
Incame tax benefit (expense)® 29809 (6169 __ (BA42T)
{Loss) income for the year S (L2330 5 (479D 54010
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* As of December 31, 2006, the Company recorded a deferred tax expense i the amount of 363
million, 1o recognize the difference betwean book valve and tax basis, as a result of the decision 1o
chassily TDM s o held for sale. This effect is shown in the Consolidated Stalements of Profit in the
line of ilem “Logs for the period from discontinued operations, net of mcome tax”,

1231716 (RLTRES R4
Liss peer share:
L osses per share from decontinged
OpCTHomS:
Basic and diluied {loss) carnings per
share 3 {009 5 {001y s 0.01
Asiets and Imbilites beld for sale comesponding o TDM are as follows:
R AT
Cash and cash equivalents 5 434
Ohheer assets — JLE1}
Tatal current assels 33 347
Property, plant and aquipment, net (1) 134,633
Carbon allowance 11089
Dither assets 1,125
Deferred income tax assels 193
Total mon-curment asseis 158 04
Total assets & 191,287
Current linbilities 5 7974
Won-curreni lishilities 27477
Total Liabilities 5 354%]

(1}  Asaresult of the allecation in asscts held For sale property, made dunng this year, the Company

camied oul & review of the recoverable amount of these asseis. The review led to the recopnition
of an after-tax impaimment loss of 5890 mallion which has been recognized in the Consolidated
Starements of Profil. The Company also estimated the fair value less costs of disposal of property,
plant and equipment, which 15 based on the recent market prices of asats with similar age and
obsolescence, Impairment assessmient was performed in 2015, however, there was no mmpairment

indicator.
Asafl
12030016
Cash flows from discontinwed operations:
Met cash flows used by operating activities 5 (B68)
Med cash flows used i investing activities {2 198)
Met cash outllows used in Minancing activities {256
Net cash outflows § (331)
13 Gosdwill
1231016 123105 12314
Cost ] L65LTE0 8§ e~ R T— Y

There are no accumulated impairment losses.



The breakdown of goodwill is as folbows:

Company Amouni

G 5 1,497,008
Ventka 12018
Initial goodwill 25,654
Tatal L1 L651.780

Allacation of geadwill fn caih-gemerating unis

Gondwill has been allocated for impairment testing parposes oo IEnova Gasoductos México™s cash-gencrating
unit, which is meluded in the Gas segment.

Thee recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit is determined based on a 10-year DCF analysis of |[Enova
Gasoducios México's projected resulis. The DCF for 2006, 2015 and 2014, was calculated based on o long-term
unlevered cash Now foracas using a discount rabe of 9.0%, which was the same rate used at the acquisition date.

There ane nao significant changes i [Enova Gasoductos México's operations that would indicate potential
impairment since acquisition, including the following: a) is financial resulis have been comsistent with
manapement’s imital projections, b) the changes on the macreeconomic indicaionrs may bave not had sdverss
effect on the Company’s operations (i.e. risk free rates are unchanged or lower than acquisition date and the
change of Sovereign average rating from BBB to BBB+ for México), ¢} changes in the regulatory environment
kave not had adverse effect on the Company's operations and, d) there have been no significant changes in
workforce, sirategy, market irends or impacts due fo recent scquisitions/integrations.

Althowgh, the Company”s management believes the current discount rale may be lower as market rates have
declmad since the scquisition, the discount rate used os of the acquisiion date was deemed 10 be o reasonable
rate for goodwill impairment testing purposes.

4.

Property, plant and equipment, net

CArrying aunmirniy af
Buikdings and plants

Equipemem
Chber astets

Accumulated depreciatson and
amartization

Land
Properties under constreciion

Asal
T2 E 1258 1204
5 ill0ss 5 2586775 8 2,287,706
P00 T Bb.965 64,572
A8.670 38843 12048
3.2066.212 2712583 2 385,226
— 433074y  _____ (3FVI63) _____ (490.686)
B2.404 76,524 74988
B8 543 364,296 415211
8614088 0§ 2305840 0§ 23T



Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2014
Additions
Dizposals
Effect of foreign currency translation
Revisions and additions to decommissioning
liahility

Balance as of December 31, 2014
Additions
D
Effect of foreign currency translation
Revisions and additions 1o decommissioning
lnabiliey

Balance as of December 31, 2003

Assets held for sale

Additions

Business combination GdC

Business combination Ventika

Disposals

Effect of foreign currency translation

Revisions and additions o decommissioning
liability

Balance as of December 31, 2016

Acemmulated deprecistbsn

Balance as of January 1, 2004
Eliminated on disposals of assets
Depreciation expense
Effect of foreign currency transiation
Oither

Balance as of December 31, 2014
Eliminated on disposals of assets
Depreciation expense
Effect of foreign currency translation

Balance as of December 3], 2015
Assets held for sale
Eliminated on disposals of assets
Depreciation expense
Effect of foreign currency translation
Onheer

Balance as of December 31, 2016

74,421
5T

(4)

Buildings
and plants

2077478
221,928

(7.908)

(14,292)

10,490

74,988
1,542

(6]

2RT 706

332,691
(2,738)
(25.275)

{5,608

76,524
(674

il 026
252

()

2,586,775
(436,07T)
15,523
206,520
673,531
(1,021)
(26,882)

4,978

2404

113,347

(417, 56:4)
244

(50,5710
5113

(468,778)
870

(62,203)
6,269

($23,842)
178,795
271
(57,741)
6,732
(934)

(396,719

Properties undér
Equipmint censiracition Chleer il Total
32,960 423,989 27032 2,635,880
11,841 120,269 5424 363,043
. (128.848) (1.241) (137.997)
(229} [ 199 (1,267T) (15991)
. " . 10,490
64,572 415211 32948 2875425
22697 (30,048) B. 764 315,646
- - (1317} (4,055)
{304} (867) (1.552) (28,004)
_ = = (5,609
56,965 364,296 38843 3,153,403
(7,525) [533) (2.935) (447, 744)
17,083 332682 17,386 382958
& - B. 750 311,2%
- - - 673,783
(164) - (738) (1,923)
i 344) (724) (1,636) (29,592)
L] " e ‘..ws
S 9017 569571 5. 59670 S 4047159
(7.077) - (17.402) (442,043)
£ - 817 1,061
(1.043) - (4,178) (61,792)
27 - 882 6,022
(432} > (481) {934)
(B, 543) - (20,363) (497 636)
{3599) - 183 454
(1.635) - (3.844) (67.682)
173 - L T.351
(10.606) - (23,115 &% (357,563)
- - 1,622 180,417
i - 270 652
(2241 - (3.468) (63 450)
186 - 886 7,804
. " - (934)
§ (2350 5 - 0 0§ (23805) 3 (433074



ECA acquired 19,452 204 square meters of land of which 627,614 were uséd for the comstruction of the LNG
Terminal, The remaining land ks uwsed as bufler and access rones in accordance with the authorization izswed by
ihe Mexican Majural Resources and Environmental Ministry (Secretaria de Medio Ambicnie v Recursos
Matwrales, “SEMARNAT” by its initials in Spanish),

The additions 1o property, plant and equipment durng 2006, 2005 and 2014, are comprised mainly of additions
1o construction in process. The Sisabe-Puerip Liberiad section of the Sonora pipeline began operations in
October 2004, The first segment was completed in stages, with Puerto Liberiad sectson completed in the fowrth
quarter of 2014 and the final section completed in August 2005, The capacity is fully contracted by the CFE
under two 25-year confrocts denominated in L. 5. Dollars, in sddition 10 reloted to Sonom Pipeline and ESJ
Wind projecis, {see subpamgraph ¢ of Moie 1.2.8.). As of December 31, 2006, 2015 and 2004 pdditions of
property, plant and equipment that wend nol paid, amount to $49.8 million, $5.2 million and $27.0 million,
respectively.

Borrewing cost, The Company copitalized bomowing costs on qualifying assets of 5148, 5151 and 521.0 for
the vears ended December 31, 2006, 2015 and 2004, respectively. The weighted average rate used 1o determing

the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization were 3.33 percent, 3.47 percent, respectively, for the
periods ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 respectively.,

ML Useful Bves of properiy, pland and equiprrent
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on the remaining useful lives of the related

asseta, as fiodlows:

Yeurs
Buildings 4
Plant and equipment for LNG stonge, regasification and nirogen injection fcility ' 545
Plant and equipment for Wind Power Generation Facilities 20
Pipelines system for ransportation and distribution of natural gas ! 3450
Plant and equipment for generation of ebectricity ! 37
Fiber optic network ! 520
Leaschold improvements * 310
Machinery and other equipment * 310
Oher assets 3-20

I Ulsefil lives reloted to plant and squipment calegory
] Ulseful lives related to other assels category

Other intangible asseis

2&
Carrying amomirs oft
Renewabde transmissaon rghts I - LT

This amount corresponds o the renewable transmiassion and consumption rights associated with projects
approved under the preexisting self-supply renewable program.

I6. Trade and other payables

Bl F [ (LTI E 113114

Trade payables -3 03,731 5 43830 % 41436
Other mascellanisous payables B35 19 38
Trading financial instrument payable {a) - = NEALTE

- L. D S k. S S— T
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The average credit period on purchases of goods and services 5 between 15 to 30 days. No mienest has been
charged on fracke payables. The Company has polscies in place 1© ensure that all payables are pard within the
pre-agreed credit terms,

Treoalling fTmmactal fnstramients

In 2004 the Company entered intoe a derivative financial instrument agresment to hedge the volatlity of
the Muctustion of the Mexican Peso relative to the UL 5. Dollar. Cerain monetary assets and labilities of
the Company were demominated in UL 5, Dollars (functional cumrency); however, they were remeasurned
in Mexican Pesos throughout the vear for Mexican tax purposes. The remeasurement of these assets and
linhilities gves nise to foreign curency goins and losses for Mexican tax purposes. Such derivative
financial instrument was lerminated in 2014,

17.  Employee benefits

I L Defined contrtbuilon componens

The Company provides a defined contribution plan for all permanent full-time employees in México,
Employees that leave the Company obtain the capital accumulated with the contributions according o
the following westing schedule: a) Basic Contribution: 100 percent imemediately for the capital
sccurmulated, b) Additional Contribution; for the capital accumulaied the vestung rales are: 100 percent
in case of death or disability, and in case of volunary termination according with the Company policy.

172 Defined benefit compowent
The Company also provides defined benefit plans for all permanent full-time employees of its
subsidiarses in México, Under the plans, the emplovess ane entitled o retirement bemelits varving
between 55 percent and 100 percent of their final salary upon reaching the retirement age of 65, No oher
post-retirement benefits are provided io these employees,

173, Senlority pressiume benefls

The Company provides seniority premium benefits, which consist of a lump sum payment of 12 days of
wages per each vear worked, calculated using the emploves’s most recent salary, nod to exceed twice
the minimum wige established by law,

R Costs and obligations for pesi-cmplovarent and other feng-term emplayee bewgfis
The principal assumptions used For the purposes of the actuarial valustions were as follows,

¥ nlwatien a1
123116 1250118 123114

Drscount rates bl L 5. 8.25%
Expected rates of salary

inCrease 4.75% 4.75% 4.75%
Long-term expadied

inflatiom 3.T75% 175% 3.75%
Exchange rate 5 18R 5 17.20 5 14.72



Carbon allowances

The Company i required by Califomia Assembly Bill 32 1o scquire carbon allowance for every metric ton of
carbon dioxide equivalent emitted into the smosphere during electricity penermtion. Under the bill TDM is
subpect to this extraterritorial regulation, despite being bocated i Baga Californan, Mexico sinee their end users
are located in Califomia, U, 5.

The Company récords carbon allowances o the lower of weighted average cost or market value, and inchudes
them as current of non-current on the Staements of Financial Position based on the dates that they are required
1o e surrendersd. The Company measures the compliance of the obligation, which is based on emissions, at the
camying value of allowances held plus the Fair vabue of additional allowances necessary 1o satisfy the obligation,
The Company derecognizes the assets and liabilities from the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as
the allowances are surrendered. Please refer to Mode 12,

Carbon allowances are shown in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as follows:

Year ensded
Assris: 1131116 1231/1% 123014
Current 5 - 5 5385 & 20 R
Non-current - 12975 229
3 i i 18360 5 0005
Yiear emaded
Liabilities 125016 12105 1234
Cuifrenl L - 5 53185 5 o g6
Mon-curment - 12611 -
3 2 3 19 520564

Short-term debd

A of December 31, 2006, 2015 and 2004, within other Ginancial lRabilites shom-teom debt includes the
following:

Amounts recognized within curment eamimgs and OC1 as well as benefits paid with respect 1o the 20,
Company’s post-conployment and other long-term employee benefits were as follows,
12306 (FALI P LY TERL4
Curment service oost
tecognioed n
admimnzstrative and other
X pefined 5 b 5 53l 5 381
Imderest an obligation
mocognised in finance
cosls 2 R 121 20
Actuanal (losses) gain
recognised in CC] 1,765 {1, 7 EET)
The amount included in the Consobidated Statements of Financial Position arsing from the
Company’s obligation related 1o its defined benefin plans, and changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation in the current vear, were as follows:
123016 (RN 1E34
Opening defined benefit
obligation 5 42 5 Jpas s 2,684
Curment service cos 585 531 EL1|
Imicress cost (benefit) L1 L | {50h
Actuarial loss (gain) 435 (635) 357
Exchange differences on
plans maintzimed by
Micxican peso functicnal
curmency enfitics - I,102 (204)
Payment 115
Benefits paid (153 {49 {33)
Ending defimed benefit
obliygation - T——- - .| S - b I— 1
18, Other financial liabilities 2.
128 1230115 123104
Accmied interest payable (a) 5 4 835 5 S 5 6, 5461
Customer deposits 1.0x2 TRI 63
8 3ETT & 644 5 LID
{a)  Balance represents accrued interest payable on long-berm diebd (Please nefer io Mote 23),
19, Other liabilities
10 I E 1231014
Wages and benefits pavable 5 14,995 5 13482 % 11,54
Other current lizbalities 13 366 4,755 11,734
. 2BBel 5173237 52159

1230516 13730108 (FILERI B
Credit agreement (o) 5 446034 & 91,374 3§ 51020
Current portion of GAC s Bank Loan (h) 38 682 - -
Current portion of Ventika Bank Loan {c) 13 482 - -
Sontander (d) - - 145,346
493 198 91,374 196, 36
Borrawing costs (4,627) (2867} (1,277

2493571 . BRS00 % 193089

(ay  Creolir agreement, On August 21, 2005, the Company enlened inlo an agreemenl for a 530000 million,
LIS, Dollar-denominated, five-year corporate revodving credit Bacality 1o finance working capatal and
for general corporate purposes. The lenders are Banco Nackonal de Mexico, 5. A Integrante de Grupo
Financiero Banamex, SMBC, Samtander, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitubishi UF), LTD,, and The Bank of
Nowva Scotia.
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Credit facility with SMBC. On Aupust 25, 2004, the Company entered info an agreement for a $100.0
million, LS, dollar-denominated, three-vear corporate revolving credis facility to finance working
capital and for general corporste purposes. The bender & Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation.
Ingerest accrues hased on the 3-month LIBOR plus 105 basis pomits. During July, 2015 the U
withdrew 534.0 million. On August 24, 2015 the Company decided 10 repay the total credit facility and
cancelled this credit facility.

Interest accrues based on the 3-month LIBOR plus 90 basis poings, As of December 23, 2015, [Enova
had 53100 million of oustanding bomowings supponed by the facility, On December 22, 3015, the
Company renegoliated the credit line of agreement for an amount up to 36000 million, U5, Dollar-
denominated. On December 23, 2015 the Company decided to repay $219.0 million (principal ) of such
credit facility.

Withdrenval of cradir lime. In July, 2006, the Company withdrew $380.0 million, of such credit line to
be used for working capital and general comporate purposes. In December, 2006 the Company withdrew
£375.0 millson o finance a portion of Yentika's acquisition and for gencral corponte purposes.

On Movember 3, 20016 the Company rencgotinbed the credit line of such credit agreemsent for an amount
up o SEIT00 mallsoen, LS, Dollar-denominmed on December 300 3016, a portion of this revalving
credit was repaid in the amount of $200.0 million. As of December 31 2006, the avaalable unused credit
portion s $724.0 million,

Please refer 1o Mate 10,1,

Fineneing of profect s value added sax - On April 8, 2004, Ventika and Yemika 11 entered imo a line of
credit with Nacional Financiera, 5, N. €. Institucidn de Banca de Desarrolio (“MAFIN™) and Banco
Macional de Comercio Exterior, S. N, C. Institucién de Banca de Desarrollo (“BANCOMEX"), as
lenders, On December 17 2005, there was an amendment to increase the ling for up to 5569 4 million
Mexican Pesos and 57133 million Mexican Pesos, respectively. Imenest will be acomued at the TIHE plus
250 basis points payable on a quarterly basis. The credit line under this contracts will be used to finance
thie VAT on the Ventika propects. Im 2016, the Company decided to repay and accordingly canceled the
total credit Facility.

Credit facility with Santander, On June 19, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement for a $200.0
million, U5, Dollar- denominated, three-vear corporate revelving credit facility to finance working
capital and for general corporate purposes. The lender Santander, Interest accrued base on the 3= month
LIBOR plus 105 hasis points, During July and August 2015, the Company withdrew $76.0 million and
$25.0 million respectively, On August 26, 200 5, the Company decided 1o repay the total credit facility,
As a result, ransaction cost were recorded in the Consolidated Siatements of Profil,

Provisions
FEOALAE [ FILN AL E [ FIEI RN

Decommissioning labilties (a) 5 41618 5 Mxe 8 38,250
Cither (b 10,347 1.29% | I

TR | I 2 33529 & FB69
Current L Q30 5 1.293 5 1619
Non-cusrent 51,035 14236 18,250
Todal provisions - 51,965 8 5539 § 30,869
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{a)

(b)

Asse rethremsent
ohikgntisss Dilsers Twinl

Balance as of January 1, 2014 5 26430 & 1545 5 28,375
Additional provisions recognized 1,330 - 1,330
Payments and other decreases in

provisions recognized - (326) [326)
Unwinding of discount and effect off

changes in the discount rate | {49 - 104540
Balance as of December 31, 2014 38,250 1619 39,860
Additional provisions recopnized 159 - 1,596
Paymenis and other decreases in

provisions recognized - (3263 [326)
Unwinding of discount and effect of

changes in the discount rate (A610 - (5,600
Balance as of December 31, 2015 5 34,236 1 1,293 5 550
Additional provisions recognized 1.715 9,350 11,095
Increase financial cost [,735 1,735
Payments and other decreases in

provisions recognized (326) (326)
Unwinding of discount and effect of

changes in the discoumt rate Ja32 - o3z
Balance as of December 31, 2016 & 41618 5 10347 5 51,965

For long-lived assets, the Company recognized decommussioning liabalities for the present value of future
costs expected 1o be incurred when assets are withdrawn from service, if the Company bas a legal or
constructive obligation and if the Company can make a reasonable estimate of that obligation. The
discount rases used by the Company were 4,54 percent, 4,66 percent and 4,14 percent at December 2016,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

The balance of other provisions include a liability ansing from an onerous contract representing the
present value of future bosses that the Company expects 1o incur under one of their service confracts,
Because the related assed is operating below full capacity, management of the Company utilized a preseni
value model to determine the provision utilizing a discount rate of 10 percent.

23, Long-term debt

a.

Omn Febmuary 14, 2013, the Company entered inio two public debt issuances of Certificados Bursatiles
“CEBURES" or debt securnities a5 follows:

i} The first placement was for $306.2 millien (32.9 billion of historical Mexican Pesos) bearing
inberest ot o rate of 6,30 percent, with semi-anmual payment of imverest, maturing in 2023

i1} The second placement was for S10Z.1 million (51.3 bllion of historical Mexican Pesos) bearning

interest o1 varable rmte based on TIE plus 30 basis points, with monthly paymems of imkerest,
maturing in 2018, The average rate as of December 31, 2006, was 4,64 percent,
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As of December 31, 2016, 2005 and 2014, long-term debl includes:

1208 123015 123104
Santander «Ventika (d) 5 472 781 5 " 5
Bancomer = Gad(C (c) 317279 . -
CEBURES fixed rate {a) 188,734 226,659 264,981
CEBURES variable rate (b) 62911 75,553 RE327
1,040,705 302212 153,308
Debt issuance costs (L300 (2.28T) {2,670}

§__ 1033804 5 309935 0§ 350638

Cross=pinrency ad fvere rote swaps, On February 14, 2003, regarding the placements of CEBURES,

the Company execuled cross-curmency and imerest rale swap contracs for hedging s exposure o the

payment of its liahilities in Mexican Pesos;

i)  Forthe debt matoning in 2023, the Company swapped fixed rate in Mexican Pesos for a fixed rate
in L5, Diollars, exchanging principal and interest payments. The weighted average interest rate, in
LS. Didbars for this swap was 4.12 percent.

i)  Forthe debt maturing in 2008, the Company swapped variable mate in Mexican Pesos for a fixed

rate in 1.5, Dollars, exchanging principal and inferest payments. The weighied average inlercst
rate, in LLS, Dollars for this swap was 265 percent.

The swaps toial aotional value i 54083 million (55.2 billion historical Mexican Pesos), These contracts
huve been designated as cash flow bedpes.

Please refer Mote 10.1(a).

In such cradit, GdC was defined as debtor, TDF together with GAT were assigned as guarantors and
collwerals through the cessson of the collections mghts from their partfolis of proects integrated by Gz,
TOF and GdT as source of payment for the credir.

Covenants arising from the credit require for following:

Baintain a minimum member s equity during the wrm of the bsan, in the amount indicated:

GdiC 5 450 000
GdT 130,000
TDF SHlk ()

Maintain an interest covermpe mito of 2.5 1o 1 af least on a conselidated basis (EBITIA w interesth for
the pavment of interest

At the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company has complied with these obligations,

Frovieed financing for the Ventika project, On Apal 8, 2014, Ventika and YVentika 11 enfered into a project
finance loans for the construction of the wind projects with five banks: Santander as administrative and
collsteral agend, the Nonh American Development Bank (“NADB”), and Banco Nacional de Obras v
Servicios Publicos, 5. M. C. Instiucidn de Banca de Desamolio ("BANOBRAS™), Banco Nacional de
Comercio Exterior, 5. M. C. Instiucidn de Banca de Desarrollo ("BANCOMEXT™), and Macional
Financiera, 5. N, C. Instiucion de Banca de Desasrollo (“MAFIN) as lenders,
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The credit facilinies mature according 1o the following table, with payments due on a quarterly basis
feach March 15, June 15, September 15 and December 15 umtil the final mawnty date), staming on
December 13, 2016, The credit facilitics bear interest as follow:

Bank Muturity Interest rute
date Applicable
SANTADER 152024 LIBOR + applicable margin
BANOBRAS 3152032 LIBOR + applicable margin
MADE 352032 Fixed rate + applicable margin
BANCOMEX &322 Ficed rate + applicable margin
MAFIN 3152032 Fixed rate + applicable margin
The breakdown of the debt is as follows:
A ol
2316
SANTANDER 5 113442
BANDHREAS ), 3
NADSB 140,652
BARCOMEX 0,320
MAFIN 70,330
INTEREST PAYABLE [NET]
5. 486,263

Iverext Reve Swaps. In order 1o mitigate the impact of benchmark interest rate changes, Ventika and
Ventika I entered into four imterest rate swaps with Samtander and BANORRAS: that allow Ventika
and Ventika 1 to have almost 92 pescent of the mentioped credit facilities above fixed. The swap
contracts allow for the Company o pay a fixed interest rate of 294 percent and 368 percent
respectively, and io receive variable inkcrest rate (3 month LIBOR).

2.  Financial insirumenis

21 Capltal memegemen

Decisions on capital management for IEnova are made by directors of the Parent and [Enova’s key
executives, The Parent’s sk management commities reviews the capital structure of the Company ot its
regular sessions, As of December 31, 2014, projfects were funded through the resources oblained from
the CEBURES and Iniial Public Offering (“IPO). The Company expects its cash flows from operations
1o fund a substantial porisen of future capatal expenditures and dividends, (Please refer to Nose 1.2.5.)

The Company is subject 1o externally imposed capital requirements for its regulated subsidiaries in the
gas sepment. According to applicable regulaiions ihe subsidiaries need to inclede in their bylaws ihe
requirement to have a edpimuom fxed capital, withowt withdrawal rights, equivalent to ten percend of
their imvestmend.

Also, the Company has a commitment with the Mexbcan regulator for capital contributions based on

invested capital for its LNG termingl. As of December 31, 2006, 20015 and 2014, the Company had
comiplied with the above requirements.
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M2 Categories of fimancial instraerenes

[FILNR Y (FHLIGE] [F-RLTIE

Flmmirctal atsers

Cash and cash equivalenis £ 24918 2 40,377 g 83,637

Short term invesiment By 20, DR 30,020

Restricted cash 31,363 - =
FNTPL

Held for trading 8,120 21,504 34,729
Amortized cost

Loans and receivahles 218,214 193,102 23T

Financial leasing 957 466 14,510 14,621
Frmanetal Babilitfes
FNTPL

Held fior rading 5 226,161 5 133,056 £ 107,257

Amortized cost 1,207 R12 220 3% S65 1)

M.A Fluawchal risk sramagement abfectives

The activitics carmicd out by the Company may expose it o financial sk, including market nsk, which
encompasses foreipn exchange, interest rate and commaedity price risks, credst nsk and liqudity risk.
The Company seeks to minimize the polential negative effects of these nsks on its Minancial performance
through an overall risk management program.  The Company may use denvative and non-denivative
finan<ial instruments 10 hedge apainst some exposures to financial risks embedded i assets and Habilities
an the Consalidated Statements of Financial Position or off-balance sheet risks { fimm commibments and
highly probable forecasted ransactions). Both financial risk management and the use of denvative and
mon=derivative financinl instraments are povemed by Compamy policies.,

The Company identifies, assesses, moniors and centrally manages the financial rsks of ks operating
subsidiaries theough written policies that establish limits associated with specific risks including
guidelines for permissible boases, guidelines for determining when the use of cenain derivative financial
instruments are appropriate and within policy puidelines, guidelines for when instromentis can be
designated as hedges, and guidelines for when derivative instroments do ot qualify for hedge accouming
but can qualify as held-for-trading, which is the case for denivative fimancial instruments. Compliance
with established polickes and cxposure limits by the Company's management is reviewed by inemal
aundit on & rowtine basis.

244 Market risk

Market nsk 15 the sk of erosion of the Company's cash flows, camings, asset values and aquity due 1o
pcdverse changes in market prices and mtenst and foreign curmency rabes,

The Company has policies governing its market sk management and trading activities, The Parent’s
setior officers are members of commatiees that establish policies, oversee energy risk management
activities, and maonilor the rezuls of rading and other activities (o ensure compliance with the Company s
stabed enerpy risk management and irading policies. These activities inchude, but are nof limited ko, daily
epaitoring of market positions that creste credit, liguidity and market fisk. The respective oversighd
organizations and commitiess are independent from the energy procurement departments.
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4.5,

2.6

The Company enters inlo a vanety of denvative financial instruments 10 manage its exposure 1o
commidity price, interest rate and foreign curmency exchange rate risks, inchuding:

o [mterest rate swaps o mitigate the risk of ising inenest rates or foreign currencies under which
cenmin liabilities are denominated {and its related tax impacts); and
s Commodity price contracts 10 hedge the volatility i the prices and basis of nataral gus.

There has been no matenal change io the Company s exposure to marked nsks or the monper mowhich
these nsks ane managed and measured.

Value af Risk {“VaR "} analysis

The Vak measure estimates the potential loss in pre-tax profit, under nonmal market conditions, over o
given holding period for a specified confidence level. The VaR methodobogy is a statistcally defined,
probability-based approach that 1kes imo acoount market volatilinees as well as nsk diversification by
recognizing offseiting positions and correlations between products and markets, Risks can be measured
consistently across all markets and producis, and risk measures can be aggregated 1o armive al a single
rigk mumber,

Along with other tools, the Company uses VaR o measure its exposure 10 market risk primanily
associated with commodity dervative instrumsenis that the Company holds. The Company uses historical
violatilities and correlations between mstruments and posstions in the caleulations.

The Company uses a one-day holding period and a 95 percent confidence mterval in its VaR calculations.
The one-day %5 percent Val number reflects the 95 percent probability that the daaly loss will mod excesd

the reported VaR.
The variance-covanance approach was used to caloulatz the VaR values.

Wk Histery (95%. one day) Wear ended
by risk Lype 12ALnE [FELRTRS 1230014
Inierest mte swap 5 4025 3 3,761 5 4 G0
Total VaR exposure 5 384 35 3573 & 4376

WaR 15 a sttestical estimate of bow much o portfolio may lose in the given time horizon for the given
confidence interval. By wsing o YaR with o 95% confidence interval, the potential losses above that
percentile are nod considersd; by wing historical data possible adverse extreme movements might ool be
capiured, since these did not occur during the time period considened in the calculations; and there i no
guarantee that the actual bosses will not exceed the calculated VaR,

While Vak captures the Company’s daily exposure o commodity and interest rate risk, sensitivity
analysis evalumes the impact of & reasonably possible change in commadity prices and interest rabes over
a year. Details of sensitivity amalysis for foreign cumrency risk are sef out in Mot 24.7.

Commodiny price risk

Market risk related to physical commodities is created by volatility i the prices and basis of certain
commodities. The Company’s various subsidianies are exposed, m varving degrees, to price rsk,
primarily to prices in the natural gas markets. The Company's policy is to manapge this risk within a

framework that considers the umique market and operating and regulatory environments of each
subsidiary.
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The Company is penerally exposed to commodity price sk, indirecily through s LMNG, natural gas
pipeline and storage, and power generating assets. The Company may utilize commodity transactions in
the course of optimizing these assets, These trmnsactions arg bypically priced based on market indexes,
but may also inclode fixed price purchases and sales of commodities. Refer to Note 24.5.

Foreign corrency risk mansgement

The Company has investments in entities whose functional curmency is nod the U, 5, Dollar; additionally,
it akso has balances in Mexican Pesos held by its U5, Dolkar fumctienal currency subsidianes, exposing

the Company 1o curmency fluctuations.

The Company”s primary objective in reducing foreign currency risk is 1o preserve the econormic value of
the mvestments and 0 redece carmings volatility that would otherwise ocour due 1o exchange mte
Nuctuations,

As mentioned abowe, the Company enters inlo ransactions denpminated in foreign curmencies;
consequently, exposures o exchange rate Muciuations anse.

The carrying amounts of the Company s foreign currency-denominated financial assets and financial
liahilities, in relation to its subsidiarics” functional curencies, at the ond of the reporting period are as

Tollows:
Fimansisl et
[IafR T 123115 12304
L. 5. Dwllar functional currency
subsidianes 5 171.462 5 159,824 5 174,435
Mexican Peso functional
currency subsidiaries 19,900 30,110 26,011
Fimanvial liabilitie
128 123108 13114
LI 5. Dwollar functional cumency
subsidiaries -1 770000 5 585,062 L1 503 00
Mexican Peso functional
currency subsidiaries H.002 31713 17,531

For the Company’s U5, Dollar functional currency subsidiaries their Mexican Peso balances include;
bank accounts and shom-term investments, VAT, IT and Flat Tax (IETU by mmtials m Spanish)
receivables or pavables, prepaid expenses, pouaranice deposits, long-teom debt, trade sccounts payahle
and other tax withboldings,

For the Company s Mexican peso functional cumency subsidiaries, their U5, Dollar balances include:
hank accounts, intercomipany loans, trade sccounts payable and provisions.

Exchange rates in effect as of the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and their issuamnce date
ane as folbows,

1230716 IEC31S [ REERTHE ] BLTLIT

Cne LS. Dollar 5 2060 5 172065 5 14.7180 5 20,4526
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ML Favelgn currency sensittvity aaalysls

The Company’s sccount balances disclosed in Note 24.7. are exposed to the Mexican Peso for its
.5, Dollar functional currency subssdinnies and tothe ULS, Dollor for its Mexican Peso functional
cumency subsidiaries,

The following table details the Company’s profit and OCT sensitivity to a 10% increase and
decrease in the U.S, Dollar against the Mexican Peso. The sensitivity rate used 1o repon foreign
cumency sk mbernally to key Company’s management & 10 percent, which represents
management’s benchmark of the ible change in foreign exchange rates, The sensitivity
analysis melades only outstanding foreign cwmency dendaminated monetary dents and adjusts their
translsion ai the peried end for a 10 percend change i foreipn currency rales. The sensitivity
analvsis includes intercompany loans where the denomination of the loan 15 i @ currency other
than the functional currency of the lender ar the borrower,

A negative number bebow indicates a decresse in profitor equity whene the U S, Dollar strengthens
10 percent against the Mexican Peso for U5, Dollar functional cumency subsidianes, Fora 10
pereent weakening of the 1S, Dollor against the Mexican Peso, there would be o comparable
impact on the profit of equity, and the balances below would be positive.

For LLS, Dollar functional currency entities, the sensitivity analysis to changes in the Mexican
Peso to U. 5. Dollar exchange rate is determined on a pre-tax basis due to the complexity of
determining the tax impacts (tax laws recognize taxable or deductible exchanpe gains and losses
based on the ULS, Dollar monetary position, regardiess of the functional currency).

For Mexican Peso functional currency subsadiaries, a positive number below mdicales an imcrease
i profit or equity where the U5, Dollar strengthens 10 percent against the Mexican Peso. For a
10 percent weakening of the LS, Dodlar against the Mexican Peso, thene would be a comparable
impact on the profit or equity, and the balances belowr would be pegative.

! i fenn Pees functisnal currengy
2016 04 014 1016 T 1014
Profit (i) £ IEES % 2TOEl % 17623 % BE 5 M5 .
ol - - [ ABEH) [5.692) {4,731}

(i} This is mainly attribwtable to the exposure o oulstanding Mexican Peso receivables in the
L5, Dedlar functional currency subsidiaries at the end of each meporting perod.

The U5, Dollars funciional currency subsidisries sensitivity to foreign currency has increased
duaring the years ended December 31, 2006, 2015 and 2014 mainly duc io income tax
payrments,

The Mexican Peso functional cumency subsidiaries sensitvity 1o Fforeipn curmendy has
decreased during the vears ended December 31, 2006, 20015 and 2014 mainly due o lower
intercompany boans with unconsolidated affiliares,

24.8. Imierest rale risk managentent

I Sepeember 2005, the Company entered inte derivative iransactions (o hedge future imerest payments.
associated with forecasted borrowings of S450.0 million from third paries for ECA, which werne
desipnated as cash flow hadges. In 2007, the original hedged items became probable of ot cccurming due
to a change in the Company s external borrowing meeds. Accordingly, a cash flow hedge gain of $30.0
million was reclassified from OCIin members’ equity to curment carmings, and changes in the Bair value
of these instruments were recognized in current eamings prospectively within other gains and kosses line
item As of Decensber 31, 2004, there was one remaining imverest-rale swap agreement with o notsonal
amount of 151,232 in under which IEnova received a vamable interest rate {threg-month LIBOR) and
paed a fined imerest rate of 5.0 percent.
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The original wems of the swap expire on December 15, 2027, On September 16, 2015, the Company,
throaigh an early temmination classe, made a prepayment i the amoant of 5298 million and a5 a result,
such derivative was cancelled. The one-year VaR information related to the interest rate swap is inchuded
in Mote 245,

HMLEF. Pverest rove swaps comtracts enrered into by the Comipaiay 's foi veniires

The joint veniure with PGB entered imo a swap conbract to conven its variable imerest rate deba,
which matured on October 15, 2013, to a fixed interest rate. The notional value as of October 15,
2013 amownded to 5135 million, hedging the entire satstanding debt with the commercial bank,
and the maburity date coincided with that of the debt. The interest was recorded in the gas pipeline
construction cost during the construction period, and as part of the finoncial costs in the joint
venture’s individual statemients of profit and boss as of the commercial stanup date (Please refer
1o Mote 23}

Additionally, as described in Note 1022 (b) the joint venmre with InerGen enterad inte a swap
comract that effectively hedpes the mferest rate risk due 1o variable rate financings.

The fair value of derivative instruments is based on the market valoes in place as of the date of the
Consolidated Financial Swmiements, which impacts investment in joint venture with a debit 1o
CUrrenl camings.

The Company s management corsiders the resulis of the sensitivity analysis for these derivatives
1o be imimaicrial,

Credif risk managewrent

Crodit risk 15 the risk of loss that would be incurred as a result of nonperformance of the Company's
counterpartics contractual obligations. The Company moniors credit risk through a credit-approval
process and the assignment and monmonmng of credit linigs, The Company establishes these credit limats
based on risk and retumn considerations under terms customary or the industry,

As with market risk, the Company has policies and procedures 1o manage credit risk, which are eailored
for each business segment, administered by each subsidiany’s respective deparments and overseen by
their managemenl.

In ECO, depending on ihe type of service requested by the customer, different criternia ane applied as
follows:

Minor customers (retdential customens for housshold corsumption):

Copy of official kentification;

Proof of residence or power of attormey from landberd, in case of rental residences;
Personal references, (which are confirmed); and,

Registration with tax agency for commerncial customers with minos consumplion

& 8 @ @

Major customers {customers for imdustral and commercial consumplion):

Pawer of atiomey;

Legal representative official identification;

Copy of anticles of incorporation;

Proof of address; and,

Depending on consumption volume, a guarantes 15 required, which could include letter of
credit, cash deposil, or promissory noles among oibers,

" EEE

The oversight includes s monthly review of 100% of the balances of major customers by the credit and
eolbection depariment, to make sure thal payrmems are made on a imely manmer and o ensure that they
are in compliance with the agreed terms of their contract.

The Company believes that it has allocaled adequate reserves for counterpanty”s nonperformance.

For all ather entities of the Gas and Power segments, when the Company's development projects becomi

operational, they rely significamly on the abiliy of therr supphiers t© perform on long=term agreements
and on the ability to enforce comrect terms in the event of nonperformance,

Also, the faciors that the Company considers in evaluating a development project inchude negotiating
customer and supplier agreements and, therefore, rely on these agreements for future performance.

EER LN R Concearration of credin pisk

GRO and TGN conduct their businesses based upon ongoing evaluations of their customiens”
financmal conditions and cenain guarantees, except when such clients qualify for creddil based on
their long-term debs credit ratimgs ssued by “Standand & Poors”™ or olber credit rating agency in
the U, 5, or Canada,

GROY's manzgpement belseves that the nsk ansing fnom its concentration of credit is mitigated since
all customers pay on a monthly basis, otherwise service can be suspended wntil doe amounts ane
collectad.

TGM provides transporiation services mainly o ome sole customer. TGN s management believes
that a concentration of credit nisk s mitigated since its customer pays on a monthly basis, otherwise
service can be suspended until due amounts ane collected.

IEncva Marketing sells natural gas and provides transportation services to three customers, IEmova
Marketing”s management believes that ahbhough a potential concentration of credit risk is present,
this risk is mitigated since one of its customers is a govemmental entity and another is a related
pamy, Additsonally, all customers pay on a monthly basis, otherwise service can be suspended
until dwe ansounts are collecied,

ECA provides LNG storage and regasification services to |Enova Marketing and two other thind
parties. ECA’s management believes that althowgh o concentration of credit risk may exist, this
nisk 15 mitigated based on the creditworthiness of its customers and the related party nature of one
of its comractual arrangements,

GAF provides transponation services mainly to one sobe customer. GAFs management belicves
that its credit rigk is mitigated since the customers s a governmental entity with high credit mting

ani pays on a moenthly basis,
Following is a table that shows the Company”™s revenuse conceniration by customer:
Spmend 12/31L 16 (k4] Pl 11 124

Customer | Gas MaEsr 5§ 9755 5 24238
Customer 2 * Power - E3.667 138,505
Customer 3 Gias BE.60 B9037 01,635
Customer 4 (ias 101 999 51,683 -
Customer 5 (ias = 49,138 Q0,87
Customer & (ias Gl 416 - .
Customer 7 (s 15 838 . -
Cistomer (ias T4 389 P =
Customer 9 (a5 3,504 - -
Citheers ** 123130 1415957 175,244

§ 71789 S __ 613041 5 J3RE30
*  Please refir o Note 12,



"= Within others, there are no customers with revenue concentration grester than 1096 percent.

As mentioned above, all major customers pay on 3 monthly basis, otherwise service can be
suspended until due amounts are collected, and as a result, the Company’s management does not
cstimate the Company & exposed to significant credit risks.

The Company’s maximum credit risk exposure as of December 31, 2016, 2005 and 2014, was
£190.2 million, $172.2 million and 52346 million, respectively.

210, Ligaidity risk mrawagenrent

Ubtimate responsibality for liguidity risk management rests with the Parent"s directors and IEnova's key
executives, who kave established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for managermem
of the Company s funding and liquidity management requirements. As of December 31, 2006, projects
were funded with resources obtained from the Global Offering (Mote 1.2.5.), unconsolidated affiliates
boans and bank financing. The Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets mainly due to loan
from unconsolidated affiliastes and short-term debt. As exploined in Note 21, the Company has $724.0
mallion of unused lines of cradits with banks and 53680 million available approxmately under the
current suthorieed CEBURES program at the Mexican Stock Exchange.

Wirighind
imprresl Lws i
rake 1 ywar -8 yeary 15 yrarn LE L Taial
Decvanber 11, 2004
Non-imeresi bearing £ TNT i - % £ - e
Wanabls inseresl ral dhon igrm
e | Nowe 15) 1.x8 158, 54 = B s 198,544
W mriahde imerest raie of kag-
wermm debi (Moie 21 ) 4.5 4020 Bk Bz ([ REE I24.202
Fiangd bledel fade of long-lefm
i [ Mot 1) 60 16,7 315 13,500 HTATE KEIR. o
Varmhle imieress raee koan from
S0T Swsse L LM 558 L e | = i3 a5g
LTS P _aume  E e g 3bnR EoTaW

Prepayments on intercompany loans can be made at the Company *s discretion,

24000, Liguidity and interes: risk fobles

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for i non-denivative
financial linbilities with agreed repayment periods, The dables have been drawn up based on the

The following table details the Company's liquidity analysis for jts derivative financial
isiruments. The table has been drawn-up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash imflows
and outfllows on derivalive instruments that setile on a net basis, When the amount payable or
recervable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determmed by reference 1o the projected

undizcounted cash flows of Ninancial labilities basad on contractual materity, which is the earliest
akate on which the Company can be required 1o pay. The tables inchude both interest and prncipal
cash flows. To the extent that interest Mows are Moating rate, the undiscounted amount s derived
from interest rate a1 the end of the reporting period,

Winghved
averape
wllective
ERAPTTRE Lw fhan
rwie | wear i3 wears. =4 yppry S vy Taial
Nrcember 21, 2016
Varable inieves suoe froam bamkis
(SMIEC) £ 442 %0 T £ - £ - £ 42 a0
Varible iledei fase ol long-
teamn e | MNeag 23 414 L] b 47613 - = L k]
Fined imterest mue of long-tenm
el {Bote 23) & 50 12055 N il 1777 FLo R ]
Varmable intedvit rate kan (eom
m.iﬁ"tuﬂ.l.:l 550 7T L Lid o0 5 AN 2lkE22
Wariable meren e loan from
hanks (I 4.6k 51576 _ AESEY  _ FRTHE 381561 AT
M4 5 ZM3IE 5 MAR SLIER3RD  SRMAALS
Pecember 21, J01E
Mo-inievest bearnng LR L E T £ . L £ = 5 15404
Varmble intoreis rase boans from
uncorrcidaned affila 175 122,129 = - . 132,129
Varable interew gaee kan (e
unconeisdated affiliaies 154 el ik - . . pad Fery ]
Varable inlioteis pate ghort lirm
deli {Bote 19) 128 AN - - - w2523
Variable interess muse of long-
ierm debd {Maode 21 4482 LD HATE EEM LETA (] Lird
Finseed imerest rate of kong-berm
debs {Mate 21) [ ] 14, 388 2878 2430 = 250 584
W amable sterew date loan Fom
S0T Swizae 128 SR = - N & 11 N .. | . — AN
B 4TelEl L JRLIER 5 DG 0 G AGl0 E_BETA0

iverest rabes of commisdity prices forward curves at the end of the reporting period,

L& than
1 year 1=1 years 3.5 years B+ vEar Tetsl
Depvawber 11, 20§
Mt astiled
« I erest rate SWaps, Cros CeETency
vwap, exchange rne & (5 RaE) § (M0 O (13080 S(46EM)  RdIIEI2)
S S 543600 5 (13089 (48R40 R21EIII)
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24,11, Fair valne of financial instraments 24.11.3, Fair value measurements recognized in the Consoltdated Sinements of Financial Posien,
2001 Farr value of firanciol inxirmurenis corried of amoriised ooxi The Company applies recusring fair value measurements (o certain assets and liabilities. "Fair

value® is defined in subparagraph b of Note 2.2,

Except &s detailed in the following fable, the Company“s managemenl considers that the carmmying

amounts of financial awseis and financial liabilities recopnized in the Consolidated Finamcial

Seatements approximate thedr fair valwes.

A lair value measurement reflecis the assumptsons marked participants would wse in pricing an
asset or liability based on the best available informaton. These assumptions include the nisk
inherent in a paricular valuatien techrique (such as a pricing model) and the risks inhesent in the

PEALTE e 123014 inpaits to the model. Also, Company™s management considers the Company's cnedit standing
R i e R e when measuring its liabilities at fair value.
Fimawcial axaete
Flmacial foass nrcedvoiries FASTAGE 3 WNOM OF MO0 § AN §F HMEl §F o4Tsm The Company establishes o fair value hierarchy that priontizes the inputs used o measure fir
PR R T vahez, The higrarchy gives the highest prority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
Finametol iinbiliier kekd af i oo hentical assets or labiliies (Level | messurement) and the lowest prioriny 1o unobservable inputs
- Lisamus o ks Evrg-ierm THLMD TR . . - . (Level 3 measuremeant).
= Kibward- perww diptt oo rodied in aiogd
g e i el i S T The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
archamae) fr L e B 1R e ais 150958 JB0E38 ad AE4
= Liscenta frover ekt affiliones mor ¢ Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
ﬁj‘;’:‘* i RN CNGTE e 30 : : active markets for identical assets or labilities as of the reporting date. Active markets
wirlume 1o provide pricing information on &n ongoing basis:
M0 Valwatton techniguey amd axsirmpitons applted for e prrposes of measuring e vl #  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inpuals other than quoted prices

ingluded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directy (i

The fair values of financial 455615 and financial abilities are determined a5 follows, prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

&  The fair value of linance lease receivables is determined by calculating the present value s  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from vaheation techniques that include

of the minimum lease payments, including the comiract extension period, using the
discount rate ikat represenis the Company "s internal rate of return on capital invesimenis,

®  The Company determinsd the fair value of its long-term debt using prices quoted on
recognized marksts,

#  For financial lishilities other than long-term debe, the Company determined the fair value
of its financial habalities camed at amortized cost by determining their present value &S
of each period end. The risk free interest rate used to discount to present value is adjusted
to reflect the Company”s own credit nisk.

& The fair value of commaodity and other derivative positions, which include imenest rate
swaps, are determined using market panicipant assumplions b price these denvatives,
Market paniicipanis” assumplions include those sbout risk, and the nisk inberent in the
imputs to the wvaluation techmigque. These mputs can be readily observable, market
cormobomated, or generally unchservable.

Sigmficant assumplions used by the Company in determinimg the fur value of the following
financial assets and liabilites ane set out below:

Finance lease receivables. The fair value of Nnance lease receivables Is estimated 1o be $995.]
million 5571 million and 547.6 million as of December 31, 2006, 2015 and 2014 respectively,
using the risk-free interest rate adjusted 1o reflect the Company's own credil risk,

inghits for the asset or liabiliy that are not based on observable markel data (no observable
imlscators),

The Company's assets and Hobilities that were accounted for o1 fair value on a recurring basis as
listed in the table below are classified as Level | and 2 within the Fair valus hierarchy:

1250 & 12318 123104
Financial nsieds o
FVTPL
Short-1erm investmens
{Lewel 1) 5 51,443 5 2GR 5 30020
Derivative financial aszels
{Lewel 2) 5 R 40 5 1926 % 4 TH

Financial Mabilinies o
FyYTPL
Diervative financial
liabilities {Lewvel 2) 5 26 160 5 133,056 % 107257

The Company does not have financial assets or liabilities classified as Level 3 and there were no
transfers between Level | and 2 during the reporting periods,



M.114,

Comrmodivies aind other derivative positions

Incorme tax expense is reconciled with the profit before tax as follows:

The Cu-uqml].l enbers into derivative firancial instrument agreements 1o hedge the volatility of its 12731416 123115 1231714
moome ax impact altmbutable to the Mecmaton of the Mexican Peso relative 1o the LS
Dollar, Certain monetary assets and labilities of the Company are denominated in U5, Dollars Profit before income taxes 5 97638 % pal L1 212434
{functional currency); however, they are remcasured in Mexican Pesos throughout the wear for
currency gains and losses for Mexican lax purposes and impacts the Mexican income tax liabilay, hwfﬁemﬂlﬁumﬁm:‘wm { 33:7$n] ':ﬁ;r:g,m} {[I:ﬁ m_:::
On May 26, 2006, Sempra LNG entered into  natural gas sales and purchase agreement with :gﬁ”“:dﬂ‘f“ - (2.456) (1,368) (932)
RBS Sempra Commodities, LLP (“RBS™), an unconsolidated related party wheo later novated the l;d s ﬁf‘
contract to J.P. Morgan Ventures Energy Corp. (“JPM”) in connection with a sale of assets to mf'-"-":t“' ) ECTCTIOG. Fpeome - - -
JPM, who in tum entered into ancther agreement with TDM io Facilitate the sale and purchase - ) .
transactions between Sempra LNG and TDM. The ogreement includes the nomination and Effects of inflation adjustment (#,889) (2.930) (3.273)
scheduling service of monthly natural gas quantities to be delivered to TDM by Sempra LNG Effect of exchange rate and inflation on
from September 2009 through September 2014 with a notional amount of 70,000 million the tax bases of property. plant and
MMBius per day. In the between JPM and TDM, sertlement is based on the Southern equipiment ) {83.055) (55,188} (35.273)
California Index (“SOCAL Index™) price. In the agreement between JPM and Sempra LNG, Effect of the remexsurement of equity
setllement is based on the SOCAL Index price minus a discount. These agreements were miethod investrment 201,921 . -
recorded as derivatives al fair value, MWon-toxable incme 07 328 307
Effects of sale of subsidiary - . 3.365
ECO uses forward purchase agreements 1o nuanage the price risk sssociated with anticipated Other (2.831) (326) (624)
future purchases of natural gas on behalf of its cusiomers: industrial, commercial and residential,
As of Decemlber 31, 2013, the notional amounts of the outstanding positions with industrial Expense fof income thnes recogaiced in
customers were 6,000 MBiu which were realized ﬂ'mugh 2014, No derivative financial the statement of profit 5 (147.158) & (94237} % { 102 B56)
imstrument is recognized on the residential customer’s pan since there is o contractual right or
obligation with them for future gains or losses. This contract expired in 2014, therefore there s
ne ndional fior HH0 5. 252, Ingome tax recognized direcily in cowmion stock and OCT
The Company recognized the change in fair value and the settlements in the “cost of revenue™
line isem within the Consolidated Statements of Profit. oo o ol
35, Income taxes Rﬁ:ﬂ}g:rznd directly in common
The Company is subject to 1SR, The rate of current income is 30%, ’m'"”‘-; I;"':_ ordinary sharcs
under S ¢ [ S T— . 1. - S -
250, Incowe faves recognized in the consolidated statenrents of profis:
o Recognized dinsctly i OCT:
(R B T IXAINS (LI B Tax on financial inatruments
Crrrent frcome fax: vitluation held for hedging
ISR 5 (100,036) § (73704 S5 (69,897} PUrposes (5.393) 4,127 6,528
IETU-IMPALC - (226} =
{100,036) (73,930 {69,897} Total of income tax recognized
directly in common stock and
Deferred Inceme tax; OCl 5 5 § 1515 & 13,916
Deferred income tax (47,132} {20,307} (32.959) 200 3 Lals e
Total taxes in the consolidsted
statements of profit g (140158 & (4237 & (102.838)
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2.4 Deferred lncome tax [n the Comsolldered Sratenienis of Flnanclal Posltion

285 Deferred Income tax aszets ond Nabliles bolarices o o g . :
The following i an analysis of the deferred tax assets {Eabilites) inchuded m the Consolidated Satements

The following is the analysis of deferred income tax assets {liabilities) presented in the Consolidated of Financial Position;
Stusernents of Financial Position: 1216 12315 N2
RET TS 1230/ IErAL4 Asseis % 75999 5 78,965 [ £5.758
Daferred fneomae fax avsei: Liabilities , (489607}  _ 261294y (23L5IE)
Benedit of tansloss ooy forwands for
recovering imoonms toves paid in A y
previous years L1 51621 8 132073 % £3,931 Gl 5 R 5 (467
Aceroed expenses asd peovisions 28,540 17,182 24,838 Deferred tax assets hive been recognized for tax-loss camryforwards and the IMPAC paid which provide
Effect of business corbination 4 for future tax benefies in the form of future deductible amounts and tax credits, respectively, and can be
1Enova Gasoductos México 1350 1,548 1,746 realized subject to compliance with cerain requirements. Expiration dates and restated amounts as of
Fraploges besufis 4 ] 4300 December 31, 2016, are as follows:
Msset from dividends nos disiribuied
fromn el income lax accouml Tan-Loss TMPAL
(“CLIFIN™, by iis initiaks in Vears Carrylermarnds Rrcoverabile
Spandali) - L2 14,592
Inventories 1861 1,839 1733 2017 5 £ ¥ | T 36
Albawanee for dosabifisl sceounts 123 171 T4 2018 1463 36
Deferred inconse tax assets for 2019 1426 170
issasnee of ondinery shases under 2020 1,387 170
IPO and fallow on 17851 7.388 7,388 21021 10,674 170
Dﬂhml_ m X pssel :'qrmnq: A2 4,108 170
Mulwﬂmm e IRk ] 45 400 170
bsedd for bedging puposes 10,500 a2 6,06 024 175,350 I
Others _ S | .|| I | | | R - 2004 86 966 170
Totad deferred income tnx assets 326,540 174,154 147 247 A I3 170
Diecomsalidation effect (a) {250.961) {95,168} {611, 459) Thersafber - 265
Dieferred im<ome tax assct - 15,30 - J8965 3§ BLTEE 5 538736 § 1,697
Dfrresd lnvomie ok Nablits: In determining the deferred income tax as described above, the effects of tax-loss camryforwands and
Property, plam and equipmens § (340451) 8 (340,349 $ (277.756) - - ,
& - (257.240) (4,353 (4,386 IMPAC paid recoverable were included for 251,620 and 51,697, respectively,
Effés of fair valoe asseis and 25,5, Current tax receivable and payable
intangibde of Ventika {88,355} - .
Prepaid expenses (11,263} (4,629 (5,896) T BN 12/51114
mm B lisbilities '—fﬂmﬁ% '—Hﬁ: '—EEE%: ot e
e iticy o : ISR receivabl s 34207
Deconsalidation effect (a) 250941 Q5 165 ] 449 SR receivable : i : todle
Current fox Nabilides:
Dieferred income tax labalities 5 00T A (26L29) 5 [13153E) ISR payable 5 (1333 & (14005 §  (1%032)
(a)  The effects of tax deconsolidation in deferred income tax are presented to reflect that the Company
no longer has the nght (o offset income taxes of its subsidianies and, therefore, they are presented 6. Siwckholders” equity
separately in the Consolidated Statement of Fimancial Position os of December 31, 2016, 2005 and
2014, 123116 123118 124
Common stock 1 B63.272 5 TH2 049 5 TH2.940
Additional paid-in equity 2.351.20] 973,953 973,953

b 3315073 5 L736502 5 1736901
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6.0, Dsvwed member s eqeily i comprived o8 follows;

Faor the yrar ended a8 Deceasber 20, W05, BO04

In addition an equity merease was approved for up 0 533 bllion Mexican Pesos v Ovdinary and
Extraordinary Shareholders” Meetings: of which 330 million ordinary shares were issued. As of
December 31, 2015, such shares have not been subscribed nor paid, and therefore no impacts have been

Mesican Fesos) reflected in the Consplidaied Financial Stsements.
Naimiber ol social Yriahle socual Tstisl Soekal
Comgany wockbabders paris Finrd nocial parts parts Taial paria 22 Gelabal Oyfering
Semco Hokdco, 5. de RL de .V, 935,913,312 50000 9359083,120 9389133120 § 618,742 On October 13, 2016, the Company camied out a Global Offerng. The Company issued 380,000,000
Privaso [nvesion 315,140,500 - C21BLI0S008 21811085008 144,197 shares of common stock at 58000 Mexican Pesos per share, Afier the Global Qffering, the additional and

over-allotment oplion wis exercised, the free Noat represented approximately 33.57 percent of [Enova's
LISMOINRIZ 50000  LLS0ISSIE  LLSH028I28 & 762949 oRistanding Gwnersivp intensst.

Pursuant to a resplution of the general ordinary members' meeting on Febmuary 15, 2013, member’s
equity increase was approved ai $1.00 Peso per share, which was subscribed amd pasd by BYX] an
unconsolidated affiliate, increasing the value of its social part; alse, Company™s name change from
Sempra México, 5. de B. L. de C. V. to “Sociedad Andnima de Capital Variable™ (5. A de C. V.7,
Public limited Company) was As a result of such resobution, the change of social pants for
shares was performed; as of February 15, 2013, the distribution of such shares was as follows;

Total capital raised, net of expense, was approximaiely 51.56 billion 1. 5. Dollars. As a result of the
CGilobal Offering, the C

ompany raised 530 400 million Mexican pesos, net of issuance costs for $459.3 million Mexican Pescs
{5348 million U, S, Dollars), Subsequent o the Compary's Global Offering, subscribed and paid
common stock of IEmova 5 represented by a total of 1,534,023 312 shares.,

For the yrar ended Decomber 30, 2006

Bk i Mewican Pesosp
Shareholders name Claaa |l Clasa 11 Taital Sumsber of sorial Variable social Total Sacial
Company viockholder's PAETTE Flued sackal pans [T, 5 Tulal PR

Sempra Energy Holdings X1, BV, 4,550 Q35908312 Q35,913,302

Sempra Energy Holdings [X, BV, L1 x (L] Semoco Haldeo, 5 de BLL. de C. V. 1019038312 50000 16009083120 16009133120 § 751,825

Private imvestors -1, -5 S S - L L1010 LR — b
2000 935008312 35013312

~LA3OGLEIT 0000 ALRM0ISEIZ0 ALMOZIRIZ  §____P63JT2
Sharelwdiders” equity consists of nominative shanes with no-par valwe, The theoretical value per share is

S0 Pesos, The Class | and I represent the fixed and the variable pan of sharcholders® equity, 27, Declared dividemds

respectiviely, Variable capital may be increased without limitation,

During 2016, 2015 and 2004, pursuant 10 the resolution of Exirsondinary Siockholders” Meetings, pavments of
dividends in cash were approved, 1o be paid from retaimned CUFIN balances. Under Mexican tax regulation,
dividends paid from CUFIN balances are not taxed, dividends were declared and paid, for the following

On March &, 2013, BV subscnbed for a capital incresse in Semco (8 subsidiary of Sempra Energy ],
agresing to pay for such capitn] increase through a contribation of 1Enova’s shanes in an amount to be

determaned based on the price per share i the Global Offenng, and subject to the shares being duly AFHANLES

registered with the Mexican National Securities Registry ("RNV™, by its initials in Spanish). On March

21, 2013, the effective date of the Global Offering and registrubion of IEnova’s shares with the RNV, Merling date Amaum

Semco acquired T0D-percent of the Shares of BV pursuant 1o the above described 1erms; therefone, August 9, 2016 (*) g 140,000

beginning on this date, Semco was the new Parent Company of [Enova, July 28, 2015 % 170,000
July 22, 2014 5 164,000

O March 21, 2013, the Company carried oul a Global Offering of shares. Through such Global (dTering, - o ¥
the Company issued 189,661,305 shares a1 a placement price of $34.00 Pesos per share; such offering (*)  Dividends were paid on August 9, 2016.
included an over-allotment option up bo 28,449,196 shares, The amount of this Global Offering was

$520,707 (S6,448.4 million Pesos). 37.1. Dividends per share

In connection with the Global Offering, on March 27, 2013, the onderwriters in Miéxico and shrosd At e m_“':;mr e
excrcised the over-alloment option. The amount of over-allotment was 578,106 (5967 million Pesos),

related 1o 28,449,196 shares ai the placement price of 524,00 Pesos per shane. IEnova 5 o1 5 0.15 g 0,04

On September 14, 2005, the Ordinary and Extrnordinary Sharchobders” Meeting approved the proposal
of an equity offering through a combined global offering which consists of a public offering in Mexico
to the general public and a concurment international offering as defined by Rule 144A and in Regulatson
S, under the United Sumes Securities Act of 1933,



28, Segment information

281, Produces and services from which reportoble segavemis derlve thelr revemines

Information reported to the Chiel Operating Decision Maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
on the types of goods or services delivered or provided. The
Company’s reportable segments under IFRS B, Operating Segments, are described and presented in Mote
1.3

asssssment of sepment perfonmance

Thee following tables show selected information by segment from the Consolidated Statements of Profit
and Consolidated Statements of Financial Position:

282 Negwient revenues amad resnlts

The following s an analysis of the Company’s revenus and resulis from continuing operations by

reportable sepment:
SegEEl revEn e
P36 1231115 123114
(ias:
Revenues [fom customers 5 610329 5 425618 5 50732
Revenues from unconsolidated
aiffiliates 101 998 0 E21 0,871
Intersegment sales |82 542 EELUE ] 301 870
Power:
Revenues from cusiomers 2,930 - -
Coeporale;
Allocation of professional
services with unconsolidated
alfilisies 2637 1,766 2,142
Intersegment profesasonal
servipes 29 454 25,037 27468
929,920 903,582 929,663
Intersegment adjustment and
elimbnations (212,026 (200,541) (190.833)
Todal segment revenuses 5 T17.554 5 G304 i T38.830
Segment profit
I3 123115 (RLINE
Cias 5 919219 5 185313 5 167,331
Power * {111,749) {10.626) 22 400
Corporate o IS243My (M4 (32,79
Total segment profit 5 T54.990 b i 40 |59 5 36934

283, Assers and fabilities by segmeent

LFTERI ]
Assels by sepment:
(s ] 5,716,175
Power [,241 68%
Coorporate LIS
Consolidated tofal assets ] 7126044
Liahilities by segpment:
Cias 5 DE3424
Power 641 4TS
Corporate Li51.734
Consolidated woeal
liabiliises Ty T

LT L 1273014

5 2916917 5§ 2684488
382,763 417,601
11 K. P — | N ¥+
53507082 5 J3J8021%
§ 346,106 § 334,572
66,493 76,076
—M4sle 720282
Sold27218 51130930

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources Between segments:

* Al assels are allocated 1o reporiable segments. Goodwill is allocated o reporiable secments
a5 described in Mote 13, and

« Al lsabilities are allocated to reportable segments.

284, ihfver infarmuiion by segwrenit

The sccounting palicies of the reportable sepments ane the same &5 the Company’s accounting policies
described in Note 2. Segment profit represents the profit earmed by each segment. This is the measure
reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker for the purposes of resounce allocation amd assessment
of segment performance,

|

. tamd Accumslsted digrecisthen
(R IEALNE 1214 1ECRE 123 13304
s 5 338sa3 § 2687691 5 IA14213 5 2463y 5 37000y % (IDBETSH)
Poracgr 67T 440 850 505 HT.0EE {1.BOT) [RECE T | 165, T%5)
Comporate BTN .1 15,048 14165 {1.783) 413 [01T)
5 A -E3LA § 5153 404 § _IET3 A (M2 § (35756 & 497558
Depreciation and amanization Additiens te property. plast and equipment
LRI 12731518 1R 34 18 1E3ns 1334
s ] L el L] % L L 5 45.40% £ S&0RSL £ 3= £ 19 4M
Power AL A5 1% 673 B0E G4l TaEn
Laporalg 15347 ML : 1306 LT 1072 .-,
" %! I S =Y. . S T il es037 b RN & 363043
Finmnoe {oe
Imperent income Imcoms
120 IR RE] L&A+ 12EL 6 [ 22 Tl H 1220114
s ] e 3 562 5 520 5 1144 5 3. 856 § M0 XET
Powgi 1151 1451 05 {1,286} 2w 1 41%
Corporats 4 159 4588 [.a%3 (42,6548 {32.934) 30,600
T (. S S ) - TR— N 1 - S L I T ey 5 LNTR
Sk off pro i (losa) of join veatane Inpadne [y (eupense | besedin
IR 118 LEAL4 13N 1231% (R
s g &0 354 L1 1L L] E 24,760 g ianEny £ (HopEy £ [Erks 41
Power 1557 B34 {LAZXY 1077 20T [ 505y
Corpirale - - - (IS 28Xy 38 {14 7Ty
SR 5 433§ Xade 5 (T 5 (M2 5 (102.8%)
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285 Revemire by bpe of product or services

The fidlowing 15 an analysis of the Company’s revenue from its major type of product or services:

12308
{™ade 12}
Sale of natural gas 5 199,126
Other operating revenwes () 157,515
Transportation 171,459
Storage and regasification
CAPECITY 97,168
Matural gas distribution 89,722
Powver peneration o
I A
{Nier operaiing FEvenues

(R TEE VECHLI4
(Note 12} {ole 12)
3 234,143 5 B 452
118315 110,389
Q5 520 56,0135
93,652 93,744
21411 109,330
§ 613041 5 TIRRI0

() IEnovae Morketing received poyments from SLMGE and SLNGIH related to the losses and
obligations incurred in the amount of S 1020 million, $101.0 million and $90.% million for the yvear
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2014, respectively; such balances are presented within the
revenses line item in the Consolidated Statements of Profil.

Interest inoome
1E301& 125315 11304
{Msde 12) (Mo 12) [Moee 12}
Interest income:
Bank investments 5 1971 5 610 5 648
Unconsalidated affiliates 5,198 6001 2539
T v N T— '] R TN !.1)
The following is an analysis of interest income by categony of asset
PRI 12051/14 12781514
(Nwte 11} Mot B2) (Mowe 13}
Held-to-maturity investmenis 5 1071 5 Gl 5 G448
Loans and receivables (including cash
amd bank balances) =98 6,01 2530
5 6269 & 67101 5 o E. v
Operating, sdministrative and other expenses
15306 (F2L] B B 1531714
{Tste 12) Moot 12) (Mo 12)
Employvee benefits expenses 5 50957 % 42004 5 30,856
Purchased materials 5936 TA%4 b, 260
Purchased services 38,565 25,195 20,630
Cutside services and others 9,206 6274 2082
- - -~ S SN -y S W— 1.0

Outside services and others inglude charges related to leases of land and buildings with kease tenms bepween
five and ten yvears, Operating lease contracts greater than five vears includes review periods of Hve vears 1o renl,

The Company does nad have an optson 1o purchase the leased land at the end of the leasang perinds,

93

I

(her gains and (losses)
kLT
Maie 12)
Met foreign cxchanpe losses b 6, 3595
Crain on sale of equiy inberest in
subsidiany =
Met (loss) arising on fnancial liabilines
classified as held for trading (a) in
2015 and 2014, respectively (3.477)
Cither (losses) pains {50
I .

1301518

iNate 1)
3 {6, Ty
{5,663)
R— P

1X2014
{Make 12

5 (3,360)

18,735

(12.424)
— L]0k

4057

{a})  The amount represents a change m fair valee ansing from the interest-rate swap (see Nobe 23) and the

related senlements,

31, Finanee {costs) income, net

FLHRLT

Note 12)

Imterest on loans from usconsolidated
affiliates 5 (17,268}

Diecommissioning liabilities accretion
Expense (1,431}
Imterest of long-temm boan (15,149
Copitabized interest (a) 14,876
Oither finanee costs (RN
2 (0836}

5

12730018
(Nate 1)

(3.213)
(1,354)

(18,367
14,881

S—
5 (9.8
{8}  Please refer to Note 14, for the capitalized interest on qualified asscts.

33 Depreciation and amortization

20301 1S
Note 12) (Note 12)
Depreciation of property, plant and
oquipment 5 63 269 5 51,680
Amartization of other assets 115 T}
Toda] depreciation and
AmOMEZAHon expense 5 4384 5 52470

M. Basic and diluted earnings per share from continved and discontinuing operation

From continuing operation 123116

Basic and diluted earnimgs per share in
L5, Dollar - 0,70

LIRS

0,13

From continuing and discontinused
operation
Basic and diluted eamings per share in

U.S. Dollar b F— ) -]

1230/04
{Mate 1)
5 (151)
[ 1,05%)
(16,363)
19575
—_— [583)
1373
1230004
Nade 12)
5 46,154
—_—d
] 46,728
[RELT I
- I ' -
s L2



The camings and weighted average numbser of shares wsed i the calculation of basic and dihwied samings

per share are as fiollows:
[FILIR [

Eamings firom continuing
operations wsed in the
calculation of basic and diluted

eamings per share 5 EnT 322

Eamings from continuing and
discontinead operations wsed in
thi ealculation of basic and
diluted camings per shane 5 734,990

XLk Eornings wied in ohe calenloifon of basie and difuted earnings per share

[FIR RS

] 140,189

Weightsd average number of
sheares for the purposes: of basic

L2/

and diluted camings per share 1235758229  ___LI1S4023812 ___LIS4.023812

The Company does not have potentially dilutive shares.

35, Commitments

A5 1, Kol comanitments

GRO has entered into firm transporation serviee agreements (“FTSAs™) with cight customers.
Under the FTSAs, the Company is commatted to provide firm natural gas transportation service
up 1o certaim daily quantities of natoral gos, defined as Maximum Daily Quantites (“MDO™)
measured in dekatherms per day CDih'd™) The FTSAs establish a transporiation service rte
which can be a conventional rate or a regulated rate, Such rates are applied 1w customers” resenved
daily transportation capacity. Conventional rates tvpically remain fixed during the term of the
coniract, The regulated rates are adjusted annually for inflation and other factors per regulations
and the CRE authorization. The range of effective periods and the agreed-upon MDOQ for cach
agreement described above are from five o 25 years and from 800 o 1,307,000 Dhid,
respectively,

TGN entered into FTSAs with two clients. Through FTSAs the Company commits 1o surrender
iransportation services up o a certain daily amount of natral gas. The FTSAs esablish
conventional or regulated transportation rates,

ECA has o contract 10 5211 30 percent of the LMNG Termanal"s capacity 1o a third party for 20 years
commencing m May 2008, As of Apnl 2000, the customer assigned a porton of its contracted

capacity 10 another independent third panty.

ECA built a nitrogen facility o provide nitrogen injection services to agread storage capacity
parties. Apgreement ienms were embedded into the LNG Terminal®s FTS As with same period term
of 20 year.

GAP entered into a 25 vear capacily contract with CFE corresponding to segment Sisabe
Cruaymas, which staned operations in December 2004 and has a capacity of 795,100 Dihid,

95

Purclase commiimens

o

TDM signiad a five year contract for the sale of natural gas with RBS Sempra Encrey Trading
Meéxico, 5. de B. L de C. V., related panty, starting on September |, 2009, As of May 1, 2011, the
coniract was assigned JPM. TDM is obligated to buy and JPM is obligated to supply a daly
volume, not less than the minimum amoant (70000 MBu per day) and not more than the
maximam amont {105 0600 MBu per day).

During, 2014, payments under the contract were $119.6 million. The contract ended in September
2014,

Throagh an agreeement which assigned rights and obligations from Rumoross Wind Energy, 8,
de B, L. de C. V.o ES), ES) has acquired the mghis o a 3-year land lease agreement with the
Ejido Jecume io use the land for generating and ransmitting electricity using wind turbines, The
agreement can be extended for addisonal 30-years, and includes a four year grace period staning
with the beginning of excavation for tarbine foundations. 1f commercial generation of wind power
e suceessiully developed, ES) will pay a leasing fee to Ejudo Jacume aqual 1o 4 percent of gross
revenuis from the sabe of electricity for the duratson of the agreement.

ESS, Ejido Cordillera La Molina and Pargue Edlico La Rumorosa, 5, A, de C, ¥V, emered into a
fand lease agreement under which ES) acquired rights to use land for generating and transmitting
electricity using wind turbines. ESJ is obligated 1o make quarterly payments of $30.0 during the
first five years of until the stan of commercial operations, In addition, 51,5000 is due at ihe
beginning of excavation for iurbine foundations for the first block with a capacity not greater than
250 MW, and S300.0 is due at the beginning of excavation for turbine foundations for each
additicnal block of 100 MW, IT commercial pereration of wind power is successfully developed,
ESY willl also pay a leasing fee aqual to 3 percent of gross revenues from the sabe of electricity
fior the first 20 vears, incressing o 4 percent thereafier. Company”™s management believes all costs
and expenses related fo this agreement have been properly recogmized within admmistrabive and
other expenses in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

During 2016, 2015 and 2014, payments under the agreement were $120.0, $1,158.0 and $144.0
respectively. Future contractual cash payments are as follows:

Year Amounts
2017 5 |20
2018 el ]
20019 121
Thercafter B [
b I & ¥ |

ESIH and Ejido de Sierra Juarez entered into a kand lease agreement under which ESJH acquined
rights 1o use land for generating and transmitting elecincily using wind turbines, ESJH iz
obligated t0 make quanierly payments of $74.0 during the first 10 vears or wntil the start of
commercial operations. In addinon, S24.0 5 due at the beginning of excavation for wrbine
foundstions. for the first block with a capacity mod greater than 100 MW, and $71.0 is dwe a1 the
beginning of excavation for turbine foundations for each additional bock of 100 MW, I
commercial pencratson of wind power is successfully developed, ESIH will also pay a leasing
e exqoal 1o the greater of $75.0 00 3.5 percent of gross neverses finom the sale of electricity for
the remainder of the tenm,



Dwring 2006, 2015 and 2014, payments under the agreements were $308.0, $283.0 and $294.0
respectively, Future contractual cash payments are as follows;

Years Amounis
2T L 204
2R 20
el (] 1 a4
Thereafter .
s LITG

The Company beases the building space of its administrative offices in the cities of Tijuana,
Mexicali, Chihusabua, Durango, and México City, During 2006, 2015 and 2014, the rent expenss
amounted 1o 54,1920, $2.254 Oand 534770, respectively,

The leases expire in 2016 through 2021 and establish the following future contraciual payrmenis:

Years Aol
207 ] 4450
2018 2 852
Thereafter I
T Y

Duiring 20035, TDM entered mto o long term services agreement (“LTSA™) with a third pany,
which covers cerain periodic maimtenance, including replacement parts for power generabion
turbines. The tenm of the agreement is based on turbine usage, which TDM estimates 10 be
approximately 15 years.

Paymenis under the ngreement consist of a fixed foe of 324.0 per month, plus a vanable escalation
percentage and a vanabde fee based upon unit nm-hoars and staris,

The fixed monihly fiee paymends are expensed as incurred. The variable payments are classified
as prepayvmens on the statements of fimancial position and are capitalized as property, plant and
equipment if they relate o the replacement of major comgonents, or expensed when such
paymenis oocur, While some services are provided ratably throwghout the year, the primary cost
driver is planned outages al the Bacility, Variable pavments ane subject to Muctsations based on
the timing and scope of the services being provided.

Dwring 2006, 2005 and 2014 fixed payments, under the LTSA, were $497.0, $299.0 and 5397.0,
respectively, variable payments under such LTSA were 56,0000, 33,8380 and 55.163.0,
respectively,

Fistuire contraciual cash payements under the LTSA ane as follows:

Years Amounis
a7 5 397
2018 397
el L 397
Thereafter . |
s L9853

ECA emered ino a service agreement with Turbinas Solar, 5. A de C, V. (“Turbinas Solar™)
which provides extended service and maintenamce for five gas turbimes. As of Apnl, 2014
Turbimas Solar assigned this agreement fo Servicios de Turbinas Solar, 5. A, de C. V. The
agreciment establishes two main types of services: a monthly fee covers operational supporn and
extended produc warranty for 5124400 00 and a variable cost based on wrbine usage, expensed
as incurred, Ffor major wrbine maintenance, that will be capialized and amornized over a five-
vear perd based on its estimated uselul life. The term of the agreement is 60 months sianing
from the date of first beneficial use, During 200 3, the Company renegotated ihe apreement-terms
wntil 2018,

During 2006, 2005 and 2014, payments under the agreement werne 53,599.0, 51 3260 and
51.560.0, respectively, Futune contraciual cash payments are as fdbows:

Years Amounis

w7 % 4 800

el F 441
- — |

ECA entered into varous technscal service and maintenance agreements with thind partics.
During 2016, 2015 and 2014, payments under such agreements were 511.578.0, $8.965.0 and
§5,237.0, respectively. Future contraciual cash payments of such commitments ane as follows.

Years Amounis
27 £ 5,660
2018 1,808
2004 1.200
Therzafter —_— 19200
I

Cn January 1, 2003 (with effective date on January 1, 2002), SGEN and TDM entered into an
schedule coordination, energy management and related services agreement, with term of 5 years
(with possibility o extend the term one more vear), for which TIM will continue to deliver all
of its power outpat directly 1o the CAISO and SGEN provides marketing, scheduling, and
dispaich services for TDM, among oihers, On Decemnber 17, 2016 thiz contract was assigned o
Sempra Gas & Power Managment LLC.

During 2016, 2005 and 2014, payments under the agreement were 53,5290 and 54,7070 and
55,0040 respectively, Future contractual cash payments are as follows;

Years Amounis

2017 9 2294

20HE S ] |
5 4317



Ptermational pubilie temder LP-00AD aod EPI-02200 ] convened by the OFE to errer Infe
comtracts for the provision of gas iravsmizsion services,

In October 20012, GAPF was awarded by the CFE with two contracts to bubd and operate an
approximately B35 Km (300 miles) natural gas pipeline network conmecting ihe nonbwesism
Mexican states of Sonorn and Simaloa {MNorthwest gas pipeline”, also known & the “Sonora
Pipeline™) to the U5, interstate pipeline. The Northwest gas pipeling will comprised of two
segments; the first one ks for an approximate length of 305 Km, Y6-inch diameter pipeling with
770 Mmefd of transportation capacity; and the second one, ks for an approximate length of 130
Krm, 3-inch pipeline with 510 Mmcfd of transportation capacity. The estimated price per Mmefd
15 approximaely 52500, The Company estimates the total cost of the Norhwest gas pipeline wall
b 510 hillbon, approximabely, and be compleied by August 2006, The capacity of the Nonbwest
gas pipeling is fully contracted by CFE under two 25-wear firm contracts denominated in LS,
Duoflars.

In osder 10 ensure complianee, during the constrection stage and up to the scheduled date of
commercial operation of the Momhwest gas pipeline, GAP isswed 2 imevocable standby credit
letters, for 9000 million and 5650 million with CFE as beneficiary, with term of one year, which
can be extendied msomatically for annual peniods until Movember 30, 2059 and wnitil October 31,

2041, respectively.

In order fo camy oul the comstruction of the Sonora pipeline project, the Company has enbered
inta gas supply contracts with scveral supplicrs;

. On Movember 20, 2012, GAP signed a contract with Stupp Corporation (a division of
Siupp Bros_, Inc.); the work inok place in several stages with a compledion date on August,
2015, The contract value was $155.3 million; in this ranssction Sempra Energy was the
guarntor i Stupp Corporation, for the ioial value of the contmct, less the amounts paid
by GAF.

- Omn Febmuary 1, 2003, GAP held a contract with Tubertas Procarsa, 5. A, de C. V., the
work ook place in several stages with a completion date in first quaner of 2006, The
supply coniract valee was $33.9 million and as a puarandes of compliance, GAP issued an
irrevocable standby letter of credit for $28.5 million reganding the 47 percent in advance
of the contract plus VAT, with a maturity date of May 14, 2013,

During Movember and December, 2012, the Company entered into trest agreements with the
Governments of the Mexican Sttes of Senorn and Sinaloa, for a total of $87.8 million, that were
paid in full by the Company. These contracls were entered into i order 10 comply with the
bidding rules of the CFE"s iender for the comstruction and operation of Morthwest gas pipeline,
The trust assets will cover the costs and expenses of real estate rights, permils and siudics required
fior the construction and operation of the Nonhwest gas pipeline.

On Jangary 1, 20013, the Company entered into an Information Technology Services Aprecmsen
with Sempra L5, Gas & Power (a related party in ULS.). Parseant to this agrecment, Sempra LS,
Gas & Power will provide centmin software and information fechnology services, including
software, support and security services. The Company pays an approximate anvual mse of 36,3
million. Thes agreement has an initial term of five years,

On February 28, 2013, the Company entered into o Management, Technical and Advisory
Services Agreement with Sempra International (a refated party in LS. pursuant to which
Sempra Infernational (direcily or through aifilistes) will provide with certain suppon services,
The Company paid $8.3 million, $5.8 million, 7.3 million for 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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ECC entered into purchase agreement of nafural gas contract with Brjish Petroleum from
February 1. 2003 to January 31, 2007 for 14,000 MBuu daily. In 2016, the contract changed from
British Petroleum to lenova Marketing (consolidated affiliate),

Sovmora Pipeling. According o the tumkey coniract with GIN SICIM Pipeline (GSP) for the
construction of the Sonora project, GSP i commitied o complete the construction works
according 1o the technical specifications indicated in the tender and the natural gas transportation
service comtmcts betwoen GAP and CFE, complying with GAPs schedule and construction plan;
with prowen and fully operating facilities. The propect constructsen matenals will be supplied by
GAP; also, GAP will be responsible For obtuining the rights of ways reguired for the constrsction
and operation of the gas pipeline network,

The consruction of the project wall inchade two segments, the first one will have a length of
approximately 505 Km, dianseter of 36 inches a transportation capacity of 770 Mmefd; and the
secomd one, will have a length of approximately 330 Km, diameter of 30 inches and a
transportation capacity of 310 Mmcid, The construction of the firs1 segment staned on the
cxccution of the contract and was conclhuded in the fourth quarter of 2014, approximately; the
secomd segment commenced m September 2013 and was concluded June, 200 5. The constraction
of the second segment will conclude in the second quarter of 2017, approximasely.

The contract price for the construction of the second segment will be SX2E0 million until
fermination.

Cfimerge - El Encing, In December 2004, GAF entered into the Ojinaga pipeline natural gas
transportation services agreement with the CFE which has a term of 25 vears, The CFE contracted
100 percent of the transportation capacity of the Cjimaga pipelne, equal to 1.4 billion CFPD.

# [In order to ensure complianee, dunng the constrection stage and up o the schedualed
date of commercial opemtion of the Cymaga -~ El Encino pipeline, GAP ssued an
irrevoeable stondby credit letter, for $90.0 million with CFE as beneficiary, with term
of ane vear, which can be extended automatically for annual periods antil March 29,
2042,

e  During March 2013, the Company entered into trust agreements with the Government
of the Mexican State of Chihuabua, for a total of 579 million of which the Company
pakd advances of $5.8 and 4.6 million, respectively. These contracts were entered imio
m order to comply with the bidding rubes of the CFE’s tender for the construction and

opcration of gas pipeline.

¢  On February 9, 2015, GAP held a comract with Tuberias Procarsa, 5. A. de C. V. The
supply contract value is $62.0 million,

s Acoording to the tumbkey contract with Bomattn S.ACP. for the constrnsction of the Ojinaga
El Encine project, Bomani SAP. is committed 1o complete the construction works
according 1o the technical specificatons indicated 1o the tender and the natural gas
ransporiation service contracts between GAP and CFE, complying with GAP's
schedule and construction plan; with proven and fully operating facilities. The project
construction materials will be supplied by GAP; also, GAT will be responsible for
obtaining the righls of ways required for the construction and operation of 1he gas
pipeline network. The contract price for the construction will be S101.0 million umil
termination,
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Ko Bsilre - Samodaywen, During 2005, GAP, was declared winner of the CFE tender for o Natural
Gas Transporation Contract through a pipeline from San Isidro o Samalayuca in the Siate of
Chihuahon Such project consists of o beader facility with a capscity of 3 CFPD and 8 23 Km
pipelinee.

#®  In order 1o ensure compliance, dunng the constriction stage and up 1o the scheduled
date of commercial operation of the San Isidro - Samalayuca pipeling, GAP issued an
irrevocable standby credit letter, for 5200 million with CFE as beneficiary, with term
of one year, which can be exiended auiomatically for annual periods until January 30,
242

®  During August, 2005, the Company emtered inbo trast agreements with the Governments
of the Mexican State of Chihuahua, for o total of 52.7 million, for such trast agreement,
and for which the Company paid sdvances of $5.5 million and 50,2 mallson in 2006 and
015, respectively. These contracts were entefed into in order to comply with the
bidding rules of the CFE’s tender for the construction and operation of gas pipeline.

®  Dumng Awgust 2005, the Company entered into @ tumkey comtract for the solar turbmes
of the project. The value is $32.0 million until termination.

On January 27, 2006, GAP entered into a contract with Dagwoo Intemational Mexico 5.4, de
C. V., for pipeline supply. The contract price is 521.5 million, divided in £12.5 million for the El
Encino project and $9.0 million for the San ksidro - Samalayuca project

On March 18, 3016, GAP emered imo a constrection contract for a siation to measure, regulae
and control with Constructora Makro, S A, de C.V_ The coniract price is $22 million for the San
ksidro - Samalayuca project

On May 19, 2016, GAP entered imto a construction contract with Grupo Desamollo
Infreestructura, 5 A, de C.V,, for the 5an [sidro - Samalayuca project. Thie contract price is 9.0
million.

EXY, According to Wind Turbine Supply and Warranty Agreement, for developing the first phase
of the Energia Swerra Judrez, project, the contrcting pamses agreed: (i) ESJ, ESJ Turbmnas and
ESJ Turbinas 11 wall acquire from Vestas, jointly, 47 wind turbines, as well as the opiion 1o
acquirg 5 more rbings, (i) [Enova will act as the guarantor of the obligations of ESJ Turbinas
and ESJ Turbines [ under the supply contract, and (iii) Vestas will provide maintenance services
o wiindd urbines o ESJ,

The supply contract price is 51590 million.

On July 10, 2003, regardimg the development of first phase of the Energia Sierm Jufrez progect,
ESJ, ES] Turbinas, EXJ Turbinas 11 and Anemo Energy. 5. de B L. de C. V. (" Anemo Energy™)
entered into an Engineening, Procurement and Comstruction Agreement. Under the terms of the
agreement, Anema Energy will provide technical assistance, engincering services, construcism
management for the completion of & wind-powered electnic generating facility with a maximum
copacity from approximately 156 w 174 MW,

The comract price is 73,7 million.

On August 27, 2005 IEnova Marketing eniered into a contract with SGEN, for providing natural
s with maximum contract gquanisty of 8,100 MB and a minimum corresponding o 30 perceni
of the maximam quantity, the monthly price will be the quotient resulting from the mondhly index
dividied by 1 minus the charge for fuel, transportation and 500035 MBiu from Sepiember 1, 2015
until Augusi 31, 2018,

¥, O August 20, 2005 lenova Marketing entered intoe a contract with Igasamex Bajio 5. de R.L. de
C.W., for providing natural gas with maximum contract quantity of 8,100 MBiu and a minimum
cormesponding to 50 pereemt of the maximum quantity, the monthly price will be the guoticn
resulting froem the montbly index divided by | minus the charge for fuel, ransportation and
50007 B from September 1, 20015 until August 31, 2018,

Z On July 1, 2015 [Enova Marketing entered into a contract with SLNGIH, 1o transfer 65 percemt
of profits and losses under the deed of indemnity until August 30, 2020,

Cithher courmnifreniv.
[ As mentioned in Mote 101, the Company made capital increase contributions to TAG Holding.

bb.  As mentioned m Mote 10,2, the Company has signed a bank loan, which s guaranteed by ihe ES)
project.

New commitments from busmess combimations, mentioned in Nose 11, are shown as fiodlows:

ol Cornr -

On February 15, 2001, GAC entered with CFE a comract 1o increase the maximum daily capacity of
matural pas transportation to Chilsahua, by adding a naiural gas cempression system. The contract term
is 20 years, commencing on Movemsber 12, 2001 {date of commencement of commercial operation of
the siation), with the night of renewal for additienal five yvears. The maximum daily capacity covered by
this contract is 60 million cubic feet per day.

On October 22, 2014, GAT enterad into a natural gas iransporation services contract, under the TF-1
firm transpon service scheme with CFE for o firm base reserved capacity of 100 million cubic feet per
day with a regulated rate, After December 31, 2014, the amendments extend the maturity with automatsc
renewals of one-vear period,

On October 22, 2014, GAC emened o an agreement 1o provide natural gas iransmission service under
the TI-1 mtermuptibbe transport service scheme 1o CFE for an intermuptible capacity of 72 million cubic
feet per day with a regulated rate. Afier December 31, 2015, the amendmenis extend the maturity with
automatic renewals of one-year perind.

On Oetober 31, 2004, GdC entered invto o natural gas transportabion services contract, under the TI-2
intermuptible transpon service scheme with CFE for an intermuptible capacity of 50 million cabic feet per
day with o regulated rate. After December 31, 2014, the amendments extend the matwrity with awtomeatic
renewils of one-vear penod.

On September 28, 2006, GAC entered indo a fifth naral gas rangportation services amending
agreement, under the TF=1 lirm transpon service scheme with PGPB signed on December 11, 2000, for
a firm base reserved capacity of 40 million cubic feet per day with a regulated rate, After December 31,
217, the amendmenis extend the matwrity with aviomatic renewals of one-year period. This agrecmen
is currently in elfect with Pemex TRI

On September 28, 2006, GdC entered imo a fifth natural gas transportation services amending
agreement, under the T1-1 intermuphible ranspont service scheme with PGPBE signed on December 11,
2009 for an intermuptible capacity of S0 million cubic feet per day with o regulated mte. After December
31, 2017, the amendments extend the maturity with astomatse renewals of one-year penod. This
agresment is currently in effect with Pemex TR
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On Seplember 28, 2006, GAC entered the into a fifth natural gas transporntation services amending
agreementd, under the TI-2 internuptible ransport service scheme with PGPB signed on December 11,
2009 for a interruplible capacity of 80 million cublc Feet per day with a regulated rate. Afler December
31, 2007, the amendments exterd the matarity with automatic renewals of one-vear periods, The
agrecment s currenitly in effect with Pemex TRL

On December 16, 2004, GdC entered into a second natural gas transportation services amending
agreement, under the Tl-1 interruptible ransport service scheme with Energia Chibuahua signed on
Deecermber 21, 2012 for an mserruptible capacity of 80 million cubic feet per day, Afler December 31,
2005, the amendments extend the maturity with awomatic renewals of one-year period,

GDT executed a natural gas compression and transpon service contract with PGPB. Such conmract was
signed on December 19, 2001, and stipulates a capacity of 1,000, million cubic feet of naiural gas. The
commel provides for a conventional rate as established in the natural pas repulations of the CRE. The
contract duration is 20 years, computed os of Movember 12, 2003 (the starting date of commaercial
operations). On Jameary 1, 2006, this agreement was transferred io CENACE.

O May 2, 2002, GAT entered into an agreement with PGPB, through which it reeeives Operation and
Maintenance (PO&M™) services for natural gas transportation system. This agreement expires 20 vears
from the computed as the starting date of commercial operation. On January 1. 2006, this agreement was
transfierred 1o CENACE.

O Diecember 5, 3002 GAT endered into an agreement with PGPE through which it réceives compression
services based on interruptible by PGPB o GDT, on investment of $4.6 million will be used for the
rehabilitation of compression station 19 and PGPB reinstate cosis in 75 percend and only paid 25 percent
i PGPR. On January 1, 2016 this agreement was transfemed w Mational Cemter of the Control Matural
Gias,

O December 15, 2005, TdF entered inio a LPG iransport service contract with PGFB, ander firm hase
capacity reserved of 4470 million cubic meters per day equivalent 1o 30,000 barrels per day. This
agreement expires 20 after from the commercial operntional date, The agreement is currently in effect
with Pemex TRL

O December 15, 2005, TIN enered into an agreement with PGPB, through which it receives D&M

services for liquid gas wransport system. This agreement expires 20 vears after the commercial
operational date. The agreement is curmenily in effect with Pemex Logistica,

Oin Febiruary |7, 2002, GAC signed a service contract to LPG storage with PGPB. This contract provides
base storage capacity reserved of 4470 cubic meters per day equivalent o 30,000 bamels per day. The
comract term is 15 years with a conventional rane, which represents the regulated by the CRE minus 1.2
percent. This contract was given in all rights and obligations, together with all anachments 10
Tramsportatora del More SH, by signing an amendment agreement dated on Jume 18, 2002, betwesn
GdC, Transporiadora del Norie SH and PGPB. The agreement 15 curmently in effect with Pemex TRL

O February 21, 2012, TDN entered info an agreement with PGPE, through which it provides operaiion
and maintenance services for the LG iransponation services. This agreement expines 20 years afier the
commercial operational date. This agreement is currently in effect with Pemex Logistica.

O December 13, 2012, GdAS entered info an cthane gas iransportation services contract with PGPB, The
coniract duration is 21 vears with a conventional rate. The contract is under the firm transport service
scheme for a firm base reserved capacity oft Sepment | Cangrejera — Complejo Etilena XX1 33,000
BPD, Sepment | Complejo Etileno XX1 - Cangrejera 29,500 BPD, Segment 11 Nuevo Pemex - Km3
06,000 BPDY, Segment 1T Cactus — Kn 3 38,000 BPD, Segment 11 Km 3 - Complejo Etileno XX1 95,500
BPD and Segment 111 Cd. Pemes - Muevo Pemes 105,600 BPD. The contract is currently in effect with
Pemex TRI.
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O Apnl 16, 2004, GDS enterad into an agreement with PGPB, through which it provides operation and
maiienance services for the Ethane gas transponation services. This agreement expires in 2005 yvears
after the firs) segment commercial operational date, This agreement 15 currently 1n effect with Pemex
Logistica.

On July 19, 2003, (N entered imo an agreement o provide natural gas iransponation services o PGPB,
The agreement has a term of 25 vears from the date of commercial operation of the svsiem with a
regulated rate, This comtract is under scheme firm transport capacity reserved of 2,100 Mcfd. This
coniract was iransferred o CENACE on January |, 2006,

On Decerber 15, 2004, DEN celebratead an agrecment with TAG Pipelines None to provide O%M
services. This agrecment expines in 25 years from the pipeline commercial operations.

Omn Jameary 1, 2016, DEM celebrated an agreement with TAG Pipelines Norte to provide commercial
services for a persed equal Natural Gas Transport Permit G335 TRA2014 in favor of TAG Pipelines
Morte, sianting from the firm contract date,

Femiidea s oommmifimemin-

Durnnpg 2004, Ventika and Ventika Il entered intp a 10-20 year contract with their cusiomer”s
sharehobders o sell 100-percernt of the rencoable energy produced from the wind energy project. Such
agreement commenced in Apel 2016 once the Ventika's started commerncial operations.

Wentika and Ventika 11 have soquired the rights to a 20-vear land lease agreement to use tand for
generating and tmnsmiting ¢lecmicity using wind tarbmes. The agreement can be extended by another
20-year term. Ventika and Vientika I1 expects to pay $205.0 annually for the land lease.

COn June 3, 2013, Ventika and Ventiko [1 entered imo S-vear Q&M agreement with Acciona Energia
Servicios Mexico, 5. de B L. de C. V. (" Acciona™) which commenced after the commissioning of the
last wind tarbine units, and covers operalion, service and mainlenance activities, The agreements can
be cxtended by another 20-year term. Payments under the agreement consist of annual fixed foes as
Tl bovw:

Amnual fied fers
Srape Carvendy Vintika Vientika 11
Wind turibime Ush 5 2299 5 2.99
Balance of plant UsD 533 533
Securily costs MXP 7960 7.960
Envirommental works MXP jals Jms

O April 8, 2004, Yentika and Yentika Il entered inte a 5-year assct management services agrecments
with Cemex, 5, A, B, de T, V, Paymenis under the agrecment consist of an anmual fixed fee plus a
variable sdministration commission.

Future expected payments for Ventika and Ventika [0 sre as follows:

Year A
bl i $ 1,337
18 1,370
19 464

IR ¥
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36,

Contingencies
J6. 0. Matiers related with fax anthoritdes

Additional income taxes payable could anse in ranssctions with nonresident unconsolidated affiliates
if the: Mexican Tax Authonty (Servicio de Administracidn Trbwana, “SAT™ by its inftials in Spanish),
during a review, believes that prices and amounts wsed by the Company are nod similar 1o those usad
with or between independent parties. in comparable frmnsactions.

Sudicial, adurinistrafive or arbliral proceedings

The Company may become involved in ligation and asdminiraive proceedings relating 1o claims
artsang oul of its operations and properties. These may include claims filed by suppliers and customers,
Tederal, state or local governmental authoritkes, mcluding tax authorines, pegghborng resadens and
environmental and social activisis, as well as labor disputes. Other than as described bebow, there are no
matenial governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings against the Company which may have a magerial
adverse effect on its business, fmancial position or resalls of operations:

Mertters our FCA

a Motiours for review frectrse o reviside) against MIA of the ECA Terminal, fifed by Castre,
Velidez  Pederfoe. In May 2003, firgm Castro Crvz and Roberre Valdés Coasiafed Casre and
Verldez"), jointly, and Ménica Fabiola Palafox (“Palafox™), acting individually [iled morioms for
review before the Ministry of the Environment and Mafural Resources (Secroarin de Medio
Anthieate v Recircos Nomrales, SEMARNATY 1o challenge the issuance of the MLA 1o the ECA
Terminal granted in April 2003, based on allegations similar w 1VG"s allegations, SEMARNAT
dismissed the motions and the plaintiffs filed before the Federal Count of Tax and Adminisirative
Justice (Tribunal Foderal de Jeaicia Fiscal v Adminisiraiva, TFFAL in Mexico city, motions
for annulment against tbe respective malings, In January 2006 and May 2013, the TFIFA issued
the judgments declaring null and void the rulings through which SEMARNAT dismissed the
miations for annulment ondering SEMARNAT 1o issue new nulings in the 1eoms set fonh in such
Jjudgments. In the case of Castro and YValdde, SEMARNAT admitted the motion and in Jameary
2002 it issoed a resolution ratifying the validity of the MIA. In March 3012, Vabdéz filed before
the TEJFA a motion for annulment agaimst ihe ruling issued by SEMARNAT and ECA filed
befoire the Collegiate Circuit Court for the Faderal District, 8 motion against the ruling whenehy
the TEIFA ordered the admitiance of the motion filed by Folidez In the case of Palafoo,
SEMARNAT has not issued its resolution on the MIA yet. The management of the Company
deems that the claims of Castro, Yaldéz and Palafox are unfounded.

The jodgment of nullity of Castro is pending. In the case of Palafiox, the situation kas not changed
companad to the previoas report.
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Mution fowr annulment agoimst FCA s port comcessioo, fifed by fmomrebles Vst Godf 0NV ™), In
January 2005, IVG fiked before the Ministry of Communications and Transport [Secretario o
Commticaciones ¥ Thomsportes, “SCT™) a motion for annulment regarding ECA's port
concession, which authorizes ECA 10 use the national port facilitics for its mantime operations.
IVG argued that the SCT shoubd have applied certain environmental requirements reganding the
authorization of the port concession 1o ECA and that the activities perfirmed by ECA’s Terminal
are ol attrbutable to the SCT, as well a5 that ECA did not perform any environmiental risk
assesament and that the SEMARNAT amended the MIA without notifying such circumstance 1o
the SCT. In March 2005, the SCT dismissed such motion and VG filed before the TRIFA in
Mexico City a molion for annulment against the respective ruling. In March 2010, the TFIFA
iseed o judgment declaring null and voud the miling wherehy the SCT dismissed the motion for
review and ordering the latter 1o sdmil such modion. In May 2011, the SCT issued a new
agreement dismassing the moton once again, In August 2001, IVG filed a second mation For
annulment before the TRIFA, confirming its previous argumes and arguing, besides, that the
BCT is nof empowered o issue the miling. ECA challenged the ruling wherchy the TFIFA
admitied the second motion for annulnent based on the fact that IVG"s claims were resalved
during the previous motion. In June 2012, the TFJFA agreed with such argument and dismissed
the second motion for annulment filed by IVG. IVG filed a constitutional claim fumpara) before
the Federal Courts, against the last ruling of the TFIFA, The answer to such claim was maide by
the Company on August 27, 2012, The SCT and ECA’s Terminal answered such claim, During
2013, IVG filed a constitutional claim before the Federal Counts, against the dismissal of the
mation befare the TFIFA, protection which was granted reversing the dismissal of the motion for
anmulmend. The motien for annulment is pending and therein boah the 3CT and the ECA Terminal
have already answered the claim

As 1o the motion for revocation frecnrse o revocacih) against the pont concession granted 1o
ECA before the Ministry of Communications and Transpons (“SCT™), regarding the port
comcession for purposes of its maritime operations, we report the following:

On February 19, 3015, a Collegiate Court maled favorably o0 ECA’s interests, denying the
constitutional claim fiked by Yista Golf against the ruling of the Federal Coun of Tax and
Administrative Justice, also issued in favor of ECA’s interests.

Therefore, on April 24, 2005, the Federal Count of Tax and Administrative Justice concluded the
nulliny trial fully and the judgment ssued 10 favor of ECA 15 in consequence definitive,

Morica for review ageinst MIA of ECA s Fermioal, fled by fnmmebles Bajo Pacifice, SA. de CF,
(IP) In 2006, [BP started an action / “popular claim™ before the Federal Attorney General
Office of Environmental Protection (Procuredurie Federal de Proreccide of Ambienie,
"PROFEPA ") arguing that the conditions and reliel’ measures seq fonh in the authosization of
environmenial impact would be insufficient and that the operation of ECA"s Terminal would
cause a damage 10 the environmen, seeking, among others, the order 10 amend or annul the
referred Authorization in the Subject of Environmental Impact. The procesdings ended in 2006
in favor of ECA, 1BP fiked a motion for review against such miling. reselving it grounded and
ordering the issuwance of a new resolution assessing the evidence of 1BP and resolving on the
compliance of the environmental legislation,
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In compliance to the rulings in the motion for review, PROFEPA performed inspections on
ECA"s Terminal and it determined that its operations comply with the determinants and relsel
mensyres imposed in the awhorization in the subject of environmental impact and they do o
cause damage 1o the environmentl. Sech resolution was challeaged by 1BP through the procesding
for annulment (uicie o ikl Before the Federal Coun of Tax and Adminisirstive Jusiace
(“TFIFA"), which in August 2013 declared the nullity of the challenged resolution considering
that the authority did not ground duly its territonial competence and it ordered PROFEPA Lo issue
a new resolution considering the evidence deliverad by IBP sening forth why they would be
insufficient to prove the breach of the applicable legislation. Against TEJFA"s ruling. both IPB
and ECA filed constiutional irals, respectively, which were resolved in Febmesry 2015
determining to dismiss the constitutional ¢laim brought by [PB and grant protection to ECA under
the consideration that IBP lacks of srandilegal interest io challenge through proceeding for
annulment the resodution of the popular claim, ordering the TIFFA the issuance of & new
resolution in congruence,

In such circumstances, and green the resoluteon m the constitutsonal tral, m July 2005 the TEIFA
issued a new resolution dismissing 1BP's procesding. In Movember 2005, the TFIFA determined
that its judgment of July 2015 was definitive, being fully concluded in Favor of ECA.

Comstitutionsl Clain filed by Rondn Figenio Sanches Ritchie (“Sincher Ritehie™). In June
2000, Sanchez Rirchie filed a constitutional claim in the Collegiate District Court of the State
of Baje California, Mexico, challenging the validity of all the permils and authorizations
related to the construction and operation of ECA’s Terminal. The motion of Srirches Ritchie
named as defendants |7 governmenial agencies, including SEMARNAT, the Regulating
Energy Commission (Comisidn Regwladora de Energia, CRE} and the Mumicipality of
Ensengda, among others. Although the first permits of ECA’s Terminal were issued more
than six years before its filing, Sinchez Ritchie claims that the operation of ECA’s Terminal
would impair iis rights as alleged owner of the propeny adjecent io ECA"s Terminal (which
is disputed by ECA) and that ECA's permits were granted in breach of its nghts. Sénchez
Ritchie claims the payment of damages and the order (o the defiendant authorities 1o revoke
the permits for ECA's Terminal. On June 17, 2000, the District Court issued an interim
Judgment ordering the different authorities to suspend ECA's permits, but such provisional
order was revoked by the Cireuit Court on June 24, 2010 before the governmental authorities
answered, Each one of the governmental authorities named in the constitutional ¢laim denied
the charges and affirmed the validity of their respective permits and authorzations. The
allegations hearing of Sdnchez Ritchie has been adjourned due to the filing of many remedies
and other procedural acts. [In May 2012, the case was submitted to the Collegiate District
Court of Tijuana and an issuance date of the interim judgment regarding the admissibility of
the constitutional claim has not been set, The Company deems that the claims of Sanchez
Ritchie are unfounded,

The constitutional hearing i the isswe was held on December 8, 2004,

On February 16, 2015, the Third Distnet Count im the subject of constrtutional wial and federal
trinds in the State of Baja Califomia issued a resolution whereby it dismissed the constitutional
trial, Ramdén Eugenio Sdnchez Richie filed a direct constitutional claim and it & pending of

resolution mn the First Colleginte Court. In Seplensher 2016, the Collegiate Court resalbved the
matter definitively, confirming the decision of the District Judge in favor of ECA.
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Mumicipal chmim filed by Sincher Ritchie. In February 2011, Sanchez Ritchie filed a complaint
before the Direciorate of Urhan Controd { Direccin de Comrol Lirbano, DL of the Mumcipality
of Ensenada, in Baja California, Mexico, arguing the invalidity of the 2oning and construction
permits granted 1o ECA's Terminal in 2003 and 2004, respectively. Althoagh the Municipality
has) ratified the validity of the permits in i3 answer 1o the constitational claim of Sdnchez Ritchie
described above, shortly afler receiving the complaint, the DOU issued an onder of temporany
closing and immediate cessation of operations, The actions of the awborities of the state and
federal government prevented the inermuption of the operations of the terminal, while ECA filed
an answer 1o the adminisirative complaing before the DOL as well as a constitwtional claim befone
the Collepiate District Count in Ensenada, In March 2001, the District Couwrt granted the
suspension of the closing order undil the resolution of ECA’s constitational claim, which was
confirmed by the Colbegiate Circuit Courts in Mexicali. As informed on April 28, 2014, on such
daie the Municipality of Ensenada declared itself incompetent io deal with, transact, contimue
with the transsction and, at the time, resolve the procesdings started in 2011 by Romidn Eugenso
Sdncher Ritchwe. Therein, the asthonty resolved o rescind the acts in the administrative
procecdings, inchuding the closing order, ordering to close the file a5 a fully and duly conchsded
issue. The referred memomndum was eventsally challenged before an Administrtive Court by
Shincher Ritchie, which was resolved favorably 1o the interests of ECA. The resolution memtionsd
above was nol challenged because the 1ssue was fully concluded and the judgment in favor of
ECA i in consequence, delinitive,

Salvatan Arve Furst and Abralam Harce Benffond filed before the Unitary Agrarizn District
Court of Ensenacde a claim against the Ministry of Agrarian Reform (Secretario de I Reformig
Agraria), ECA and other 20 defendants. The purpose of such claim is to procure a declaration of
nudlity of the property rights granted by the National Agranan Registry regarding some plots of
land where ECA"s Termunal is located, as well as ihe return of another plot whach allegedly is
located in the same place. based on the arpument that the propeny titles issued in favor of the
ECA’s former owners were isswed improperly and without considenng the existing property
rights of such immovable property. In September 2011 was held o definitive hearing on the
subgect, where the plmntifts offered evidence to extend thear claim. The pedge did not sdmit the
evidence, and before 1ssuing the judgment, the plaintifts filked & constitutional claim agaimst the
refusal of the judge o the sdmittance of the evidence. The action of the judge 15 suspended by
the constitutional claim, and, the constingtional (rial cannot cominue wntil the Court serves nolice
of the civil claim o the other defendants, which has not happened. The Company deems that the
claim is ungrounded,

Adter several adjpumed hearings, on June 9, 20015 the pariics were duly notified of these
proceedings, On that same date, the hearing was held, during which the disputed issues were sel
and the evidence of all the parties was offered, Given the amouni of evidentiary material, the
Court reserved the nght of study and assessment thereof 1o subsequently set a new date of heanng.
It was held on Seplember 2015 where there was no nesolution, kater il was programmed the relief
of an expert test in the field for the November 3, 2006, Thas test was rebeased and to the date was
sulwmitted to the Agramian Court.

108



g Criminal Investigation. In May 2009, Sincher Richie filed before the Atbomey General Office

of Ensenada a criminal complaing arguing that “Sempra's affiliates”, several emplovess of ECA's
Terminal and several former employees of such OfMice commibited the crime of procedural fraud
as 1o 3 criminal complaint filed by ECA, which owns ECA's Terminal against Sdnchez Richie
in 2006 as pam of the conflict relaed 1o the pesession of an immovable property adjacent 1o
ECA’s Terminal, which is propenty of the Company. In September 2006, ECA accused Sanchez
Ritchie of the crime of dispossession for having trespassed ECA's immovable property. As pan
of such proceedings, the public prosecutor issued a provisional order o remove Sinchez Riichie
Froen the immovable property. In the criminal complaims filed in 2000, Sinchez Ritchie angoed
that ECA and the other defendants provided false information toe obtain such order. The public
prosecutor responsible of the case determined that there was not enough evidence o prosecule
the defendants and closed the investipation; and in March 201 1, the criminal court of Tijuana
raiified the withdrawal of the action. In September 201 1, Sénchez Ritchie filed a constitutional
claim apainst the respective nuiling before the Collegiate District Coun of Ensenada. The hearimg
bo analyze the substantive aspects of the constitutional clxim was hebd in March 2012 and in July
2002 the judge granted the profection regarding the omission in the shedy, by the crimmal judge,
of certain evidence and arguments submitted by Sinchez Ritchie. The district judge ordered the
crirminal judge fo issue o new resolution considering such issues, ECA"s Terminal appeaked the
resobuteon in the Federal Circuil Court, which as of December 31, 2005 had nod 155ued 8 ruling
on the matter. On October 19, 2006, the District Judge dismissed the amparo suil filed by Sanchez
Ritchie, This resalution caused a siate of affairs and the judgment was filed o5 a closed case.

Motion for review against the authorizaiion of environmental impact for ECA’s Terminal, filed
by Inmmebles Vista Golfl ln May 2003, lnmuebles Vista Golf, S.A. de C.V, fAled before
SEMARMNAT a motion for review against the resolution issued by such suthority in April 2003,
whereby it granted 10 the Company the authorization of environmental impact for ECA's
Terminal, Inmuehles Vista Golf argues that SEMARNAT did not give the necessary notices and
did mpt abide by the applicable proceedings to pramt suwch authorization; that the activitics of
ECA"s Terminal are of induwsirial nature and, therefore, they do nol meel the provisions in the
Regional Development Program of the Coastal Corrsdor Tijuana-Rosarito-Ensenada (known as
COOOTRENY, and that the conditéons and relief messuans sl forth in the authonzateen were
insufficient. In August 2003, SEMARNAT dismissed such motion and in December 2003
Inmuchies Vista Golf filed before the TEIFA, in Mexico City, a procesding for anmulment against
the respective nuling. In Apnl 2005, the TFIFA issued a ruling declaring the nullity of the
respective ruling. therefore SEMARMAT contimeed the motion for review and i July D6
resobved i condfirming the validity and legality of the authonzstion of emvironmental impaci. In
Octobeer 2006, Inmuchles Vista Golfl filed before the TFIFA, in Mexico City, a proceeding for
annulment against SEMARMNAT s respective resolution. [n December 2000, TEIA confirmed the
validity and legality of the resolution through which SEMARNAT confirmed the validity and
legality of the authonzation of enviroamental impact. Against TFIFA's resolution, Inmushles
Vista Golf filed a direct constitutional trial before the Collegiate Circuit Court in the Federal
District, The comstitutional trial was resalved through resolution of Apal 2012, whereby was
granted the protection for the TFIFA o assess all the evidence provided by the pamies,
specifically the expert evidence inirial, In August 2013, the TFIFA bssued a new ruling ratifying
once again the validity of the authorization of environmental impact and the sufficiency of the
conditions and reliel measures to prevent the damages to the environment set forth therein,
Inmuehies Yista Golf fibed a new constituizonal claim against ihe judgment of August 2012 of
the TFIFA, on the other hand, ECA filed an adjacent constitutional claim, In May 2013, the First
Chamber of the Supreme Coun of Justice of the Nation decided 1o intervene in the constitutional
claim filed by Inmuchles Yista Golf. In a public hearing held on Febmary T, 2004, the Firsd
Chamiber of the Supreme Court of Justice of the Mation resolved to “dismiss the constituional
trial amd leave the sdjacent constitutional claim without subject”, therefore the affair is fally
concluded in favor of ECA.
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L. On September 8 2006, in the First Collegiate Count of the XV Circuit, unamimously and
definatively overruled the resolution previously issued by the Thind Dastrict Court and Federal
Proceedings of Baja California, in connection with the constituional appeal filed by Sincher
Ritchie in which be challenged the effectiveness of all permits amd suthorizations related 1o the
comstruction and operation of the matural liquefied gas swomage and regasification terminal
property of its subsidiary ECA, located at Ensenada, Baja Califormia. On October 19, 2016
Banchez Ritchie overruled resolution on the constitutional appeal was ratified by the
corresponding authorities, closing this case,

it £

{2} In Mowvember 2011, Terra Peminsrdar, AC ("TPF), an environmental organization, filed before
the TEJFA of Mexico City 8 motion for review against the resolution whereby SEMARNAT
granted o ES] the authorzation of environmental impact for the constroction and operation of
ES) wind farm. TP argses that it did not receive notice of swch resolution; and that the MI1A was
et asscssed pursuant to the applicable legislation, since otherwise, SEMARNAT would have
denied such suhorization. However, TP does mo specify the liws or negalations that were not
duly applied, Besides of the foregoing, TP argues that the different stages of the project shoukd
require mdependent authorizations; and that the granting of a conditional authonizstion for the
development of luure sistes which have not been lully defined is insulficient 1o protect the
environment, The TEIFA denied the suspension order requested by TP, but admimted the claim.
ES) and SEMARMAT filed their respective answers 1o the claim in June 2012, arguing that 1he
motion fled by TP is untimely and that the MIA was duly granted. The judge has admined the
experts brought by the panses and ES)'s and SEMARNAT s experts have submitted their expert
opinions, Once TP submils its expert opinion, the judge shall determing the trial within 15 days,
Thee requess filed by TP for the final suspension is also pending. The management of the Company
decma that TP's claims ane unfounded,

The operations of ECA"s Terminal, TDM s plant ad ESI"s wind farm have noi been affecied as a
result of the proceedings described above and they continue operating nommally during the process
thereof. However, if any of such proceedings was reselved unfavorably for the Company, the
operations of ECA's Terminal andfor TDM's pemerating plant might be affected adversely and
significantly, which in turm might have a significant adverse effisct on the activitics, perspectives,
ihe financial posation, the operation resulis and the cash flows of the Company.

Except for the affairs stated abowve, neither the Company mor its assels are subgect to any ofher
legal action different from those arsen in the nomal course of business.

37, Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

i

Application of mew and revised International Financing Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™ or “IAS™) and
Enterpretations that are mandarorily effective for the current pear

I the current year, the Company has applicd a number of amendments to IFRSs and new Inlerpreiation
issued by the International Accounting Standards: Board (“TASBE™) that are mandatorily effective for an
accounting peried that begins on o after January 1, 2016,

IFRS 14, Regilatory Deferral Acoovinis

IFRS 14, “Hegulatory Deferral Accounts”™, was issued in January 2014 and applies 1o ansusal repoming
pervds beginning on or afler | Jamuary 2016, earlier application is permitied. The standard specifies the
financial reponing requirements for regulatory deferral account balances” that arise when an entity
provides goods of services (o customers al a price or rate that is subject to rate regulation. [t permits an
eality which is a first-time adopter of IFRS to continee to account, with some limited changes, for
‘regulatory deferral account balamces' in accordance wilh its previous GAAP,
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Upon application of this amendment, the Company did not have significant impacts.
Amendments to TAS 16 and 1AS 38, Propersy, Pl amd Equipment ard Irtengible Assefs

Amendments to TAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment™ and 1AS 38 “Intangible Assers”, clarify that
“the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation or amorization of an assel 15 not
appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset penerally reflects
factors ather than the consumption of the sconomic benefits embodied in the assel.” The amendments
are effective prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2016, earlier
application i permitted.

Upon application of this amendment, the Company did not have significant impascts.

Amendmenis to IFRS 10 Consofidared Fimmnciol Statements and 1A% 28 Investments in associofes
and folind vemtares

Amendments 10 1AS 28 require that gains and losses resulting from ranssctions between an enlity and
its associate or joint venture relate only to assets that do not constitute a business. As well, a new
requireemnent has been introduced that gains or losses from downstream transactions involving assets that
consfibute a business between an entity and ifs associate of joint venture nust be recognized in full in the
investor's Financial Siatements, Additionally an entity peeds 1o consider whether assets that are sold or
contributed in sepamte Iransachions constitute & business and shoulkl be accounted for as a single
transaction,

Oin the other hand, for consolidated Financial Statements, an exception from the general requirement of
fiill gain or loss recognition has been introduced into [FRS 10 for the loss control of a subsidiary that
dimes mot contain a business in a iransaction with an associate or a joint venture that is sccounted for using
the exquity method,

Upon application of this amendment, the Company did not have significant impacis.
Amenidments to LAS 27, Separrare Flnarcial Statements

Amendments 1o [AS 27, “Separate Financial Statemenis”, were issusd in August 2004 and apply 1o
annual reporting peniods beginning on or after January 1, 3016, with carlier application being permitted.
The standard reinstates the equity method (as described in [AS 28 “lnvestments in associates and Joini
Venbures”) as an acopunting opdion for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in an
entity’s scparate Fimancial Statements. The amendment continues the allowanoe to account such
invesiments in scparate Financial Siatements af cost or in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”™ (or LAS 3% “Financial Instruments: Recopnition and Measurement™ for entities thai have
mixt yet adopied IFRS %) The chosen accounting option must be apphied by category of imestments.
Finally, the amendments are to be appleed retrospectively in accordance with 1AS B " Accounting Policees,
Changes in Accounting Estimades and Emors™.

Upon application of this amendment, the Company did not have significant impacts.
Amendments to IFRS 11, Joinf Arrongements

Amendments (o IFRS 11 “Joint Amangements”, issued in May 20014, require the scquirer of an interest
i & joint operation whoss activity constifutes a business as defined in IFRES 3 Busimess Combingtions, 10
apply all accounting principles on the basis of the business combinations guidance in [FRS 3 and other
IFRSs, except for those who conflict with 1FRS 11 guidance. Additionally, they require disclosing
information applicable 10 business combinations and apply o nitial acquisition as well as 1o the
pcquisition of an additkonal interest i a joint operation.
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These amendments are effective prospectively for annoal reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2016, earlier application is permitted. The amounts recognized in previous scquisitions of inkerests in
Joints operation should not be adpssed,

Upon application of this amendment, the Company did not have significant impacts.

Amendments ta IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, fnvestorent Entifies: Applying the Consolidation
Excepiion

The amendments confirm that the exemption from preparing consolidated Financial Sttements for an
indermediate parent entity is available 1o a parent entity that is a subsadiary of an investment entity, éven
il the investment entity measures all of its subsidinries o fair value, Also, the amendments considers that
o subsadary that provides services related 1o the parent’s mvestment activities should not be consolidated
if the subsidinry itself i an imvestment entity. On the other hamd, they consider that when applying the
equity method to an gsociate or o jednt venture, o non-invesiment enily invesion in an investment entity
may retain the fur value measurement applicd by the nssocime or panl venture 1o 1S mierests in
subsubinries. Finally, an imvestment endity measuring all of is subsichares at fiir value provides the
disclosures relating to investment entities required by IFRS 12,

Upon application of this amendment, the Company did not have significant impacts,
Amendments to LAS |, Disclosure Initiative

The emendments include changes regarding materiality, clarifying that (1) information shoubd ot be
obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial information, {2) materiality considerations apply to
the all parts of the Financial Statements, and (3) even when a standard requires a specific disclosure,
materiality considerations do apply. Regarding the statement of financial position and statemend of prodit
and loss amd other comprehensive incomse, the amendments (1) introduce a clanification that the list of
line items to be presented in these stawements can be disagpregated and sppregated as relevant and
additional guidance on subdotals in these siatements and (2) clanfy thai an entity "s share of OCT of equity-
aceounted associates and join ventures should be presented in agorepate as single line items based on
whether or mod it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss. As well, regarding the nobes 1o the
Financial Seatements, the amendments add additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes o
clanify that undersiandability and comparahility should be conssdered when determining the order of the
notes and to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the order so far listed in paragraph 114
of JAS I,

Upon application of this amendment, the Company did not have significant impacts,
Annual Improvements 200 2-2004 Cyele

Annual Improvements 200 2-2014 Cyche makes amendments to the following standards: IFRS 5 M-
curremt Assets Held for Sale and Discontinved Clperations, which adds specific puidance for cases in
which (1} an entity reclassifies an asset from *hebd for sale™ o “held for distibation™ or vece versa and
(2} cases in which held-for-distnbution accounting & discontinued; 1FRS T Flouncial festruments:
Iselomeres clanfving (1) whether & servicing confract s continuing imvolvement in a mansferred asset
fior the purpose of determining the dischosures requared and (2} the applcability of the amendments to
IFRS 7 on offsetting disclosures to condensed mberim Financial Statements; 1AS 19 Emplover Fengfis
insdicating that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the discount rate for post-employment
benefits should be denominated in the same currency &5 the benefits to be pad: and 1AS 34 fverim
Fimmciad Reporing clanfying the meaning of ‘elsewhere in the mierim répor’ and requires a cross-
reference i such reports.
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New and revised IFRSs in fsswe but not yei effective

The Company has not applied the following mew and revised IFRSs that have been isswed bul ane not yel
effective:

IFRS 9, Financla! festrumeniy (2)

IFRS 15, Revenre from Combracts with Oessomers (1)
IFRS 16, Leaswes (33

Amendments to TAS 12, fecome Taves (1)
Amendiments w IS 7. Diselosire faitiaiive (1)
Amendments to IFRS 4, fnamarce Contracks (2)

(1} Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017
(2} Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018
(3} Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

IFRS 9, Finamciol fosirimenis

IFRS 9, “Fimancial Instrumenis” issued in July 2004, s the replacement of [AS 39 “Financial Instruments;
Recognition and Measuremeni™, This siandard incluedes requirements for recognifion and mexsurement,
impairment, derecognition and general hadge acoounting. This version supersedes all previous versions
and is mandatorily cifective for perods beginning on or after Jameary |, 2018, with sarly adoption being
permitied. IFRS % (2004) does not replace the requirements for portfolio fair valee hedge acoounting for
micrest rale sk since this face of the propect was separsied from the IFRS 9 project.

IFRS 9 (2004) is o complete standard that mclodes the requirements previously issued and the additsonal
amendments to inroduce o new expectad boss impairment model and limited changes to the classification
and measurement regquirements for financial assets. More specifically, the new impainment madel 13
based on expected credit losses rather than incurred bosses, and will apply to debt instruments measured
ot amoniized cost or FVTOC!, lease receivables, conbract assets and centain wriften loan commitmens
and financial guarantee contracts. Regarding the new mesurement category of FVYTOCL, it wall apply
for debt instruments held within o business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assels.

The Company iz in the process of determining the potential impacts that will derive from the adoption of
thas standard in its Consolidated Financial Statements.

IFRS 15, Bevenne from Contracrs with Customers

IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™, was issued in May 2004 and applies 1o annual
reporting periods beginning on o after 1 January 20018, earier application is permitied. Fevenwe is
recognized as control 1= passed, either over time or gt a pomi i time.

The stamdard outlines & simgle comprehensive model for entibics o use in accounting for revenss anising
from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including
mdustry-specific guidance. In applying the revenue model to contmacts within its scope, an endity wall: 1}
Identify the contract{s) with a customer ; 2) Identify the performance obligations in the contract; 3)
Determine the transaction price; 43 Allocate the transaction price io the perfommance obligations m the
contract; 5) Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. Also, an entity
meeds o disclose sufficient information to enable users of Financial Stmements 10 understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenpe and cash flows ansing from confracts with cuslomers,

The Company is in the process of determining the potential impacts thal will derive from the adoption of
this standard in its Consolidmed Financial Statements.
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IFRS I, Leaves

IFRS 16 “Leases™ was issued in January 20016 and supersedes TAS 17 “Lesses”™ amd relsied
interpretations, The new siandard brings most leases on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model,
eliminating the disanction betwesn operating and finance lexses, Lessor acoounting, however, remains
largely unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. TFRS 16 is
effective for periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2019, with earlier adoption permitted if [FRS 15
"Fevenue from Contracts with Custemers’ has also been applied.

Under IFRS 16 a lessee recognizes a nght-of-use asset and a lease liability, The right-of-use asset is
treated similarly to other non-financial asscts and depreciated acoordingly and the liability accmes
interest. This will typically produce a front-loaded expense profile (wheneas operating leases under IAS
17 would typically have had strajghi-line expenses) as an assumed linear depreciation of the right-of-use
asset and the decreasing imterest on the Liability will lead to an overall decrease of expense over the
reporting penosd.

The bease liability 15 initally measured st the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted at the rate imphicit in the kease if that can be readily determined. I that rte cannot be
readily determined, the lessee shall use their incremental bormrowing rae.

However, o lessee may élect 1o account for bease payiments as an expense on a strakght-line basis over the
lease verm for beases with o lease term of 12 momhs or bess and containing no purchase options (this
election is made by class of underbying asset), and leases where the underlying asset has a bow valoe
when new, such as personal computers or small e of office fumiture (this electzon can be made an a
lease-by-lease hasis).

IFRS 16 establishes different transitional provisions, including retrospective application o the modified
retrospective application where the comparative period is not restased,

The Company is in the process of determining the potential impacts that will derive from the adopion of
this standard in its Consolidated Financial Statenmsents.

Amendments to IAS 12, fncomre Tiaves

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes, clonfy that unrealized losses on deld instruments measured at fuir
value and measured o cost for tax purposss give nss 1o a deductble tempomry difference regandless of
whether the debt instrument’s hobder expects o recover the curmying amount of the debd mstrument by
sale or by wse. Additionally, they specify that the carmying amount of an asset does pot limit the estimation
of probable future taxable profits and when comparing deductible emporary differences with futare
taxable profits, these exclude tax deductions resulting from 1he reversal of those deductible emparary
differences. These amendments are effective for anmual penods beginning on January 1, 2017 with

retrospective application, alibough earlier application is pesmitted,

The Company is in the process of determining the potential impacts that will derive in its comsolidated
Financial Statements from the adoplion of these amendeents,

Amendments to TAS T, Mvelosnre falifative

The amendments 1o [AS 7 Ststement of Cash Flows, require that the fiollowing changes i liahilities
arizing from financing activities are disclosed separately from chamges in other assets and linbilities: (1)
changes from fimancing cash flows; (i} changes arising from obaining or lesing contral of subsidisries
or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair vabues; and
{v) other changes. One way o fulfill ihe pew disclosure requirement is to provide a reconcilistion
between the opening and closing balances m the sttement of financial position for labilities ansing from
fmancing activities,
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Liabilities arising firom financing sctivities are those for which cash fows were, or fubure cash flows will 48,  Regitered offices
e, classified in the statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. The new disclosure

requirements also relate to changes in financial assets if they meet the same defination. . Pasco de la Reforma Ne. 342 Piso 24
These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with carlier Torre Mew York Life
application permitted, and emtities need mo provide comparative mformation when they first apply them. Col, Judrez, C.P, DH600

Mexico, 0. F.
The Company does not expect significant impacts from the adoption of these amendments in i . Campos Eliseos Mo, 345 Piso 4
Consolidated Financial Statements. Torre Omega

Col. Chapultepec Polanco CP. 11550
Amendments to IFES 4, lnswrance Confracs Mexico, I, F,

e S5

The amendments address concems about the differemt effective datcs of IFRS 9 and the 1ASB's 0 CUREMERic TYM - Bl 3t
fortheoming insurance contracts standard, which is expected w be issuad & IFRS 17 in March 2017, The Ensenada. BC.

amendments provide wo approaches. = Carretera Mexicali Tijuana Km. 14.5

(i) Overlay approach — Permits entities that issue insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 to Col. Sonom, C. P. 21210

reclassify — from profit or loss i other comprebersive incoms — some of the mcoms oF expenses M*”F*ﬂ‘ B.C. ;

arising from designated financial assets. An entity would apply the overlay approach o g:“{ﬂﬂﬂ#‘ﬁ' PE-:II] 4503

retrospectively to qualifying financial asscts when it first applies IFRS 9. Chil Chih,
(i} Deferral approsch — Temporary excmpiion from apphying IFRS 9 for entities whose predominant . Boubevard Francisco Eusebio Ko No, 309

metivity is 1o Bsee comtracts within the scope of [FRS 4. An emtity would apply the deferral Piso 10, Cod. Country Club

spproach for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, Hermusillo, Sonorm

= Carretera Federal Custa 15D, KM 461 820,
1'I'_|e {'nmpan_l!' is_. inthe pocEss nl'ul:h:rmrr_niuing the podential impacts that will derive from ihe adoption of San Romdn Comalillos, CP 45464
this siandard in s Consolidaied Financial S1atemenis, Guadalajara, Jalisco
, ; . ' . L] Avenida Constitucikin Ponienie Mo, 444

Thuz':e I.!'I1-|:'I1d.rl'|t'l_1|5 mel?cnuw fior umnn_] perinds Imgr.m[lg on of after Jamuary 1, 2008 mlh eariier Col. Monterrey Centro C, P, 64000
applecation permitted, and enbties are permitted to stop applying either approach before applying the new Monterrey, Muevo Ledn

msuranee contrmcts standard,

Events after reporting date

EEE e

Wichdrawal af credll Hne. On January 12, 2007, regarding the credit line meniioned in Mote 233, the Compamny
withdrew 57000 mallken, swch credit line to be used for working capital and general corporate purposes.

Approval of Financial Statements
The accompanying Consalidated Financial Statements were authonzed for issuance on Febmary 21, 2007, by
Arturo Infanzin Favels, Executive Viee President of Operations and Finance, and subject to the approval of the

Mansgement Board and the ordinary sharcholders of the Company, who may be modified in accordance with
the provisions of 1he General Law of Commercial,

115 116



Infraestructura Energética Nova, 5. A. B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries

Pro forma Combined Statements of Financial Position

As December 31, 2005
{In thousands of US dollars)
As of December 31, 3015
Fivterra Energy Infracstrociurs
lafracsireciura i asodusras de Setherlands 111 Energliiea
Enerpttlen Nova, Chihualms. mmwi] Fivierra Prn Forma Novm,
SABdCY. SdeRldeC.V. Energy Nelen S ALBdeC
snd Subdddiaris  and Subsidiaries Netherlands IV M{:::" V.
%ot B0 Mste 2021 anil Swbsidiaries Subsidiaries
™ote 2(31) Fro Forma
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 40377 § 22080 % 12,136 5 205203 5 1M TG
Shor-term invesiments 20,068 10, 7R - - 30848
Trade and other receivable, net 53.7H 40,376 70005 - 101,112
- - e from unconsolidated
Pro forma additional information affiliates 27 608 . . (936) a 26,672
Income tax receivable 16,226 = = - 16,226
Ntural gas invemones 4,628 = = = 4,625
Derivative financial instruments 1,926 = = = 1,926
Value added 1oy receivable 46,807 4 494 3437 (I07Ty a 54631
Carbon allowances 3385 - - - 5385
Cither assets 8,576 10,513 - {14} E 19,055
Total current assets 225329 28,243 23581 20126 540,279
Mon-curment assets:
Dhae From unconsidated
alTilmtes 101, il - = = 111.766
Finance lease recervables 14,510 . | = = 966,711
Deferred income tax assels TE, 965 12,314 T.168 (11,75T) 1 B6.6%0
Investment in joant ventures 440,105 131,338 = (564,682 ad 6,761
Goodwill 235,684 - - 1,626,126 b 1.651.780
Property, plant and equipment,
net 2,595 240 30079 519,901 100,531 a 3,336,351
Carbon allowances 125975 - - - 12975
Intangible assets - - - 154,144  3b 154,144
Other assets .98 .27 - - 1665
Tolal mon-curmenl asses 3281,753 1417659 537069 ] 30d 363 6,530,843
Total assels 3307082 § L505.502 § HO.650 & 1508 458 107,132
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As of Brecembrer 31, 391§
Fiueres Emergy

19

Infraestrucmra
oo i i o Ensrgliien Infraestructura Energética Nova, 8. A. B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries
Energitira Nova. LRI T 2N anid Fiaterra Fro Forma iy
S B.de LY. Sl Bl e OV, Farigy AdgEamen il W
[ste 21} [Nisse 221} and Subsidiaries e Ml For the year ended December 31, 2015
{Nede 2T} Fra Ferma {ln theusands af U5 dollars)
Four the year emded ecemibser 30, 20018
Liabilities and R
Stockholders’ Equity Infracaructars Sertheriasds 111
Enerpiiics fasanducio de sl Fistwrra Infrsmirucinrs
AR v (RS PPN Emarrgy Enrrgdera Navis,
Current liabilities: :.ldﬁ.l.*[.‘.\', &:KL*E:. ﬁhﬂl\" Fra Feama f.‘dﬁ,h*[‘-\h
Shori-term debi 5 ER50T S 5180 § 2141 S - 5 125817 Sebuidisries  and Sabdi Subidisrie . Sbaldiari
Trade and other payables 43,849 91,056 31,954 49) 166,814 e300 Plon 200 Puuley. oW T Rl
Due o unconsolidated affiliates 352,650 = 6,595 6,595) 352 650 Revenues £ A1l 5 144358 % . £ (13w a 8 754,003
Income tax habdlities 14,095 - 58 - 14,153 Finance bease revenuse - 1015, Dt - - 105 066
Derivaiive financial instmumests - 7408 20X - 10,125
Oiihier financial liabilities 6,444 & . = G444 Cost of revenmes. (237.218) (ZBETT) B g (285297
b L i X i 49 ulhﬂmml s (1 857) (18.506) (4%) 1584 (9%,827)
Oiiher taxes hle 13881 - - 13,881 CApEses = . ’ a
el Tt 5385 . ; : 5395 Depecciation and amortization (32470) 19.354) ; (7.707) (79.531)
USior Sy L=l : : : — Ak Interest income 6.701 ; 0 (159 a 5182
I Finance [oosis) incoms (5.839) (22.525) s 5812 a (26,253)
Toaal current lisbilities 543 341 | 33,730 43376 _ (6644) — 113803
ity (lossesh gxin, net (10.438) {6, 1 50 1413 (465 a (16, 208)
Mon=cumment Rabalites, Remeasumement of equaity mathod
Loag-term debe 20 935 I%027TR 363330 1313 78S 1,156,318 inwesiment - - - TeRTH 6 790
D 1o unconsolidaed alfiliaes 38 460 1 Bl 2060 SR 330 (270 .905) 45013 Praofit before mu:ud
Deferred income 1ax liabilities 261,204 107,773 . 76,465 445 332 share of profits of joimt veniures 206,904 =202 1,664 735,104 1120884
Carbon allowances 12601 - - - 12601
Derivative financial instruments 133,056 9,151 14,650 . 156,857 Share of profits of jomrt venteres,
. Q o - T 4
Ermpd | i 4705 L063 3 ) 5,358 met of income tax 4330 16,9365 (37.907) n (2534
Totil oo Profit for the year from
M-Curmen oo mii ioms § 134986 3 it 3 4862 5 T[T 3 G3GEAY
liabilities 781877 662,307 476219 _ (80.745) B6L68R —
Lo fiar e vear from
Todal linhdlilies 1327218 96,037 S 19595 (67 389 2315461 discontinped operaions, net of
et o 14, 797) - - - I i Wl k|
Steckhoblers” Equity;
Common sock T2 249 BB 642 iB914 72767 0531 272 Prafit for this year § L4089 & E2O60 5 A6 B TITOMA ' LR 066
Additional paid-in capital 973 953 - - 1,377 848 2 350 801
Accumulaed other
Retained eamings Sedtr, bt 554 323 _ 9155 1190244
Total equity At T 565 0085 _1LIT5ETT KL
Total equity and Kabilities § 3300082 5 1503902 3 349630 51508458 § 1071122
See accompanying noles to the peo forma combined financial statements,
120



Infraestructura Energética Nova, 8. A. B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Pro Forma Combined Financial
Statements

As of December 31, 2015, and for the vear ended December 31, 2015
{In ihousands of US dollars)

Activitices

Infracsimuciura Enerpética Mova, S, A, B, de C. V. and subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company™) are located
and incorporated in México. lis parent and ultimate hobding company is Sempra Energy (ihe “Parent™),
domiciled and incorporated in the Siate of Californda in the United States of America (“LLU5.7). The address of
the Company s registered offices is Paseo de la Reforma No. 342 Piso 24, Torme New York Life, Colonia Jwdres,
México, Ciudad de México.

The Company cperates in the energy sector, develops, owns and operates, or hobds imerests in, natural gas and
propane pipelines and liquefied petroleum gas siorage facilities and enpapes in the transponation and
disiribudion and sale of natoral gas in the siaies of Baja Califomia, Sonora, Sinalea, Coahuila, Chihaahua,
Durango, Tamankipas, Muevo Lotn and Jalisco, México. It also owns and operates o liquefied natural gas
("LMNG™) terminal in Baja Califomia, México for importing, storing and regasifying LNG and owns and
operates & natural gas fired power plant thad includes two gas terbines and one steam tarbme, and hold micrests
in @ joint veniure in Baja California, México, using wind resources (o serve clients in the LS,

Deseripthon of the GDC Aequisition

The transaction myvolves the acquisition (the “GDC Acquisition”) by IEnova Gasoductos Holding, 5, de . L.
de C. V., a subsidiary of the Company, of the remaining equity interest in Gasoductos de Clabushua, S5, de B,
L. de C. ¥, (“GDC™) which was held by Pemex Transformacsin Indusinal (“Pemex TR1™), Upon consummation
of the GDC Acquisition, the Company bold, indirectly, 100 percent of the equity interests in GDC; provided,
however that the Company and Pemex TRI have agreed that the Comgpany, through GDC, and Pemex TRI
hobded a 50 percent equity intenest in GDC's curment subsidiary Ductos v Encrgéticos del Norte, S, de B L. de
C. V. ("DEN"). Through DEM, the Company and Pemex TRI wall preserve their energy mfrastmuchure joint
veniure for the purpose of the construction of the Los Ramones Norte pipelme and the potentiol development
of new projedts,

The purchase price for the GDC Acquisition was 51,1438 million, plus the assumption of indebiedness.
Deseription of the Minancing of the G Acquisition

The Company financed the G Acquisiteon with the proceeds of a bridge boan obtamed from affilates of the
Parent (“the Bridge Loan™). The Company paid the Bridge Loan with the proceeds of the issuance and sale of
additional equity securities {the “Bridge Relinancing ™) a8 a result, and because the amount of interest expernss
de minimis for the periods presented, no debt or interest expense is shown in the Pro Forma Combined Financial
Statements in connection with the GDC Acquisition,

Description of the Ventika Acquisition

The transaction involves the scquisition (ihe “Yentika Acquisition”) by Controladora Sierra Jodrez, 5. de B, L.
de C. Y., a subsidiary of the Company, of 100 percent of the equity interests of Fisterra Energy Metherlands
(11, B. V., Fisterra Encrgy Metherlands, IV B. V., Fisterra Energy Mexico 1, 5. de B. L. de C. V. and Fisierma
Energy Mexico IV, 5. de B. L. de C. V., and thereby through such scquisition 100 percent of the equity inferesis
{odber than certain shares that have neither voling nor cconomic nghts) of Yentiko, 5. AP L de C. Y., and
Vemiika I1 5. A, P. L de C. V. (collectively “Ventika™), from Fisterra Energy. a portfolio company of Blackstone
Energy Partners, and minority equity holders, Vemtika, 5. A P L de C. V. and Ventika Il S A P L de C. V.
own two adjacent wind Farmes with 2 tolal capacity of 252 MW, located in the northeastemn state of Nuevo Leon,
Mexico, which wene scquired by the Company as panl of the Yentika Acquisition.
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The estimated purchase price for the Ventika Acquisition i 34150 mallien, which includes estimated cash and
cash equivalents of 54000 millton but does not inclade the assumption of approximately $477.0 million of
indchiedness, in cach case gencrated by the operation of the Ventika wind farm facilitics as of the closing date
of the Ventika Acquisition. The estimased purchase price was also subject 1o centain customary post-closing
wdjustments based upon the actual cash, indebtedness and working capilal of the Ventika business at the closing
of the Ventika Acquisition st forth in the soguisition agreement. The enterprise valoe of the Ventika basiness
1% approximately 38520 million,

Description of the financing of the Ventika Acquisition

The Company financed the Ventika Acquesition with both bommowings wunder its revolving credn facility and the
follow on equity offering.

Basis for presentation of the Pro forma Combined Financial Statemenis

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the pro forma combined financial information comply
with Indernational Financial Reporimg Standards (“IFRS ) as issued by the [nternational Accounting Standards
Board (“IASE").

The pro forma combined statements of financial pesition and the sccompanying pro forma combined statements
of profit income have been prepared based on assumpisons that the Conspany’s management believes ane
appropriale in the current circumetances, taking inte account the fact that the Company 15 in the process of
determining the fair value of the net assets acquired m the GO Acquisation and the Ventika Acquisition, as
discussed in mare detail below,

The pro forma combined financial statements include the pro forma combined statemments of financial position
as of December 31, 2015 and the pro forma combined statements of profit for the year ended December 31,
205

The pro forma combined financial statements present the financial information of the Company as il the GDC
Acquisition and the Yentika Acquisition had occurred (i) with respect to the pro forma combined statements of
financial position as December 31, 2015, and (i1} with respect to the pro forma combined statements of profit
On January 1, 2015,

Accordingly, the accompanying pro forma combined financial informatien was compaled using the fallowing
inforrmation:

(1) The onnual oudited consolidated stasement of financinl position and profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Company as of and lor the year ended December 31, 2015, prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

20 The anmual oadited comsohdated statement of fimancial position amd profif or loss and other
comprehensive income of GDC xs of and for the year endad December 31, 2015, prepared in accondance
with Accounting Principles Generally Acceptad i the United States as reconciled 1o [FRS

(30 The anneal audited combined statement of financial position amd peofit or boss and other comprehensive
income of Yentika as of and for the year ended December 31, 201 3, prepared in accordance with IFRS,
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IProv forma adjustments

Pro forma adjusiments as of December 31, 200 5, incheded in the sccompanying pro foma combined statements
of fimancial position, and for the year ended as of December 31, 2015, ichoded in the pro forma combined
statements of profit as described below, represent the GDC Acquisition and Yentika Acquisition as well as the
expecied Bridge Refimancing, the expected offering of the Company”s Class 11 common siock and a draw under
the Company”s revolving credit facility to fund approximately half of the Yentika Acquisition, Mo interest
expense has been included in the pro formia combined financial siatements with respect to the Bridge Loan, as
it is expected that the Bridge Refinancing will be made in the near term (and the interest expense related to the
Bridge Loan de minimis for the periods presented)

This information is not inended 1o present the Company's resulls of operations or its financial position as
thatigh the GDC Acquisition and the Ventika Acquisition had occurred on the aforementioned dates, nor is it
intended 1o project the Company’s operating resubls and lnancial position fior any fulure periods or as of any
future dates.

In oeder 1o present the effects of the GDC Acquisinon and the Yentika Acquisiteon in the pro forma combined
financeal staterments, management applied centain pro forma adjustments 1o the historical figures of the acquined
companies, The GDC Acguisition and Yentika Acquisinon have been completed, the Company recognized bah
acquisitions % an acquisation of & business, applving the accounting requirements of 1FRS 3, Brsiness
Comabimentions, W s fmancial mformation. The Company will have twelve months from the applicable
ncquisition date to fimalize purchase sccounting and thus the values assigned to the acquired net assets in these
pro forma combined fnancial statements are subject to change, The pro forma adjustments reflect the effects
of scquisition accounting under IFRS as of the dates previowsly established and are as follows;

Adfustments fo the pro forma combived statements of financial position as of December 31, 2015 and
ndiastorents to tle pro forma combined statements of prafit for the year ended December 31, 200 5;

The pro forma combined statements of lnancial posiftion as of December 31, 2015 have been adjusted o reflect
the preliminary allocation of: (i) the purchase price of the identifiable net assets of GDC and Ventika; (i1} the
goodwill recognized as the excess of the consideration transferred in cash in the GDC Acquisition and the
Ventika Acquisition as well as the remeasurement to Fair value of the previowsly held 50 percent interest in
GDC by the Company;, and (iil) the consummation of the Bridge Refinancing. The purchase price allocation in
the pro forma combined staements of fnancial position as of December 31, 2005 i3 based upon the iotal
consideration detailed below:

The preliminary purchase price allocation presented below has been prepared only for purposes of the pro forma
combaned Ninancial statemems. A complete and final purchase price allocation will be performed once the GDC
Acquisition and the Ventika Acquisition are consummated and the Company acquires comtrod aver GDC and
Ventika,

Preliminary recognized amounts of identifinble assets acquired and linbilities assumed of G

As of Decemsber 31,
s
Current assets s 85878
Non-current assets, mainly property, plant and equipment,

net 1,274,335
Current and bong - term liabilities (542,438)

Total identifiable net assets BI7.795
DEN"s Stockbolders’ equity (a) (27,137}

123

Cioodwill recognized in acoordance with the pro fonms

purchase price allocation 1,497 008
Fair value of previously held imerest (11438335
Tivtal conssderation iransfisrmed 5 1143833

PFreliminary recognized amannts of identifiable assets scquined and labilities assumed of Ventika:

Anal Becrmbsrr 31,
W5
Curment assets 5 22,581
Mon-curment assels, mainly property, plant and equipment,
met 5270649
Currend and long - term liabilities (522, 746)
Total identifiable net asseis 26,904
Dbt cancellation 104,834
Intangble assets (b) 154 144
Croodwill recognized in accordance with the pro forma
purchase price allocation 120118
Total consideration transfierred 5 415000

The Ventika Acquistion involves assumption of approximately 54770 mallion of indebtadness, with the
remainder of the indebtedness. eliminated as pro forma adjustiments.

. Pursuant 1o the terms of the GDC stquisition sgreement, DEN, a subsidiany of GDC, will not be acquired
by the Company, Therefore, the pro forma adjustments exclude the assets and liabilities related to DEM,
The Company will retain a 50 percent joint venture investment in DEM after the GDE Acquisition.

DEN statements of financial position and Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as
follows:

Statements of Ninancial posithon
Aol Decemibser 11,

25

Cash and cash equivalens 5 1,287
e from unconseldated affiliaes Rl
Valee added iax recoverable 167
(ither assets 314
Invesiment in Los Ramones Monte project, joint veniure 131,338
Propenty, plant and equipment, net pal i)
Deferred income tax asseis 11,757

Tl msseds 145 668
Trade and other payables 4
Duse b0 unconsolidated aiiliaies 172 756

Todal leabilitics 172,805
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Common stock 200

Accumulated other comprebensive income (13,907}

Retained camings (13.430)
Total Equity (27.137)

Statements of profit or lows and sther comprehensive income

Y ear ended
Decembaer 5.
pL

Revemnues 5 31306
iCost of revemees {606)
Operating, administrative and other expenses (1.584)
Drepreciation and ansotization -
Interest income 1.539
Finance costs (B.989]
Ciber gains, net 46
[noome tax benelin 6416
Share of profits of joint venbures, net of income s (6936}
Loss fior the vear (6, 718)

Accumulated other comprebensive loss related to gain

on valuation of derivative financial insruments beld

for hedging purposes 31,754
Accumulated olber comprebensive income related to

deferred income tax on the gain on valuation of

derivative financial imsiruments held for hedging

purposes — 19526
Ciber comprebensive income for the period i}
Total comgprehensive incorme fof the period ] 15,510

Goodwill and iMangitde shoown in the pro ferma combined statemends of financial pesition comesponds
o the excess of the consideration transferred from the GDC Acquisitson and the Venika Acquisition,
andd the remeasurcment o fair value of the Company™s previously hebd 50 percent equity interest in GDC
arver the Bair value of the net assels acquired, Met assets acquired are estimated as of December 31, 2015
and are subject 1o adjustment upon completion of the GDC Acquisition and the Yentika Acquisition and
during the subsequent | 2-month measurement period permitied by IFRS 3.

The effect on stockholders” aquity is 51,375 877, for the vear indicated below, incloding the elimination
of GIM and Yentika stockholders” equity upon conselidation (but excluding DEM), as follows:

Stoekdabiler s giiiny Ax of Decembir 3.

s
Capital stock 5 72,767
Additdonal paid-in capital 1,377 B8
Accumulated other comprebensive incomes 31,70
Fetaimed camings 03 553
Total pro forma adjustments 5 | 575877

The additional paid-in capital shown above assumes net proceeds from an offering of the Company's
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Class 11 common stock in the amount of 51_578.171.

d  Remexsurement of equity method investment in the GO Acquisition was estimated as folbows:

[T Avooll Jmmunry 1,
me
Cash paid in acquisition 5 I, 043 833
Less book value of investment in joiml venure (3R] 043

Remeasurement gain of equity method
investment 5 P62, 790

In a business combination achieved in stages, the acquirer shall remeasune N5 previously held equity

interest in the acquired entity at its acquisition-date fuir value and recognize the resulting gain or boss, i
any, in profit or loss and other comprehensive income, in accordance with IFRS 3,
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ACRONYMS
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BMV
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CENACE
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EBITDA

ECA

ECOGAS
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FCPA
GAP
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GWH
HP
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IPC
1SO
ISR
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KWH
LNG
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LTAR
MCFD
MMMP
MW

NATIONAL SAFETY, ENERGY, AND ENVIRONMENTAL AGENCY
MEXICAN STOCK EXCHANGE

MEXICAN CENTER FOR PHILANTHROPY

NATIONAL CENTER FOR CONTROLLING ENERGY

FEDERAL ELECTRICITY COMMISSION

ENSENADA CENTER FOR SCIENTIFIC INVESTIGATION AND
UNIVERSITY STUDIES

COMMITTEE OF SPONSORING ORGANIZATIONS OF THE
TREADWAY COMMISSION

EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES, DEPRECIATION, AND
AMORTIZATION

ENERGIA COSTA AZUL S. DE R.L. DE C.V., LNG STORAGE AND
REGASIFICATION TERMINAL

ECOGAS MEXICO, S. DE R.L. DE C.V., THE NATURAL GAS
DISTRIBUTION BUSINESS

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

THE 155 MW WIND FARM LOCATED AT LA RUMOROSA, IN THE
MEXICAN STATE OF BAJA CALIFORNIA

FOREIGN CORRUPT PRACTICES ACT

AGUAPRIETA PIPELINE

GREAT PLACE TO WORK (PROGRAM THAT RANKS THE BEST
COMPANIES TO WORK AT)

ROSARITO PIPELINE

GIGA-WATTS

GIGA-WATTS HOUR

HORSE POWER

INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA NOVA S.A.B. DE C.V.
ECOLOGY INSTITUTE

IPC INDEX OF THE MEXICAN STOCK EXCHANGE
INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION FOR STANDARDIZATION
INCOME TAX

JOINT VENTURE

KILOMETER

KILOWATTS

KILOWATTS-HOUR

LIQUEFIED NATURAL GAS

LIQUEFIED PETROLEUM GAS

LOST TIME ACCIDENT RATE

MILLIONS OF CUBIC FEET DAILY

MARINE MAMMALS MONITORING PROGRAM

MEGAWATTS
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NOM
OECD

OHSAS
PEMEX
PEMEX TRI

PROFECO
PROFEPA
SCADA
SCR
SEMARNAT

SEMPRA ENERGY

STPS
TDM

TGN

TRIR
UABC
uUsD$
VAT
VENTIKA

OFFICIAL MEXICAN STANDARD

ORGANIZATION FOR ECONOMIC COOPERATION AND
DEVELOPMENT
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ASSESSMENT SERIES
PETROLEOS MEXICANOS

PEMEX TRANSFORMACION INDUSTRIAL (TRI), FORMERLY
KNOWN AS PEMEX GAS Y PETROQUIMICA BASICA, IS THE
STATE PRODUCTION COMPANY, A SUBSIDIARY OF PEMEX
FEDERAL CONSUMER PROTECTION AGENCY

FEDERAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA ACQUISITION
SELECTIVE CATALYTIC REDUCTION

MEXICAN MINISTRY OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

THE INDIRECT CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF IENOVA; A
COMPANY INCORPORATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IN THE US

MEXICAN MINISTRY OF LABOR AND SOCIAL WELFARE

TERMOELECTRICA DE MEXICALI, S. DE R.L. DE C.V., IENOVA'S
POWER PLANT.

TRANSPORTADORA DE GAS NATURAL DE BAJA CALIFORNIA,
S.DER.L., ONE OF IENOVA'S NATURAL GAS PIPELINES
TOTAL RECORDABLE INCIDENT RATE

AUTONOMOUS UNIVERSITY OF BAJA CALIFORNIA

US DOLLARS

VALUE ADDED TAX

252 MW WIND FARM LOCATED IN THE STATE OF NUEVO LEON

CHEMICAL
FORMULAS

CH
co
co,

CO,e

2

4

N.,O
NO

SO

GLOSSARY
CARBON
DIOXIDE
EQUIVALENT
BENTHONIC
FAUNA
INVOLUNTARY
TURNOVER RATE

TOTAL
TURNOVER RATE

VOLUNTARY
TURNOVER RATE

THE CLIMATE
REGISTRY

OPERATING UNIT

METHANE

CARBON MONOXIDE

CARBON DIOXIDE

CARBON DIOXIDE EQUIVALENT (A MEASUREMENT USED TO
COMPARE SEVERAL GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS BASED ON
THEIR GLOBAL WARMING POTENTIAL)

NITROGEN OXIDE

(APPLIES TO VARIOUS COMPOUNDS FORMED BY OXYGEN
AND NITROGEN)

SULFUR OXIDES (APPLIES TO VARIOUS COMPOUNDS FORMED
BY OXYGEN AND SULFUR)

UNIVERSAL MEASUREMENT USED TO INDICATE THE EFFECT
ON GLOBAL WARMING OF EACH OF THE GREENHOUSE GAS
EMISSIONS

A GROUP OF ORGANISMS THAT LIVE ON SEA BEDS

(NUMBER OF HIRES IN' A YEAR - NUMBER OF INVOLUNTARY
CUTS IN A YEAR) / TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES.

(NUMBER OF HIRES IN A YEAR - NUMBER OF VOLUNTARY
AND INVOLUNTARY CUTS IN A YEAR) / TOTAL NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES.

(NUMBER OF HIRES IN A YEAR - NUMBER OF VOLUNTARY
CUTS IN A YEAR) / TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES.

NGO IN THE US THAT MEASURES AND VERIFIES
INTERNATIONAL CARBON STANDARDS.

REFERS TO IENOVA'S COMPANIES OPERATING IN THE GAS
AND ELECTRICITY BUSINESS SEGMENTS.
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ABOUT THIS
REPORT

[102-12,102-45, 103-1,102-49, 102-50, 102-52, 102-54, 102-55, 102-56]

This is the fourth Sustainability Report published
by IEnova. In it we describe in detail our company's
performance during 2016, including our
accomplishments and the challenges we faced
concerning economic, social, and environmental
issues. For the second time, the Report includes
the company'’s financial highlights.

This Sustainability Report + Financial Report
summarizes the information pertaining to our
Gas and Power business segments, including
companies that offer natural gas, LPG, and
ethane pipelines and storage services, as well as
liguefied natural gas storage; companies that
distribute natural gas; and our combined-cycle
plant and wind parks, which generate electricity.

In drafting this Report, for the first time we
followed the new Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
methodology known as the GRI Sustainability
Reporting Standards, in accordance with the
“Core" option.

The information included in this Report covers
the period between January 1t and December
31t 2016. It employs the information contained in
our databases and the analyses carried out by
each of the companies that make up IEnova.

The issues identified in our 2014 materiality
assessment continue to be relevant for both
IEnova and our stakeholders. Following the new
GRI Standards, we report on the information
pertaining to the indicators related to our
material aspects and boundaries, as well as on
those that we consider to be most relevant to our
stakeholders. We obtained the GRI Materiality
Disclosures Service mark for the third
consecutive year. Our methodology is described
in the chapter entitled “We are a Sustainable

Company.” In addition, throughout the Report we
describe the formulas used to calculate the
indicators and we specify the operating units for
which we are reporting the information. We have
also clearly identified any changes in our metrics
with respect to information reported in prior years.

Within the Gas segment, unless otherwise
specified, the consolidated performance data for
IEnova does not include information on the
assets belonging to Gasoductos de Chihuahua, a
company from which, in September 2016, we
purchased the 50% share we didn't previously
own from Pemex Transformacién Industrial (TRI).
In the Power segment, the Report does include
data on Energia Sierra Judrez, a cross-border
wind farm that we built and now operate as part
of our joint venture with InterGen, in which we
have a 50% stake. The Report does not include
data on our Ventika wind farm, which we acquired
in December 2016.

For the third consecutive year, Deloitte, as an
independent third-party, reviewed 30 material
indicators included in this Sustainability Report.

As a signatory of the UN Global Compact since
2015, this Report constitutes IEnova’'s second
Communication on Progress (COP). We also include
herein the progress we have made in terms of the
Compact's ten principles and our contribution to
the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

We thank you for your interest in our company. We
are certain the Report contains enough detailed
information about IEnova's social responsibility
performance. This 2016 Sustainability Report +
Financial Report is available to view and download
on our website: www.ienova.com.mx.

CONTACT

Paseo de la Reforma No.342
Piso 24. Col. Judrez,
Delegacién Cuauhtémoc

Zip Code 06600

Mexico City

Phone (55)-9138-0100




. www.ienova.com.mx






